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SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The directors present their strategic report on the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal activities

Suncor Energy UK Holdings Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled
in England.

The Company’s registered office is 3™ Floor, 1 Ashley Road, Altrincham, Cheshire, WA14 2DT.,

The immediate parent company is Suncor Energy International Holdings Inc. The ultimate parent company is
Suncor Energy Inc., which is incorporated in Canada.

Suncor Energy Inc. is the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
staternents as at 31 December 2019. The consolidated financial statements of Suncor Energy Inc. are available
from:

Suncor Energy Inc. 150 — 6% Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 3ES

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a holding company to Suncor Energy UK Limited, Suncor
Energy International Trading Limited and Suncor Energy Treasury Services Limited, its three wholly owned
subsidiaries, and to Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Suncor Energy UK
Limited. The Company has no trading activities and only generates income and expenses from loans and
dividends to and from its subsidiaries.

Business Review

The results of the Company show a profit before taxation for the year of £395.5 million (2018: £371.7 million}.
An unsecured loan to group undertakings of £258.7 million and interest thereon which was issued on 24
November 2015 was fully repaid on 15 November 2019.

Performance indicators

The directors of Suncor Energy Inc., the ultimate parent company of Suncor Energy UK Holdings Limited,
manage the operations on a group basis. For this reason, the Company’s directors are of the opinion that analysis
using key performance indicators is not necessary for an understanding of the development or position of this
business.

The development and position of the ultimate parent company of Suncor Energy UK Holdings Limited, is
discussed in the group’s annual report and financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company’s’ main activities expose it to the financial risks of foreign exchange. This is discussed in further
detail in the Directors’ Report. The principal risks and uncertainties of the company’s subsidiary investments are
as follows:

On March 10, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak a
pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of COVID-19 include restrictions on
travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and businesses. These
measures have and will continue to have a significant increase in economic uncertainty, with reduced demand for
commodities leading to volatile prices. The business of the company’s subsidiary, Suncor Energy UK Limited is
particularly sensitive to a reduction in the demand for crude ol that is closely linked to the company’s financial
performance. In addition, whilst that company’s production operations have not been significantly impacted by
the virus, it has taken measures to mitigate the risks arising to people and business interruption to offshore
operations.

Other factors that may affect that subsidiary’s results include reservoir performance and facility reliability.
Reservoir performance is managed by monitoring static data and dynamic simulation. Production efficiency is
maintained by controlling planned maintenance, as well as monitoring and acting on unplanned maintenance
issues and trends. Drilling campaigns are approved on the basis of economic resource addition, which includes
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

assessment of technical and drilling uncertainties. Overall, catastrophic risk is mitigated by having insurances in
place, such as business interruption insurance.

Directors’ engagement statement

The Directors recognise their duty to act in 2 way which they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole in accordance with section 172 of
the UK Companies Act 2006. The Directors’ section [72 duties are part of Board discussions. The Directors

continue to have regard to the interest of the company’s key stakeholders and, throughout the year, the Board and

management engage with key stakeholders on items relevant to them. We set out below our key stakeholder
groups, their material issues and how the company engages with and considers the interest of each stakeholder

group.
Stakeholder
Are i
group as of focus Response and actions
Employees » Engagement * The company conducts emplovee satisfaction surveys and exit
and work interviews of employees leaving in order to gather feedback to
culture further engagement with employees.
» Training and e Suncor’s annual President’s Operational Excellence Awards
development support and highlight the company’s goals by honouring
« Diversity and employees and contractors who demonstrate an exceptional
iversity an commitment to operational excellence.
inclusion
e R . s The company employs a performance management cycle that is an
emuneration ongoing, collaborative process between leaders and employees.
The main components are ongoing performance discussions,
regular coaching, feedback and recognition.
+ The company actively seeks to promote diversity and inclusion
throughout its workforce. To support this, the Inclusion and
Diversity Council, which sets and champions an inclusion and
diversity strategy, was formed at the ultimate parent level in 2017
with senior leaders.
¢ The company provides competitive compensation and benefit
packages. The company offers developmental opportunities based
on individual performance and identified potential.
Customers s Cost s Customer information and performance metrics are regularly
o reported to management and the directors.
s Credibility, P &

trust, reliability
and reputation

* Service,
collaboration,
and
responsiveness

» The company develops and fosters credibility and trust among a
large and diverse customer base.

* The company strives to comply with its customer contracts, which,
in turn, helps to create and maintain long-term customer
relationships.

* Suncor has a Stakeholder Relations Policy that outlines our
commitment to developing and maintaining positive, meaningful
relationships with stakeholders in all operating areas and provides
principles for guiding the development of stakeholder relations.

- —

(%)
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Stakehoider Areas of focus Response and actions
group
Partners, sub- | « Expertise + The company has a Supplier Code of Conduct that highlights the
contractors o values that are important and is a guide to the standard of behaviour
and supply * Credlbl_hty and required of all suppliers, contractors, consultants and other third
chain reputation parties with whom the company does business. The Supplier Code of
s Long-term Conduct addresses topics such as safety, human rights, harassment,
partnership bribery and corruption, and confidential information, among others. It
also reinforces our commitment to sustainable development and
+ Collaborative encourages business associates to work with the company to seek
approach ways to reduce environmental impacts, support the communities in
which it works and collectively achieve economic growth.
Compliance with the Supplier Code of Conduct is a standard
requirement for all supply chain contracts.
We carefully select our business partners through the application of
rigorous due diligence processes of business partners that share our
values and our commitment to safety and integrity.
The company strives to comply with its supplier contracts, which, in
turn, helps us create and maintain long-term supplier relationships.
Local - e Local The company is committed to making a positive impact in the
communities economy communities where we live and work by creating jobs and

sponsoring community initiatives where we operate.

The company strives to comply with local labour laws and local
environmental policy and actively engages with local partners on
these matters.

Suncor has an Environment, Health and Safety policy which affirms
our commitment to be a sustainable energy company by working to
achieve or exceed levels of performance governed by legislation and
by the evolving environmental, social and economic expectations of
the company’s stakeholders.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

A. Campbell
Director
29 June 2020




SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The Directors submit their report on the affairs of the Company, together with the audited financial statements
and independent auditors’ report, for the vear ended 31 December 2019,

Results and dividends

The Company’s profit for the financial year was £395.3 million (2018: £371.8 million). Dividends of £395.0
million were paid during the vear to the Company’s immediate parent company, Suncor Energy International
Heldings Inc. (2018: £270.0 million). On April 27, 2020, the company received a dividend of £61.5 million from
Suncor Energy UK Limited and subsequently paid a dividend of £61.5 million to Suncor Energy International
Holdings Inc.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s main activities expose it to the financial risks of foreign exchange. The Board will, however,
continue to closely monitor the risks associated with the currency fluctuations and manage these with regard to
the Company’s commitments.

Foreign Exchange risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks in changes of foreign currency exchange rates.
Any foreign currency exposure is managed at a group level in compliance with Suncor Energy Inc. group
policies.

Price risk

The Company is exposed to commodity price risk through its investment in its subsidiaries. The Company does
not manage its exposure to commodity prices separately due to cost benefit considerations. Instead, the
commadity price risk associated with the Company is managed as part of a broader portfolio at a group level.

Directors and their interests

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were:

R. Davie (resigned 30 April 2019)

D. Zeller (resigned 20 June 2019)

A. Campbell {appointed 4 June 2019}

A. Eggerton {(appointed 4 December 2019)
S. Trueman

The directors who held office at the end of the financial year do not have any interests in the shares of the
Company or any other UK group company nor received any remuneration from the Company.

Going concern

The Company’s business activities are set out in the Strategic Report and the factors likely to affect its future
development and performance are set out abave in the Directors’ Report.

The directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the
uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements.

Charitable and political contributions

The Company did not make any charitable or political contributions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework,

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concemn; and

* use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic altermative but to do.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying
third party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in
force throughout the last financial vear and is currently in force. The Company also purchased and maintained
throughout the financial year Directors” and Officers™ liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Engagement with Employees, Suppliers, Customers and Others

Relationships with stakeholders are of strategic importance to the company and these matters are therefore dealt
with in the strategic report (under the Directors’ engagement statement section).

Independent Auditor
KPMG LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning their appointment

will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

A. Campbell
Director
29 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS
LIMITED

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Suncor Energy UK Holdings Limited (the company™) for the year

ended 31 December 2019 which comprise the income statement, statement of financial position, statement of
changes in equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended,

e havc been properly prepaied in accordance with UK accounting standards, ncluding FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework;, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UKY") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial position means
that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the
financial statements {“the going concem period™).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inapproptiate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that
basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the
directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business model, including the impact of
Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
1o a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Strategic report directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

. in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

. in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
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¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
{UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Dev 1D

David Derbyshire (Senior
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

1 Marischal Square

Broad Street

Aberdeen

ABI10 IDD

2 IL% 2¢: 20




SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Interest receivable and similar income
Income from shares in group undertakings
Interest payable and similar expenses
Profit before taxation

Tax on profit

Profit for the financial year

Note

2019 2018
£000 £000
(16) (18)
(16) (18)
8,379 9,122
395,000 372,000
(7,909 (9.361)
395,454 371,743
(139 51
395,315 371,794

There are no other comprehensive income iteins during the year (2018: nil) other than the profit for the financial

year. Accordingly, a statement of comprehensive income is not presented.

The Company’s results are all derived from continuing activities.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments o 796,984 796,984
Current assets
Debtors
-amounts falling due within one year 10 2,304 2375
-amounts falling due after more than one year 10 - 258740
2,304 261,115
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 11 {(40) (426)
Net Current Assets 2,264 260,689
Total assets less current liabilities 799,248 1.057,673
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 12 - (258,740)
Net assets 799,248 798,933
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 ) )
Share premium account 140,414 140,414
Other reserves 449,894 449 804
Profit and loss account 208,940 208,625
Total shareholders’ funds 799,248 798,933

The financial statements on pages 9 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on behalf by:

V2

A. Campbeli
29 June 2020

Company Number 04415728
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2819

At 1 January 2018

Profit for the financial year

Dividends paid
At 31 December 2018

Profit for the financial year

Dividends paid
At 31 December 2019

Share Total
Premium Profit and Other shareholders’
Account loss account reserves funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
140,414 106,831 449 894 697,139
- 371,794 - 371,794

- (270,000) - (270,000)
140,414 208 625 449,894 798,933
- 395,315 - 395,315

- (395,000) - (395,000)
140,414 208,940 449,894 799,248




SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

2.1.

2.2.

General information

Suncor Energy UK Holdings Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled
in England.

The Company’s registered office is 3" Floor, 1 Ashley Road, Altrincham, Cheshire, WA 14 2DT.

The immediate parent company is Suncor Energy International Holdings Inc. The ultimate parent company is
Suncor Energy Inc., which is incorporated in Canada.

Suncor Energy Inc. is the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
statements as at 31 December 2019, The consolidated financial statements of Suncor Energy Inc. are available
from:

Suncor Energy Inc. 150 - 6™ Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 3ES

The principal activity of the Company is to act as a holding company to Suncor Energy UK Limited, Suncor
Energy International Trading Limited and Suncor Energy Treasury Services Limited, its three wholly owned
subsidiaries, and to Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Suncor Energy UK
Limited. The Company has no trading activities and only generates income and expenses from loans and
dividends to and from its subsidiaries.

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the year and
the prior year, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting standards, in
particular, Financial Reporting Standards 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and the Companies
Act 2006 (the Act). FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a qualifying entity’ as defined in the
standard which addresses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual
financial statements of qualifying entities that otherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of EU-adopted IFRS.

The Company is a qualifying entity for purposes of FRS 101. Note 14 gives details of the Company’s ultimate
parent and from where its consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS may be obtained.

The Company has adopted the intermediate parent exemption under section 401 of the Companies Act 2006;
hereby it is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements as the ultimate parent company prepares
publically available consclidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS. Details of the ultimate parent
company are disclosed in Note 14.

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention,

Disclosure requirements

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of
the following disclosures

Certain disclosures required by IFRS [3 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7
Financial Instrument Disclosures.

Cash Flow Statement and related notes.
Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel
Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries.

The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDFD 31 DFCEMBER 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3. Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the relevant rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction or at the contract rate where applicable. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction is included as an exchange
gain or loss in the profit and loss account.

2.4. Taxation
Accounting policies relating to corporation tax payable to the UK government are as follows:

i) Current UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Tax losses are surrendered or claimed in the form of group relief with consideration being received or
paid accordingly. The group relief amount is recorded separately within the debtors and creditors
amounts in the balance sheet as appropriate and is calculated by applying the tax rate enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date to the loss amount.

ii) Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at
the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the
future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing
differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the
financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods
different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of
all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the
timing differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

2.5. Interest receivable and payable

Interest arising is charged or credited to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is payable or
receivable.

2.6. Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance, are set out in the Strategic report for the yvear on page 3. The Directors’ report also outlines the
Company’s financial risk management policies.

On March 10, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) ocutbreak
a pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of COVID-19 include restrictions on
travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places and businesses.
These measures have and will continue to have a significant increase in economic uncertainty, with reduced
demand for commodities leading to volatile prices. The Company’s subsidiary’s business is particularly
sensitive to a reduction in the demand for crude oil that is closely linked to the company’s financial
performance. In addition, whilst the subsidiary’s production operations have not been significantly impacted
by the virus, it has taken measures to mitigate the risks arising to people and business interruption to offshore
operations.

13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDLED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.
2.6

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

Accounting policies (continued)
Going concern {continued)

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the subsidiary for the next twelve months. In making

their assessment, the directors have evaluated the subsidiary’s forecast production at a range of reasonably
possible lower oil price scenarios, reflecting the global decreased demand from the coronavirus pandemic.
The directors have also evaluated financial operating and capital expenditure commitments in the forecast
period, including in respect of the subsidiary’s defined benefit pension scheme.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being at least a twelve month period from the
date of approval of these financial statements. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the annual report and financial statements.

Investments

Investments are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment. The directors review for impairment
indicators on an annual basis, and if there is an indication that the investment is impaired, an impairment is
assessed.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories: fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), fair value through other comprehensive income, or at amortized cost. This
determination is made at initial recognition. All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on
the balance sheet, net of any transaction costs except for financial instruments classified as fair value through
profit and loss, where transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Subsequent measurement of financial
instruments is based on their classification. The Company classifies cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and intercompany loans as financial liabilities at
amortized cost.

Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is determined, whenever possible, based on observable market data.
If not available, the Company uses third party models and valuation methodologies that utilize observable
market data that includes forward commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest rates to estimate the
fair value of financial instruments, including derivatives. In addition to market information, the Company
incorporates transaction specific details that market participants would utilize in a fair value measurement,
including the impact of non-performance risk.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and intercompany loans.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate their carrying values due to the short term maturities of those instruments.

The Company’s loans payable and receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. The Company’s loans payable and receivable are recorded
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the -financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of other
income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Interest on loans and receivables
calculated using effective interest method is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of interest
receivable and similar income.

14



SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Recognition and measurement of financial instruments (continued)

a.  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b, Impairment of financial assels

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is evidence indicating that financial assets
measured at amortized cost may be impaired. If a financial asset measured at amortized cost is determined to
be impaired, the impairment is recognized in Administrative expenses.

c.  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Management have considered the estimates and
assumptions that have been made in calculating the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The carrying
value of investments in subsidiary undertakings is considered to be the only area of material estimation
within the financial statements. Refer to note 9 for further details.

3. Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
a.  New standards, amendments and interpretations

Effective January 1, 2019, the company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16) which replaces the IAS 17
Leases (IAS 17) and requires the recognition of most leases on the balance sheet, IFRS 16 effectively
removes the classification of leases as either finance or operating leases and treats alf leases as finance leases
for lessees with optional exemptions for short-term leases where the term is twelve months or less. The
accounting treatment for lessors remains essentially unchanged, with the requirement to classify leases as
either finance or operating,

The Company has reviewed all contracts and has determined that it has no leases. As a result, the adoption
of [FRS 16 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

4, Expenses and auditor’s remuneration
2019 2018
£000 £000
Professional fees 4 8
Aﬂdiff)r ’S FERURSration
Audit of these financial statements 12 10
16 18

No directors exercised stock options in the ultimate parent Company during 2019 (2018: 2). No directors
received any remuneration for their services to the Company in 2019 (2018: £nil).

This Company had no emplovees for the year to 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).



SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

5. Interest receivable and similar income
2019 2018
£0060 £000
Interest on intercompany loans and debit balances 8,379 9,002
Foreign exchange gain - 120
8,379 9,122
6. Interest payable and similar expenses
2019 2018
£000 £000
Interest on intercompany loans and credit balances 7,779 9,361
Fereign exchange loss 130 -
7,909 9,361
7. Tax on profit
a) Analysis of tax credit in the year
2019 2018
£000 £000
Current tax:
Tax (group relief receivable) 139 (51}
Total current tax 139 D
Total tax for the year 139 (51

b) Reconciliation of tax credit in the year

The difference between the total tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of
UK corporation tax to the profit before taxation is as follows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Profit before taxation 395,454 371,743
Tax at 19.00% for the Company (2018: 19.00%) 75,136 70,631
Effects of:
Dividends not subject to tax (75,050) (70,680)
Adjustment in respect of previous periods 53 2)
139 (51)

Total tax credit for the year

There was no deferred tax at either balance sheet date.



SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

7. Tax on profit (continued)
Factors affecting current and future tax changes

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective from | April 2020) was substantively
enacted on 6 September 2016. The March 2020 Budget announced that a rate of 19% would continue to
apply with effect from 1 April 2020, and this change was substantively enacted on 19 March 2020. This will
have a consequential effect on the company’s future tax charge.

8. Dividends paid and received

The Company paid dividends during the year of £395,000,000 per share to its immediate parent, Suncor
Energy International Holdings Inc. (2018: £270,000,000). The Company received dividends during the year
of £395,000,000 from its subsidiary, Suncor Energy UK Limited (2018: £372,000,000).

2019 2018
£000 £000
Dividends paid during the year on ordinary shares (per share) 395,000 270,000

On April 27. 2020, the company received a dividend of £61.5 million from Suncor Energy UK Limited and
subsequently paid a dividend of £61.5 million to Suncor Energy International Holdings Inc.

9, Investments

2019 2018
£000 £000
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 796,984 796,984

The net assets as at 31 December 2019 of subsidiary entity Suncor Energy UK Limited were lower than their
carrying value in these financial statements. This was as a result of having declared and paid dividends of
£395,000,000 during 2019. The directors consider that the carrying value of Suncor Energy UK Limited in
these financial statements is supported by the estimated value in use of the investment as represented by its
future net operating cash inflows, which are forecast to be earned based on the profitable activities and cash
flows generated from Suncor Energy UK Limited's North Sea oil and gas assets. As Suncor Energy UK
Limited's business has continued to remain profitable in recent years and is forecast to continue to do so, the
directors have considered that there is no trigger event to the carrying value of the investment in the
subsidiary and therefore no impairment test has been performed.

The directors believe that the carrying value of the other investments is supported by their underlying net
assets.

The Company hag investments in the following whelly owned subsidiary undertakings:



SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

9. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary
undertakings Principal activity Incorporated Address of Registered Office
Suncor Energy | Otl and gas exploration, Great Britain c/o Oakwood Corporate Services
UK Limited development and production. Limited, 3rd Floor, [ Ashley Road
Altrincham, Cheshire, WA 14 2DT
Suncor Energy | Marketing and sale of crude (ireat Britain c/o Oakwood Corporate Services
luternational Limited, 3rd Floor, I Ashley Road
Trading Altrincham, Cheshire, WA 14 2DT
Limited
Suncor Energy | Set up to host bank accounts Great Britain ¢/o Oakwood Corporate Services
Treasury for the in-house banking of the Limited, 3rd Floor, | Ashley Road
Services International business unit. Altrincham, Cheshire, WA14 2DT
Limited

Suncor Energy UK Limited has investments in the following subsidiary:

Subsidiary

undertakings Principal activity Incorporated Address of Registered Office

Petro-Canada The Company now has no Great Britain c/o Oakwood Comporate Services

Energy North trading activities and only Limited, 3" Floor, ! Ashley Road

Sea Limited generates income from a Joan Altrincham, Cheshire, WA14 2DT
to its parent Company

All wholly owned subsidiaries are carried in the balance sheet at cost.
impairment indicators.

19. Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts gwed by other group undertakings:
- Intercompany current accounts

Vat receivable
Corporation tax

Amounts falling due after one year
Amounts owed by other group undertakings:

- lLoan to group undertakings

The Company tests annually for

2019 2018
£000 £000
2,254 2,064
2 124

48 187

2,304 2,375

- 258,740

2,34 201,115

The loan to group undertakings is an unsecured loan of £258,740,000, and interest thereon which was issued

on 24 November 2015 and was fully repaid on 15 November 2019,

Amounts owed by other group companies are unsecured, bear interest and are repayable on demand. To
optimise the yse of liquid funds, the Company’s cash is held within a cash pooling system administered by
another company within the group. These accounts receive interest based on market rates.

18



SUNCOR ENERGY UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

11. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2019 2018
£000 £000

Amounts owed to group undertakings
~  Intercompany current accounts 10 396
Accruals and deferred income 30 30
40 426

Amounts owed to group companies are unsceured, interest free and repayable on demand. To optimise the
use of liquid funds, the Company’s cash is held within a cash pooling system administered by another
company within the group. These accounts pay interest based on market rates.

12. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2019 2018
£600 £000
Amounts falling due after more than one year - 258,740

Eurobond

The Company issued a £258,740,000 Eurobond listed on the Channel Islands Securities Exchange. The bond
was issued at a floating rate of Libor +2.75%. The Eurobond was fully repaid on 15 November 2019.

13. Called up share capital

2019 2018
£000 £000

Authorised: 100 (2018:100) ordinary shares of US$1 each - -

Called up, allotted and payable on demand:
1 (2018:1) ordinary share of $1 - -

14. Ultimate parent company and controlling party

The ultimate parent company and controlling entity is Suncor Energy Inc., a company incorporated in
Canada. The immediate parent company is Suncor Energy Intemational Holdings Inc. As the Company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Suncor Energy Inc., the Company has taken advantage of the exemption
available under paragraph 8 of FRS 101 which allows exemption from disclosure of related party
transactions with other group companies. The consolidated financial statements of the Suncor Group, the
smallest and largest group to include the financial statements of the Company, are available from Suncor
Energy Inc. at 150 - 6™ Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 3ES.

15. Subsequent events

As set out in note 1, subsequent to the vear end, the COVID-19 pandemic is an ongoing situation that will
continue to have implications for our business environment, operations and financial condition.
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2019 HIGHLIGHTS

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS
{$ millions} 15 16 17 18 19?

~ BILLION

funds from operations

£ Capital expenditures 6220 5986 5822 5250 5436

M Funds from operations 6806 5988 9139 10172 10818
SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

$ millions) 15 16 17 18 19

BILLION

returned to shareholders through

T M Share repurchases 43 - 1413 3053 2274
leldendS and Share repurChaSES M Dividends 1648 1877 2124 2333 2614
£ Dividend + share repurchase 3% 3% 5% 7% 8%
yield
PRODUCTION
{mboefd) 15 16 17 18 197

BARRELS I ”
of oil equivalent per day

B Exploration and Produdtion 1144 1179 1216 1034 1068

M 0ii Sands 463.4 5049 563.7 6286 6704

Total production 5778 6228 06853 7320 7772
RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED

(%) 15 16 17 18 199

~ RETURN o

n

on capital employed

. _ "

M ROCE ciuding major wojects nprogress. 0.5 o4 6.7 80 49
B ROCE excioding majer progscts in progress 44 2 05 8.6 8.2 8.6
£ WTI (USSbbl) 4875 4335 5095 64.80 57.05

(1) ROCF excluding major projects in progress, significant imparments and 1n 2019, the impacts of the $1 116 billion deferred tax recovery for the Alberta corparate income tax rate change.
(2} Includes the impact of the Government of Alberta’s mandatery production curtailments.

This Annual Repart contains forward-looking statements based on Suncor’s current expectations, estimates, projections and assumptians, as well as certain financial measures, namely operating
earnings {loss), funds from operations, return on caprtal employed (ROCE), Qil Sands operations cash oparating costs, Fort Hills cash operating costs, Syncrude cash operating costs and free
funds flow and discretionary free funds flow that are not prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) Refer to the Advisories sections of this Annual Report and Suncar’s
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) dated February 26, 2020.
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THE SUNCOR ADVANTAGE

THE SUNCOR ADVANTAGE

Taimoor and Alex stand on a platform at®il Sands Base

Suncor’s long-life, low-decline asset base, strong balance sheet and integrated model,
with our connection to end consumers through our retail network, sets us apart from
our peers. These advantages are complemented by our long-standing approach to
sustainability, operational excellence, capital discipline, technology and innovation. Our
strategy capitalizes on these differentiators and provides the foundation for being a part
of the evolving energy transition while increasing cash flow and continuing to deliver
long-term returns to shareholders.

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Qur focus on operational excellence, commitment to capital discipline through share repurchases and dividends. Since May 2017, we have
and investments in high-value projects underpin our ability to repurchased over 9 per cent of cur common shares outstanding
consistently generate cash flow across a wide range of business and 2019 marked the 17" consecutive year we increased our annual
environments. In 2019, we increased our funds from operations to a dividend, demonstrating confidence in our ability to generate cash

record $10.8 billion, of which we returned 45 per cent to shareholders flow and our commitment to returning it to shareholders.

EARNINGS 15 16 17 18 19
Our strong balance sheet s millions)

provides the foundation to
increase returns and value to
shareholders over the long

term, bolstered by our target
to increase free funds flow by :
$2 b||||0n annually by 2023 £ Net (loss} earnings (1995) 445 4458 3293 2899

O Operating eamings (loss) 1465 {83) 3188 4312 4358

2 2015 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc.



A PROVEN INTEGRATED MODEL

From the ground to the gas station, we optimize profits through products. Our exposure to heavy crude differentials is mitigated
each link in the value chain. Operational excellence allows us to through our flexible asset base and market access advantage.
unlock the full value of our reserves and, through our integrated
model, we capture maximum value through a wide range of
market conditions. Our network of midstream and marketing
assets enables us to achieve this integration and obtain global

In 2019, Suncor was able to leverage its asset flexibility to
maximize the value of its allotted barrels under the Government
of Alberta’s mandatory production curtailment program, by
optimizing production of higher value synthetic crude oil (SCO)
pricing on the majority of our upstream production and refined production and transferring credits among the company’s assets.

100% oil High margin Strong downstream
production barrels markets

Long-life,
low-decline assets

mboe/d mboe/d mboe/d

2019 total Heavy upgrading Refining
production nameplate capacity nameplate capacity

YEARS

Proved + probable
reserves life index

e
FORT MCMURRAY ¢y
EDMONTON . @
° il and wholesale si
VANCOUVER retail and wholesale sites O ST. IOHN'S
'O;""'--""o y
vicrore® CALGARY =

'-...‘ . .
!.-...‘.....

. a®o0y
L . . O HALIFAX
o

. ©Q toroNTO
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MONTREAL

© LoNDON

Alberta egress bottleneck does
not impact the ability to move
Suncor barrels

Petro-Canada™ is a registered trademark of Suncor Energy Inc. used under license,

MINING, IN $ITU AND UPGRADING ‘ OFFSHORE OPERATIONS . REFINERY

COGENERATION Q WIND POWER PROJECT  ewee PETRO-CANADA™ ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING NETWORK Eﬁ BIOFUELS
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I We believe technology and innovative thinking are

critical to ensure our resilience in a low-carbon future

SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability is about seeing the big picture and working together to enhance social and economic benefits while minimizing the

environmental impacts of resource development.

ENVIRONMENT

The energy system is transforming towards a low-carben
economy and we helieve Suncer has an important role to play
in that transition.Through new technology, investment in low-
carbon power and fuels, and increasing energy efficiency, we
plan to reduce our greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity
by 30 per cent by 2030. We have contributed to this goal by
reducing our GHG emissions intensity by approximately 10 per cent
since 2014. We plan to continue to reduce emissions intensity
through projects such as the Forty Mile Wind Power Project
and our decision to replace the coke-fired boilers at Oil Sands
Base with cogeneration units to provide the steam we need

for our operations. Together, nameplate capacity of these
projects is expected to deliver 1,000 megawatts of zero and
low-carbon electricity, respectively, that we plan to send to the
Alberta power grid. Through continued innovation, sustainable
investments and collaborative solutions, we are committed to
reducing our environmental footprint.

SOCIAL

We aim to enhance people’s lives through the provision of
stable and secure energy and by being a responsible community
member. Our continued investment and commitment in the
community remains a top priority and is integral to our success.
We have continued our successful partnership on the East Tank
Farm Development with our partners, the Fort McKay and
Mikisew Cree First Nations. Their $503 million equity investment
represents Canada’s largest Indigenous energy investment. Also
in 2019, the number of Indigenous-owned Petro-Canada™ retail
sites grew to 39 stations across Canada, a demonstration of
ongoing and increasing collaboration.

4 2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc.

GOVERNANCE

Through sound governance and committed leadership, we have
created a strong foundation for resilient and sustainable energy
development. Suncor's robust governance structure includes
our board, and its committees, together with our executive
management team, whose remuneration is impacted by
corporate performance on environmental, social and governance
initiatives. The board's responsibilities include governance,
strateqgic planning and the stewardship of Suncor, including
identifying and mitigating principal risks such as carbon risk. The
company has a diverse and experienced board, which has had
Indigenous representation for two decades, and is comprised of
40 per cent female directors.

The executive management team also includes the Chief
Sustainability Officer, which highlights the importance of this
evolving facet of our industry to Suncor, and supports our
tradition of 25 years of sustainability focus and reporting.

Reducing emissions

intensity by 30% by 2030

~10% GHG intensity reduction since 2014
Additional 10% sanctioned

Phato: A wind turbine at our Chin Chute operation near Taber, Alberta
Petro-Canada™ is a registered trademark of Suncor Energy Inc. used under license



TECHNOLOGY AND
INNOVATION DRIVEN

Technology and innovation are critical to achieving our economic,
operational, environmental and social goals. We continue to
accelerate our digital transformation in areas such as improved data
analytics, drones, and remote sensing technology and automation to
help improve the safety, productivity, reliability and environmental
performance of cur operations. Next generation extraction
technologies, investment in clean-tech venture capital and advanced
low-carbon fuels are just a few examples of our progression in the area
of technology and innovation. In 2019, the completion of Canada’s first
electric highway with locations from coast to coast demonstrates
our active involvement in the evolving energy transition.

Hiram keeps a close wighth in the contral room at Qil Sands Base
it

MILLION

investment in technology
development and
deployment in 2019,
including digital

transformation spend

e e

etro-Canada'™ electric veﬁicie charging station in Milton, Ontaria .




MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

TRUSTED ENERGY FOR THE FUTURE

MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Mark Little

The energy industry continued to live through tumultuous times in 2019 with questions about the
role of fossit fuels in meeting the world’s energy needs through this century. What's certain is that
Canada has a significant strategic resource in the oil sands that will continue to play an important
role in the energy mix for the foreseeable future. What is also certain is that, collectively, we need
to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions quickly. Suncor took significant, strategic actions in
2019 to respond to these concerns, to help shape the future of energy supply, and to be part of

the solution to reduce GHG emissions. Enabled by investments in technology and innovation, we
moved closer to our overarching economic and environmental goals of a $2 billion increase in

annual free funds flow by 2023 and a 30 per cent reduction in GHG emissions intensity by 2030.

Our integrated oil sands business continued to be a critical
contributor to our strong cash generation of over $10 billion

in funds from operations for the second year in a row, which
enabled continued investment in our future, alt despite a very
challenging business environment. We were, and continue to be,
well positioned despite continued volatility from commodity

and refined product prices, and mandatoery production curtailment
in the province of Alberta. Thanks to our integrated business
model — which proved once again to be a competitive advantage —
we were able to focus on value over volume to maximize returns,
leveraging our oil sands production with our upgrading, refining
and marketing assets to realize the highest value possible

for our produced barrels. Qur secured committed pipeline
capacity, along with additional rail capacity, supported getting
those barreis to markets where they captured global pricing,
maximizing the value of the barrels we produce.

A $1.4 billion investment in a new cogeneration facility at our
Qil Sands Base will replace coke-fired boilers with more energy
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BILLION

investment in a new
cogeneration facility

efficient, natural gas-fired cogeneration units. Expected to
provide reliable steam generation and return 800 megawatts
{(MW) of lower carbon natural gas-fired electricity to the Alberta
grid, this investment will not only make Suncor the third largest
producer of electricity in the province, it will also reduce Alberta
GHG emissions by approximately 2.5 megatonnes per year — the
equivalent of taking 550,000 cars off the road.



We also sanctioned and began construction of the Forty Mile Wind
Power Project in southern Alberta, a 200 MW renewable power
project with an estimated total capital spend of $300 million.
Forty Mile is expected to go into cormmercial service at the end of
2021 and generate double-digit economic returns through zero-
carbon power generation while retaining the carbon credits to
offset costs elsewhere in Suncor's husiness.

These actions are evidence of our commitment to our
shareholders and the environment and are part of the reason
why | look to the future with confidence and optimism. Whether
working to continually improve the performance of our core
business, contributing to global emissions reduction efforts by
providing consumers with options to reduce their footprint, or
investing in the future of energy through new technologies and

GROWTH AMIDST CURTAILMENT:

innovative thinking, we continue to take actions that reflect our
aspirational purpose: to provide trusted energy that enhances
people’s lives, while caring for each other and the earth.

To provide trusted energy
that enhances people’s

lives, while caring for each
other and the earth

BROAD AND FLEXIBLE ASSET BASE CREATES OPPORTUNITIES

In 2019, we generated a record $10.8 billion of funds from
operations and $4.4 billion in operating earnings. Our oil sands
business delivered record funds from operations of $6.1 billion
as a result of record synthetic crude oil production and strong
production from Fort Hills in its first full-year of operations.

In addition, Syncrude recorded its second best production

year in its history. These results represent an increase in

funds from operations of 6.4 per cent over 2018, despite the
impacts of the Government of Alberta’s mandatory production
curtailment program.

Although fundamentally we are opposed to market intervention,
the Government of Alberta’s mandatory production curtailment
program afforded Suncor the opportunity to demonstrate the
breadth and flexibility of our asset base and strength of our
business model: with integration across the value chain, we
generate higher value per barrel, enabling us to thrive under

a variety of market conditions. During 2019, we demonstrated
the value of our asset integration and flexibility through our
focus on value over volume, optimizing our preduct mix and
transferring production allotments among our assets to offset
the impacts of the mandatory production curtailment. This
unigue competitive advantage meant we were able to realize
the highest value possible for our produced barrels - focusing

on higher value but higher cost 5CO production instead of lower
margin and lower cost bitumen barrels to maximize returns.

Continued operational excellence and solid reliability at our
refineries, which averaged 95 per cent utilization rates over the
course of 2019, proved Suncor's downstream operations remain a
stable bedrock of our overall performance. With crude throughput
averaging 438,900 barrels per day (bbls/d) and refined product
sales of 539,400 bbls/d for the year, an increase of 1.9 per cent and
2.3 per cent, respectively, over the previous year, our downstream
operations continue to set new records - including record funds
from operations of $3.9 billion — and achieve year-over-year
gains in efficiency and profitability.

In Exploration and Production (E&P}, the ramp up of Hebron as
well as continued investment in near-field developments of existing
assets leave us well positioned for the future. These offshore assets,
with access to tidewater, attract global-based pricing and provide
portfolio diversity. In 2019, Hebron reached nameplate capacity
ahead of schedule, White Rose returned to full operations, and
we completed planned maintenance at Terra Nova. We also
sanctioned the Terra Nova asset |ife extension project, which is
expected to' extend the life of Terra Nova by approximately a
decade. This project is expected to allow the facility to produce an
additional 80 millien barrels of cil from the Terra Nova field.




MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

RETURNING VALUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The resilient nature of our cash ffow provided by operating
activities, combined with disciplined capital management, resulted
in $4.9 billion returned to shareholders through dividends and
share buybacks over the course of 2019. In fact, 2019 saw our
17* consecutive year of dividend growth, with a 17 per cent
increase in our dividend to $0.42 per share. We also repurchased
$2.3 billion in common shares, representing 3.6 per cent of total

STRONGER TOGETHER:

common shares outstanding, and repaid $425 million in debt.
Since recommencing the share repurchase program in May 2017,
Suncor has repurchased approximately $6.7 biflion or 153 millien
shares, over 9 per cent of our total common shares outstanding.

Our dividend growth, share repurchase program and debt
repayment reflect our continued capital allocation discipline
and ability to create substantial free cash flow — thanks to our
integrated model - across various market conditions.

COLLECTIVE ACTION FOR A NEW ENERGY FUTURE

Speaking of integration, in August we celebrated the 10-year anniversary of Suncor becoming
Canada’s leading integrated energy company through the Suncor/Petro-Canada™ merger.
Collaboration and integration remain at the heart of our business to this day as we consistently
seek new ways to partner to advance the transformation of the energy system.

INCREASING OPTIONS FOR PARTICIPATION

An area of collaboration I'm particularly passionate about is
our work with Indigenous communities. At Suncor and as the
first co-chair of the Canadian Council for Aboriginal Business
Aboriginal Procurement Champions Initiative, I'm constantly
challenging us and others to lock for meaningful, creative and
progressive ways to partner. Our engagement with Mississauga-
based Kiya Maka Consultants for software testing is a good
example of finding ways to engage indigenous businesses across
the country to increase opportunities and enhance indigenous
business competitiveness going well beyond the traditional
service and maintenance business model.

Innovative business arrangements, such as opportunities for equity
participation in planned development projects, are critical, because
they provide long-term sustainable cash flow to Indigenous
communities so that these communities can make long-term
decisions and provide education, health care, infrastructure and

more. These arrangements, such as our joint venture with Fort McKay
and Mikisew Cree First Nations on the East Tank Farm Development,
require mutual respect and an investment of time and energy to
listen and learn from one another and build trusting relationships.

MILLION

spent with Indigenous-owned

businesses and suppliers,
representing 8% of our company’s
total supply chain spend

An attendee at our annual Indspire Indigensus youth event which took place in Calgary




Transitioning the energy system requires all of us — suppliers,
consumers, industry peers and governments — to make changes
that will position Canada for success in a low-carbon environment

In 2019, Suncer spent $826 million on goods and services with
Indigenous-owned businesses and suppliers. This represents eight
per cent of our company’s total supply chain spend. We also
increased the number of First Nations-owned Petro-Canada™
stations. Our first Petro-Canada™ gas station with a First Nation
was in Saskatchewan in 2000; today, there are 39 First Nations-
owned Petro-Canada™ stations across the country.

TRANSITIONING THE ENERGY SYSTEM

In addition to increasing opportunities for Indigenous communities,
transitioning the energy system requires all of us — suppliers,
consumers, industry peers and governments - to make changes
that will position Canada for success in a low-carbon environment.

Because our business touches many aspects of Canada’s economy,
Suncor is in a unique position to influence the value chain at all
levels. The installation of a cross-Canada network of more than

50 fast-charging electric vehicle (EV) chargers at Petro-Canada™
stations is ocne way we are doing this. These stations are
positioned no further than 250 kilometres apart ensuring that

an EV charging station is within range on this electric highway
and eliminating one of the significant barriers to EV adeption.
We know our customers want options to reduce their carbon
footprint, and Canada’s Electric Highway™ is one way that Suncaor,
through its Petro-Canada™ brand, can support reducing emissions
by providing Canadians with choices for their energy needs.

Suncar is also making changes, with investments in new
technologies and renewable energy that lower our emissions,
provide new sustainable energy sources, and support achieving
our sustainability goal of a reduction of GHG emissions intensity
by 30 per cent by 2030. Our investment in low-carbon power, such
as our cogeneration facility at our Qil Sands Base and the Forty

Photo: Félix at the Montreal refinery
Canada’s Flectric Righway™ is a trademark of Suncor Energy Inc. used under license.

Mile Wind Power Project, is expected to bring us approximately
a third of the way toward meeting our GHG emissions intensity
reduction targets. With another third or a 10 per cent reduction
in emissions intensity already achieved since 2014, by 2023 we
expect to have achieved a 20 per cent reduction — two-thirds

of our 30 per cent emissions intensity reduction target. Other
strategic investments and actions that suppeorted our GHG
emissions intensity reduction efforts in 2019 included:

* $73 million equity investment in Quebec-based Enerkem Inc.,
a biofuels company that turns household waste inte methanol,
ethanol and other widely used chemicals, supporting the
mavement toward low-carbon fuel. We've also seconded
a numher of experts from the Suncor team to support the
operation of Enerkem’s plant in Edmonton.

* Energy efficiency and continuous improvement projects such
as operation performance management (OPM) dashboards at
Firebag to measure, review and make real-time decisions that
improve reliability, reduce energy intensity, and lower cost and
GHG emissions.

Launched Canada’s first
coast-to-coast network

of fast-charging electric
vehicle stations
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MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS

We will continue to focus on investing in high-return
projects that are largely independent of pipeline
constraints and commodity price volatility




* Developing and deploying new technologies enabled through
our founding membership with the Clean Resource Innovation
Network (CRIN), which facilitates connections between the
energy industry, innovators, investors, incubators, policy-makers,
researchers, and students to advance technologies for the
production of clean hydrocarbon technology targeting the
entire value chain-from source to end consumer.

The sheer amount of innovation projects directly and indirectly
supported by Suncor continues to grow and, in 2019, we spent
$830 million in technology development and deployment,

OPERATIONAL DISCIPLINE:

including $263 million in digital transformation spend. Some of
these initiatives have contributed to reducing our own GHG
emissions intensity and others are expected to contribute to
lowering the overall energy intensity of the power grid in
Alberta or the energy required to refine our products elsewhere
in North America. We continue to report on and track our
progress annually, recognizing that transparency and disclosure
are important to shareholders and many others. This year | am
proud to say we built on a quarter century of sustainability
disclosure, releasing our 25™ Report on Sustainability and our
third Climate Risk and Resilience report.

INCREASING RELIABILITY, CREATING EFFICIENCIES

Beyond lowering the carbon intensity of our business, we

are also pushing to drive efficiencies across all aspects of our
operations. With minimal exploration risk and cost in our oil
sands business, we can instead focus our efforts and resources
on improving asset reliability and lowering cash operating
costs per barrel to drive returns, while continuously improving
environmental and social performance.

Improved reliability across our oil sands business was a key
factor in production growth in 2019, with upgrader utilization
at Syncrude averaging 85 per cent, despite curtailment. We've
been on a multi-year journey to get Syncrude reliability above
90 per cent, leveraging our own experienge at Suncor's oil sands
operations, which again achieved 90 per cent utilization. We also
continue to invest in strategic initiatives that support continuous
improvement across our operations and drive step changes in
existing processes, such as value chain optimization in supply and
trading, and further optimization and automation of mining
and upgrading through autonomous haul systems {AHS), which
are now fully deployed at our Steepbank mine and expected

to be fully deployed at Fort Hills in 2020. Planned bi-directional

pipelines to connect our Oil Sands Base and Syncrude (completion
ptanned for the second half of 2020) are also expected to increase
reliability and utilization rates moving forward.

We continue to target cost reductions across our operations,
without compromising our core value of safety. Opportunities

to reduce safety risks are always a priority and harnessing digital
technologies, such as robotics, artificial intelligence and remote
sensing technologies {such as drones and wireless employee
monitors), provide solutions that are safe, quick and cost-effective.

Record SCO production of

mbbls/d

across our Qil Sands assets

LOOKING AHEAD TO 2020 AND BEYOND:
PROFITABLE CASH FLOW GROWTH AT LOW CAPITAL COST

With our large capital projects behind us, Suncor is planning

for prefitable growth at a low capital cost in the medium term.
While many long-term production growth opportunities exist in
our portfolio, our current focus is on increasing incremental free
funds flow by leveraging and generating returns from existing
assets, without significant production increases that would require
large capital investments. Qur target is to grow annual free funds
flow by $2 billion by 2023. 75 per cent of this target is currently
in execution through sanctioned projects, many of which are not
impacted by crude market conditions - like cogeneration at our
Oil Sands Base. We expect the remainder of the target to come
from debottlenecking and leveraging technology and data to
improve performance, reliability and operational excellence.

We will continue to focus on value over volume, investing in
high-return projects that are largely independent of pipeline
constraints and commodity price volatility - driving long-term
value creation, increasing sharehoider returns, and lowering the
carbon intensity of our production.

And although there continues to be uncertainty on the impact
and duration of the Government of Alberta’s mandatory
production curtailments, curtailment has been factored into our
2020 production outlook, as has the utilization of crude by rail
special production allowances.
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O SHAREHOLDERS

Building on our century-long tradition of being part of the
energy solution in Canada and around the giobe, Suncor
has the scale, financial strength, and expertise to lead the
transformation of Canada’s energy sector

SUNCOR 4.0: MAKING TODAY’S ENERGY BETTER
AND TOMORROW'’S ENERGY POSSIBLE

Building on our century-long tradition of being part of the
energy solution in Canada and around the globe, Suncor has the
scale, financial strength and expertise to lead the transformation
of Canada’s energy sector. Qur own journey has been one of
continuous transformation — whether that was pioneering bucket
and wheel to truck and shovel in oil sands mining, implementing in
situ projects, or advancing tailings reclamation. As a company, we
have gone from Suncor 1.0 {figuring out how to get the bitumen
out of the ground), to Suncor 2.0 (making money at it), to Suncor
3.0 (merging with Petro-Canada™, which provided integration and
an opportunity to access value across the entire value chain}.

Our next phase is Suncor 4.0: characterized by being a purpose-

driven organization, realizing the full potential of our people as
we play a leadership role in sustainability and transforming the

energy system and harnessing innovation, while using data and
digital technology to improve our business.

What I've seen in my 11 years with this company, and in my first
year as President and CEO, tells me our purpose —to provide
trusted energy that enhances people’s lives, while caring for each
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other and the earth - is within reach. Thank you to Suncor’s Board
of Directors, our shareholders and our stakeholders for your
continued confidence and support. And to our approximately
13,000 employees in Canada and internationally, know that your
bright minds, curiosity and willingness to try new things make
everything possible as we navigate the evolving energy future
together to deliver the energy our world needs — with integrity
and with care. As the calendar turns on a new decade, | am
confident and optimistic about what we will achieve.

Mark Little
President and Chief Executive Officer



2020 CORPORATE GUIDANCE

2020 CORPORATE GUIDANCE

The following table highlights forecasts from Suncor’s 2020 Full Year Outiook and actual
results for the year ended December 31, 2019. For further details regarding Suncor’s 2020
Full Year Outlook, including certain assumptions, see www.suncor.com/guidance. See also
the Advisories section of this Annual Report.

2019 Full Year Outlook Actuai Year Ended 2020 Full Year Outlook

October 30, 2019 December 31, 2019 December 2, 2019

O;I Sands operatucns (bbls/d)“’ 410 000 — 425 000 412 800 420 000 455 000
Fort H|1Is (bbls/d) Suncor workm-g interest of 54 1 1% o 85 000 90 000 85300 85 000 95 000
Syncrude (bbIv) Suncor working interest of 5874% 60000 180000 2300 170000 - 185 000
Exploration and Production boerd® 105000110000 06800 100 600 — 115 000
0F| Sands operatlons cash operating costs ($/bbl) 27.00 - 28.00 28.20 24 00 26 50
Fort H|I|s cash operatlng costs ($Ihbl) 23 00 26 00 26.15 23 00 27 00
Syncrude cash operatlng costs ($Ibbl) 3G 50 39 50"""- 3795 35 00 38 00

Refinery utilization® 93% 97% 95% 95% 99%

(1) Oil 5ands operations preduction includes synthetic crude oil, diesel, and bitumen and excludes Fort Hills PFT aitumen and Syncrude synthetic crude oil
production. These ranges reflect the integrated upgrading and bitumen production performance risk.

(2) At the time of publication, production in Libya continues to be affected by political unrest and, therefere, no forward looking production for Libya is factored
inte the Exploratron and Preduction and Suncor Total Production guidance

(3) Refinery utilizaticn 15 based on the following crude processing capacities: Montreal - 137,000 bbls/d; Sarnia — 85,000 bbls/d; Edmonton — 142,060 bbls/d; and
Commerce City — 98,000 bbis/d.

Capital Expenditures”

2020 Full Year Outiook % Economic

{$ millions) December 2, 2019 Investment®
Oil Sands 3550-3 800 35%
........ Explmamnandpmdumwn 10007115095%
Total Upstream 4 550 -4 950 50%
Downstream 7 ” 30%
Corporate ................................................................................................................................................................................. 15(}“250 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 65%
Total 5 400 - 6 000 50%

{1) Capital expenditures exclude capitalized interest of approximately $155 miliion.

{2) Econamic Investment capital expenditures include capital investments that result in an increase in value through adding reserves, improving processing
capacity, utilization, cost or margin, including associated infrastructure. Balance of capital expenditures represents Asset Sustainment and Maintenance capital
expenditures which include capital investments that deliver on existing value by: ensuring compliance or maintaming relations with regulators and other
stakeholders; mantaining current processing capacity; and delivering existing developed reserves.
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ADVISORIES

ADVISORIES

All financial information in the preceding sections of this Annual Report is reported in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted.
Production volumes are presented on a working-interest basis, before royalties, unless otherwise noted, except for Libya, which is
presented on an economic basis. References to “we", “our”, “Suncor”, or “the company” mean Suncor Energy Inc.,, and the company's
subsidiaries and interests in associates and jointly controlled entities, unless the context requires otherwise.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
The preceding sections of this Annual Report contain certain forward-looking information and forward-looking statements
(collectively referred to herein as “forward-looking statements”} within the meaning of applicable Canadian and U 5. securities
taws. Forward-looking statements are based on Suncor's current expectations, estimates, projections and assumptions that were
made by the company in light of information available at the time the statement was made and consider Suncor’s experience and its
perception of historical trends, including expectations and assumptions concerning: the accuracy of reserves and resources estimates;
commodity prices and interest and foreign exchange rates; the performance of assets and equipment; capital efficiencies and cost
savings; applicable laws and government policies; future production rates; the sufficiency of budgeted capital expenditures in
carrying out planned activities; the availability and cost of labour, services and infrastructure; the satisfaction by third parties of their
obligations to Suncor; the development and execution of projects; and the receipt, in a timely manner, of regulatory and third-party
approvals. All statements and information that address expectations or projections about the future, and statements and information
about Suncor's strategy for growth, expected and future expenditures or investment decisions, commodity prices, costs, schedules,
production volumes, operating and financial results, future financing and capital activities, and the expected impact of future
commitments are forward-locking statements. Some of the forward-looking statements may be identified by words like “expects”,
“anticipates”, "will”, "estimates”, "plans”, “scheduled”, "intends”, "believes”, “projects”, “indicates”, “could”, "focus”, "vision”,
“goal”, “outlook”, “proposed”, “target”, “abjective”, “continue”, “should”, "may”, “future”, “promise”, “forecast”, “potential”,
“opportunity”, “would” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements in the preceding sections of this Annual Report include
references to:

* Suncor’s strategies, including: focusing on continued capital allocation discipline, focusing on value over volume by investing in
high-return projects that are largely independent of pipeline constraints and commaodity price volatility to drive long-term value
creation while increasing shareholder returns and lowering the carbon intensity of Suncor's production, improving asset reliabitity
and lowering cash operating costs per barrel to drive returns while continuously improving environmental and social performance,
continuing to target cost reductions across its operations without compromising its core value of safety, continuing to accelerate its
digital transformation as well as its progression in the area of technology and onnovation and the expected impact and benefits of
these strategies;

* The belief that Suncor's exposure to heavy crude differentials is mitigated through Suncor’s flexible asset base and market access
advantage and that Suncor is positioned to generate cash flow while delivering long-term returns to shareholders;

» Suncor’'s potential growth opportunities and its target of achieving incremental free funds flow growth by $2 billion by 2023,
including the belief that 75 per cent of this target is currently in execution through sanctioned projects and that the remainder will
come from debottlenecking and leveraging technology and data to improve performance, reliability and operational excellence;

¢ Suncor's social goal and GHG emissions intensity reduction goal, expectations around GHG emissions and emissions intensity,
including the expectation that sanctioned projects together with current achievements will atlow Suncor to achieve a 20 per cent
reduction in emissions intensity by 2023 and plans for and potential benefits of new technologies and digital solutions;

* Statements about the coke-fired boiler replacement program, including the expectation that it will provide reliable steam
generation and return 800 MW of lower carbon natural gas-fired power to the Alberta grid, make Suncor the third largest producer
of electricity in the province and reduce Alberta GHG emissions by approximately 2.5 megatonnes per year;

¢ Statements about the Forty Mile Wind Power Project, induding the estimated total capital spend and that it will go into
commercial service at the end of 2021 and generate double-digit economic returns through zero carbon power generation while
retaining the carbon credits to offset costs elsewhere in Suncor’s business;

¢ Suncor’s reserves and reserves life estimates and nameplate capacities;
s Expectations around improving reliability at Syncrude and achieving reliability rates at Syncrude above 90 per cent;

* Suncor’s expectation that the ramp up of Hebren as well as continued investment in near-field developments of existing assets
leaves it well positioned for the future;
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* The expectation that the Terra Nova asset life extension project will extend the life of Terra Nova by approximately a decade and
allow the facility to produce an additional 80 million barrels of oil from the Terra Nova field;

* Suncor's expectation that the bi-directional pipelines to connect its Qil Sands Base with Syncrude will be completed for the second
half of 2020 and will increase reliability and utilization rates moving forward; and

* Suncor's outlook for 2020 and beyond, Suncor’s 2020 Corporate Guidance, and projects to which Suncor's 2020 capital expenditures
are anticipated to be directed.

Forward-locking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve a number of risks and uncertainties, some that are
similar to other oil and gas companies and some that are unique to Suncor. Suncor’s actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied by its forward-looking statements, so readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on them. The financial
and operating pertormance ot the company's reportable operating segments, specifically Qil Sands, Exploration and Production, and
Refining and Marketing, may be affected by a number of factors.

Factors that affect our Qil Sands segment include, but are not limited to, volatility in the prices for crude oil and other production,
and the related impacts of fluctuating light/heavy and sweet/sour crude oil differentials; changes in the demand for refinery feedstock
and diesel fuel, including the possibility that refiners that process our proprietary production will be closed, experience equipment
failure or other accidents; our ability to operate our Oil Sands facilities reliably in order to meet production targets; the output of
newly commissioned facilities, the performance of which may be difficult to predict during initial operations; our dependence on
pipeline capacity and other |ogistical constraints, which may affect our ability to distribute our products to market and which may
cause the company to delay or cancel planned growth projects in the event of insufficient takeaway capacity; our ability to finance
Qil Sands economic investment and asset sustainment and maintenance capital expenditures; the availability of bitumen feedstock for
upgrading operations, which can be negatively affected by poor ore grade quality, unplanned mine equipment and extraction plant
maintenance, tailings storage, and in situ reservoir and equipment performance, or the unavailability of third-party bitumen; changes
in operating costs, including the cost of labour, natural gas and other energy sources used in oil sands processes; and our ability to
complete projects, including planned maintenance events, both on time and on budget, which could be impacted by competition
from other projects (including other oil sands projects) for goods and services and demands on infrastructure in Alberta's Wood
Buffalo region and the surrounding area (including housing, roads and schools).

Factors that affect our Exploration and Production segment include, but are not limited to, volatility in crude oil and natural gas
prices; operational risks and uncertainties associated with oil and gas activities, including unexpected formations or pressures,
premature declines of reservoirs, fires, blow-outs, equipment failures and other accidents, uncontrollable flows of crude oil, natural
gas or well fluids, and pollution and other environmental risks; adverse weather conditicons, which could disrupt output from
producing assets or impact drilling programs, resulting in increased costs and/or delays in bringing on new production; political,
economic and socic-economic risks associated with Suncor's foreign operations, including the unpredictability of operating in Libya
due to ongoing political unrest; and market demand for mineral rights and producing properties, potentially leading to losses on
disposition or increased property acquisition costs.

Factors that affect our Refining and Marketing segment include, but are not limited to, fluctuations in demand and supply for
refined products that impact the company's margins; market competition, including potential new market entrants; our ability to
reliably operate refining and marketing facilities in order to meet production or sales targets; and risks and uncertainties affecting
construction or planned maintenance schedules, including the availability of labour and other impacts of competing projects drawing
on the same resources during the same time period.

Additional risks, uncertainties and other factors that could influence the financial and operating performance of all of Suncor’s
operating segments and activities include, but are not limited to, changes in general economic, market and business conditions,

such as commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates; fluctuations in supply and demand for Suncor’s products; the
successful and timely implementation of capital projects, including growth projects and requlatory projects; risks associated with

the development and execution of Suncor’s projects and the commissioning and integration of new facilities; the possibility that
completed maintenance activities may not improve operational performance or the output of related facilities; the risk that projects
and initiatives intended to achieve cash flow growth and/or reductions in operating costs may not achieve the expected results in the
time anticipated or at all; competitive actions of other companies, including increased competition from other oil and gas companies
or from companies that provide alternative sources of energy; labour and material shortages; actions by government authorities,
including the imposition or reassessment of, or changes to, taxes, fees, royalties, duties, tariffs, allotment and other government-
imposed compliance costs, and mandatory production curtailment orders and changes thereto; changes to laws and government
policies that could impact the company’s business, including environmental (including climate change), royalty and tax laws and
policies; the ability and willingness of parties with whom we have material relationships to perform their obligations to us; the
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ADVISORIES

unavailability of, or outages to, third-party infrastructure that could cause disruptions to production or prevent the company from
being able to transport its products; the occurrence of a protracted operational outage, a major safety or environmental incident, or
unexpected events such as fires (including forest fires), equipment failures and other similar events affecting Suncor or other parties
whose operations or assets directly or indirectly affect Suncor; the potential for security breaches of Suncor's information technology
and infrastructure by malicious persons or entities, and the unavailability or failure of such systems to perform as anticipated as a
result of such breaches; security threats and terrorist or activist activities; the risk that competing business objectives may exceed
Suncor's capacity to adopt and implement change; risks and uncertainties associated with obtaining regulatory, third-party and
stakeholder approvals outside of Suncor's control for the company’s operations, projects, initiatives, and exploration and development
activities and the satisfaction of any conditions to approvals; the potential for disruptions to operations and construction projects as a
result of Suncor's relationships with labour unions that represent employees at the company’s facilities; our ability to find new oil and
gas reserves that can be developed economically; the accuracy of Suncor's reserves, resources and future production estimates; market
instability affecting Suncor’s ability to borrow in the capital debt markets at acceptable rates or to issue other securities at acceptable
prices; maintaining an optimal debt to cash flow ratio; the success of the company’s risk management activities using derivatives

and other financial instruments; the cost of compliance with current and future environmental laws, including climate change laws;
risks relating to increased activism and public opposition to fossil fuels and oil sands; risks and uncertainties associated with closing

a transaction for the purchase or sale of a business, asset or il and gas property, including estimates of the final consideration to be
paid or received; the ability and willingness of counterparties to comply with their obligations in a timely manner; risks associated
with joint arrangements in which the company has an interest; risks associated with land claims and Indigenous consultation
requirements; the risk that the company may be subject to litigation; the impact of technology and risks associated with developing
and implementing new technologies; and the accuracy of cost estimates, some of which are provided at the conceptual or other
preliminary stage of projects and prior to commencement or conception of the detailed engineering that is needed to reduce the
margin of error and increase the level of accuracy. The foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive.

Many of these risk factors and other assumptions related to Suncor’s forward-looking statements are discussed in further detail
throughout the MD&A, including under the heading Risk Factors, and the company’s most recent Annual Information Form dated
February 26, 2020 available at www.sedar.com and Form 40-F dated February 27, 2020 available at www.sec.gov, which risk factors
are incorporated by reference herein. Readers are also referred to the risk factors and assumptions described in other documents that
Suncor files from time to time with securities regulatory authorities. Copies of these documents are available without charge from
the company.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are made as of the date of this Annual Report. Except as required by
applicable securities laws, we assume no obligation to update publicly or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements or the foregoing
risks and assumptions affecting such forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Suncor's corporate guidance is based on the following assumptions around oil prices: WTI, Cushing of U5$55.00/bbl; Brent, Sullom
Voe of US$60.00/bbi; and WCS, Hardisty of US$36.00/bbl. In addition, the guidance is based on the assumption of a natural gas price
{AECO-C Spot) of Cdn$1.60 per gigajoule, US$/Cdn$ exchange rate of $0.76 and synthetic crude oi! sales from ©il Sands operations
of 305,000 to 325,000 bbis/d. Assumptions for the Qil Sands operations, Syncrude and Fort Hills 2020 production outlook include
those relating to reliability and operational efficiency initiatives that the company expects will minimize unplanned maintenance

in 2020. Assumptions for the Exploration and Production 2020 production outlook include those relating to reservoir performance,
drilling results and facility reliability. Factors that could potentially impact Suncor’s 2020 corporate guidance include, but are not
limited to: Bitumen supply — Bitumen supply may be dependent on unplanned maintenance of mine equipment and extraction
plants, bitumen ore grade quality, tailings storage and in situ reservoir performance; Third-party infrastructure — Production estimates
could be negatively impacted by issues with third-party infrastructure, including pipeline or power disruptions, that may result in the
apportionment of capacity, pipeline or third-party facility shutdowns, which would affect the company’s ability to produce or market
its crude oil; Performance of recently commissioned facilities or well pads — Production rates while new equipment is being brought
into service are difficult to predict and can be impacted by unplanned maintenance; Unplanned maintenance - Production estimates
could be negatively impacted if unplanned work is required at any of our mining, extraction, upgrading, in situ processing, refining,
natural gas processing, pipeline, or offshore assets; Planned maintenance events - Production estimates, including production mix,
could be negatively impacted if planned maintenance events are affected by unexpected events or are not executed effectively. The
successful execution of maintenance and start-up of operations for offshore assets, in particutar, may be impacted by harsh weather
conditions, particufarly in the winter season; Commaodity prices - Declines in commodity prices may alter cur production outlook
and/or reduce our capital expenditure plans; Foreign operations — Suncor's foreign operations and related assets are subject to a
number of political, economic and socio-economic risks; Government Action — Suncor’s guidance reflects Suncor’s expectations and
assumptions regarding the production curtailments imposed by the Government of Alberta. Further action by the Government of
Alberta regarding production curtailment may impact Suncor's Corporate Guidance and such impact may be materiat.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Certain financial measures used in the preceding sections of this Annual Report, namely operating earnings (loss}, funds from
operations, ROCE, Oil Sands operations cash operating costs, Fort Hills cash operating costs, Syncrude cash operating costs, and free
funds flow, are not prescribed by GAAP. Operating earnings (loss) is defined in the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section
of the MD&A and is reconciled to GAAP measures in the Finandial Information section of Suncor's annual management’s discussion
and analysis for each respective year. Oil Sands operations cash operating costs, Fort Hills cash operating costs and Syncrude cash
operating costs are defined in the Advisories - Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of the MD&A and reconciled to GAAP measures
in the Segment Results and Analysis section of the MD&A. Funds from operations {previously referred to as cash flow from operations)
and ROCE are defined and reconciled to GAAP measures in the Advisories - Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of Suncor's

annual management’s discussion and analysis for each respective year. Free funds flow is calculated by taking funds from operations
and subtracting capital expenditures, including capitalized interest. These non-GAAP financial measures are included because
management uses this information to analyze business performance, leverage and liquidity and it may be useful to investors on the
same basis. These non-GAAP financial measures do not have any standardized meaning and therefore are unlikely to be comparable
to similar measures presented by other companies and shouid not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of
performance prepared in accordance with GAAP.

RESERVES

Reserves information presented herein is presented as Suncar's waorking interests (operating and non-operating) before deduction
of royalties, and without including any royalty interests of Suncor, and is at December 31, 2019. For more information on Suncor’s
raserves, including definitions of proved and probable reserves, Suncor’s interest, the location of the reserves and the product types
reasonably expected, please see Suncor’s most recent Annual information Form dated February 26, 2020 available at www.sedar.com
and www.sec.gov. Reserves data is based upon evaluations conducted by independent qualified reserves evaluators.

MEASUREMENT CONVERSIONS

Certain crude oil and natural gas liquids volumes have been converted te mcfe on the basis of one bbl to six mcf. Also, certain natural
gas volumes have been converted to boe or mhoe on the same basis. Refer to the Advisories — Measurement Conversions section of
the MD&A.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

February 26, 2020

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this MD&A)
should be read in conjunction with Suncor’s December 31,
2019 audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the
accompanying notes. Additional information about Suncor
fited with Canadian securities regulatory authorities and
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEQ), including quarterly and annual reports and Suncor’s
Annual Information Form dated February 26, 2020

(the 2019 AIF), which is also filed with the SEC under
cover of Form 40-F is available online at www.sedar.com,
www.sec.gov and our website www.suncor.com.
Information on or connected to our website, even if

referred to in this MD&A, does not constitute part of
this MD&A.

References to “we”, “our”, “Suncor”, or “the company” mean
Suncor Energy Inc. and the company’s subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint arrangements, unless the
context requires otherwise. For a list of abbreviations that
may be used in this MD&A, refer to the Advisories

Common Abbreviations section of this MD&A.
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Basis of Presentation

Unless othenwise noted, all financial information has been prepared i accordance
with internatonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as -ssued by the Internanonal
Accountng Standargs Board (A5B) and Canadia~ generally accepted accountng
principles {GAAP) as containea within Part 1 of the Canadian nstitute of Chartered
Protessional Accouniants Hardbook,

Effective January 1, 2019, the company adopred IFRS 16 Leases (iFRS 16), which
replaced tre previows leasng standard 185 17 feases (AS 17), and requeres the
recogniton of all leases an the balance sheet, with optional exernptions for
short-terr leases where tre term is twelve months or less and for leases of ow
value. IFRS 16 effectvely removes the class‘ication of leases as either finance ar
operating leases and teats all leases as finance leases for lessees. The accounting
treatment for lessors remains essentially wnchangea, with the requiremert 1o classify
leases as either finance or operating. Fiease refer to note 5 in the company’s
December 31, 2019 awdited Conso'idated “inarcial Statements for further
irformation. The caompany has selected the modified retrospecive transition approach,
electing to adjust opening retaned earnings wih no re-statemert of comparatve
figures. As such, comparative inforration continues to be reported under 1AS 17 and
Irernatonal Financial Repoming nterpretations Commitiee {IFRIC) 4.

Al firancial nforration is reported i Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted
Production volumes, apart from wibya, are preseried on a working-interest basis,
betore royaltes, urless othenvse noted. Libyan productior wolumes are presented or
an econarric basis

Beginnng i 2019, results from the company's Energy Tradirg busimess have been
ircluded within each of the respectve operang busmess segments to which the
respective Trading activity relates. The Erergy Trad ng business was previously reported
within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Elm nations segment. Pror periods have
been restated to reflect this change,

Also beginning i 2019, the company revised the dassification of its capsal
expenditures iro “asset sustainrment and maintenance” and "ecanamic investment’
1o better reflect the types of capital invesimentss being made by the company. There
is no impact to overall captal expenditures, and comparative perods have been
restated 1o reflect this crange. Refer to the Capital Investmert Update section of this
MD&A for furtmer detals

Neon.GAAP Financial Measures

Certain “inancial measures n ths MDRA  namely operating ar~ings {oss), funds
from {used 1M} operations, return on capia’ erpioyec (ROCE), O Sands operations
cast operating <osts, in Stu cash operating costs, Fon Hills cash operating costs,
syncrude cash operating costs, refining rrarg, “ef ning operatirg expense, free funds
fiow, chscretionary free funds flow, and last-in, first-out {LIFO) inventory valuation
metnodology  are not prescribed by GAAP Operatirg earnings (loss), Qil Sands
operations cash operating coss, Fort Hills cash operating costs, Syncrude cash
operating costs and LFO .nventory valuation nrethodology are defined in the
Advisores  Non-GAAP Sirancial Measures sect-on of this MD&A and reconciled to
tre most directy cornparabe GAAP measares in the Sinanaal Intormation and
Segment Resulis ana Analyais seciors of thes MDBA, ROCE, funds from fused in}
operations, free funds fow, discretionary free furds flow, refiring margin, refining
operating expe~se and In Situ cash operating costs are defined and reconciled, whee
appicable, to the most d rectly comparable GAAP rmeasutes in the Advisones
Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of ths MO&A

Measurement Conversions

Crude oll ang ratural gas liguids volumes have been convered to mcfe on the basis
of one bbl to six mc in this MD&A. Also, certain natura. gas valumes have been
tonverted ta boe or rhoe on the sarre bass. Refer to the Advisories  Measurement
Conversioms section of this MD&A

Common Abbreviations
For a |st of abbreviations that may be used in tnis MO&A, refer 1o the Adviscries
Common Abbreviatons secton of tnis MD&A

Risks and Forward-Looking Information

The cormpany’s business, resenves, financia: conditon and results of operations may be
a*fected by @ number of tacors, including, but not lirited to, the faciors descr bed in
the Risk Factors section of ths MD&A.

This MD&A contans forwara-looking nformation based on Suncors current
expeciations, estimates, proectons a~d assumptions This in"ormaton is subject to a
rurrber of risks and uncertaintes, ncluding those discussed in th s MD&A and
Suncers other dsclosure documens fled with Canadian securities regulatory
authorities and the SEC, many of which are beyond the company’s contol. Users of
this information are cautioned that acual results may differ materally. Refer to the
advisories  Forward-Looking I~formation section of this MD&A for nformation on
the materal rsk factos and assumptions underlying our forward-lookeng informaten
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING SUMMARY

1. FINANCIAL AND OPERATING SUMMARY

Financial Summary

Year ended December 31 {$ millions, except per share amounts) 2019 2018 2017
Gross revenues 39 B66 39 592 32 885
Royan,es(1522)(1050)(931)
Operating revenues, net of royalties 38 344 38 542 31954
Net earnings 3293 4 458
per common share — diluted - 2.02 2.6.8"“
Operating earnings " 4312 3188
b percommonsharewbasm ......................................................................................................... ................................. 2 55 ............................. 1 92
Funds from operations‘" 10 172 9139
e percommonshare_bas|c ........................................................................................................................................... 527550
Cash flow provided by operating acti 10 580 8 966
corree percommonmare_bas'c ......................................................................................................... e : 54540
Dividends paid on common shares 2333 2124
e percommonshare_bas|c ......................................................................................................... P i e
Weighted average number of common shares in millions -
basi 1559 1623 1661

Weighted average number of common shares in millions -

diluted 1561 1629 1665
ROCE®™ (%) 4.9 8.0 6.7
ROCEmm(%)excludmgma]orprojectsmprogress .......................................................... L o
Capital expenditures®® 5436 5 250 5822
B S e e S S o
B T e oo
Discretionary free funds flow" 4914 4432 4415

Balance sheet (at December 31)
Total assets
(@S}

Total liabilities

(1} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

(2 Excludes capitalized costs related to major projects in progress. RGCE excluding major projects in progress would have been 8.6% in 2019, excluding
the impacts of impairments of $3.352 billion and the impacts of a $1.116 billion deferred tax recovery relating to a change in the Alberta corparate
income tax rate.

(3} Excludes capitalized interest of $122 million in 2019, $156 miilion in 2018, and $729 million in 2017, and now reflects the company's revised capital
expenditure classification, with prior perieds having been restated for this change. Refer to the Capital Investment Update section of this MD&A for
further details.

(4)  Net debt is equal to total debt less cash and cash equivalents. Total debt includes short-term debs, current portion of long-term debt, current portion of
long-term lease liabifities, long-term debt, and iong-term lease liabilities.

{5) 2018 and 2017 exclude the impact of IFRS 16, which was praspectively adopted on January 1, 2019, in accordance with the standard, adding
$1.792 billion at December 31, 2019 to net debt.
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Operating Summary

Year ended Decernber 31 2019 2018 2017

tion volumes (mboe/

Proi
563 7

732.0 685.3

Exploration and Production
Total

Average pnce reallzatlons“) ($Iboe)
. Si Sands operatlons L 915426
e 489638 e
mmSyncrude 7 T
“"Exploratlon T T T
Refinery il processed (mbbils/d} 438.9 430.8

Western North America 98 93 98
Total 95 93 96
Refining margin® ($/bbl) 33.15 34.50 24.20

(1) Net of transportation costs, but before royalties.
(2) Refinery utilization is the amount of crude oil run through crude distillation units, expressed as a percentage of the nameplate capacity of these units.
(3} Non-GAAP financial measure. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

Segment Summary ™"

Year ended December 31 ($ millions} 2019 2018 2017

Ne‘t (Ioss) earnlngs
Oll Sands {427) 945 994
Exploratlon and Production 1005 807 721

Corporate and Eliminations (679) (1613) 121
Total 2899 3293 4 458
Operating earnings (loss)}®

L 1 622 e T
m"Eproratmn and Produc'uon 1 141 897735
“.Reflnlng e Marketlng 2 912 3 154 2 128"
""Corporate o El|mrnat|0ns(1 317) (624) (614)
Total 4358 4312 3188
Funds from (used i

operations®

Explorat:on and Productlon 2 e
Refmmg and Marketmg e
- Corporate R (1 249)
Total funds from operations 10 818

Change in non-cash worklng capltal {397)
Cash flow provided by operating activities 10 421 10 580 8966

(1) 2018 and 2017 have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact on
overall consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business segments to which the
respective trading activity relates. Suncer’s Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate Energy Trading and Eliminations
segment.

(2} MNon-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.
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2. SUNCOR OVERVIEW

Suncor is an integrated energy company headquartered in Calgary, Alberta, Canada. We are strategically focused on
developing one of the world's largest petroleum resource basins — Canada‘s Athabasca cil sands. In addition, we explore for,
acquire, develop, produce and market crude oil in Canada and internationally; we transport and refine crude oil, and we
market petroleum and petrochemical products primarily in Canada. We also operate a renewable energy business and
conduct energy trading activities focused principally on the marketing and trading of crude oil, natural gas, byproducts,
refined products, and power.

For a description of Suncor’s business segments, refer to the Segment Results and Analysis section of this MD&A.

Suncor’s Strategy

Delivering competitive and sustainable returns to shareholders is a top priority of the company and we aim to maximize
shareholder returns by focusing on our cperational excellence, capital discipline through investment in high-value projects,
and our commitment to environmental stewardship and sustainability. In an industry that has experienced volatility in recent
years, we believe that Suncor is well positioned to succeed due to the company's competitive advantages: financial strength,
including our ability to consistently generate free funds flow across a wide range of business environments, a highly efficient,
tightly integrated suite of assets, an industry-leading long-life, low-decline oil sands reserves base, an offshore business that
provides geographically diversified cash flow, and our investment in sustainability, technology and innovation.

Key components of Suncor’s strategy include:

= Free funds flow growth through high-return investments - Suncor’s growth and development plan is focused on projects
and initiatives that are expected to create long-term value for the company through structural free funds flow growth.
The company's significant long-life, low-decline reserves base combined with our industry expertise allows the company
to execute improvement strategies at existing assets, such as debottlenecks and the deployment of autonomous haul
trucks, that are expected to generate additional value for years to come. In addition, the company’s regional oil sands
advantage provides the company with the economies of scale required to realize synergies between assets and further
develop our in situ resources in a low-cost manner under the company's replication strategy.

* Optimize value through integration and secured market access — From the ground to the gas station, Suncer optimizes
profit along each step of the value chain through integration of the company’s oil sands assets with its midstream and
refining assets. This integration helps to significantly shield Suncer from the effects of western Canadian crude price
differentials, and our midstream and marketing assets provide the logistical flexibility to move production to a wide
range of markets. Through this midstream and marketing network and our geographical diversity, the company receives
global-based pricing for the majority of its production.

s  Achieve industry-leading unit costs in each business segment - Suncor aims to get the most out of our assets through a
focus an operational excellence, which means operating in a way that is safe, reliable, cost-efficient and environmentally
responsible. Driving down costs and a continued focus on improved productivity and reliability will help us achieve
maximum value from our operations. With the Government of Alberta’s imposition of mandatory production curtailments
in 2019, the company's short-term focus in Qil Sands has shifted from maximizing production to maximizing margin from
each barrel produced, resulting in higher production costs per barrel but optimizing the cash generation from our Oil
Sands assets.

+ Be an industry leader in sustainable development - Suncor is focused on triple bottom line sustainability, which means
leadership and industry collaboration in environmental performance, social responsibility and creating a strong economy.
We believe that Suncor’s growth will be fuelled by investments in lower carbon energy, and we have made such
investments a key priority in achieving our sustainable development goals.

* Technology and people-enabled — Suncor is focused on shifting our culture and leveraging technology to improve
performance and reliability which are central to our operaticnal excellence journey. Unleashing the full potential of our
people and technology will be critical in achieving our environmental, operational and financial goals.
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2019 Highlights

Suncor generated a record $10.8 billion in funds from

operations'” in 2019, reflecting the ability of our integrated

business to deliver strong results across a wide range of

market conditions.

* In 2019, Suncor achieved record funds from operations of
$10.818 billion, compared to $10.172 billion in 2018, and
marked the second cansecutive year above $10 billion.

* Cash flow provided by operating activities, which
includes changes in non-cash working capital, was
$10.421 billion in 2019, compared to $10.580 billion
in 2018.

s QOperating earnings'” in 2019 were $4.358 billion,
compared to $4.312 billion in 2018.

= Net earnings for 2019 were $2.899 billion, compared to
$3.293 billion in 2018. In 2019, net earnings included
non-cash asset impairment charges of $3.352 billion
after-tax primarily due to lower forecasted heavy oil
prices for Fort Hills and higher capital cost estimates for
the West White Rose Project.

Suncor returned $4.9 billion in dividends and share

repurchases to shareholders in 2019, representing 45% of

total funds from operations, demonstrating our commitment

to shareholder returns.

¢ In 2019, the company distributed $2.614 billion in
dividends to shareholders, marking the 17*" consecutive
year of dividend increases for Suncor.

¢ The company repurchased $2.274 billion of its own
commen shares for cancellation during 2019. Since
May 2017, the company has repurchased over 9% of its
outstanding common shares.

* Suncor reduced its debt by $425 million, further
improving the company’s liquidity and balance sheet
flexibility.

= Subseguent to the end of the year, Suncor's Board of
Directors approved a quarterly dividend of $0.465 per
common share, an increase of 11%, to be paid in the
first quarter of 2020 and alse approved the renewal of
its share repurchase program of up to $2.0 hillion
beginning March 1, 2020.

Oil Sands production increased 7%, despite being limited by

the Government of Alberta’s mandatory production

curtailments, with a continued fotus on operational
excellence and improved reliability.

* In 2019, the company achieved an SCO production record
of 485,600 bblis/d across its Oil Sands assets while
minimizing the impacts of mandatory production
curtailments. During 2019, Suncor demonstrated the
value of the company’s asset integration and flexibility

by shifting our focus to value over volume, optimization
of product mix and transferring production guotas
among its assets, in addition to purchasing third-party
credits, to minimize the impacts of mandatory
production curtailments.

+ Qil 5ands operations increased its production of
higher value SCO to 313,300 bbls/d and achieved
upgrader utilization of 90%, compared to 5CO
production of 280,300 bbls/d and upgrader
utilization of 80% in the prior year.

* Syncrude reached three billion barrels of production
and achieved the second best year of production in
the history of the asset, due to improved upgrader
reliability and despite mandatory production
curtailments. In 2019, Suncor’s share of Syncrude
production was 172,300 bbls/d with 85% utilizaticon,
compared to 144,200 bbls/d and 70% utilization in
the prior year. Syncrude cash operating costs per
barrel’V decreased approximately 20%, to $37.95 in
2019, from the prior year.

* Fort Hills production increased to 85,300 bbls/d in 2019,
compared to 66,100 bbls/d in the pricr year. The ramp up
of Fort Hills operations throughout 2018 drove the
increase in production, partially offset by mandatory
production curtailments. Fort Hills cash operating costs
per barrel averaged $26.15 in 2019, compared to
$31.20 in 2018, reflecting the impact of increased
production.

Exploration and Production (E&P) increased production with
Hebron reaching nameplate ahead of schedule and first oil
from Oda.

e Hebron reached nameplate production ahead of
schedule in 2019, with six new production wells coming
online during the year. Production at Hebron averaged
23,500 bbls/d in 2019,

* First oil was achieved ahead of schedule at Oda, with
production averaging 3,700 boe/d in 2019, and averaging
7,800 boe/d in the fourth quarter of 2019.

* In 2019, the company sanctioned the Terra Nova asset
life extension (ALE) project, which is expected to extend
the life of Terra Nova by approximately a decade and is
planned for execution by the end of 2020.

Refinery and Marketing (R&M} segment achieved new
records and continued to deliver strong results in 2019,

* R&M achieved record funds from operations of
$3.863 billion in 2019, delivering crude throughput of
438,900 bbls/d compared to funds from operations of
$3.798 billion and crude throughput of 430,800 bbls/d in

(1} Funds from (used in) operations, aperating earnings {loss), Syncrude cash operating costs and Fort Hills cash operating costs are Non-GAAP financial
measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.
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the prior year. Average refinery utilization was 95% in
2019, compared with 93% in 2018, reflecting the
company's continued focus on operational excellence.

Refined product sales were 539,400 bbls/d, with record
volumes sold in the marketing channels in 2019,
incdluding a new annual record for Canadian retail sales.

Continued focus on free funds flow growth by investing in
projects that are economically robust, sustainability minded
and technologically progressive.

Suneor announced that it is replacing its coke-fired
boilers with a new cogeneration facility at its Qil Sands
Base Plant. The cogeneration units are expected to
provide reliable steam generation required for Suncor's
extraction and upgrading operations and are expected to
reduce the greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity
associated with steam production at its Qil Sands Base
Plant by approximately 25%. The project is estimated to
cost $1.4 billion and is expected to be in service in the
second half of 2023.

In 2019, construction began on interconnecting pipelines
between Suncor's Oil Sands Base Plant and Syncrude in
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anticipation of an in-service date in the second half of
2020. The bi-directional pipelines will enhance
integration between these assets and is expected to
increase reliability at Syncrude.

The company continued to invest in clean energy by
sanctioning the Forty Mile Wind Power Project, which is
expected to drive value through sustainable low-carbon
power generation and retention of the generated
carbon credits for utilization in Suncor’s upstream
business. in addition, the company invested in clean
technology, including a $73 million equity investment in
Enerkem inc., a waste-to-biofuels and chemicals
producer.

Suncor continued to advance the implementation of
autonomous haul systems (AHS), tailings technology
advancements, and accelerated our digital technology
adoption at Fort Hills and Oil Sands operations.

Suncor advanced its sustainability and technology
initiatives by completing its coast-to-coast network of
fast-charging electric vehicle stations across Canada
in 2019.



3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Net Earnings

Suncor's net earnings in 2019 were $2.899 billion, compared
to $3.293 billion in 2018. Net earnings were impacted by the
same factors that influenced operating earnings, which are
described below. Other items affecting net earnings in 2013
and 2018 included:

+ During 2019, the company recorded non-cash after-tax
impairment charges of $2.803 billion on its share of Fort
Hills assets, in the Oil Sands segment, due to a decline in
forecasted heavy crude oil prices and $393 million
against White Rose, in the E&P segment, due to
increased capital cost estimates at the West White
Rose Project.

« The after-tax unrealized foreign exchange gain on the
revaluation of U.S. dollar denominated debt was
$590 million in 2019, compared to an after-tax loss of
$989 million in 2018.

Operating Earnings

Consolidated Operating Earnings Reconciliation'”

In 2019, Suncor sold its 37% interest in Canbriam

Energy Inc. (Canbriam), a private natural gas company,
for total proceeds and an equivalent gain of $151 million
($139 million after-tax).

In 2019, the company recorded an after-tax gain of
$48 million in the E&P segment related to the sale of
certain non-core assets.

In 2019, the company recorded a $1.116 billion deferred
income tax recovery associated with the Government of

Alberta’s enactment of |egislation for a staged reduction
of the corporate income tax rate from 12% to 8% over

the next four years.

In 2018, the company recorded a net non-cash loss of
$90 million, after-tax, in the E&P segment related to an
asset exchange with Canbriam, as a result of the decline
in benchmark natural gas prices in B.C.

In 2018, the company recorded an after-tax gain of
$60 million in the OQil Sands segment on the sale of the
company’s interest in the Joslyn oil sands mining project.

Year ended December 31 ($ millions} 2019 2018 2017
Net earnlngs 2899 3293 4458
Asset im alrments 3352 — —
(Gam) on mgnsflcant dlsposals and Ioss on equlty lnvestment(z’ {187 30 437)
tmpact of income tax adjustments on deferred income taxes‘” {1 116) e (124)
Non- cash Ioss on early payment of Iong -term debt‘s) — - 28
Recogmtlon of property damage insurance proceeds“” - o (55)
Operating earnings!" 4358 4312 3188

(1) Non-GAAP financial measure. See the Adwisories - Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

{2) In 2017, the company recorded a $354 millicn after-tax gain in the R&M segment related to the sale of the company’s lubricants business, and an
after-tax gain of $83 million in the Corporate and Eliminations segment related to the sale of the company’s interest in the Cedar Point wind facility,

{3) In 2017, the company recorded an adjustment to its deferred income taxes of $124 million related to tax reform legisiation in the U.S., with the most
significant impact resulting from a decrease in the corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%.

{4} Loss on forward interest rate swaps associated with 1ssued debt, due to changes in long-term interest rates, in the Corporate and Eliminations segment.
{5) Charges associated with the early repayment of debt, net of associated realized foreign currency hedges, in the Corporate and Eliminations segment.
(6} In 2017, the company receved after-tax property damage insurance proceeds of $55 mullion (376 million before tax) related 1o a facility incident at

Syncrude, in the Od Sands segment.
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Bridge Analysis of Consolidated Operating Earnings {$ millions)!"

v
v -
Il (] = v
. A o
A
4312 409 559 {507} 473 264 (561) (348) {243) 4 358
2018 Sales  Price, Margin Rovyalties Inventory Insurance Operating DD&A and Financing 2019
Volumes and Other Valuation Proceeds and  Exploration Expense and
and Mix Revenue Transportation Expense Other
Expense

{1)  For an explanation of the construction of this bridge analysis, see the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

Suncor's consolidated operating earnings in 2019 were
$4.358 billion, compared to $4.312 billion in the prior year.
The increase was primarily a result of improved western
Canadian crude oil differentials, incduding a substantial
narrowing of heavy crude and 5CO differentials, which more
than offset lower benchmark pricing from the prior year.
This led to an increase in Qil Sands price realizations and a
net favourable inventory valuation change on crude
feedstock costs, partially offset by increased deferral of profit
on crude oil sales to R&M, and lower refining margins.
Operating earnings in 2019 were also positively impacted by
higher overall upstream production, attributed to improved
reliability at Syncrude and the ramp up of Fort Hills and
Hebron throughout 2019, partially offset by the impact of
the Government of Alberta’s mandatory production
curtailments.

These factors were partially offset by an increase in expenses
associated with Suncor’s increased production in 2019. DD&A
was further impacted by transition to IFRS 16, which also
increased financing expenses.

Cash Flow Provided by Operating Activities and Funds from
Operations

Consclidated funds from operations for 2019 were

$10.818 billion, compared to $10.172 billion in 2018, and
were impacted by the same factors as operating earnings
described above, excluding the impact of DD&A expense.

Cash flow provided by operating activities, which includes
changes in non-cash working capital, was $10.421 billion in
2019, compared to $10.580 billion in 2018, as the current
year included a use of cash in working capital, compared to
a source of cash in working capital in the prior year which
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was due to a decrease in accounts receivable balances and
refinery inventory value associated with the declining price
environment in the second half of 2018.

Results for 2018 Compared with 2017

Net earnings in 2018 were $3.293 billion, compared to
$4.458 billion in 2017. The decrease in net earnings was
impacted by the same factors impacting operating earnings
described below, as well as an after-tax unrealized foreign
exchange loss on the revaluation of U.5. dollar denominated
debt in 2018, compared to an after-tax unrealized foreign
exchange gain in 2017.

Operating earnings were $4.312 billion in 2018, compared to
$32.188 billion in 2017. The increase was primarily due to
improved overall benchmark crude pricing, increased refining
margins, higher overall upstream preduction, primarily
attributed to the ramp up of Fort Hills and Hebron and the
increased working interest in Syncrude acquired in early
2018, as well as improved energy trading earnings. These
factors were partially offset by an increase in expenses
associated with the expansion of the company’s preduction
in 2018, an increase in maintenance expenditures at
Syncrude and Oil Sands operations resulting from an increase
in planned and unplanned maintenance, a decrease in the
capitalization of borrowing costs with the commissioning of
the company's major growth projects, as well as a net
unfavourable inventory valuation change on declining crude
feedstock costs at the end of 2018.

Consolidated funds from operations for 2018 were
$10.172 billion, compared to $9.139 killion in 2017. Funds
from operations were impacted by the same factors as
operating earnings described above.



Cash flow provided by cperating activities, which includes
changes in non-cash working capital, was $10.580 billion in
2018, compared to $8.966 billion in 2017, and reflected a

source of cash from the company's working capital balances
in 2018, compared to a use of cash in 2017, as a result of
lower year end benchmarks.

Business Environment

Commeodity prices, refining crack spreads and foreign exchange rates are important factors that affect the results of Suncor's
operations.

Average for the year ended December 31
WTI de oil at Cushing (US$/bbi)

.Dated Brent/Maya crude 0|I FOB pnce dlfferentlal (USSIbe) . 6 45 9.10 7.7{;
'MSW at Edmonton (Cdn$/obl) 6920 6930 6320
"WCS at Hardlsty (US$Ibbl) 44 25 38 50 38 95 -
"nghtfheavy dlﬂerentlal for WTI at Cushlng Iess WCS at Hardlsty (USSIbe)---—------------------—------“2 80) ".(26 30} "..-(11 95).
'SYN-WT differential (US$/bbl) 060 (615 (127)
"Condensate at Edmonton (US$lt;bI) .“.52.85 6105 51.55 i
Naturalgas(AIbertaspot)atAECO(CdnSlmcf} ......................................................................................... 175 ................. 150 ................ 215
AlbertaPowerpoolpnce(cdnyMWh) ........................................................................................................ 54 95 .............. 5020 .............. 2215
‘New York Harbor 2-1-1 crack® (Us$fobl) 1990 1940 1820
Ch|cagoz11crackm(US$Ibb|) ........................................................................................................................ ; 7051740 .............. 1680
Portland211crack(')(us$/bbl)2455 .............. 2400 .............. 2250
Gulfcoa5t211crackﬂ)(us$/bbl) .................................................................................................................. ; 9151840 .............. 1770
Exchangerate(us$/cdn$) .................................................................................................................................... 0 75077 ................ 077
Exchangerate(endofpenod)(usslcdnS) ................................................................................................... 077073 ................ 080

(1) 2-1-1 crack spreads are indicators of the refining margin generated by converting twe barrels of WTI into one barrel of gasaline and cne barrel of
diesel. The company previousty guoted 3-2-1 crack margin benchmarks based on wider use and familiarity with these benchmarks and, although the
3-2-1 crack spread is more commonly guoted, the company’s refinery production is better aligned with a 2-1-1 crack spread, which better reflects the
approximate composition of Suncor's overall refined product mix. The crack spreads presented here generally approximate the regions into which the

campany sells refined products through retait and whoiesale channels.

Suncor's sweet SCO price realizations are influenced primarily
by the price of WTI at Cushing and by the supply and
demand of sweet SCO from Western Canada, which
influences $CO differentials. Price realizations for sweet SCO
were favourably impacted by a significant narrowing of SCO
differentials, partially offset by a decrease in WTI at Cushing
to US$57.05/bbl in 2019, from US$64.80/bbl in 20118.

Suncor also produces a specific grade of sour SCO, the price
realizations for which are influenced by various crude
benchmarks inciuding, but not limited to, MSW at Edmonton
and WCS at Hardisty, and which can also be affected by
prices negotiated for spot sales. Prices for MSW at Edmonton
in 2019 were relatively unchanged from 2018, while WS at
Hardisty increased to US$44.25 in 2019 compared to
US$38.50 in 2018, reflecting the impact of narrowing
western Canadian heavy crude differentials, in part due to
mandatory production curtailments in Alberta. Sweet and
sour SCO differentials in 2019 were favourable when
compared to 2018.

Bitumen production that Suncor does not upgrade is biended
with diluent to facilitate delivery on pipeline systems. Net
bitumen price realizations are therefore influenced by both
prices for Canadian heavy crude oil (WCS at Hardisty is a
common reference) and prices for diluent (Condensate at
Edmonton and SCO} and pipeline tolls. Bitumen price
realizations can also be affected by bitumen quality and spot
sales. Bitumen prices were favourably impacted by narrower
heavy crude oil differentials in 2019.

Suncor's price realizations for production from East Coast
Canada and E&P International assets are influenced primarily
by the price for Brent crude, which averaged US$64.30/bbl in
2019, compared to US$71.05/bbl in 2018. Due to the nature
of cargo shipments at the company’s offshore assets, the
timing associated with bulk cargo sales can result in price
realizations that deviate from the average benchmark price
over the period.

Suncar's refining margins are primarily influenced by industry
benchmark crack spreads and, although the 3-2-1 crack
spread is more commonly quoted, the company’s refinery
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production is better aligned with a 2-1-1 crack spread, which
more appropriately reflects the company's refined product
mix of gasoline and distillates. Benchmark crack spreads are
industry indicators approximating the gross margin on a
barrel of crude oil that is refined to produce gasecline and
distillates. More complex refineries can earn greater refining
margins by processing less expensive, heavier crudes, or
lighter crudes discounted relative to the WT! benchmark.
Crack spreads do not necessarily reflect the margins of a
specific refinery. Crack spreads quoted in the market are
based on current crude Teedstock prices whereas aclual
earnings are based on first-in, first-out (FIFO) inventory
accounting, where a delay exists between the time that
feedstock is purchased and when it is processed and soid to
a third party. A FIFO loss normally reflects a declining price
environment for crude oil and finished products, whereas
FIFO gains reflect an increasing price environment for crude
oil and finished products. Specific refinery margins are
further impacted by actual crude purchase costs, refinery
configuration, production mix and realized prices for refined
products sales in markets unique to each refinery.

Natural gas used in Suncor’s Qil Sands and Refining
operations is primarily referenced to Alberta spot prices at
AECO. The average AECO benchmark increased to $1.75/mcf
in 2019, from $1.50/mcf in the prior year.

Excess electricity produced in Suncor’s Oil Sands operaticns
business is sold to the Alberta Electric System Operator, with
the proceeds netted against the Qil Sands operations cash
operating costs per barrel metric. The Alberta power pool
price increased to an average of $54.95/MWh in 2019 from
$50.20/MWh in the prior year.

The majority of Suncor's revenues from the sale of oil and
natural gas commodities are based on prices that are

determined by or referenced to U.S. dollar benchmark prices.

The majority of Suncor’s expenditures are realized in
Canadian dollars, A decrease in the value of the Canadian
dollar relative to the U.S. dollar will increase the revenues
received from the sale of commodities. An increase in the
value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar will
decrease revenues received from the sale of commodities. In
2019, the Canadian dollar weakened in relation to the

U.S. dollar as the average exchange rate decreased to
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US$0.75 per one Canadian dollar from U5$0.77 per one
Canadian dollar, which had a positive impact on price
realizations for the company in 2019,

Conversely, some of Suncor’s assets and liabilities, notably
65% of the company's debt, are denominated in U.5. dollars
and translated to Suncor's reporting currency (Canadian
dollars) at each balance sheet date. An increase in the value
of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.5. dollar from the
previous balance sheet date decreases the amount of
Canadian dollars required to settle U.5. dollar denominated
obligations.

Economic Sensitivities @

The following table illustrates the estimated effects that
changes in certain factors would have had on 2019 net
earnings and funds from operations® if the listed changes
had occurred.

Funds

Net From

{Estimated change, in $ millions) Earnings Operations®
Crude oil +US$1.00/bbl 238 238

WTI - narrowing light/heavy

differential +Us$1.00/bbl 23 23
2-1-1 crack spreads
+U5$1.00/bbl 153 153

Foreign exchange
+$0.01 US$/Cdn$ related to

operating activities® {221} (221)
Foreign exchange on U.5. dollar

denominated debt

+$0.01 US$/Cdns 159 -

(1} Each line item in this table shows the effects of a change in that
variable only, with other vaniables being held consistent.

(2) Changes for a vanable imply that all such similar variables are
impacted, such that Suncor’s average price realizations increase
uniformly, For instance, "Crude oll +US$1.00/bbl" implies that price
realizations influenced by WTI, Brent, SCO, WCS, par crude at
Edmonton and condensate all increase by US$1.00/bbl.

(3) Non-GAAP financial measure. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial
Measures section of this MD&A.

(4} Excludes the foreign exchange impact on U.S dollar denominated debt.



4. SEGMENT RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

Suncor has classified its operations into the following segments:

OIL SANDS

Suncor’s Oil Sands segment, with assets located in the
Athabasca oil sands of northeast Alberta, recovers bitumen
from mining and in situ operations. Bitumen is either
upgraded into SCO for refinery feedstock and diesel fuel, or
blended with diluent for direct sale to market through the
company’s midstream infrastructure and its marketing
activities. The Qil Sands segment includes:

* Qil Sands operations refer to Suncor's owned and
operated mining, extraction, upgrading, in situ and
related logistics, blending and storage assets in the
Athabasca oil sands region. Qil Sands operations
consist of:

= 0il Sands Base operations include the Millennium
and North Steepbank mining and extraction
operations, integrated upgrading facilities known as
Upgrader 1 and Upgrader 2, and the associated
infrastructure for these assets — including utilities,
energy, reclamation and storage facilities.

s In Situ operations include oil sands bitumen
production from Firebag and MacKay River and
supporting infrastructure, including central
processing facilities, cogeneration units, product
transportation infrastructure, diluent import
capabilities, storage assets and a cooling and
blending facility. In Situ also includes development
opportunities which may support future in situ
production, including Meadow Creek {75%), Lewis
(100%]), OSLO (77.78%), various interests in Chard
{25% to 50%), and a non-operated interest in Kirby
(10%). In Situ production is either upgraded by Oil
Sands Base, or blended with diluent and marketed
directly to customers.

+  Fort Hills inciudes Suncor's 54.11% interest in fFort Hills,
which the company operates, and the East Tank Farm
Development in which Suncor holds a 51% interest
and operates.

* Syncrude refers to Suncor’s 58.74% interest in the
Syncrude oil sands mining and upgrading operation.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

Suncor's E&P segment consists of offshore operations off the
east coast of Canada and in the North Sea, and onshore
assets in Libya and Syria.

* E&P Canada operations incdude Suncor's 37.675%
working interest in Terra Nova, which Suncor operates.
Suncor also holds non-operated interests in Hibernia
{20% in the base project and 19.190% in the Hibernia

Southern Extension Unit), White Rose (27.5% in the base
project and 26.125% in the extensions), and Hebron
(21.034%). In addition, the company holds interests in
several exploration licences and significant discovery
licences offshore Newfoundland and Labrador. Previously,
E&P Canada also inciuded Suncor's 37% equity interest in
Canbriam which was sold during the second quarter

of 2019.

* E&P international operations include Suncor's
non-operated interests in Buzzard (29.89%), the Golden
Eagle Area Development (26.69%), Oda (30%), the Fenja
project (17.5%]}, and the Rosebank future development
project (40%). Buzzard, Golden Eagle, and Rosebank are
located in the U.K. sector of the North Sea, while Oda
and the Fenja project are located in the Norwegian
North Sea and the Norwegian Sea, respectively. In
addition, Suncor owns, pursuant to Expleration and
Production Sharing Agreements (EPSAs}, working
interests in the exploration and development of oilfields
in the Sirte Basin in Libya, although production in Libya
remained partially shut in throughout 2019 due to
continued pelitical unrest. The timing of a return to
normal operations in Libya remains uncertain. Suncor
also owns, pursuant to a Production Sharing Contract
(PSC), an interest in the Ebla gas development in Syria,
which has been suspended, indefinitely, since 2011 due
to political unrest in the country.

REFINING AND MARKETING

The R&M segment consists of two primary operations, the
refining and supply and marketing operations discussed
below, as well as the infrastructure supporting the marketing
and supply of refined products, crude oil, natural gas, power
and byproducts.

* Refining and Supply operations refine crude oil and
intermediate feedstock into a wide range of petroleum
and petrochemical products. Refining and Supply
consists of:

+ Eastern North America operations include a
137,000 bbls/d refinery [ocated in Montreal, Quebec
and an 85,000 bbls/d refinery located in Sarnia,
Ontario,

*+  Western North America cperations incude a
142,000 bbls/d refinery located in Edmonton, Alberta
and a 98,000 bbls/d refinery in Commerce
City, Colorado.

+ Other Refining and Supply assets include interests in
a petrochemical plant and a sulphur recovery facility
in Montreal, Quebec, product pipelines and terminals

2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc. 29



SEGMENT RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

throughout Canada and the U.5., and the 5t. Clair
ethanol! plant in Ontario.

* Marketing operations sell refined petroleum products to
retail, commercial and industrial customers through a
combination of company-owned, Petro-Canada™ and
Sunoco™ location and branded-dealers in Canada and
other non-branded retail stations in the U5, a
nationwide commercial road transportation network in
Canada, as well as a buik sales channel in Canada.

CORPORATE AND ELIMINATIONS

The Corporate and Eliminations segment includes the
company's investments in renewable energy projects, and
other activities not directly attributable to any other
operating segment.

* Renewable Energy includes interests in four wind farm
operations in Ontario and Western Canada: Adelaide,
Chin Chute, Magrath and Sunbridge, as well as the
recently sanctioned Forty Mile Wind Power Project
currently under construction.

+ Corporate activities include stewardship of Suncor's debt
and barrowing costs, expenses not allocated to the
company’s businesses, the company's captive insurance
activities that insure a portion of the company’s asset
base and investments in clean technology.

« Intersegment revenues and expenses are removed from
consclidated results in Eliminations. Intersegment activity
includes the sale of product between the company's
segments and insurance for a portion of the company’s
operations by the Corporate captive insurance entity. The
sale of product between the company's segments is
primarily related to crude refining feedstock sold from
Qil Sands to R&M.

OIL SANDS

2019 Highlights

* In 2019, the company achieved an 5CO production record
of 485,600 bbls/d across its Qil Sands assets, Suncor's
curtailment optimization strategy maximized the value
of the company's allotted barreis under the Government
of Alberta's mandatory production curtailments program
effective January 2019. The company was able to
optimize the transfer of allotted curtailment credits
among the company’s assets and purchase third-party
credits to maximize production of higher value SCO
production, demonstrating our focus on value
over volume,

* Qil Sands operations increased SCO production to
313,300 bbls/d and achieved upgrader utilization of
90% in 2019, compared to 280,300 bbls/d and
upgrader utilization of B0% in the prior year.
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* Syncrude celebrated its three billionth barrel of
production and achieved the second best year of
production in its history, despite mandatory
production curtailments. Syncrude production of SCO
was 172,300 bbls/d with 85% utilization, compared
to 144,200 bbls/d and 70% utilization in the prior
year, due to improved upgrader reliability and lower
unplanned maintenance. Syncrude cash operating
costs per barrel declined significantly to $37.95 in
2019, compared to $47.25 in the prior year, due to
improved reliability and lower maintenance.

s Suncor’s share of production from Fort Hills increased to
85,300 bbls/d, compared to 66,100 bbls/d in the prior
year, due to the ramp up of operations throughout 2018,
partially offset by mandatory production curtailments.

* In 2019, construction began on interconnecting pipelines
between Suncor’s Oil Sands Base Plant and Syncrude in
anticipation of an in-service date in the second half of
2020. The bi-directional pipelines are expected to
enhance integration between these assets and increase
reliability at Syncrude.

= In 2019, Suncor anncunced a $1.4 billion investment in a
new cogeneration facility at Oil Sands Base Plant to
deliver low-carbon power generation and replace
existing coke-fired boilers. This investment is expected to
provide reliable steam generation while contributing to
the company’s environmental and incremental annual
free funds flow growth goal.

Strategy and Investment Update

Suncor holds one of the largest resource positions in the
Athabasca oil sands. Management is committed to delivering
safe, reliable, low-cost production, while being leaders in
growth, technical innovation and environmental
sustainability. The company has developed a unique asset
base within the oil sands and has established a regional
advantage given the close proximity of the company’s assets
to one another. This collection of high-quality assets,
combined with a long-life, low-decline reserves base and
industry-leading expertise, provides the opportunity to
continue to advance technelegy and innovation investments
and high return growth projects while growing annual free
funds flow.

The company’s ability to leverage technology and innovation
is at the core of our strategy supporting our financial, social
and environmental goals. Investments to replace its
coke-fired boilers with a cogeneration facility at its Qil Sands
Base Plant is expected to provide reliable steam generation
required for Suncor's extraction and upgrading, at a lower
cost and with significantly lower carbon emissions. The
facility is also expected to generate electricity that will be
transmitted to Alberta’s power grid, providing a lower
carbon power alternative while delivering value to Suncor.



Additional technology projects, including the continued
deployment of AHS, and innovative tailings technology
advancements, including Permanent Aquatic Storage
Structure, demonstrate the importance technology and
innovation have in increasing efficiency and lowering
operating costs while improving our environmental and
safety performance.

Suncor remains committed to increasing reliability and
enhancing the integration of our existing assets for
profitable growth. The investment in the bi-directional
interconnecting pipelines between Syncrude and Oil Sands
Base Plant will provide increased operational flexibility,
enabling higher reliability, utilization and profit optimization
for all Syncrude partners. The pipelines are expected to be in
service in the second half of 2020.

Cost management and capital discipline in Oil Sands will
continue to be top pricrities as the company expects tc
manage controllable operating costs through initiatives that
include co-ordinated maintenance strategies, equipment
standardization and the adoption of digital technoclogies.

Financial Highlights!"

Capital discipline continues to focus on managing investment
opportunities, including asset synergies and sustainability
priorities, strategically investing in projects that are
economically robust, sustainably minded and technologically
progressive. With these factors in mind, the company has
identified opportunities to debottieneck Firebag, including
the completion of our emulsion handling project this year,
integrate well pad development and expand our Solvent
steam-assisted gravity drainage program. Our near-term
expectation is to have actual Firebag production at
nameplate capacity of 203,000 bbls/d in 2021, assuming no
production curtailment, with the potential to add up to
30,000 bbls/d of lower capital intensity and lower carbon
production by 2024-25.

Through Suncor's midstream and logistics network, the
company secures market access, optimizes price realizations
associated with the marketing of crude oil and byproducts
and natural gas supply, manages inventory levels, and limits
the impacts of external market factors, such as pipeline
disruptions, lack of egress or outages at refining customers.

Year ended December 31 (§ millions} 2019 2018 2017
Gross revenues 18 347 15743 13274
LessRoyalt|e5 ................................................................................................................................... (917) ........................... (393) ........................... (355)
Operating revenues, net of royaities 17 430 15 345 12919
Net {loss} earnings (427) 945 994

Adjusted for:

Asset impairment 2959 — —
Gamon5|gn|f|cantd|5posa|lll o (50) -
lnsurancepmceedsm__ (55)
Impactofmcometaxrateadjustmen'tondeferredtaxes (910)__
Operating earnings® 1622 885 939
Funds from operationst 6 061 4964 4734

(1} 2018 and 2017 have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business segments to which the
respective trading activity relates. Suncor’s Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Eliminations

sagment.

{2} In 2018, the company recorded an after-tax gain of 360 million on the sale of the company’s interest in the Joslyn oil sands mining project.
(3) In 2017, the company received after-tax property damage proceeds of $55 million related to a facility incident at Syncrude.
{4} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures secton of this MD&A.
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Bridge Analysis of Operating Earnings (§ millions}i"!

v
v
v
| v
L]
m
A
885 400 1562 (385) (431) (208) (201) 1622
2018 Sales Price, Margin Royalties Operating DD&A Financing 2019
Volumes and Other and Expense and
and Mix Revenue Transportation Cther
Expense
(1) For an explanation of the construction of this bndge analysis, see the Advisonies — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section af this MD&A.
Operating earnings in Oil Sands operations were Production Volumes'?
$1.622 billion in 2019, corrfpare_d to. $885 million in 2018. The Year ended December 31
increase in operating earnings is primarily due to improved {mbbls/d) 2019 2018 2017
western Canadian crude oil differentials, including a . Upgraded product (SCO and
substantial narrowing of heavy crude and SCO differentials, diesel) 3133 2803 317.7
which more than offset lower benchmark oricing from the =~ e e e e
: L . P . 9 . In Situ non-upgraded bitumen 995 138.0 111.7
prior year and resuited in higher Oil Sands price realizations. - -
Strong Syncrude reliability and the ramp up of production at Total 0‘_' Sands operations 413 " 429
Fort Hills throughout 2018 contributed to the overall product:on ..................................................... y 8 ............. 8 3 ............... 4
increase in Oil Sands production in 2019 compared to the Fort Hills bitumen 853 66.1 —
prior year, despite being limited by mandatory production Syncrude {sweet SCO and
curtailments. Operating earnings were unfavourzably diesel) 1723 1442 1343
impacted by higher operating costs, higher royalties and Total 6704 6286 563.7

DD&A associated with the increase in production.

Oil Sands had a net loss of $427 million in 2019, compared
to net earnings of $945 million in 2018, and was impacted by
the same factors as operating earnings described above. In
addition, 2019 net earnings incduded the impact of a
non-cash impairment charge of $2.803 billion after-tax on
the company’s share of the Fort Hills assets, described below,
partially offset by a one-time deferred income tax recovery
of $310 million associated with a staged reduction to the
Alberta corporate income tax rate of 1% each year from
2019 to 2022.

Funds from operations for the Oil Sands segment were
$6.061 billion in 2019, compared to $4.964 hillion in 2018,
and were influenced by the same factors that impacted
operating earnings, adjusted for the impact of

non-cash DD&A.
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Bitumen from Qil Sands Base operations is upgraded, while bitumen
from In Situ operatiens is upgraded or sold directly to customers. Yields
of SCO from Suncor’s upgrading processes are approximately 79% of
bitumen feedstock input. Yields of SCG from Syncrude’s upgrading
processes are approximately 85% of bitumen feedstock input.

1

Oil Sands operations production decreased to 412,800 bbls/d
in 2019 from 418,300 bbls/d in 2018, primarily due to
mandatory production curtailments. Mandatory production
curtailments largely impacted the company's non-upgraded
bitumen production and resulted in an increased yield loss as
the company maximized production to its upgraders in order
to produce higher value 5CC. In 2019, SCO production
increased to 313,300 bbls/d, with upgrader utilization of
90%, compared to SCO production of 280,300 bbls/d and
upgrader utilization of 80% in the prior year, reflecting
strong reliability in 2019 and reduced maintenance.

Fort Hills bitumen production increased to 85,300 bbls/d in
2019 from 66,100 bbls/d in 2018, due to the ramp up in
production throughout 2018, partially offset by the impact
of mandatory production curtailments. Fort Hills remains



adversely impacted by mandatory production curtailments
due to the continued, disproportionate effect of curtailment
as it is applied on a 2018 production basis when the asset
was ramping up to full preduction rates. In 2019, the
company was able to partially mitigate impacts of
curtailment on production by internally transferring credits
from Oil Sands operations during planned maintenance and
purchasing third-party curtailment credits.

Suncor's share of Syncrude production increased to

172,300 bbls/d in 2019, compared to 144,200 bbls/d in 2018,
marking the second best year of production in the asset’s
history, even with mandatory production curtailments. The
increase is primarily due to strong reliability and lower
maintenance resulting in upgrader utilization of 85% in
2019, compared to 70% in the prior year. In 2019, Syncrude
was able to partially mitigate the impact of curtailment on
producticn by purchasing curtailment credits from partners
and third parties.

Sales Volumes and Mix

Year ended December 31

{mbblsvd) 2019 2018 2017
Qil Sands operaticns sales volumes
5Weetsco1135953 1079
coerien D|ese| ...................................................... 260 .......... 288 .......... 275
5°ursco171a 1525 1835
Upgraded product (SCO) 3113 2875  319.0
In Situ non-upgraded bitumen 1014 1340 1106
Oil Sands operations 4127 4215 4296
FortH|||5b|tumen .................................. 351573 .............. o
syncrudesweetsco ........................... 1 123 ........ 1442 ......... 1 343
Total 6711 623.0 5639

Sales volumes for Qil Sands operations decreased to
412,700 bbls/d in 2019, compared to 421,500 bbls/d in 2018,
reflecting the same factors impacting production volumes.

Bitumen sales at Fort Hills increased to 86,100 bbls/d, net to
Suncer, in 2019, from 57,300 bbis/d in the prior year,
consistent with the increase in production.

Bitumen Production from Operations

Year ended December 31 2019 2018 2017
Oil Sands Base

Bitumen production

{mbbls/d) 2899 2588 3054

Bitumen ore mined

(thousands of tonnes/day) 4348 378.0 4644

Bitumen ore grade quality

(bbls/tonne) 0.67 0.68 0.66
In Situ

Bitumen production -

Firebag {mbbls/d} 187.0 2040 1815

Bitumen production -
MacKay River (mbbls/d}

Steam-to-oil ratio - MacKay
River 3.0 2.9 31

Total In Situ bitumen

production {mbbls/d) 216.2 2400 2126
Total Oil Sands operations

bitumen production

{mbbls/d} 506.% 4988 518.0

Fort Hills

Bitumen production

{mbbls/d} 85.3 66.1 —
Bitumen from froth e 1.3 -
Bitumen ore mined

(thcusands of tonnes/day) 1405 106.2 —
Bitumen ore grade quality

(bblsftonne) 0.61 0.63 —

crude

Bitumen production

(mbbls/d) 205.4 172.0 163.6
Bitumen ore mined

(thousands of tonnes/day} 3305 2775 252.7
Bitumen ore grade quality

(bblsftonne) 0.62 0.62 0.63
Total Qil Sands bitumen

production {mbbls/d) 7968 738.2 081.6

Qil Sands operations bitumen production increased to
506,100 bbls/d in 2019, compared to 498,800 bbls/d in 2018.
The increase is primarily due to strong upgrader reliability
and the associated increase in mined bitumen volumes,
partially offset by lower non-upgraded In Situ production
due to mandatory production curtailments after maximizing
the volume of Firebag bitumen upgraded into SCO.

Bitumen production at Syncrude increased in 2019 to
205,400 bbls/d from 172,000 bbls/d in 2018, and was
impacted by the same factors as production described above,
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Price Realizations

Year ended December 31
Net of transportation costs, but

before royalties ($/bbl) 2019 2018 2017

Qil Sands operations
SCO and diesel 69.65 68.97 61.47

Bitumen ‘ 4208 2470 3347
Crude sales basket
(all products) 62.87 5491 5426

Crude sales basket, relative

to WTI (13.20) (29.24) (11.91)

Fort Hills bitumen 48.96 3847 —
Syncrude - sweet 5CO 73.45 70.19 £6.05
Syncrude, relative to WTi {(2.62) (1397 (0.12)

Average price realizations at Oil Sands operations increased
to $62.87/bbl in 2019 compared to $54.91/bbl in 2018,
primarily due to the narrowing of heavy crude and SCO
differentials resulting from mandatory production
curtailments in the province of Alberta, and the impact of a
weaker Canadian dollar, partially offset by a decrease in the
WTI benchmark price.

Average price realizations for Fort Hills bitumen were
$48.96/bbi in 2019 and were higher than In Situ bitumen
realizations due to a higher proportion of sales being made
in the U.S. mid-continent and the U.5. Gulf Coast, where
Suncor is able to utilize its logistics network to access
favourable pricing in the U.S. market, combined with the
higher quality associated with paraffinic froth-treated
bitumen produced at Fort Hills. Average price realizations
were higher than the prior year due to the improved heavy
crude cil differential and the impact of a weaker Canadian
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dollar, partially offset by a decrease in the WTI benchmark
price.

Suncor’s average price realization for Syncrude sales
increased in 2019 to $73.45/bbl, compared to $70.19/bbl in
2018, due to narrower SCO differentials and the impact of a
weaker Canadian dollar, partially offset by decreased WTI
benchmark pricing.

Royalties

Royalties were higher in 2019 relative to 2018, primarily due
to higher bitumen pricing and production volumes.

Expenses and Other Factors

Total operating and transportation expenses for 2019 were
higher relative to 2018, as described in detail below. See the
Cash Operating Costs section below for further details.

At Oil Sands operations, operating costs increased when
compared to the prior year as a result of higher costs
associated with increased production of higher value SCO
barrels, an increase in contractor mining costs for increased
ore volumes processed, higher commodity costs and
unplanned maintenance costs.

At Fort Hills, operating costs in 2019 were higher compared
to the prior year due to the ramp up of production in 2018
and an increase in planned maintenance.

Suncor's share of Syncrude operating costs were [ower than
the priar year, primarily due to lower unplanned
maintenance costs resulting from improved reliability.

Oil Sands transportation costs in 2019 were comparable to
the prior year.

DD&A expense for 2019 increased when compared to 2018
due to additional depreciation associated with the transition
to IFRS 16.



Cash Operating Costs

Year ended December 31 2019 2018 2017
Qil Sands operating, selling
and general expense (OS&G) 8027 7577 6 262
Qil Sands operations cash
operating costst
raconcuhatuon
0|I Sands operations OS&G 4 639 4 222 4 067
Non productnon costsm (179) (100) (106)
Excess power capaclty and
other® 241 (237) (232
!nventory changes a3 {(14)
Oil Sands operations cash
operatlng costsm ($ m;llaons) 4267 3871 3729
Oil Sands operatlons cash
operating costs'” ($/bbl) 28.20 2525 23.80
Fort Hills cash operating
costst" reconciliation
Fort Hills OS&G 921 832 —
Non-production costsi? {(115) (1200 —_—
Inventory changes 9 55 —
Fort Hills cash operating
costs“’ ($ mlIIlons) 815 767 —
Fort H|IIs cash operatlng
costs® ($/bbl) 26.15 31.20 —
Syncrude cash operating
costs“’ reconciliation
Syncrude OS&G 2 467 2 523 2195
Non- productlon cos‘ts‘z) (82) (33) (3N
Syncrude cash operating
costsm ($ millions) 2385 2490 2158
Syncrude cash operating
costs'™ ($/bbh) 37.95 47.25 44.05

(1) Nen-GAAP fingncial measures. See the Adviseries — Non-GAAP Financial
Measures section of this MD&A.

(2) Significant non-production costs include, but are not limited to, share-
Dased compensation expense and research expenses. Non-production
costs at Fort Hills also include, but are not limited to, project startup
costs, excess power revenue from cogeneration units and an
adjustment to reflect internally produced diesel from Qil Sands
operations at the cost of production.

(3) Oil Sands operations excess power capacity and other includes, but 1
not limited to, the operational revenue impacts of excess power from
cogeneration units and the natural gas expense recorded as part of a
non-manetary arrangement involving a third-party processer.

Qil Sands operations cash operating costs per barrel™
averaged $28.20 in 2019, compared to $25.25 in 2018,
reflecting higher contractor mining, commodity and
unplanned maintenance costs, as well as higher costs
associated with the production of higher value 5CO barrels.

Total Qil Sands operations cash operating costs increased to
$4.267 billion from $3.871 billion in the prior year.

In 2019, non-production costs, which are excluded from Qil
Sands operations cash operating costs, were higher than the
prior year, primarily due to an increase in research and
development costs and share-based compensation expense.

Oil Sands operations inventory changes in 2019 reflect a
build of higher value SCO, partially offset by a draw of
bitumen inventory.

Fort Hills cash operating costs per barrel averaged $26.15 in
2019, compared to $31.20 in 2018, reflecting the impact of
the production ramp up throughout 2018,

Syncrude cash operating costs per barrel decreased to $37.95
in 2019, compared to $47.25 in the previous year, due to
improved upgrader reliability and decreased maintenance
costs. Suncor’s share of total Syncrude cash operating costs
decreased to $2.385 billion from $2.490 billion in 2018.
Higher non-production costs compared to the prior year is
due to an increase in share-based compensation expense.

Non-Cash Asset impairment

Due to continued volatility in the crude oil price
environment and resulting declines in forecasted heavy crude
oil prices, the company performed an asset impairment test
on its Fort Hills cash generating unit (CGU) in the Oil Sands
segment. As a result, the company recorded a non-cash
impairment charge of $2.80 billion (net of taxes of

$0.91 billion) on its share of the Fort Hills project using the
following asset-specific assumptions:

= WCS price forecast of US$40.75/bbi in 2020, US$45.60/bbl
in 2021, US$49.65/bbl in 2022, US$51.55/bbl in 2023 and
US$52.90/bbl in 2024, escalating at 2% per year
thereafter over the life of the project up to 2060,
adjusted for asset-specific location and quality
differentials;

* the company's share of production ranging from 96,000
to 106,000 bbls/d over the life of the project;

= cash operating costs averaging $22/bbl to $24/bbl over
the life of the project (expressed in real dollars) reflects
operating, selling and general expense adjusted for
non-production costs, including share-based
compensation, research costs, and excess power
revenue; and

e risk-adjusted discount rate of 7.5% (after-tax).

The recoverable amount of the Fort Hills CGU was

$7.7 billion as at December 31, 2019, which also includes the
cost of carbon compiiance in accordance with current
provincial and federal regulations which starts at $30/onne
in 2020, reaches $50/tonne by 2022 and escalates at the rate
of inflation thereafter. The estimate of the recoverable
amount is most sensitive to the WCS price forecast and

(1) Oil Sands operations cash operating costs 1s a non-GAAP financial measure. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.
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discount rate. A 5% decrease in price would have resulted in
an increase to the impairment charge of approximately

$1.2 billion {after-tax} on the company’s share of the Fort
Hills assets. A 1% increase in the discount rate would have
resulted in an increase to the impairment charge of
approximately $900 million {after-tax) on the company's
share of the Fort Hills assets.

Planned Maintenance

Planned maintenance at MacKay River originally scheduled
for the third quarter of 2020 has been accelerated to the
first quarter of 2020 to coincide with an outage that
occurred in the fourth quarter of 2019, in an effort to
minimize impacts to annual production. Planned Upgrader 2
maintenance at Oil Sands operations and an annual
turnaround at Syncrude are planned for the second quarter
of 2020. Maintenance at Oil Sands operations Upgrader 1 is
scheduled for the third quarter of 2020, extending into the
fourth quarter of 2020. The anticipated impact of these
maintenance events has been reflected in the company's
2020 guidance.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

2019 Highlights

s E&P funds from operations increased to $2.143 billion
from $1.779 billion in 2018, and operating earnings
increased to $1.141 billion, compared to $897 million in
the prior year.

e Drilling activity at Hebron is ongoing with six new
production wells coming online during 2019. Production
at Hebron averaged 23,500 bbls/d in 2019, net to Suncor,
compared to 13,000 bbls/d in 2018.

* First oil was achieved ahead of schedule at Oda, with
production averaging 3,700 boe/d in 2019. In the fourth
quarter of 2019, Oda averaged production of
7,800 boe/d.
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+ In 2019, the company sanctioned the Terra Nova ALE
project, which is expected to extend the life of Terra
Nova by approximately a decade and is planned for
execution by the end of 2020,

Strategy and Investment Update

The E&P segment delivers geographically diversified cash
flows and focuses primarily on low-cost projects that deliver
significant returns, cash flow and long term-value,

The Terra Nova ALE project is scheduled to commence in the
second quarter of 2020, with the vessel returning to service
in the fourth quarter of 2020. Production at Terra Nova is
planned to resume once the project is completed. The
project is expected to extend the production life and
capacity of the existing Terra Nova asset by approximately a
decade. Execution of this work provides an opportunity to
complete enhancements to the Floating Production, Storage
and Offloading vessel to increase production capacity and
efficiency to enable reliable operations over its extended life.

The company has ongoing development activities offshore
the east coast of Canada and in the U.K. North Sea, intended
to leverage existing facilities and infrastructure to provide
incremental production and extend the productive life of
existing fields. These activities are planned to continue in
2020, with development drilling at Hebron and Hibernia, the
West White Rose Project, Buzzard Phase 2, and the Fenja
project in Norway. The Rosebank project is currently in the
pre-sanction phase with a sanction decision planned for

late 2022.

Through Suncor's midstream and logistics network, the
company secures market access, optimizes price realizations
associated with crude il marketing, manages inventory
levels and limits the impacts of external market factors.



Financial Highlights!"

Year ended December 31 {$ millions} 2019 2018 2017
Gross revenues‘z‘ 3372 3474 3177
..Less Royaltlesm {302) (257) (256)
Operating revenues, net of royalties 3070 3217 2911
Net earnings 1005 807 21

Adjus‘ted for
. o !m a“;.r:nent 393_—
(r‘am) on 5|gn|f|cant dlsposals and Iosr on eqmty mvcatmcntm {187)90——
Irnpact of income tax rate adJustments on deferred income taxes“" (70)—14
Operating earnings® 1141 897 735
Funds from operations® 2143 1779 1756

(1) 2018 and 2017 have been restated to reflect the change to the company's segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business segments to which the
respective trading activity relates. Suncor's Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corperate, Energy Trading and Eliminations
segment.

(2) Production, revenues and royalties from the company’s Libya operations have been presented in the E&P section of this document on an econamic basis
and exclude an equal and offsetting gross up of revenues and royalties of $303 million in 2019, $395 miliion in 2018, and $310 million in 2017, which
is required for presentation purposes in the company’s financial statements under the warking-interest basis.

(3) In 2018, the company recorded a net non-cash loss of $90 million, after-tax, related to an asset exchange with Canbriam.
{(4) In 2017, adjustments to the company's deferred income taxes related to tax reform legislation in the U.S. for North America Onshore assets.
(5) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisones — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

Bridge Analysis of Operating Earnings ($ millions}"

v v
— 1l
v
Y 1 ] v
A

897 8 (55) (34) 264 (5} (38) 104 1141
2018 Sales  Price, Margin Royalties Insurance Operating DD&A and Financing 2019

Volumes and Other Proceeds and Exploration Expense and

and Mix Revenue Transportation Expense Other

Expense

{1)  For an explanation of the construction of this bridge analysis, see the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

Operating earnings were $1.141 billion for E&P In 2019, negatively impacted by lower price realizations consistent
compared to $897 miliion in the prior year, with the increase  with the decline in the Brent crude benchmark, higher DD&A
largely due to the receipt of $264 million, after-tax, for and increased royalties. The insurance proceeds received may
insurance proceeds related to the company's assets in Libya be subject to a provisional repayment that may be

and prior year losses recorded on an equity investment in dependent on the future performance and cash flows from

Canbriam, which was sold in 2019. Operating earnings were Suncor’s Libyan assets.
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SEGMENT RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

Net earnings were $1.005 billion for the E&P segment in
2019, compared to $807 million in 2018, and were impacted
by the same factors as operating earnings described above.
In addition, net earnings in 2019 included an after-tax
impairment charge of $393 million against the company's
interest in White Rose, as discussed beiow, and a one-time
deferred income tax recovery of $70 million associated with
a staged reduction to the Alberta corporate income tax rate
of 1% each year from 2019 to 2022. Net earnings in 2019
also included an after-tax gain of $139 million on the sale of
the company's interest in Canbriam and an after-tax gain of
$48 million related to the sale of certain non-core assets.

Funds from operations were $2.143 billion in 2019, compared
to $1.779 billion in 2018. The increase was largely due to the
same factors that impacted operating earnings above,
adjusted for the impact of non-cash DD&A,

Production Volumes

‘Year ended December 31 2019 2018 2017

E&P Canada
Terra Nova (mbbls/d) .
Hibernia {mbbls/d)

White Rose (mbbls/d} . .

....... NorthAmencaonshore
(mboe/d) — 0.5 1.9
Total E&P Canada

ion {mboe/d)
E&P International

Buzzard(mboe/d)

e Goldensag|e(mboe/d) .................. 90 ............ 124 ............ 195
United Kingdom (mboe/d) 40.9 46.6 63.4
- Norway_oda(mboe/d) ................. 37 ................ S e
voeeeen L;bya(mbblsfd) .................................. 23 .............. 29 .............. 45
Total E&P International
production {(mboe/d) 46.9 49.5 67.9
Total Production (mboe/d) 106.8 103.4 1216
Tota|53|e5v°1ume5
(mboe/d) 106.0 102.8 120.8

E&P Canada production volumes increased to 59,900 boe/d in
2019 from 53,900 boe/d in 2018, primarily due to the ramp
up of Hebron production throughout 2019 and the
continued staged return of White Rose to normal operating
rates, partially offset by an unplanned outage at Hibernia
during the year.

E&P International production volumes averaged 46,900 boe/d
in 2019, compared to 49,500 boe/d in 2018, with the
increased production from Oda, which began production in
2019, more than offset by natural declines in the U.K.
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Price Realizations

Year ended December 31
Net of transportation costs, but

before royalties 2019 2018 2017

Exploration and Production
E&P Canada - Crude oil and
natural gas liguids ($/bbl}
E&P Canada ~ Natural gas

($/mcf) s 1.94 1.77
E&P International ($/boe) 8109 86.77 6546
E&P average price ($/boe) 8292 8696 66.20

Average price realizations from E&P Canada and E&P
International in 2019 were lower than 2018, due to the
decrease in benchmark prices for Brent crude in 2019 and
the timing of cargo sales.

Royalties
E&P royalties were higher in 2019 due to an increase in East
Coast Canada sales volumes.

Expenses and Other Factors

Qperating expenses were marginaily higher in 2019,
compared to 2018, primarily due to the addition of Hebron
operating costs and an increase in maintenance expense.

DD&A and impairment expenses increased in 2019, compared
to the prior year, primarily due to the ramp up of Hebron
production volumes, partially offset by decreased production
in the U.K.

Exploration expense increased in 2019, as compared to 2018,
as a result of exploration charges for non-commercial drilling
results off the east coast of Canada and in the

U.K. North Sea.

Financing expenses and other were favourable in 2019,
compared to 2018, due to prior year losses recorded on an
equity investment in Canbriam, which was sold in 2019.

Non-Cash Asset Impairment

Due to an increase to forecasted capital expenditures within
the White Rose CGU, the company performed an asset
impairment test as at December 31, 2019. As a result, the
company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of

$393 million (net of taxes of $128 million) on its share of the
White Rose assets using the following asset-specific
assumptions:

* Brent price forecast of US$65.00/bbl in 2020, escalating
at 2% per year thereafter over the life of the project up
to 2036 and adjusted for asset-specific location and
quality differentials;

» the companys share of production of approximately
8,700 bbls/d over the life of the project;



¢ the company’s share of future capital expenditures of
$1.4 billion including the West White Rose
expansion; and

» risk-adjusted discount rate of 9.0% (after-tax).

The recoverable amount of the White Rose CGU was

£360 million as at December 31, 2019, which also includes
the cost of carbon compliance in accordance with current
provincial and federal regulations which starts at $30/tonne
in 2020, reaches $50/tonne by 2022 and escalates at the rate
of inflation thereafter. The estimate of the recoverable
amount is imusl sensitive to the Brent price torecast and
discount rate. A 5% decrease in price would have resulted in
an increase to the impairment charge of approximately

$85 million (after-tax) on the company's share of the White
Rose assets. A 1% increase in the discount rate would have
resulted in an increase to the impairment charge of
approximately $35 million (after-tax) on the company's share
of the White Rose assets.

Planned Maintenance of Operated Assets

The Terra Nova ALE project is scheduled to commence in the
second quarter of 2020, with the vessel returning to service
in the fourth quarter of 2020. Production at Terra Nova is
planned to resume once the project is completed. The
project is expected to extend the production life and
capacity of the existing Terra Nova asset. The anticipated
impact of the asset being offline has been reflected in the
company’s 2020 guidance.

REFINING AND MARKETING

2019 Highlights

* The R&M segment delivered record funds from
operations of $3.863 billion and operating earnings of
$2.912 billion in 2019, compared to funds from
operations of $3.798 billion and operating earnings of
$3.154 billion in 2018.

s R&M delivered refinery crude throughput of
438,900 bbls/d in 2019, compared to 430,800 bbls/d in

2018, driven by strong refinery utilization in 2019.
Average refinery utilization was 95% in 2019, compared
with 93% in 2018.

« Refined product sales were 539,400 bbls/d, with record
volumes sold in the marketing channels in 2019,
including a new annual record for Canadian retail sales
reflecting continued strong product demand.

* R&M continues to be a key component of the company’s
integrated business model, allowing Suncor to
significantly shield volatility in crude differentials in the
Oil Sands segment through lower refinery feedstock
costs. In 2019, approximately 56% of the company's
crude feedstock processed at the company's refineries
was internally produced 5CO and dituted bitumen.

* In 2019, Suncor also completed an electric vehicle
fast-charging network across Canada, demonstrating the
company’s continued commitment to projects that are
sustainability minded and technologically advanced.

Strategy and investment Update

The R&M network serves to maximize Suncor’s integrated
returns by extending the value chain from oil sands
production to the end customer and is a key component of
Suncer's integrated business modei. The company aims to
operate its refineries at optimal levels of utilization to
provide reliable offtake and secure pricing for a portion of
the preduction from the Qil Sands segment.

In 2019, Suncor continued to ieverage its strong Petro-
Canada™ brand through a nationwide campaign to increase
sales volumes and non-petroleum revenues through the
company's network of convenience stores and car washes
and will continue these efforts in 2020.

Through Suncor’s midstream and logistics network, the
company secures market access, optimizes price realizations
associated with refined products and crude oil supply,
manages inventory levels and limits the impacts of external
market factors.
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SEGMENT RESULTS AND ANALYS(S

Financial Highlights(?

Year ended December 31 (§ millions) 2019 2018 2017
Operating revenues 22 304 23778 19 755
Net earnings 3 000 3154 2622

Ad Justed for

e

Impact of muco.me tax rate ad]ustments on deferred taxes(2J (88) — (140}

) s 5|gn|f|cant d:;posa|(3) __(354)
Operating earnlngs“" 2912 3154 2128

“Funds from operatmns(‘) et e ees e st et ee e eet oo e b st s s e et 3 853 37982323

(1) 2018 and 2017 have been restated to reflect the change to the companys segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
averal! consalidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business segments to which the
respective trading activity relates. Suncar's Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Eliminations
segment.

(2} In 2017, the company recorded an adjustment to s deferred income taxes related to tax reform legislation in the U.S., with the most significant impact

resulting from a decrease in the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%.
(3) After-tax gain related to the sale of the company’s lubricants business.

(4}  Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&#A.

Bridge Analysis of Operating Earnings ($ millions)®

v v v
A [ ]
A
A
3154 1 (903) 929 (107) (79) {100) 17 2912
2018 Refinery Ref-i-n-er);rul\;flargin FIFO Marketlng Operatmg DD&A Financing 2019
Sales and QOther Inventory Margin and and Expense and
and Mix Revenue Valuation Volumes  Transportation Other

Expense

(1) For an explanation ef the construction of this bridge analysis, see the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

R&M contributed annual aperating earnings of $2.912 billion
in 2019, compared with $3.154 billion in 2018. The decrease
was attributable to lower refining margins attributed
primarily to significantly narrower crude differentials, lower
marketing margins, and higher DD&A, partially offset by a
FIFO gain in 2019 compared to a FIFO loss in the prior year
associated with the significant decline in crude and refined
product benchmarks near the end of 2018.

Net earnings in 2019 were $3.000 billion, compared to net
earnings of $3.154 billion in 2018, and were impacted by the
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same factors as operating earnings described above. 2019 net
earnings alse included a one-time deferred income tax
recovery of $88 million associated with a staged reduction to
the Alberta corporate income tax rate of 1% each year from
2019 to 2022,

R&M achieved an annual funds from operations record of
$3.863 billion in 2019, compared to $3.798 billion in 2018,
due primarily to the same factors that impacted operating
earnings described above, excluding the impacts of
non-cash DD&A.



Volumes
Year ended December 31 2019 2018 2017
"""" Eastern North America 2033 2081 2064
" Western North America  235.6  222.7 2348
Total 438.9 4308 441.2
Refinery utilization®@ (%)
EastemNorthAmencagzgz;gg
WcstcmNorthAmencagagjjgg
Total 95 a3 96
Refined Product Sales (mbbls/d)
Gasohneuss 2455 2429
D.5t|f|atez1a1 2034 e
other747 734 333
Total 5394 5274 5305
Refining margin®@ ($/bbl) 33.15 3450 24.20
....... Refmmgoperatmg
expense? ($/bbl) 5.35 5.35 5.05

{1} Refinery utilization 15 the amount of crude ol and natural gas plant
hguids run through crude distilation units, expressed as a percentage
of the capacity of these units.

{2} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisones — Non-GAAP Financial
Measures section of this MD&A.

Refinery utilization averaged 95% in 2019, compared with
93% in 2018. The increase in utilization was primarily due to
a decrease in planned maintenance in 2019 compared to
2018, with the Edmonton refinery undergoing its first full
plant turnaround in its history in 2018.

Total refined preducts sales were 539,400 bbls/d in 2019,
compared to 527,400 bbls/d in 2018, with record volumes
sold in the marketing channels in 2019, including a new
annual record for Canadian retail sales reflecting continued
strong product demand.

Prices and Margins

Refining and Product Supply prices and margins, including
FIFQ inventory valuation, were slightly higher in 2019
compared to 2018, and were impacted primarily by the
following factors:

¢ An overall less favourable business environment, driven
by narrower crude differentials.

= In 2019, the impact of FIFO inventory accounting, as used
by the company, relative to an estimated LIFO™ basis of
accounting, had a positive impact on refining margins
and net income of approximately $461 million after-tax,
compared to a negative impact of $468 million after-tax
in 2018, for a favourable year-over-year impact of
$929 million.

Marketing gross margins in 2019 were lower than in the
prior year, primarily due to finished product market
conditions.

Expenses and Other Factors

Operating and fransportation expenses were higher in 2019
compared to 2018, primarily due to an increase in business

development costs and share-based compensation expense.

DD&A increased in 2019 compared to the prior year due to
the implementation of IFRS 16.

Planned Maintenance

The company has a number of planned maintenance events,
including a two-week planned maintenance event at the
Commerce City refinery in the first quarter of 2020, a
two-week turparound at the Sarnia refinery scheduled in the
second quarter of 2020, a four-week turnaround at the
Edmonton refinery scheduled in the third quarter of 2020,
and a six-week turnaround at the Montreal refinery in the
third quarter and fourth quarter of 2020. The estimated
impact of these maintenance events has been reflected in
the company’s 2020 guidance.

CORPORATE AND ELIMINATIONS

2019 Highlights

« A total of $2.614 billion in dividends were paid in 2019,
an increase of 17% per common share over the prior
year, making 2019 the 17th consecutive year of annual
dividend increases for Suncor.

= The company repurchased 55.3 million of its own
common shares for cancellation during 2019,
representing 3.6% of the total outstanding common
shares, for $2.274 billion, and reduced debt by
$425 million, reflecting continued flexibility in the
company's capital allocation strategy.

*  Suncor sanctioned the Forty Mile Wind Power Project,
which is expected to drive value through sustainable
low-carbon power generation and the retention of
generated carbon credits for utilization in Suncor's
upstream business.

& In 2019, the company increased its investments in clean
technology, including an aggregate of $73 million in
equity investments in Enerkem Inc., a waste-to biofuels
and chemicals producer.

s Subsequent to the end of the year, Suncor’s Board of
Directors approved an 11% increase in the quarterly
dividend and a renewal of the share repurchase
program. This increases the quarterly dividend from
$0.420 to $0.465 per common share and provides
approval for up to $2.0 billion in share repurchases
beginning March 1, 2020.

{1} The LIFQ inventery valuation methodology is a non-GAAP financial measure. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc. 41



SEGMENT RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

Strategy and Investment Update

Returning value to shareholders continues to be a top
priority for Suncor, as demonstrated by the company’s history
of dividend increases and commitment to its share
repurchase program. Since the start of 2017, the company
has completed $12.4 billion in share repurchases as of
February 25, 2020, which is approximately 21% of the total
outstanding common shares of the company. In 2020, the
Board of Directors has approved up to a further $2.0 billion
in share repurchases, reinforcing the company’s ability to
generate cash flow and its commitment to return cash to
shareholders.

Investment in wind power and being a part of the emerging
biofuel industry is a key component of Suncor’s climate
change action plan. In 2019, Suncor sanctioned the Forty
Mile Wind Power Project in southern Alberta. This 200 MW
renewable power project has an estimated total capital
spend of $300 million, with 25% of the capital spent in 2019
and the remainder to be spent over the next two years. This

Financial Highlights!"

investment approach in renewable energy is expected to
generate significant value through sustainable power
generation and retention of the generated carbon credits for
utilization in Suncor’s upstream business. This project enables
Suncor to make meaningful progress towards its
sustainability goal of a 30% GHG emissions intensity
reduction by 2030.

In 2020, the company expects to continue to accelerate its
digital transformation and implement new digital
technologies across the enterprise to help improve the safety,
productivity, reliability and environmental performance of
our operations. As part of its digital transformation, Suncor
has entered into a strategic alliance with Microsoft. This
alliance enables Suncor to utilize Microsoft's full range of
cloud solutions to empower a connected and collaborative
workforce, build an agile data platform to increase analytics
capabilities, and partner with experts while gaining access to
leading edge technologies.

Year ended December 31 ($ millions) 2019 2018 2017
Net (loss) earnings (679) (1613) 121
Adjusted for: )
....... Unreahzedfore|gnexchange(ga|n);ossonusdo”ar
denominated debt (590) 989 (702)

Impact of income tax

taxes® (48) — 2
Operating foss'® {1317) (624) 614)
Funds used in operations® {1 249) (369) (174}

(1) 2018 and 2017 have been restated to refiect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overal! consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business segments to which the
respective trading activity relates. Suncor’s Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Eliminations

segment.

{2} In 2017, the company recogmzed an after-tax loss on forward interest rate swaps of $20 millon due to changes in long-term interest rates.

(3) In 2017, the company redeemed US$1.250 billion, US$600 million and $700 million of higher interest long-term debt that was onginally due in 2018,
reducing future financing charges for a net economic benefit As a result of early redempticn, the company incurred an after-tax charge of $28 million,

net of associated realized foreign currency hedges.

(4) In 2017, the company recorded an after-tax gain of $83 million related to the sale of its interest in the Cedar Point wind facility.

(5) In 2017, the company recorded an adjustment to its deferred income taxes related to the tax reform legislation in the U.S., with the most significant
impact resulting from a decrease in the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%.

&)  Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A.
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Corporate and Renewables

Corporate incurred an operating loss of $1.113 billion in
2019, compared with an operating loss of $876 million in
2018, reflecting lower operational foreign exchange gains in
2019 in comparison to the prior year, an increase in share-
based compensation expense, higher interest expenses and
lower capitalized interest. Suncor capitalized $122 million of
its borrowing costs in 2019 as part of the cost of major
development assets and construction projects in progress,
compared to $156 million in the prior year, with the decrease
resulting from the staged commissioning of Fort Hills

in 2018.

Year ended December 31 2019 2018 2017
Renewable Energy power

generation marketed

{gigawatt hours)® 184 183 255

(1) Power generated includes curtalled producbion for which the company
was compensated.

Eliminations — Intersegment profit (eliminated) realized

Eliminations reflect the deferral or realization of profit on
crude oil sales from Gil Sands to R&M. Consolidated profits
are only realized when the refined products produced from
internal purchases of crude feedstock have been sold to third
parties. In 2019, the company eliminated $204 miilion of

after-tax intersegment profit, compared to a realization of
profit of $252 million in the prior year. The change
year-over-year was primarily due to the increase in Qil Sands
crude margins in 2019, as lower margin crude feedstock
inventory sourced internally from Oil Sands was soid and
replaced hy higher margin crude feedstock inventory,
resulting in an elimination of profit at the enterprise level.

The net loss for Corporate and Eliminations was $679 million
in 2019, compared to a net loss of $1.613 billion in 2018. In
addition to the factors impacting operating earnings
discussed above, the net loss in 2019 included a $590 million
unrealized after-tax foreign exchange gain on the
revaluation of U.S. dollar denominated debt and a

$48 million deferred income tax recovery associated with the
Government of Alberta’s staged reduction of the corporate
income tax rate from 12% to 8% over the next four years.
The net loss in the prior year included a $989 million
unrealized after-tax foreign exchange loss on the revaluation
of U.5. dollar denominated debt.

Funds used in operations for the Corporate and Eliminations
segment were $1.249 billion in 2019, compared to

$369 mitlion in 2018, and were influenced by the same
factors that impacted operating earnings, adjusted for the
non-cash component of share-based compensation expense.
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FOURTH QUARTER 2019 ANALYSIS

5. FOURTH QUARTER 2019 ANALYSIS
Financial and Operational Highlights‘"

Three months ended December 31

{$ millions, except as noted} 2019 2018
Net (Ioss) earnlngs
i Sands (377)
"""" Exploration and Production _ (162)  (115)
.._....Refmmg and Marketmg 558752
mCorporate and Ellmlnatlodsm (49)(550)
Total (2 335) (280)
Operating earnings (loss)@
. 0.| Sands 277(377)
Exploratlon and Productlon231108
Reflnlng and Marketlng 558762
- Corporate and EI|m|nat|on.r1-smm (284)87
Total 782 580

Funds from (used in) operations®®

Corporate and Eliminations {200) 196

Total funds from operatlons 2553 2007

“Changes in non- cash workmd

capital {249) 1033

Cash flow provided by operating

activities 2304 3040

Production volumes {mboe/d)

coreees o .|53nd5 ............................................................ 5 5237408
Exploratlon and Produc‘tlon 1159 902

Total 778.2 831.0

(1) 2018 has been restated to reflect the change 1o the company’s
segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact
to overall consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now
included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates. Suncer’s Energy Trading
business was previously reported within the Corperate, Energy Trading
and Eliminations segment.

(2) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories — Non-GAAP Financial
Measures section of this MD&A.

Net Loss

Suncor had a consclidated net loss for the fourth quarter of
2019 of $2.335 billion, compared to a net loss of $280 million
for the prior year guarter. The net loss was affected by the
same factors that influenced operating earnings described
subsequently in this section of this document. Other items
affecting net losses over these periods included:

¢ During the fourth quarter of 2019, the company
recorded after-tax non-cash impairment charges of
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$2.803 billion on its share of the Fort Hills assets, in the
Oil Sands segment, due to a dedine in forecasted heavy
crude oil prices and $393 million against its interest in
White Rose, in the E&P segment, due to increased capital
cost estimates at the West White Rose Project.

* The after-tax unrealized foreign exchange gain on the
revaluation of U.S. dollar denominated debt was
$235 million for the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to
a loss of $637 million for the fourth quarter of 2018.

* The fourth quarter of 2018 included a $223 million
after-tax impairment charge in the E&P segment
associated with the company‘s equity investment in
Canbriam. This included the reversal of a $133 million
after-tax gain recorded in the first quarter of 2018, when
the equity investment was acquired through an asset
exchange, for a net after-tax impairment of $90 million
in 2018,

Cash Flow provided by Operating Activities and Funds from
Operations

Funds from operations were $2.553 billion in the

fourth quarter of 2019, compared to $2.007 billion in the
fourth quarter of 2018, and were influenced by the same
factors impacting operating earnings described in the
Segmented Analysis below, excluding the impact of DD&A
and share-based compensation expenses.

Cash flow provided by operating activities, which includes
changes in non-cash working capital, was $2.304 billion in
the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to $3.040 billion in the
fourth quarter of 2018, and was influenced by the same
factors impacting operating earnings noted below, excluding
the impact of DD&A and share-based compensation
expenses. In addition, cash flow provided by operating
activities was impacted by a use of cash from working capital
in 2019 as compared to a source of cash in 2018, which was
due to a decrease in accounts receivable balances and
refinery inventory value associated with lower year end
benchmark prices.

Segmented Analysis

Cil Sands

The Qil Sands segment had operating earnings of

$277 million in the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to an
operating loss of $377 million in the prior year quarter. The
improved results were primarily due to higher realized crude
prices due to impraved western Canadian crude oil
differentials, including a substantial narrowing of heavy
crude and SCO differentials, more than offsetting benchmark
pricing declines. This was partially offset by lower overall
production volumes due to planned maintenance and
mandatory production curtailments and higher DD&A.



Gil Sands operations production was 418,100 bbls/d in the
fourth quarter of 2019, compared to 432,700 bbis/d in the
prior year quarter. The decrease in production was primarily
due to maintenance, including planned annual coker
maintenance at Oif Sands Base, increased yield loss assaciated
with higher SCO production, mandatory production
curtailments and an outage at MacKay River, which is
expected to return to operation early in the second quarter
of 2020. Upgrader utilization was 86% in the fourth quarter
of 2019, compared to 79% in the prior year period.

Fort Hills production averagerd 87,900 bbls/d in the

fourth quarter of 2019, compared to 98,500 bbls/d in the
prior year quarter. The decrease in production was due to
planned maintenance, which was completed during the
quarter, and mandatory production curtailments. Fort Hills
remains adversely impacted by mandatory production
curtailments due to the continued, disproportionate effect of
curtailment as it is applied on a 2018 production basis when
the asset was ramping up to full production rates. However,
the company was able to partially mitigate production
impacts by internally transferring credits from Qil Sands
operations and purchasing third-party credits.

Suncor's share of Syncrude production and sales was
156,300 bbls/d in the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to
209,600 bbls/d in the prior year quarter. The decrease in
production was primarily due to planned maintenance that
commenced in the third quarter of 2019 and was completed
in the fourth quarter, compared to no planned maintenance
in the prior year quarter, and mandatory production
curtailments. Upon completion of maintenance, Syncrude
was able to partially mitigate the impacts of curtailment on
proeduction by purchasing curtailment credits from partners
and third parties.

Sales volumes for Oil Sands operations were 417,600 bbis/d
in the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to 460,500 bbls/d in
the prior year quarter, and were influenced by the same
factors influencing production, combined with a draw in
inventory in the prior year quarter.

Exploration and Production

Operating earnings for the E&P segment were $231 million
in the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to $108 million in
the prior year quarter, primarily as a result of higher East
Coast Canada production volumes and crude price
realizations, partially offset by higher royalties and DD&A
related to the increased production. Financing and other
expenses in the fourth quarter of 2019 were lower when
compared to the fourth quarter of 2018, as the prior year
quarter had equity losses related to an investment in
Canbriam that the company subsequently sold.

Production volumes for E&P Canada were 69,600 boe/d in
the fourth gquarter of 2019, compared to 47,900 boe/d in the
prior year quarter. The increase in production was primarily
due to the ramp up of Hebron production throughout 2019

and the impact of a temporary production interruption due
to a major storm system that impacted all E&P East Coast
Canada assets in the prior year quarter.

E&P international production increased to 46,300 boe/d in
the fourth quarter of 2019, from 42,300 bee/d in the prior
year quarter, primarily due to increased production from
0Oda, which began production near the end of the first
quarter of 2019, partially offset by natural declines in

the U.K.

Refining and Marketing

R&M operating earnings in the fourth quarter of 2019 were
$558 million, compared to $762 million in the prior year
quarter. The decrease in operating earnings was primarily
due to lower refining margins, attributed to significantly
narrower crude differentials, {ower refinery crude
throughput, and lower marketing margins, partially offset by
a lower FIFO loss, as the prior year quarter included a
significant FIFO loss associated with the decline in crude and
refined product benchmarks.

Refinery crude throughput was 447,500 bbls/d in the
fourth quarter of 2019, compared to 467,900 bbls/d in the
prior year quarter. Both periods achieved high utilization
rates at 97% and 101%, respectively.

Refined product sales increased in the fourth quarter of 2019
to 534,600 bbls/d, compared to 530,600 bbls/d in the prior
year quarter, reflecting strong retail sales volumes.

Corporate and Eliminations

Corporate and Eliminations had an operating loss of

$284 million in the fourth quarter of 2019, compared to
operating earnings of $87 million in the fourth quarter of
2018. During the fourth quarter of 2019, the company
realized $11 million of after-tax intersegment profit,
compared to a realization of $265 million of after-tax
intersegment profit in the prior year quarter. The realization
of deferred profit in the fourth quarter of 2019 was driven
by the decrease in Oil Sands price realizations over the
quarter, as higher margin crude refinery feedstock inventory
sourced internally from Qil Sands was sold and replaced by
lower margin crude feedstock inventory. The realization of
deferred profit in the prior year quarter was driven by the
decrease in oil sand benchmark prices, as a result of the
significant widening of crude differentials.

The increased loss was also attributable to a share-based
compensation expense incurred in the fourth quarter of
2019, as compared to a share-based compensation recovery
in the prior year quarter, and a lower operational foreign
exchange gain than in the prior year quarter. Suncor
capitalized $37 million of its borrowing costs in the

fourth quarter of 2019 as part of the cost of major
development assets and construction projects in progress,
compared to $28 million in the prior year quarter.
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6. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Financial Summary

Three months ended Dec 31 Sept 30 June 30, Mar 31 Dec 31 Sept 30 June 30, Mar 31
{$ millions, unless otherwise noted) 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
Total prnduction {mboe/d)
o.| Sands 55236700 592 2""“557 2............740 8 551 7 547 5"""“571 7..
Exploration and Production . 115.8 923 1117 1074 %02 921 1141 1177
7782 7623 8039 7643 831.0 743.8 661.7 689.4
Revenues and oth
Oper... o v oya|t|esg :.379303100718983
othermcome o 111932741433415 101 (57)
9598 989 10098 9397 8945 10863 10428 8750
Net (loss) earnings 2 335) 1035 2729 1470 (280} 1812 972 789

(1.52)

0.67

1.74

0.93

" per common share — diluted (dollars)  (1.52) 018 111 059 048
Operating ea mngs"’ 782 1114 1253 1209 580 1557 1190 985
h per common share — .basicf1J (dollars) G.51 072 080 G O 77 035 096 073 060
Funds from operations! 2553 2675 3 005 2 585 2 07 3139 2862 2164
"""" per common share —basic® (dollars)  1.66 172 192 164 126 194 175 132

Cash flow provided by operating
aCthltles 2 304 3 136 3 433 1 548 3040 4370 2 446 724
- - com.r.;wn SR (dol|ar5) S 50.... 5 02..... a 19...... 0 93190270 ; 50044
ROCE" (%) for the twelve months ended 49 9.7 10.4 8.2 8.0 9.7 8.3 6.5
ROCE‘? (%) excluding major projects in
progress for the twelve months ended 5.1 9.9 10.6 83 8.2 104 9.5 7.8
After-tax unrealized foreign exchange
gain {loss) on U.S. dollar denominated
debt 235 (127} 221 261 (637) 195 {218) (329)
Common share |nformat|un (dollars)
. Dw.dend S share 042042042042035035035035
....... sha.—epnceattheendoftradmg
Toronto Stock Exchange (Cdng) 4256 4179 40.85 4331 3813 4998 5350 4449
_ New York Stock Exchange (Us§) 3280 3158 3116 3243 2797 3869 4068 3454

(1) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories - Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A. ROCE excludes capitalized costs related to
major projects in progress. Operating earnings (loss) for each guarter are defined in the Non-GAAP Financial Measures Advisary section and recondled
to GAAP measures in the Consolidated Financial Information and Segment Results and Analysis sections of each quarterly Report to Shareholders issued
by Suncer (Quarterly Reports) in respect of the relevant quarter. Funds from operations and ROCE for each quarter are defined and reconciled to GAAP

measures in the Non-GAAP Finandal Measures Advisory section of each Quarterly Report issued by Suncor in respect of the relevant quarter.

(2) ROCE excluding major projects in progress would have been 8.7%, 8.0%, and 8.6% for the second quarter of 2019, third quarter of 2019, and fourth

quarter of 2019, respectively, excluding the impacis of impairments of $3.352 billion in the fourth quarter of 2019 and the impact of the $1.116 biilion

deferred tax recovery for the Alberta carporate income tax rate change in the second quarier of 2019
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Business Environment

Three months ended Dec 31 Sept 30 June 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sept 30 June 30 Mar 31
{average for the pericd ended, except as noted) 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
WTI crude 01I at Cushmg Us$/bbl . 56.45 59.85 54.90 5885 69.50 67.90 62.90

"Dated Brent crude ' US$Ibew 6

Dated Brenthaya FOB prlce

dlfferentlal uUss$/bbl  9.30 5 20 6 90  5.00 4. 35 10 20 12 40 7 70
MSWat Edmonton  Cdnf/bbl 68.10 6835 73, .40 66.45 4270 8210 80.95 7245
‘WesatHardisty " Ussobl 4110 4420 4920 4250  19.50 47. 35 48.65 38.60
R . Laz2se 1350

WTI at Cushing less WCS at Hardisty US$/bbl (15.85) (12.25) (10.65) (12.40) (39.35) (22.15) (19.25) (24.30)
'SYN-WTI (differential) premium  US§/bl  (0.70) 040 015 (2.30) (21.60) (0.90) (0.65) (1.45)
“Condensate at Edmonton T Us/bbl 53.00 5200 5590 5055 4530 66.80 68.50 6315
‘Natural ges (Alberta spot) at AECO  Cdn$/mcf 250 095 105 255 1. 60 120 120 175
Alberta Power Pool Price _Cdn$/MWh  46.95 4685 56, .35 70.75 5555 54.45 56.00 3495
"NEW YOfk Harbor 2 1 1 crack“) U5$Ibb|m"18 50"“ 19 75""'22 40‘"“19 10"".“"18.75“"“19 50““ 21 45”““17.95“
“Chicago 2-1-1 crack® CTTUsembbl 1445 17.05 2155 1530 1625 19.90 1910 1430
Portland 2-1-1 crack® " Usgibbl 2575 23, 385 2915 19.35 2425 22.05 2875 2105
Gulf Coast 211 crack® Usgbbl 1710 20.00 2170 17. 85 1745 1930 2050 1635
Pt e
“Exchange rate (end of period) Ussicdn$ 077 076 076 075 073 077 076 078

(1) 2-1-1 crack spreads are indicatars of the refining margin generated by converting two barrels of WTI into one barrel of gasaline and one barrel of
diesel. The company previously quoted 3-2-1 crack margin benchmarks based on wider use and familiarity with these benchmarks and, although the
3-2-1 crack spread is more commonly quoted, the company’s refinery production 1s better aligned with a 2-1-1 crack spread, which better reflects the
approximate compasition of Suncor's overall refined product mix. The crack spreads presented here generally approximate the regions nte which the
company sells refined products through retail and wholesale channels.

In the second quarter of 2019, the company recorded a
$1.116 billion deferred income tax recovery associated
with the Government of Alberta’s substantive enactment
of legislation for the staged reduction of the corporate
income tax rate from 12% to 8% over the next

four years.

Significant or Unusual ltems Impacting Net Earnings .

Trends in Suncor’s quarterly net earnings and cash flow
provided by operating activities are driven primarily by
production volumes, which can be significantty impacted by
factors such as mandatory production curtailments in the
province of Alberta, which began on January 1, 2019 and

was in effect for the duration of 2019. * In the second quarter of 2019, Suncor sold its 37%
interest in Canbriam for total proceeds and an
equivalent gain of $151 million ($139 million after-tax),
which had previously been written down to nil in the
fourth quarter of 2018 following the company’s
assessment of forward natural gas prices and the impact
on estimated future cash flows.

Trends in Suncor’s quarterly net earnings and cash flow

provided by operating activities are also affected by changes

in commodity prices, price differentials, refining crack

spreads and foreign exchange rates, as described in the

Financial Information section of this MD&A. In addition to

the impacts of changes in production volumes and business
environment, net earnings over the last eight quarters were .
affected by the following events or significant adjustments:

The fourth quarter of 2018 included a $223 million
after-tax impairment charge in the E&P segment
associated with the company's equity investment in
Canbriam. This included the reversal of a $133 million
after-tax gain recorded in the first quarter of 2018, when

¢ During the fourth quarter of 2019, the company
recorded after-tax non-cash impairment charges of
$2.803 hillion on its share of the Fort Hills assets, in the

Oil Sands segment, due to a decline in forecasted heavy
crude oil prices and $393 million against its interest in
White Rose, in the E&P segment, due to increased capital
cost estimates at the West White Rose Project.

The third quarter of 2019 included an after-tax gain of
$48 million in the E&P segment related to the sale of
certain non-core assets.

the equity investment was acquired through an asset
exchange, for a net after-tax impairment of $30 million
in 2018.

The third quarter of 2018 included an after-tax gain of
$60 million in the Qil Sands segment relating to the sale
of the company's interest in the Joslyn oil sands

mining project.
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7. CAPITAL INVESTMENT UPDATE

Capital and Exploration Expenditures by Segment

Year ended December 31 ($ millions) 2019 2018 2017
Oil Sands 3522 3546 5059
ExplorationandedUdIon1070946824
RefmmgandMarketmg313355534
corporateandalmmatlons 1485334
Total 5558 5 406 6 551
Lesscap,ta“zedmmrcnondebt (122)(155)(729)

5436 5250 5822
Capital and Exploration Expenditures by Type, exduding capitalized interest"
Asset
Sustainment
and Economic
Year ended December 31, 2019 ($ millions) Maintenance'? Investment® Total
Oil Sands
O,JSand$33391557 - 1831

Corporate and Eliminations

3227 2209 5436

{1) The classification of the company’s capital expenditures has been updated to "asset sustainment and maintenance” and “economic investment” to

better reflect the types of capital investments being made by the company.

(2) Asset sustainment and maintenance capital expenditures include capital investments that deliver on existing value by ensuring compliance ar
maintaining relations with regulators and other stakeholders, maintaining current processing capacity, and delivering existing developed reserves.

(3) Economic investment capital expenditures include capital investments that result in an increase in value through adding reserves, improving processing

capacty, utilization, cost or margin, including associated infrastructure

In 2019, Suncor's capital expenditures on property, plant and
equipment and exploration activities totalled $5.436 billion,
excluding capitalized borrowing costs of $122 million.
Activity in 2019 included the following:

Oil Sands Base

Oil Sands Base asset sustainment and maintenance capital
expenditures were $1.667 billion in 2019 and were primarily
focused on ensuring continued safe, reliable and efficient
operations, as well as environmental compliance, such as the
continued development of tailings infrastructure. The
company’s planned maintenance program in 2019 included
planned maintenance at Upgrader 1 in the spring and major
maintenance at Upgrader 2 in the fall, the continued
development of tailings infrastructure in addition to other
reliability and sustainment projects across the operation.

Ol Sands Base economic capital of $164 million in 2019 was

focused on projects expected to improve productive capacity.
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This also included the company's investment to progress
low-carbon power generation by replacing its coke-fired
boilers with a new cogeneration facility and the construction
of interconnecting pipelines between Suncor's Qil Sands Base
and Syncrude.

In Situ

In Situ capital expenditures were $688 million, of which
$575 million was directed towards economic investment
activities, which focused on the ongoing design and
construction of well pads to develop additional reserves that
are expected to maintain existing production levels at
Firebag and MacKay River in future years as production from
existing well pads declines.

Fort Hills

Fort Hills capital expenditures were $403 million in 2019,
with $72 million directed towards economic investment
spending.



Asset sustainment and maintenance capital expenditures of
$331 million included mine and tailings development to
support ongoing operations.

Syncrude

Syncrude capital expenditures were $539 million in 2019, the
majority of which was for asset sustainment and
maintenance capital expenditures focused on improving asset
reliability and included capital related to turnarounds and
maintenance.

Exploration and Production

E&P capital and expicration expenditures were $1.016 billion
in 2019, and were primarily focused on economic investment
projects, including development drilling at Hibernia, Hebron
and Buzzard, and development work on Terra Nova, Fenja
and the West White Rose projects.

Refining and Marketing

R&M capital expenditures were $811 million in 2019, and
were primarily related to the ongoing sustainment of and
enhancement to refinery and retail operations, and other
economic investment projects on logistics and the company’'s
retail and wholesale network, including an electric vehicle
fast-charging network.

Corporate

Corporate capital expenditures were $148 million, primarily
directed towards the company’s information technology
initiatives and the Forty Mile Wind Power Project.

Suncor anticipates 2020 capital expenditures to be directed
to the following projects and initiatives:

Cil Sands Operations

For 2020, plans for economic investment will include capital
to progress low-carbon power generation to replace the
coke-fired boilers and continued construction of the
interconnecting pipelines between Suncor’s Oil Sands Base
Plant and Syncrude. Additional investment to maintain
production capacity at existing facilities includes continued
development of new reserves by building new well pads at
tn Situ and improving mining efficiency through the
continued implementation of AHS.

Asset sustainment and maintenance capital will focus on

tailings management and planned maintenance at Upgraders
1 and 2.

Fort Hills

Asset sustainment and maintenance capital expenditures for
2020 will focus on ongoing development of mining and
tailings management projects to preserve production
capacity. In addition, Fort Hills continues to invest in
improving mining efficiency through the implementation

of AHS.

Syncrude

For 2020, plans for economic investment will include capital
to progress the Mildred Lake Extension-West Mine and
continued construction of the interconnecting pipelines
between Suncor’s Oil Sands Base and Syncrude, which are
expected to enhance integration between the assets and
increase reliability at Syncrude.

Sustaining capital expenditures for 2020 will focus on
planned maintenance and reliability programs aimed at
maintaining preduction capacity.

Exploration and Production

Capital expenditures for 2020 are expected to include
economic investments at West White Rose Project, Hibernia,
Buzzard, and Hebron, as well as the Norwegian

Fenja project.

In 2019, the company sanctioned the Terra Nova ALE project,
which is expected to extend the life of Terra Nova by
approximately a decade and is planned for execution

in 2020.

Refining and Marketing

The company expects that sustaining capital will focus on
ohgoing sustainment and enhancement to refinery and retail
operations, and other eccnomic investment projects on
logistics and the company’s retail and wholesale network.

Corporate

For 2020, the company plans to make economic investments
in digital technology initiatives and the Forty Mile Wind
Power Project in southern Alberta, which was sanctioned

in 2019,
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8. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31 ($ millions, except as noted) 2019 2018 2017
Cash flow provided by {used in}
operatmgact.wt.e;10421105303955
tnvesnngamwms(5033)(6597)(5019)
F.nancmgamwt.es(5537)(4426)(4223)
Fore|gnexchange(Ioss}gamoncashandcaghequwalents(57)92(68)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (261) (451} (344)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1960 221 2672
Return on Capital Employed (%)
Exc|ud|ngmajorprojects|nprogress(ZJB)513235
Inctudmgmalorpro]ects|np|—ogre5s(21498057
Net debt to funds from operations™¥! (times) 1.5 1.5 1.4
Interest coverage on long-term debt (times)
s EameSbaSIsm .............................................................................................................................. 3 ——— 5 4 ................... 55
....... Fundsfromoperat|on5baslsﬂ)(SJm 134141 112

{1} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Advisories - Non-GAAP Finandial Measures section of this MD&A.

(2} 2019 ROCE includes asset impairment charges of $3.352 billion after-tax

(3} Excludes capitalized costs refated to major projects in progress. ROCE excluding major projects in progress would have been 8.6% in 2018, excluding
the impacts of impairments of $3 352 bilion and the impact of the $1 116 billion deferred tax recovery relating 1o a change in the Alberta corporate

income 1ax rate.
{4 Net debt 15 equal to total debl less cash and cash equivalents.

(5} Funds from operations and metrics that use funds from operations are non-GAAP financial measures. See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures Advisory

section of this document.

(6} Equal tc net earnings plus income taxes and interest expense, divided by the sum of interest expense and capitalized interest on debt
{?} Equal to funds from cperations plus current income tax and interest expense, divided by the sum of interest expense and capitalized interest an debt.

Cash Flow provided by Operating Activities

Cash flow provided by operating activities was

$10.421 biilion in 2019 compared to $10.580 billion in 2018.
Cash flow provided by operating activities was positively
impacted by the improved western Canadian crude oil
differentials, including a substantial narrowing of heavy
crude and SCO differentials, from the prior year which led to
an increase in Oil Sands price realizations, Cash flow
provided by operating activities in 2019 was also positively
impacted by higher overall upstream production despite
mandatory curtailments as well as after-tax insurance
proceeds of $264 million related to the company’s assets in
Libya. These factors were more than offset by lower refining
margins and an increase in expenses associated with the
increased production, and reflected a use of cash from the
company’s working capital balances in 2019, as compared to
a source of cash in 2018.

Cash Flow used in Investment Activities

Cash flow used in investing activities was $5.088 billion in
2019 compared to $6.697 hillion in 2018. The decrease was
primarily due to less acquisition activity in 2019 compared to
the prior year, which included the purchase of an additional
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5% interest in Syncrude. This was partially offset by an
increase in capital and exploration expenditures and other
investments.

Cash Flow used in Financing Activities

Cash flow used in financing activities was $5.537 billion in
2019, compared to $4.426 billion in 2018. The increase was
primarily due to a net decrease in short-term debt, lease
liability payments, and an increase in dividends paid, partially
offset by a decrease in the purchase of the company's own
commeon shares under its normal course issuer bid {NCIB),
and a net increase of long-term debt in 2019.

Management of debt levels continues te be a priority for
Suncor given the company’s long-term growth plans and
future expected volatility in the pricing environment, Suncor
believes a phased and flexible approach te existing and
future growth projects should assist the company in
maintaining its ability to manage project costs and

debt levels.

Capital Resources
Suncor's capital resources consist primarily of cash flow
provided by operating activities, cash and cash equivalents



and available credit facilities, including commercial paper.
Suncor's management believes the company will have the
capital resources to fund its planned 2020 capital spending
program of $5.4 to $6.0 billion and to meet current and
future working capital requirements through cash and cash
equivalents balances, cash flow provided by operating
activities, available committed credit facilities, issuing
commercial paper and accessing capital markets. The
company’s cash flow provided by operating activities
depends on a number of factors, including commedity prices,
production and sales volumes, refining and marketing
margins, operating expenses, taxes, royalties and foreign
exchange rates.

The company has invested excess cash in short-term financial
instruments that are presented as cash and cash equivalents.
The objectives of the company’s short-term investment
peortfolio are to ensure the preservation of capital, maintain
adequate liquidity to meet Suncor’s cash flow requirements
and deliver competitive returns derived from the quality and
diversification of investments within acceptable risk
parameters. The maximum weighted average term to
maturity of the short-term investment portfolio is not
expected to exceed six months, and all investments will be
with counterparties with investment grade debt ratings.

Available Sources of Liquidity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Included in cash and cash equivalents of $1.960 billion at
December 31, 2019 are short-term investments with

weighted average days to maturity of approximately 17 days.

In 2019, the company earned approximately $38 million of
interest income on these investments.

Financing Activities

Suncor's interest on debt and lease liabilities {before
capitalized interest) in 2019 was $997 million, an increase
from $897 million in 2018, due to the issuance of

$750 million of new debt, the transition to IFRS 16 and the
unfavourable impact of a weaker average Canadian dollar
on U.S. dollar denominated debt, partially offset by the
significant decrease in short-term debt in 2019 and the
repayment of US$140 million of higher interest rate
long-term debt.

Available lines of credit at December 31, 2019 increased to
$4.701 billion, compared to $3.608 billion at December 31,
2018, primarily as a result of the repayment of short-term
indebtedness.

A summary of total and unutilized credit facilities at
December 31, 2019 is as follows:

{$ millions)

FuIIy revolwng and explres |n 2023

FuIIy revolwng and expnres |n 2022

FuIIy revolvmg and explres |n 2021

Can be termlnated at any tlme at the optlon

of the lenders 132
Total credlt famhtles 8328
Cred1t faC|I|t|es supportlng outstandmg

commercnal paper (2 155)
Credst faclht:es supportmg standby Ietters of

credit {1284)
Total unutilized credit facilities™” 4889

(1) Avalable credit facilities for iquidity purposes were $4.701 billion at
December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 - $3.608 billion).

Total Debt to Total Debt Plus Shareholders’ Equity

Suncor is subject to financial and operating covenants
related to its bank debt and public market debt. Failure to
meet the terms of one or more of these covenants may
constitute an Event of Default as defined in the respective
debt agreements, potentially resulting in accelerated
repayment of one or more of the debt obligations. The
company is in compliance with its financial covenant that
requires total debt to not exceed 65% of its total debt plus
shareholders’ equity. At December 31, 2019, total debt to
total debt plus shareholders’ equity was 29.9%

(December 31, 2018 - 28.3%) and increased due to the
implementation of IFRS 16 and impairment charges recorded
in 2019. The company is currently in compliance with ali
operating covenants as at December 31, 2019.

At December 31

(% millions, except as noted) 2019 2018™
Short- term debt 2155 3 231‘
mm.Current portlon of Iong~term debt— 191 -
"“Current portion of long-term Iease----------------------------- i
iabilities 310 38
Long‘ter..m debt 12 33412553
"“Long—term iease Ilabllltles 26211222
Total debt 17970 17350
N Less Cash and cash equwalents 19602221
Net debt 16010 15129
Shareholders’ equity 42042 44005
Total debt plus shareholders’ equity 60012 61355
Total debt to total debt plus
shareholders’ equity (%) 29.9 283

(1} Excludes the impact of IFRS 16, which was prospectively adcpted on
January 1, 2019 in accordance with the standard.
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Change in Net Debt

($ millions)

Total debt December 17 350
..mcrease - |ong.term debt 557
..Decrease m Shcn-term debt. (982)
"January 1, 2019 increase in Iease I|ab|l|t|esm

assoaated wrth IFRS 16 1792
"Increas Iease Ilab I t durlng the year 186

Lease payments o Bﬂ'f)
"Forelgn exchangellc;rx debt and other {626)

Total debt — December 31, 2019 17 970

Less: Cash and cash equivalents —

December 31, 2012 1960

Net debt — December 31, 2019 16 010

At December 31, 2019, Suncor's net debt was $16.010 hillion,
compared to $15.129 billion at December 31, 2018. During
2019, total debt increased by $620 million, primarily due to
the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16, which added

$1.792 billion in lease liability to the company's balance
sheet, a net increase in long-term debt and additional leases
entered into in 2019, partially offset by the repayment of
$982 million of short-term debt, favourable foreign exchange
rates on U.S. dollar denominated debt, as compared to
December 31, 2018, and lease principal payments made

in 2019.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the company's net
debt to funds from operations measure was 1.5 times, which
is lower than management’s maximum target of less than
3.0 times.

Credit Ratings

The company's credit ratings impact its cost of funds and
liquidity. In particular, the company's ability to access
unsecured funding markets and to engage in certain
activities on a cost-effective basis is primarily dependent
upon maintaining a strong credit rating. A lowering of the
company's credit rating may also have potentially adverse
consequences for the company’s funding capacity or access to
the capital markets, may affect the company’s ability, and
the cost, to enter intoc normal course derivative or hedging
transactions, and may require the company to post
additional collateral under certain contracts.
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As at February 26, 2020, the company’s long-term senior
debt ratings are:

Long-Term
Long-Term Senior Debt Rating Outleok
Standard & Poor’s A— Stable
‘Dominion Bond Rating Service A (low) Stable
“Moody s Investors Service i Baa1StabIe

As at February 26, 2020, the company's commercial paper
ratings are:

Cdn us.

Program Program

Commercial Paper Rating Rating
Standard & Poor's A-1 (low) A-2
Domlnlon Bond Ratmg Ser\nce R 1 (Iow) Not rated
Moodys lnvestors Serwce Not rated PZ

Refer to the Description of Capital Structure — Credit Ratings
section of Suncor's 2019 AlF for a description of credit
ratings listed above.

Common Shares

Outstanding Shares

{thousands) December 31, 2019
Common shares 1531874
_Common share options — exercisable 21535
“Common share options - non-exercisable 12347

As at February 25, 2020, the total number of common shares
outstanding was 1,526,810,321 and the total number of
exercisable and non-exercisable common share options
outstanding was 33,019,526. Once exercisable, each
outstanding common share option may be exercised for one
common share.

Share Repurchases

In May 2019, Suncor renewed its NCIB to continue to
repurchase its common shares through the facilities of the
Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX), New York Stock Exchange
and/or alternative trading platforms between May 6, 2019
and May 5, 2020. In December 2019, following the approval
by Suncor’s Board of Directors to increase the company's
share repurchase program to $2.5 billion, the TSX accepted a
notice filed by Suncor of its intention to amend its NCIB
effective as of December 30, 2019. The notice provided that
Suncor may increase the maximum number of common
shares that may be purchased for cancellation between
May 6, 2019 and May 5, 2020 from 50,252,231 common
shares, or approximately 3% of Suncor’s issued and
outstanding common shares as at April 30, 2019, to



78,549,178 common shares, or approximately 5% of Suncor's
issued and outstanding common shares as at April 30, 2019.
Suncor security holders may obtain a copy of the notice,
without charge, by contacting the company.

Since commencing its share buyback program in 2011, Suncor
has purchased 316,307,436 common shares as of February 25,

At December 31

2020 for a total return to shareholders of $12.4 billion under
this program, with close to half of these share repurchases
occurring in the last 3 years. Subsequent to the end of the
year, Suncor’s Board of Directors approved a further share
repurchase program of up to $2 billion.

($ millions, except as noted) 2019 2018 2017
Share repurchase activities {thousands of common shares}
o s haresrepurchasedsszga ......... 5 442533153
Share repurchase cost 2274 3053 1413
Weighted average repurchase price per share (dollars per share) 41.12 47.38 42 .61

Contractual Obligations, Commitments, Guarantees, and
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In addition to the enforceable and legally binding
obligations in the table below, Suncor has other obligations
for goods and services that were entered into in the normal
course of business, which may terminate on short notice,
including commitments for the purchase of commodities for
which an active, highly liquid market exists, and which are
expected to be re-sold shortly after purchase.

The company does not believe it has any guarantees or
off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably
likely to have, a current or future material effect on the
company’s financial condition or financial performance,
including liquidity and capital resources.

In the normal course of business, the company is obligated
to make future payments, including contractual obligations
and non-cancellable commitments.

Payment due by period

($ millions) 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Thereafter Total
Fixed and revolving term debtt" 722 2127 864 625 1594 17183 23115
Decomm|ss|onmgandrestoratmncostsﬂ) ................ s e e s
Longtermmntraasplpe“necapamy ....................................................................................................................................................................
and energy services commitments® 1772 1372 1305 1315 1229 10084 17077

Exploration work commitments 7 44 — — — 465 516
Other long-term obligations® 2 20 20 20 19 — 81
Total® 2 985 3793 2441 2199 3083 39 224 53725

(1} Includes debt that is redeemable at Suncor’s option and interest payments on fixed-term debt.

(2} Represents the undiscounted amcunt of decommissioning and resteration costs.

(3) The company has also entered into a pipeline commitment of $5.9 billion with a contract term of 20 years, which is awaiting regulatory approval.
(4) Includes Libya EPSA signature bonus and merger consent. Please refer tc note 21 to Suncor's 2019 audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5} As a result of the adoption of IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019, finance lease obligations and operating leases are no longer represented abave. Please refer
to nate 5 1o Suncor's 2019 audited Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

Transactions with Related Parties

The company enters into transactions with related parties in
the normal course of business. These transactions primarily
include sales to associated entities in the company's R&M
segment and service provisions to Fort Hills. For more
information on these transactions and for a summary of
Compensation of Key Management Persennel, refer to

note 30 to the 2019 audited Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Financial Instruments

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as
physical and financial contracts, to manage certain exposures

to fluctuations in interest rates, commodity prices and
foreign currency exchange rates, as part of its overall risk
management program, as well as for trading purposes. For
the year ended December 31, 2019, the pre-tax earnings
impact of risk management and trading activities was
$155 million (2018 - pre-tax earnings of $255 million).

Gains or losses related to derivatives are recorded as Other
income in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
income.
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(% millicns) 2019 2018

Fair value outstanding, beginning of year 60 (105)
Cashsettlementg_receweddunngtheyear(254)(90)
" Changes in fair value recognized in earnings during the year “iss 255

Fair value outstanding, end of year (39) 60
The fair value of derivative financial instruments is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Fair value of derivative contracts at

December 31 ($ millions} 2019 2018

Accounts receivable 94 215
Accountspayame(133)(155)

(39) 60

Risks Associated with Derivative Financial Instruments

Suncor may be exposed to certain losses in the event that
counterparties to derivative financial instruments are unable
to fulfil their obligations under these contracts. The company
minimizes this risk by entering into agreements with
investment grade counterparties. Risk is also minimized
through regular management review of the potential
exposure to and credit ratings of such counterparties.
Suncor’s exposure is limited to those counterparties holding
derivative contracts with net positive fair values at a
reporting date.

Suncor’s risk management activities are subject to periodic
reviews by management to determine appropriate hedging
requirements based on the company's tolerance for exposure
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to market volatility, as well as the need for stable cash flow
to finance future growth. Commodity risk management and
trading activities are governed by a separate risk
management group that reviews and monitors practices and
policies and provides independent verification and valuation
of these activities.

For further details on our derivative financial instruments,
including assumptions made in the calculation of fair value,
a sensitivity analysis of the effect of changes in commodity
prices on our derivative financial instruments, and additional
discussion of exposure to risks and mitigation activities, refer
to note 26 to the company’s 2012 audited Consoclidated
Financial Statements.



9. ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Suncor's significant accounting policies are described in
note 3 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019.

Adoption of New IFRS Standards
IFRS 16 Leases

Effective January 1, 2019, the company adopted IFRS 16
which replaces IAS 17 and requires the recognition of most
leases on the balance sheet. IFRS 16 effectively removes the
classification of leases as either finance or operating leases
and treats all leases as finance leases for lessees with
optional exemptions for short-term leases where the term is
twelve months or less. The accounting treatment for lessors
remains essentially unchanged, with the requirement to
classify leases as either finance or operating.

The company has selected the modified retrospective
transition approach, electing to adjust opening retained
earnings with no restatement of comparative figures. As
such, comparative information continues to be reported
under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The details of accounting policies
under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 are disciosed separately if they are
different from those under IFRS 16 and the impact of the
change is disclosed below.

The company's accounting policy under IFRS 16 is as follows:

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
Iiability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remcve
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
The assets are depreciated to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the lease term, where
judgment is applied to determine the lease term of the lease
contracts in which the company has a renewal option, using
the straight-line method as this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits. In addition, the right-of-use assets may be
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed

payments, and variable payments that are based on an index
or rate.

Cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability
are presented within the financing activities section and the
interest portion of the lease liability is presented within the
operating activities section of the statement of cash flows.
Short-term lease payments and variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of the [ease liability are
presented within the operating activities section of the
statement of cash flows.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. it is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the company's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of- use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

Under IAS 17

In the comparative period, the company classified leases that
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the
leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to
the lower of their fair value and the present value of
minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the
payments over the lease term that the lessee was required to
make, excluding any contingent rent.

Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other |leases were classified as operating
leases and were not recognized in the company’s statement
of financial position. Payments made under operating leases
were recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were
recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense
over the term of the lease.

As part of the initial application of IFRS 16, the company also
chose to apply the following transitional provisions:

Right-of-use assets are measured at:

« An amount equal to the lease liability on January 1,
2019, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the
statement of financial position immediately before the
date of transition.
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The company applied the following practical expedients

when applying IFRS 16 to |leases previously classified as

operating leases under 1AS 17:

¢ Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of any
provision for onerous leases recognized in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application,
as an alternative to performing an impairment review.

* Elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for short-term |eases that have a lease term of
twelve months or less and leases with a short-term
remaining life upon adoption. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

{$ millions} Increase (Decrease)

* Accounted for each lease component and any non-lease
components as a single lease component for crude oil
storage tanks.

L]

Used hindsight to determine the lease term if the
contract contained options to extend or terminate

the lease.

The following table summarizes the impact of adopting
IFRS 16 on the company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at
January 1, 2019. Prior period amounts have not been
restated. The effects of the transition have been recognized
through retained earnings in equity.

December 31
2018

Adjustments due
to IFRS 16

January 1
2019

Assets

The following table reconciles the company's operating lease
commitments as at December 31, 2018, as previously
disclosed in the company’s Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018, to the
additional lease liabilities recognized on initial application of
IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2019,

Reconciliation

January 1
($ millions} 2019
Operating leases as at
December 31, 20180 2 457
Exemption for short-term leases (42)
Discounting (623)
Additional fease liabilities
recognized due to adoption of
IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2019 1792

{1} Represents undiscounted lease commitments.
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For leases that were previously classified as finance leases
under IAS 17, within Property, Plant and Equipment, the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability recognized upon initial application as at January 1,
2019 was determined to be the carrying amount of the
finance lease asset and liability under 1AS 17 immediately
before transition.

The lease liabilities recognized in accordance with IFRS 16
were discounted using the company's incremental borrowing
rate upon initial application. The weighted average discount
rate used for additional leases recognized as a result of
application of IFRS 16 was 3.85% as at January 1, 2019.



Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In June 2017, the 1ASB issued IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over
income Tax Treatments. The interpretation clarifies the
accounting for current and deferred tax liabilities and assets
in circumstances in which there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments. The interpretation requires an entity to
consider whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. If the entity considers it
to be not probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax provision, the interpretation requires the entity
to use the most likely amount or the expected value. The
company adopted the amendment on its effective date of
January t, 2019. The adoption of this amendment did not
have any impact on the company's consolidated financial
statements.

Recently Announced Accounting Proncuncements

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are
issued, but not yet effective up to the date of authorization
of the company's 2019 audited Consclidated Financial
Statements, and that may have an impact on the disclosures
and financial position of the company are disclosed beiow.
The company intends to adopt these standards, amendments
and interpretations when they become effective.

Definition of a Business

In Gctober 2018, the |ASB issued Definition of a Business
(Amendments to IFRS 3). The amendments narrowed and
clarified the definition of a business. The amendments
include an election to use a concentration test. This is a
simplified assessment that results in an asset acquisition if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a group of
similar identifiable assets. If an election 1o use a
concentration test is not made, or the test failed, then the
assessment focuses on the existence of a substantive process.
One important distinction is that “goodwill” can only be
recognized as a result of acquiring a business, but not as a
result of an asset acquisition. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020
and are to be applied prospectively.

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requires management to make estimates and judgments
that affect reported assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses,
gains, losses, and disclosures of contingencies. These
estimates and judgments are subject to change based on
experience and new information. The financial statement
areas that require significant estimates and judgments are

as follows:

0il and Gas Reserves

The company’s estimate of oil and gas reserves is considered
in the measurement of depletion, depreciation, impairment,
and decommissioning and restoration obligations. The

estimation of reserves is an inherently complex process and
involves the exercise of professional judgment. All reserves
have been evatuated at December 31, 2019 by independent
qualified reserves evaluators. Gil and gas reserves estimates
are based on a range of geological, technical and economic
factors, including projected future rates of preduction,
projected future commodity prices, engineering data, and
the timing and amount of future expenditures, all of which
are subject to uncertainty. Estimates reflect market and
regulatory conditions existing at December 31, 2019, which
could differ significantly from other points in time
throughout the year, or future periods. Changes in market
and regulatory conditions and assumptions can materially
impact the estimation of net reserves.

Qil and Gas Activities

The company is required to apply judgment when
designating the nature of oil and gas activities as
exploration, evaluation, development or production, and
when determining whether the costs of these activities shall
be expensed or capitalized.

Exploration and Evaluation Costs

Certain exploration and evaluation costs are initially
capitalized with the intent to establish commercially viable
reserves. The company is required to make judgments about
future events and circumstances and applies estimates to
assess the economic viability of extracting the underlying
resources. The costs are subject to technical, commercial and
management review to confirm the continued intent to
develop the project. Level of drilling success or changes to
project economics, resource quantities, expected production
techniques, production costs and required capital
expenditures are important judgments when making this
determination. Management uses judgment to determine
when these costs are reclassified to Property, Plant and
Equipment based on several factors, including the existence
of reserves, appropriate approvals from regulatory bodies,
joint arrangement partners and the company's internal
project approval process.

Determination of Cash Generating Units {(CGUs)

A CGU is the lowest grouping of integrated assets that
generate identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets. The allocation of assets into CGUs requires significant
judgment and interpretations with respect to the integration
between assets, the existence of active markets, similar
exposure to market risks, shared infrastructure, and the way
in which management monitors the operations.

Asset Impairment and Reversals

Management applies judgment in assessing the existence of
impairment and impairment reversal indicators based on
various interpal and external factors.
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The recoverable amount of CGUs and individual assets is
determined based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or value in use calculations. The key estimates the
company applies in determining the recoverable amount
normally include estimated future commeodity prices,
discount rates, expected production volumes, future
operating and development costs, tax rates, and refining
margins. In determining the recoverable amount,
management may alsc be required to make judgments
regarding the likelihood of occurrence of a future event.
Changes to these estimates and judgments will affect the
recoverable amounts of CGUs and individual assets and may
then require a material adjustment to their related
carrying value.

Decommissioning and Restoration Costs

The company recognizes liabilities for the future
decommissioning and restoration of Exploration and
Evaluation assets and Property, Plant and Equipment based
on estimated future decommissioning and restoration costs.
Management applies judgment in assessing the existence and
extent as well as the expected method of reclamation of the
company’s decommissioning and restoration obligations at
the end of each reporting period. Management also uses
judgment to determine whether the nature of the activities
performed is related to decommissioning and restoration
activities or normal operating activities.

Actual costs are uncertain and estimates may vary as a result
of changes to relevant laws and regulations related to the
use of certain technologies, the emergence of new
technology, operating experience, prices and closure plans.
The estimated timing of future decommissioning and
restoration may change due to certain factors, including
reserves life. Changes to estimates related to future expected
costs, discount rates, inflation assumptions, and timing may
have a material impact on the amounts presented.

Employee Future Benefits

The company provides benefits to employees, inctuding
pensions and other post-retirement benefits. The cost of
defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement
benefits received by employees is estimated based on
actuarial valuation methods that require professional
judgment. Estimates typically used in determining these
amounts include, as applicable, rates of employee turnover,
future claim costs, discount rates, future salary and benefit
levels, the return on plan assets, mortality rates and future
medical costs. Changes to these estimates may have a
material impact on the amounts presented.

Other Provisions

The determination of other provisions, incduding, but not
limited to, provisions for royalty disputes, onerous contracts,
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litigation and constructive obligations, is a complex process
that involves judgment about the outcomes of future events,
the interpretation of laws and regulations, and estimates on
the timing and amount of expected future cash flows and
discount rates.

Income Taxes

Management evaluates tax positions, annually or when
circumstances require, which involves judgment and could be
subject to differing interpretations of applicable tax
legisiation. The company recognizes a tax provision when a
payment to tax authorities is considered probable. However,
the results of audits and reassessments and changes in the
interpretations of standards may resuit in changes to those
positions and, potentially, a material increase or decrease in
the company's assets, liabilities and net sarnings.

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is considered
probable that deductible temporary differences will be
recovered in the foreseeable future. To the extent that
future taxable income and the application of existing tax
laws in each jurisdiction differ significantly from the
company’s estimate, the ability of the company to realize the
deferred tax assets could be impacted.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized when there are
taxable temporary differences that will reverse and result in
a future outflow of funds to a taxation authority. The
company records a provision for the amount that is expected
to be settled, which requires judgment as to the ultimate
outcome. Deferred tax liabilities could be impacted by
changes in the company’s judgment of the likelihood of a
future outflow and estimates of the expected settiement
amount, timing of reversals, and the tax laws in the
jurisdictions in which the company operates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is determined,
whenever possible, based on chservable market data. if not
available, the company uses third-party models and valuation
methodologies that utilize cbservable market data that
includes ferward commodity prices, foreign exchange rates
and interest rates to estimate the fair value of financial
instruments, including derivatives. In addition to market
information, the company incorporates transaction-specific
details that market participants would utilize in a fair value
measurement, including the impact of non-performance risk.

Functional Currency

The designation of the functional currency of the company
and each of its subsidiaries is a management judgment based
on the composition of revenue and costs in the locations in
which it operates.



10. RISK FACTORS

Suncor is committed to a proactive program of enterprise
risk management intended to enable decision-making
through consistent identification and assessment of risks
inherent to its assets, activities and cperations. Some of
these risks are common to operations in the oil and gas
industry as a whole, while some are unigue to Suncor. The
realization of any of the following risks could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor's business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

Volatility of Commodity Prices

Suncor’s financial performance is closely linked to prices for
crude oil in the company’s upstream business and prices for
refined petroleum products in the company’s downstream
business and, to a lesser extent, to natural gas and electricity
prices in the company's upstream business where natural gas
and power are both inputs and outputs of production
processes. The prices for all of these commodities can be
influenced by global and regional supply and demand
factors, which are factors that are beyond the company's
control and can result in a high degree of price volatility.

Crude oil prices are also affected by, among other things,
global economic health {particularly in emerging markets),
market access constraints, regional and international supply
and demand imbalances, political developments and
government action (including the mandatory production
curtailments recently imposed by the Government of
Alberta), decisions by OPEC to not impose quotas on its
members, compliance or non-compliance with quotas agreed
upon by OPEC members and other countries, and weather.
These factors impact the various types of crude oil and
refined products differently and can impact differentials
between light and heavy grades of crude oil (incduding
blended bitumen), and between conventional oil and SCO.

fefined petroleum product prices and refining margins are
also affected by, among other things, crude oil prices, the
availability of crude oil and other feedstock, levels of refined
product inventories, regional refinery availability, market
access, marketplace competitiveness, and other local market
factors. Natural gas prices in North America are affected by,
among other things, supply and demand, and by prices for
alternative energy sources. Decreases in preduct margins or
increases in natural gas prices could have a material adverse
effect on Suncer's business, financial condition, reserves and
results of operations.

In addition, oil and natural gas producers in North America,
and particularly in Canada, may receive discounted prices for
their production relative to certain international prices, due
in part to constraints on the ability to transport and sell such
products to international markets. A failure to resolve such
constraints may result in continued discounted or reduced
commodity prices realized by oil and natural gas producers

such as Suncor. Suncor's production from Oil Sands includes
significant quantities of bitumen and 5CO that may trade at
a discount to light and medium crude oil. Bitumen and SCO
are typically more expensive to produce and process. In
addition, the market prices for these products may differ
from the established market indices for light and medium
grades of crude oil. As a result, the price received for
bitumen and 5CO may differ from the benchmark they are
priced against. Future quality differentials are uncertain and
unfavourable differentials could have a material adverse
effect on Suncor's business, financial condition, reserves and
results of operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2018, there was insufficient market
access capacity to remove production from the Western
Canada Sedimentary Basin causing the differential between
W1 and WCS to widen significantly. The situation triggered
a response from the Government of Alberta in the form of a
mandatory production curtailment, which commenced in
early 2019. Such circumstances may result in worsening
and/or prolonged price volatility and/or further negative
impacts on market dynamics that cannot currently be fully
anticipated. Wide differentials, such as those experienced in
the fourth quarter of 2018 or a prolonged period of low
and/or volatile commodity prices, particularly for crude oil,
could have a material adverse effect on Suncor's business,
financial condition, reserves and results of operations, and
may also lead to the impairment of assets, or to the
cancellation or deferral of Suncor’s growth projects.

Market Access

Suncor’s production of bitumen is expected to grow. The
markets for bitumen blends or heavy crude oil are more
limited than those for light crude oil, making them more
susceptible to supply and demand changes and imbalances
(whether as a result of the availability, proximity, and
capacity of pipeline facilities, railcars, or otherwise). Heavy
crude oil generally receives lower market prices than light
crude, due principally to the lower quality and value of the
refined product yield and the higher cost to transport the
more viscous product an pipelines, and this price differential
can be amplified due to supply and demand imbalances.

Market access for Suncor’s oil sands production may be
constrained by insufficient pipeline takeaway capacity,
including the lack of new pipelines due to an inability to
secure required approvals and negative public perception.
There is a risk that constrained market access for oil sands
production, growing inland production and refinery outages
could create widening differentials that could impact the
profitability of product sales. Market access for refined
products may also be constrained by insufficient takeaway
capacity, which could create a supply/demand imbalance. The
occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material
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adverse effect on the company's business, financial condition,
reserves and results of operations.

Major Operational Incidents (Safety, Environmental and
Reliability)

Each of Suncor's primary operating businesses — Oil Sands,
E&P, and Refining and Marketing — requires significant levels
of investment in the design, operation, and maintenance and
decommissioning of facilities, and carries the additional
economic risk associated with operating reliably or enduring
a protracted operational outage. The breadth and level of
integration of Suncor's operations adds complexity.

The company’s businesses also carry the risks associated with
environmental and safety performance, which is ciosely
scrutinized by governments, the public and the media, and
could result in a suspension of or inability to obtain
regulatory approvals and permits, or, in the case of a major
environmental or safety incident, delays in resuming normal
operations, fines, civil suits or criminal charges against

the company.

in general, Suncor’s aperations are subject to operational
hazards and risks such as, among others, fires {including
forest fires), explosions, blow-outs, power outages,
prolonged periods of extreme cold or extreme heat, severe
winter climate conditions, flooding, droughts and other
extreme weather conditions, railcar incidents or derailments,
the migration of harmful substances such as oil spills,
gaseous leaks or a release of tailings into water systems,
pollution and other environmental risks, and accidents, any
of which can interrupt operations or cause personal injury or
death, or damage to property, equipment {including
information technelogy and related data and controls
systems), and the environment.

The reliable operation of production and processing facilities
at planned levels and Suncor’s ability to produce higher
value products can also be impacted by, among other things,
failure to follow the company’s policies, standards and
operating procedures or operate within established
operating parameters, equipment failure through
inadequate maintenance, unanticipated erosion or corroesion
of facilities, manufacturing and engineering flaws, and
labour shortage or interruption. The company is also subject
to operational risks such as sabotage, terrorism, trespass,
theft and malicious software, network or cyber attacks.

In addition to the foregoing factors that affect Suncor’s
business generally, each business unit is susceptible to
additional risks due to the nature of its business, including,
among others, the following:

* Suncors Qil Sands business is susceptible to toss of
production, slowdowns, shutdowns or restrictions on its
abifity to produce higher value products, due to the
failure of any one or more interdependent component
systems, and other risks inherent to oil sands operations;
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* For Suncor's E&P businesses, there are risks and
uncertainties associated with drilling for oil and natural
gas, the operation and development of such properties
and wells (including encountering unexpected
formations, pressures, or the presence of hydrogen
sulphide), premature daclines of reservoirs, sour gas
releases, uncontrollable flows of crude oil, natural gas or
well fluids and other accidents;

= Suncor's E&P offshore operations occur in areas subject
to hurricanes and other extreme weather conditions,
such as winter storms, pack Ice, icebergs and fog. The
occurrence of any of these events could result in
production shut-ins, the suspension of drilling
operations, damage to or destruction of the equipment
involved and injury or death of rig personnel. Harsh
weather conditions, particularly in the winter season,
may also impact the successful execution of maintenance
and startup of operations. Suncor's E&P offshore
operations could be indirectly affected by catastrophic
events occurring at other third-party offshore operations,
which could give rise to liability, damage to the
company’s equipment, harm to individuals, force a
shutdown of facilities or operations, or result in a
shortage of appropriate equipment or specialists
required to perform planned operations; and

= Suncor's Refining and Marketing operations are subject
to all of the risks normally inherent in the operation of
refineries, terminals, pipelines and other distribution
facilities and service stations, including, among others,
loss of production, slowdowns or shutdowns due to
equipment failures, unavailability of feedstock, price and
quality of feedstock, or other incidents.

Although the company maintains a risk management
program, which includes an insurance component, such
insurance may not provide comprehensive coverage in all
circumstances, nor are all such risks insurable. The company
self-insures some risks, and the company’s insurance coverage
does not cover all the costs arising out of the allocation of
liabilities and risk of loss arising from Suncor operations.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor's business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

Government/Regulatory and Policy Effectiveness

Suncor’s businesses operate under federal, provincial,
territorial, state and municipal laws in numerous countries.
The company is also subject to regulation and intervention
by governments in oil and gas industry matters, such as,
among others, land tenure, royalties, taxes (inciuding income
taxes), government fees, production rates (including
restrictions on production), environmental protection,
wildlife, fish, safety performance, the reduction of GHG and
other emissions, the export of crude oil, natural gas and
other products, interactions with foreign governments, the



awarding or acquisition of exploration and production rights,
oil sands leases or other interests, the imposition of specific
drilling obligations, control over the development,
reclamation and abandonment of fields and mine sites, mine
financial security requirements, approval of logistics
infrastructure, and possibly expropriation or cancellation of
contract rights. As part of ongoing operations, the company
is also required to comply with a large number of EH&S
regulations under a variety of Canadian, U5, UK,
Norwegian and other foreign, federal, provincial, territorial,
state and municipal laws and regulations. Mailure to comply
with applicable laws and regulations may result in, among
other things, the imposition of fines and penalties,
production constraints, a compulsory shutdown of facilities
or suspension of operations, reputational damage, delays,
increased costs, denial of operating and growth permit
appiications, censure, liability for cleanup costs and damages,
and the loss of important licences and permits.

Before proceeding with most major projects, including
significant changes to existing operations, Suncor must
obtain various federal, provincial, territerial, state and
municipal permits and regulatory approvals, and must also
obtain licences to operate certain assets. These processes can
involve, among other things, Indigenous and stakeholder
consultation, environmental impact assessments and public
hearings, government intervention and may be subject to
conditions, including security deposit obligations and other
commitments. Compliance can also be affected by the loss of
skilled staff, inadequate internal processes and compliance
auditing.

Failure to obtain, comply with, satisfy the conditions of or
maintain regulatory permits, licences and approvals, or
failure to obtain them on a timely basis or on satisfactory
terms, could result in prosecution, fines, delays,
abandonment or restructuring of projects and increased
costs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on
Suncor’s business, financial condition, reserves and results of
operations. Suncor’s businesses can alse be indirectly
impacted by a third party’'s inability te obtain regulatory
approval for a shared infrastructure project cr a third-party
infrastructure project on which a portien of Suncer’s business
depends.

Changes in government policy, regulation or other laws, or
the interpretation thereof, or opposition to Suncor's projects
or third-party pipeline and infrastructure projects that delays
or prevents necessary permits or regulatory approvals, or
which makes current operations or growth projects less
profitable or uneconomic could materially impact Suncor's
operations, existing and planned projects, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations. Obtaining
necessary approvals or permits has become more difficult
due to increased public opposition and Indigenous
consultation requirements as well as increased political
involvement. The federal government's Impact Assessment

Act (formerly Bill C-69) also came into force in August 2019
and will impact the manner in which large energy projects
are approved. This development could also lead to significant
delays and additional compliance costs, and staffing and
resource levels, and also increase exposure to other risks to
Suncor's business, including enviranmental or safety
non-compliance, permit approvals, and project development
and execution, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on Suncor’s business, financial condition, reserves and
results of operations.

Suncor is subject to the mandatory production curtailments
imposed by the Government of Alberta that commenced in
early 2019. The duration, extent and consequences of the
curtailments to Suncor’s business are not fully known;
however, prolonged production curtailment or changes to
the curtailment levels could have a material adverse effect
on Suncor's business, financial condition, reserves and results
of operations.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Targets

Among other sustainability goals, Suncor has committed to
reducing the total GHG emissions intensity of its ofl and gas
petroleum products by 30% by 2030 (based on a 2014
baseline year). Our ability to lower GHG emissions on both
an absolute basis and in respect of our 2030 total emissions
reduction target is subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties and our actions taken in implementing these
objectives may also expose us to certain additional andfor
heightened financial and operational risks.

A reduction in GHG emissions relies on, among other things,
our ability to implement and improve energy efficiency at all
of our facilities, future development and growth
opportunities, develop and deploy new technologies, invest
in low-carbon power and transition to low-carbon fuels. In
the event that we are unable to implement these strategies
and technologies as planned without negatively impacting
our expected operations or business plans, or in the event
that such strategies or technologies do not perform as
expected, we may be unable to meet our GHG targets or
goals on the current timelines, or at all.

In addition, achieving our GHG emission reductions target
and goals could require significant capital expenditures and
resources, with the potential that the costs required to
achieve our target and goals materially differ from our
original estimates and expectations, which differences may
be material. In addition, the shift in resources and focus
towards emissions reduction could have a negative impact on
our operating results. The overall final cost of investing in
and implementing an emissions-intensity reduction strategy
and technologies in furtherance of such strategy, and the
resultant change in the deployment of our resources and
focus, could have a material adverse effect on Suncor’s
business, financial condition, reserves and results of
operations.
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Competition

The global petroleum industry is highly competitive in many
aspects, including the exploration for and the development
of new sources of supply, the acquisition of crude oil and
natural gas interests, and the refining, distribution and
marketing of refined petroleum products. Suncor competes
in virtually every aspect of its business with other energy
companies. The petroleum industry also competes with other
industries in supplying energy, fuel and related products to
consumers. The increasing volatility of the political and social
landscape at provincial, federal, territorial, state, municipal
and international levels adds complexity.

For Suncor's Qil Sands business, it is difficult to assess the
number, level of production and ultimate timing of all
potential new projects or when existing production levels
may increase. Although current commadity pricing and
increased regulatory requirements have slowed certain larger
projects in the short term, an in¢rease in the level of activity
may have an impact on regional infrastructure, including
pipelines, and could place stress on the availability and cost
of all resources required to build and run new and existing
oil sands operations.

For Suncor's Refining and Marketing business, management
expects that fluctuations in demand for refined products,
margin volatility and overall marketplace competitiveness
will continue. In addition, to the extent that the company's
downstream business unit participates in new product
markets, it could be exposed to margin risk and volatility
from either cost and/or selling price fluctuations.

There is a risk that increased competition could cause costs
to increase, put further strain on existing infrastructure and
cause margins for refined and unrefined products to be
volatile, and impact demand for Suncor’s products, which
could have a material adverse effect on Suncor's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Carbon Risk

Public support for climate change action and receptivity to
alternative/renewable energy technologies has grown in
recent years. Governments in Canada and around the world
have responded to these shifting societal attitudes by
adopting ambitious emissions reduction targets and
supporting legislation, including measures relating to carbon
pricing, clean energy and fuel standards, and alternative
energy incentives and mandates. There has also been
increased activism and public opposition to fossil fuels, and
oil sands in particular.

Existing and future laws and regulations may impose
significant liabilities on a failure to comply with their
requirements. Concerns over climate change, fossil fuel
extraction, GHG emissions, and water and land-use practices
could lead governments to enact additional or more
stringent laws and regulations applicable to Suncor and
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other companies in the energy industry in general, and in
the oil sands industry in particular.

Changes to environmental regulations, including regulation
relating to climate change, could impact the demand for,
formulation or quality of the company’s products, or could
require increased capital expenditures, operating expenses,
abandonment and reclamation obligations and distribution
costs, which may not be recoverable in the marketplace and
which may result in current operations or growth projects
becoming less profitable or uneconomic. In addition, such
regulatory changes could necessitate that Suncor develop
new technologies. Such technology development could
require a significant investment of capital and resources, and
any delay in or failure to identify and develop such
technologies or obtain regulatory approvals for these
technology projects could prevent Suncor from obtaining
regulatory approvals for projects or being able to successfully
compete with other companies. Increasing environmental
regulation in the jurisdictions in which Suncor operates may
also make it difficult for Suncor to compete with companies
operating in other jurisdictions with fewer or less costly
regulations. In addition, legislation or policies that limit the
purchase of production from the oil sands may be adopted
in domestic and/or foreign jurisdictions, which, in turn, may
limit the world market for Suncor's upstream production and
reduce the prices the company receives for its products, and
could result in delayed development, stranded assets or the
company being unable to further develop its resources. The
complexity, breadth and velocity of changes in
environmental regulation make it extremely difficult to
predict the potential impact to Suncor.

Suncor continues to monitor the international and domestic
efforts to address climate change. While it currently appears
that GHG regulations and targets will continue to become
mare stringent, and while Suncor continues its efforts to
reduce the intensity of its GHG emissions, the absolute GHG
emissions of the company may rise as a result of growth.
Increases in GHG emissions may impact the profitability of
the company's projects, as Suncor will be subject to
incremental levies and taxes. There is also a risk that Suncor
could face litigation initiated by third parties relating to
climate change, including litigation pertaining te GHG
emissions, the production, sale, or promotion of fossil fuels
and petroleum products, and/or disclosure. For example, the
Board of County Commissioners of Boulder County, the
Board of County Commissioners of San Miguel County and
the City of Boulder, all of Colorado, have brought an action
against Suncor and certain of its subsidiaries seeking, among
other things, compensation for impacts they allege with
respect to climate change. In addition, the mechanics of
implementation and enforcement of the OSELA are currently
under review and it is not yet possible to predict the impact
on Suncor. However, such impact could be material.



These developments and future developments could
adversely impact the demand for Suncor’s products, the
ability of Suncor to maintain and grow its production and
reserves, and Suncor's reputation, and could have a material
adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial condition,
reserves and results of operations.

Envircnmental Compliance
Tailings Management and Water Release

Each oil sands mine is required under the Tailings Directive
to seek approval for its updated fluid tailings management
plans. If a mine fails to meet a condition of its approved
plan, the applicable company could be subject to
enforcement actions, including being required to curtail
production, and financial conseguences, including being
subject to a compliance levy or being required to post
additional security under the MFSP. The full impact of the
TMF, the Tailings Directive and updates to the dam
regulations, including the financial consequences of
exceeding compliance levels, is not yet fully known, as
certain associated policy updates and regulation updates are
still under development. Such updates could also restrict the
technologies that the company may employ for tailings
management, which could adversely impact the company’s
business plans. There could also be risks if the company’s
tailings management operations fail to operate as
anticipated. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could
have a material adverse effect on Suncor's business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

In addition, an integrated water management approach to
support operations and successful reclamation and closure
requires the release of treated oil sands mine water to the
envircnment, which is not currently permitted for oil sands
mines under existing laws. There is no certainty as to when
regulations authorizing such water release would be
enacted, the content of any such regulations, and the ability
of and timing for the company to obtain the required
approvals under such regulations to permit such water
release. The absence of effective government regulations in
this area could impact the success and timing of closure and
reclamation plans, which could have a material adverse
effect on Suncor's business, financial condition, reserves and
results of operations.

Alberta’s Land-Use Framework (LARP)

The implementation of, and compliance with, the terms of
the LARP may adversely impact Suncor's current properties
and projects in northern Alberta due to, among other things,
environmental limits and thresholds. The impact of the LARP
on Suncor’s operations may be outside of the control of the
company, as Suncor's operations could be impacted as a
result of restrictions imposed due to the cumulative impact
of development by the other operators in the area and not
solely in relation to Suncor’s direct impact. The uncertainty
of changes in Suncor's future development and existing

operations required as a result of the LARP couid have a
material adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP) Water Licences

Suncor currently relies on water obtained under licences
from AEP to provide domestic and utility water for the
company’s Oil Sands business. Water licences, like all
regulatory approvals, contain conditions to be met in order
to maintain compliance with the licence. There can be no
assurance that the licences to withdraw water will not be
rescinded or that additional conditions will not be added. It
is also possible that regional water management approaches
may require water-sharing agreements between
stakehelders. In addition, the expansion of the company’s
projects may rely on securing licences for additional water
withdrawal, and there can be no assurance that these
licences will be granted in a timely manner or that they will
be granted on terms favourable to Suncor. There is also a
risk that future laws or changes to existing laws or
regulations relating to water access could cause capital
expenditures and operating expenses relating to water
licence compliance to increase. The occurrence of any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effect on Suncor’s
business, financial condition, reserves and results

of operations.

Species at Risk Act

Woodland caribou have been identified as "threatened”
under the Species at Risk Act (Canada). In response to the
Government of Canada’s Recovery Strategy for Woodland
Caribou, provincial caribou range plans are being developed.
Suncor has existing, planned and potential future projects
within caribou ranges in Alberta. The development and
implementation of range plans in these areas may have an
impact on the pace and amount of development in these
areas and could potentially increase costs for restoration or
offsetting requirements, which could have a material adverse
effect on Suncor’s business, financial condition, reserves and
results of operations.

Air Quality Management

A number of Canadian federal and provincial air quality
regulations and frameworks are currently being developed,
changed and/or implemented, which could have an impact
on the company’s existing and planned projects by requiring
the company to invest additional capital or incur additional
operating and compliance expenses, including, among other
things, potentially requiring the company to retrofit
equipment to meet new requirements and increase
monitoring and mitigation plans. The full impact of these
regulations and frameworks is not yet known; however, they
could have a materiat adverse effect on Suncor's business,
financial condition, reserves and results of operations.
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Alberta Wetland Policy

Pursuant to the Alberta Wetland Policy, development in
wetland areas may be obligated to avoid wetlands or
mitigate the development’s effects on wetlands. Although
the full impact of the policy on Suncor is not yet fully
known, certain Suncor operations and growth projects will
be affected by aspects of the policy where avoidance is not
possible and wetland reclamation or replacement may be
required, which could have a material adverse effect on
Suncor’s business, financial condition, reserves and results
of operations.

Information Security

The efficient operation of Suncor’s business is dependent on
computer hardware, software and networked systems,
including the systems of cloud providers and third parties
with which Suncor conducts business. Digital transformation
continues to increase the number of, and complexity of, such
systems. In the ordinary course of Suncor’s business, Suncor
collects and stores sensitive data, including intellectual
property, proprietary business information and personal
information of the company's employees and retail
customers. Suncor's operations are also dependent upon a
large and complex information framework. Suncor relies on
industry accepted security measures, controls and technology
to protect Suncor's information systems and securely
maintain confidential and proprietary information stored on
the coempany’s information systems, and has adopted a
continuous process to identify, assess and manage threats to
the company's information systems. White Suncor has an
information and cyber security program in place, the
measures, controls and technology on which the company
relies may not be adequate due to the increasing volume,
sophistication and rapidly evolving nature of cyber threats.
Suncor's information technelogy and infrastructure, inciuding
process control systems, may be vulnerable to attacks by
malicious persons or entities motivated by, among others,
geopolitical, financial or activist reasons, or breached due to
employee error, malfeasance or other disruptions, including
natural disasters and acts of war. Any such attack or breach
could compromise Suncor's networks, and the information
Suncor stores could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost,
stolen or compromised. Any such attack, breach, access,
disclosure or foss of information could result in legal claims
or proceedings, liability under laws that protect the privacy
of personal information, regulatory penalties, disruptions to
Suncor's operations, decreased performance and production,
increased costs, and damage to Suncor's reputation, physical
harm to people or the environment, or other negative
consequences to Suncor or third parties, which could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial
condition and results of operations. Although the company
maintains a risk management program, which includes an
insurance component that may provide coverage for the
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operational impacts from an attack to, or breach of, Suncor’s
information technology and infrastructure, including process
control systems, the company does not maintain stand-alone
cyber insurance. Furthermore, not all cyber risks are
insurable. As a result, Suncor’s existing insurance may not
provide adequate coverage for losses stemming from a cyber
attack to, or breach of, its information technology and
infrastructure.

Security and Terrorist Threats

Security threats and terrorist or activist activities may impact
Suncor‘s personnel, which could result in injury, death,
extortion, hostage situations andfor kidnapping, including
unlawful confinement. A security threat, terrorist attack or
activist incident targeted at a facility or office owned or
operated by Suncor could result in the interruption or
cessation of key elements of Suncor’s operations. Outcomes
of such incidents could have a material adverse effect on
Suncor’s business, financial condition, reserves and results
of operations.

Project Development and Execution

There are certain risks associated with the development and
execution of Suncor’'s major projects and the commissioning
and integration of new facilities within its existing

asset base.

Project development and execution risk consists of four

related primary risks:

+« Development - a failure to select the right projects and
identify effective scope and solution;

* Engineering — a failure in the specification, design or
technology selection;

« Construction — a failure to build the project in the
approved time, in accordance with design, and at the
agreed cost; and

+ Commissioning and startup —a failure of the facility to
meet agreed performance targets, including operating
costs, efficiency, yield and maintenance costs.

Project development and execution can also be impacted by,
among other things:

s The effect of changing government regulation and
public expectations in relation to the impact of oil sands
development on the environment, which could
significantly impact the company’s ability to obtain the
neceassary environmental and other regulatory approvals;

* The impact of general economic, business and market
conditions and the company’s ability to finance growth,
including major growth projects in progress, if
commodity prices were to decline and stay at low levels
for an extended period;

+ The complexity and diversity of Suncor's portfolio,
including joint venture assets;



s The accuracy of project cost and schedule estimates, as
actual costs and schedules for major projects can vary
from estimates, and these differences can be material;

= The availability and cost of materials, equipment,
qualified personnel, and logistics infrastructure,
maintaining adequate quality management and risks
associated with logistics and offshore fabrication,
including the cost of materials, and equipment
fabricated offshore may be impacted by tariffs, duties
and quotas;

*  The inability or unwillingness of third-party vendors,
contractors or service providers to provide materials,
equipment, personnel and services of necessary quality in
the timelines anticipated and at the agreed upon cost;

* The complexities and uncertainties associated with
identification, development and integration of new
technologies into the company’s existing and new assets;

e Complexities and risks associated with constructing
projects within operating environments and confined
construction areas;

* The commissioning and integration of new facilities
within the company’s existing asset base could cause
delays in achieving guidance, targets and objectives;

» Risks reiating to restarting projects placed in safe mode,
including increased capital costs; and

« The impact of weather conditions.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

Technolegy Risk

There are risks associated with sustainability, growth and
other capital projects that rely largely or partly on new
technologies and the incerporation of such technologies into
new or existing operations, including that the results of the
application of new technologies may differ from simulated,
test or pilot environments, or that third-party intellectual
property protections may impede the development and
implementation of new technology. The success of projecits
incorporating new technologies cannot be assured.
Advantages accrue to companies that can develop and adopt
emerging technologies in advance of competitors. The
inability to develop, implement and monitor new
technologies may impact the company's ability to develop its
new or existing operations in a profitable manner or comply
with regulatory requirements, which could have a material
adverse effect on Suncor's business, financial condition,
reserves and results of operations.

Cumulative Impact and Pace of Change

In order to achieve Suncor's business objectives, the company
must operate efficiently, reliably and safely, and, at the same
time, deliver growth and sustaining projects safely, on
budget and on schedule. The ability to achieve these two

sets of objectives is critically important for Suncor to deliver
value to shareholders and stakeholders. These ambitious
business objectives compete for resources, and may
negatively impact the company should there be inadequate
consideration of the cumulative impacts of prior and parallel
initiatives on people, processes and systems. The
establishment of the Transformation Management Office to
support Suncor’s digital transformation is expected to assist
with the transformation, but there is still a risk that these
objectives may exceed Suncor's capacity to adopt and
implement change. The occurrence of any of the foregoing
could have a material adverse effect on Suncor's business,
financial condition, reserves and results of operations.

Joint Arrangement Risk

Suncor has entered into joint arrangements and other
contractual arrangements with third parties, including
arrangements where other entities operate assets in which
Suncor has ownership or other interests. These joint
arrangements include, among others, those with respect to
Syncrude, Fort Hills, In Situ assets, and operations in Suncor's
E&P Canada and E&P International businesses. The success
and timing of activities relating to assets and projects
operated by others, or developed jointly with others, depend
upon a number of factors that are cutside of Suncor's
control, including, among others, the timing and amount of
capital expenditures, the timing and amount of operational
and maintenance expenditures, the operator's expertise,
financial resources and risk management practices, the
approval of other participants, and the selection

of technology.

These co-owners may have objectives and interests that do
not coincide with and may conflict with Suncor's interests.
Major capital decisions affecting joint arrangements may
require agreement among the co-owners, while certain
operational decisions may be made solely at the discretion of
the operator of the applicable assets. While joint venture
counterparties may generally seek consensus with respect to
major decisions concerning the direction and operation of
the assets and the development of projects, no assurance can
be provided that the future demands or expectations of the
parties relating to such assets and projects will be met
satisfactorily or in a timely manner. Failure to satisfactorily
meet demands or expectations by all of the parties may
affect the company’s participation in the operation of such
assets or in the development of such projects, the company’s
ability to obtain or maintain necessary licences or approvals,
or the timing for undertaking various activities. In addition,
disputes may arise pertaining to the timing, scope, funding
and/or capital commitments with respect to projects that are
being jointly developed.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.
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Financial Risks

Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities and the
Exposure to Counterparties

The nature of Suncor's energy trading and risk management
activities, which may make use of derivative financial
instruments to manage its exposure to commodity price and
other market risks, creates exposure to financial risks, which
include, but are not limited to, the following:

s Unfavourable movements in commodity prices, interest
rates or foreign exchange could result in a financial or
opportunity loss to the company;

* A lack of counterparties, due to market conditions or
other circumstances, could leave the company unable to
liquidate or offset a position, or unable to do so at or
near the previous market price;

* The company may not receive funds or instruments from
counterparties at the expected time or at all;

* The counterparty could fail to perform an obligation
owed to Suncor;

* Loss as a result of human error or deficiency in the
company's systems or controls; and

* Loss as a result of contracts being unenforceable or
transactions being inadequately documented.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The company's 2019 audited Consclidated Financial
Staterments are presented in Canadian doliars. The majority
of Suncor’s revenues from the sale of oil, natural gas and
petroleum preducts are based on prices that are determined
by, or referenced to, U.S. dollar benchmark prices, while the
majority of Suncor’'s expenditures are realized in Canadian
dollars. The company alsc owes a portion of its debt in

U.S. dollars. Suncor's financial results, therefore, can be
affected significantly by the exchange rates between the
Canadian dollar and the U.5. dollar. The company also
undertakes operations administered through international
subsidiaries, and, therefore, to a lesser extent, Suncor's
results can be affected by the exchange rates between the
Canadian dollar and the euro, the British pound and the
Norwegian krone. These exchange rates may vary
substantially and may give rise to favourable or unfavcurable
foreign currency exposure. A decrease in the value of the
Canadian dollar relative to the U.5. dollar will increase the
revenues received from the sale of commodities. An increase
in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar
will decrease revenues received from the sale of
commeodities. A decrease in the vaiue of the Canadian dallar
relative to the U.S. dollar from the previous balance sheet
date increases the amount of Canadian dollars required to
settle U.S. dollar denominated cbligations. As at

66 2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc.

December 31, 2019, the Canadian dollar strengthened in
relation to the U.S. dollar to $0.77 from $0.73 at the start of
2019, Exchange rate fluctuations could have a material
adverse effect on Suncor’'s business, financial condition,
reserves and results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

The company is exposed to fluctuations in short-term
Canadian and U.S. interest rates as Suncor maintains a
portion of its debt capacity in revolving and floating rate
credit facilities and commercial paper, and invests surplus
cash in short-term debt instruments and money market
instruments. Suncor is also exposed to interest rate risk when
debt instruments are maturing and require refinancing, or
when new debt capital needs to be raised. The company is
also exposed to changes in interest rates when derivative
instruments are used to manage the debt portfolio, including
hedges of prospective new debt issuances. Unfavourable
changes in interest rates could have a material adverse effect
oh Suncor’s business, financial condition and results

of operations,

Issuance of Debt and Debt Covenants

Suncor expects that future capital expenditures will be
financed out of cash and cash equivalents balances, cash
flow provided by operating activities, available committed
credit facilities, issuing commercial paper and accessing
capital markets. This ability is dependent on, among other
factors, commadity prices, the overall state of the capital
markets, and financial institutions and investor appetite for
investments in the energy industry generally, and the
company's securities in particular. To the extent that external
sources of capital become limited or unavailable or available
on unfavourable terms, the ability to make capital
investments and maintain existing properties may

be constrained.

If the company finances capital expenditures in whole or in
part with debt, that may increase its debt levels above
industry standards for oil and gas companies of similar size.
Depending on future development and growth plans,
additional debt financing may be required that may not be
available or, if available, may not be available on favourable
terms, including higher interest rates and fees. Neither the
articles of Suncor (the Articles) nor its by-laws limft the
amount of indebtedness that may be incurred; however,
Suncor is subject to covenants in its existing credit facilities
and seeks to avoid an unfavourable cost of debt. The level of
the company’s indebtedness, from time to time, could impair
its ability to obtain additional financing on a timely basis to
take advantage of business opportunities that may arise and
could negatively affect its credit ratings.

Suncor is required to comply with financial and operating
covenants under existing credit facifities and debt securities.
Covenants are reviewed based on actual and forecast results
and the company has the ability to make changes to its



development plans, capital structure and/or dividend policy
to comply with covenants under the credit facilities. If Suncor
does not comply with the covenants under its credit facilities
and debt securities, there is a risk that repayment could be
accelerated andfor the company’s access to capital could be
restricted or only be available on unfavourable terms.

Rating agencies regularly evaluate the company, including its
subsidiaries. Their ratings of Suncor’s long-term and
short-term debt are based on a number of factors, including
the company’s financial strength, as well as factors not
entirely within its control, including conditions affecting the
oil and gas industry generally, and the wider state of the
economy. Credit ratings may be important to customers or
counterparties when Suncor competes in certain markets and
when it seeks to engage in certain transactions, including
transactions involving over-the-counter derivatives. There is a
risk that one or more of Suncor's credit ratings could be
downgraded, which could potentially limit its access to
private and public credit markets and increase the company's
cost of borrowing.

The occurrence of any of the feregoing could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor's business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

Royalties and Taxes

Suncor is subject to royalties and taxes imposed by
governments in numerous jurisdictions.

Royalties can be impacted by changes in crude oil and
natural gas pricing, production volumes, and capital and
operating costs, by changes to existing legislation or PSCs,
and by results of regulatory audits of prior year filings and
other such events. The final determination of these events
may have a material impact on the company’s royalties
expense,

An increase in Suncor’s royalties expense, income taxes,
property taxes, carbon taxes, ievies, tariffs, duties, quotas,
border taxes, and other taxes and government-imposed
compliance costs could have a material adverse effect on
Suncor's business, financial condition, reserves and results
of operations.

Dividends and Share Repurchases

Suncor's payment of future dividends on its common shares
and future share repurchases by Suncor of its common shares
will be dependent on, amang other things, legislative and
stock exchange requirements, the company's financial
condition, results of cperations, cash flow, the need for
funds to finance ongoing operations and growth projects,
debt covenants and other business considerations as the
company's Board censiders relevant. There can be ne
assurance that Suncor will continue to pay dividends or
repurchase shares in the future.

E&P Reserves Replacement

Suncor's future offshore preduction, and therefore its cash
flows and results of operations from E&P, are highly
dependent upon success in exploiting its current reserves
base and acquiring or discovering additional reserves.
Without additions to its E&P reserves through exploration,
acquisition or development activities, Suncor's production
from its offshore assets will decline over time as reserves are
depleted. The business of exploring for, developing or
acquiring reserves is capital intensive. To the extent Suncor's
cash flow is insufficient to fund capital expenditures and
external sources of capital become limited or unavailable,
Suncor’s ability to make the necessary capital investments to
maintain and expand its reserves will be impaired. In
addition, Suncor may be unable to develop or acquire
additional reserves to replace Hs crude oil and natural gas
production at acceptable costs.

Uncertainties Affecting Reserves Estimates

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating
quantities of reserves, including many factors beyond the
company’s control. Suncor’s actual production, revenues,
royalties, taxes, and development and operating
expenditures with respect to the company's reserves will vary
from its estimates, and such variances could be material.

Third-Party Service Providers

Suncor’s businesses are reliant on the operational integrity of
a large number of third-party service providers, including
input and output commodity transport (pipelines, rail,
trucking, marine) and utilities associated with various Suncor
and jointly owned facilities, including electricity. A disruption
in service or limited availability by one of these third parties
can also have a dramatic impact on Suncor's operations and
growth plans. Pipeline constraints that affect takeaway
capacity or supply of inputs, such as hydrogen and power for
example, could impact the company's ability to produce at
capacity levels. Disruptions in pipeline service could adversely
affect commodity prices, Suncor's price reaiizations, refining
operations and sales volumes, or limit the company’s ability
to produce and deliver production. These interruptions may
be caused by the inability of the pipeline to operate or by
the oversupply of feedstock into the system that exceeds
pipeline capacity. Short-term operational constraints on
pipeline systems arising from pipeline interruption and/or
increased supply of crude oil have occurred in the past and
could occur in the future. There is a risk that third-party
outages could impact Suncor's production or price
realizations, which could have a material adverse effect on
Suncor’s business, financial condition and results

of operations.

Foreign Operations

The company has operations in a8 number of countries with
different political, economic and social systems. As a result,
the company's operations and related assets are subject to a
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number of risks and other uncertainties arising from foreign
government sovereignty over the company’s international
operations, which may include, among other things:

Currency restrictions and restrictions on repatriation of
funds;

s Loss of revenue, property and eguipment as a resuit of
expropriation, nationalization, war, insurrection, and
geopolitical and other political risks;

s Increases in taxes and government royalties;

+ Compliance with existing and emerging anti-corruption
laws, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(United States), the Corruption of Foreign Public Officials
Act {Canada) and the United Kingdom Bribery Act

* Renegotiation of contracts with government entities and
guasi-government agencies;

* Changes in laws and policies governing operations of
foreign-based companies; and

* Economic and legal sanctions {such as restrictions against
countries experiencing palitical violence, or countries
that other governments may deem to sponsor terrorism).

If a dispute arises in the company's foreign operations, the
company may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of
foreign courts or may not be able to subject foreign persons
to the jurisdiction of a court in Canada or the U.S. in
addition, as a result of activities in these areas and a
continuing evolution of an internationat framewecrk for
corporate responsibility and accountability for international
crimes, there is a risk the company could also be exposed to
potential claims for alleged breaches of international or
local law.

The impact that future potential terrorist attacks, regional
hostilities or political violence, such as that experienced in
Libya and Syria, may have on the oil and gas industry, and
on our operations in particular, is not known at this time.
This uncertainty may affect operations in unpredictable ways,
including disruptions of fuel supplies and markets,
particularly crude oil, and the possibility that infrastructure
facilities, inchuding pipelines, production facilities, processing
plants and refineries, could be direct targets of, or collateral
damage of, an act of terror, political violence or war. Suncor
may be required to incur significant costs in the future to
safeguard its assets against terrorist activities or to remediate
potential damage to its facilities. There can be no assurance
that Suncor will be successful in protecting itself against
these risks and the related safety and financial consequences.

Despite Suncor’s training and policies around bribery and
other forms of corruption, there is a risk that Suncor, or
some of its employees or contractors, could be charged with
bribery or corruption. Any of these violations could result in
onerous penalties. Even allegations of such behaviour could
impair Suncor’s ability to work with governments or
non-government organizations and could result in the formal
exclusion of Suncor from a country or area, sanctions, fines,
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project cancellations or delays, the inability to raise or
borrow capital, reputational impacts and increased investor
concern.

The occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a
material adverse effect on Suncor’s business, financial
condition, reserves and results of operations.

Skills, Resource Shortage and Reliance on Key Personnel

The successful operation of Suncor’s businesses and the
company's ability to expand operations will depend upon the
availability of, and competition for, skilled labour and
materials supply. There is a risk that the company may have
difficuity sourcing the required labour for current and future
operations. The risk could manifest itself primarily through
an inability to recruit new staff without a dilution of talent,
to train, develop and retain high-quality and experienced
staff without unacceptably high attrition, and to satisfy an
employee’s work/life balance and desire for competitive
compensation. The labour market in Alberta has been
historically tight, and, while the current economic situation
has partially moderated this effect, it remains a risk to be
managed. The increasing age of the company’s existing
workforce and changing skillsets as technology continues to
evolve adds further pressure. The availability of competent
and skilled contractors for current and future operations is
aiso a risk depending on market conditions. Materials may
also be in short supply due to smaller labour forces in many
manufacturing operations. Suncor’s ability to operate safely
and effectively and complete all projects on time and on
budget has the potential to be significantly impacted by
these risks and this impact could be material.

The company's success also depends in large measure on
certain key personnel. The loss of the services of such key
personnel could have a material adverse effect on the
company. The contributions of the existing management
team to the immediate and near-term operations of the
company are likely to continue to be of central importance
for the foreseeable future.

Labour Relations

Hourly employees at Suncor’s oil sands facilities (excluding
MacKay River), all of the company’s refineries, and the
majority of the company’s terminal and distribution
operations are represented by labour unions or employee
associations. Approximately 31% of the company’s employees
were covered by collective agreements at the end of 2019.
Negotiations for new collective agreements are in progress
for two facilities across the company. Any work interruptions
involving the company's employees (including as a result of a
strike or lockout), contract trades utilized in the company's
projects or operations, or any jointly owned facilities
operated by another entity present a significant risk to the
company and could have a material adverse effect on
Suncor’s business, finandial condition and results

of operations.



Land Claims and Indigenous Consultation

Indigenous Peoples have claimed Indigenous title and rights
to portions of Western Canada. In addition, Indigenous
Peoples have filed claims against industry participants
relating in part to land claims, which may affect the
company’s business.

The requirement to consult with Indigenous Peoples in
respect of oil and gas projects and related infrastructure has
also increased in recent years. In addition, in recent years,
the Canadian federal government and the provincial
government in Alberta have made a commitment to renew
their relationships with the Indigenous Peoples of Canada.
The federal government has stated it now fully supports the
United Nations Declaration on the Rights of indigenous
Peaples (the Declaration) without gqualification and that
Canada intends "nothing less than to adopt and implement
the Declaration in accordance with the Canadian
Constitution”. At this time, it is unctear how the Declaration
wili be adopted into Canadian law and the impact of the
Declaration on the Crown’s duty to consult with Indigenous
Peopies.

Suncor is unable to assess the effect, if any, that any such
land claims, consultation requirements with Indigenous
Peoples or adoption of the Declaration into Canadian law
may have on Suncor’s business; however, the impact may
be material.

Litigation Risk

There is a risk that Suncor or entities in which it has an
interest may be subject to litigation, and claims under such
litigation may be material. Various types of claims may be
raised in these proceedings, including, but not limited to,
environmental damage, climate change and the impacts
thereof, breach of contract, product liability, antitrust,
bribery and other forms of corruption, tax, patent
infringement, disciosure, employment matters and in relation
to an attack, breach or unauthorized access to Suncor's
information technology and infrastructure. Litigation is
subject to uncertainty and it is possible that there could be
material adverse developments in pending or future cases.
Unfavourable outcomes or settlements of litigation could
encourage the commencement of additional fitigation.
Suncor may also be subject to adverse publicity and
reputational impacts associated with such matters, regardless
of whether Suncor is ultimately found liable. There is a risk
that the cutcome of such litigation may be materially
adverse to the company andfor the company may be
required to incur significant expenses or devote significant
resources in defence against such litigation, the success of
which cannot be guaranteed.

Trade Risk Relating to CUSMA

If CUSMA is ratified, Canada will no longer be subject to the
proportionality provisions in NAFTA's energy chapter,

enabling Canada to expand cil and gas exports beyond the
U.S. Further, a change to the oil and gas rules of origin
under CUSMA will allow Canadian exporters to more easily
qualify for duty-free treatment for shipments to the

U.S. Canada must, however, notify the U.S. of its intention to
enter into free trade talks with any “non-market economies”
under CUSMA, which may include China or any other
importers of Canadian oil and gas exports. Although CUSMA
has been signed, Canada has yet to ratify CUSMA according
to its legislative processes before it goes into effect and
replaces NAFTA. The outcome of the ratification process in
Canada is not complete and is therefore uncertain. If CUSMA
is not ratified and adopted by all three countries, the sale
and transportation of Suncor's products within North
America could be affected in a manner which could
negatively impact Suncor's business, financial condition and
results from operations.

Control Environment

Based on their inherent limitations, discdlosure controls and
procedures and internal controls over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect misstatements, and even those controls
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation
and presentation. Failure to adequately prevent, detect and
correct misstatements could have a material adverse effect
on how Suncor’s business, financial condition and results of
operations are reported.

Insurance Coverage

Suncor maintains insurance coverage as part of its risk
management program. However, such insurance may not
provide comprehensive coverage in all circumstances, nor are
all such risks insurable. The company self-insures some risks,
and the company’s insurance coverage does not cover all the
costs arising cut of the allocation of liabilities and risk of loss
arising from Suncor operations.

Suncor's insurance policies are generally renewed on an
annual basis and, depending on factors such as market
conditions, the premiums, policy limits and/or deductibles for
certain insurance policies can vary substantially. In some
instances, certain insurance may become unavailable or
available only for reduced amounts of coverage. Significantly
increased costs could lead the company to decide to reduce,
or possibly eliminate, coverage. In addition, insurance is
purchased from a number of third-party insurers, often in
layered insurance arrangements, some of whom may
discontinue providing insurance coverage for their own
policy or strategic reasons. Should any of these insurers
refuse to continue to provide insurance coverage, the
company's overall risk exposure could be increased.
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11. OTHER ITEMS

Control Environment

Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2019, Suncor’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that the company’s disclosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the Exchange Act)), are effective to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the company in reports that are
filed or submitted to Canadian and U.5. securities authorities
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in Canadian and U.S. securities laws. In
addition, as of December 31, 2019, there were no changes in
the internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)} that occurred
during the year ended December 31, 2019 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the company’s internal control over financial
repaorting. Management will continue to periodically
evaluate the company’s disclosure controls and procedures
and internal control over financial reporting and will make
any modifications from time to time as deemed necessary.
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The effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as at December 31, 2019 was audited by

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report, which is included in our audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

Based on their inherent limitations, disclosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect misstatements, and even those controls
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation
and presentation.

Corporate Guidance

There have been no changes to the corporate guidance
ranges previously issued on December 2, 2019, For further
details and advisories regarding Suncor’s 2020 corporate
guidance, see www.suncor.com/guidance.



12. ADVISORIES

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Certain financial measures in this MD&A — namely operating earnings (loss), ROCE, funds from (used in) operations, free funds
flow, discretionary free funds flow, Oil Sands operations cash cperating costs, In Situ cash operating costs, Fort Hills cash
operating costs, Syncrude cash operating costs, refining margin, refining operating expense and LIFO inventory valuation
methodology - are not prescribed by GAAP. These non-GAAP financial measures are included because management uses the
information to analyze business performance, leverage and liquidity, and it may be useful to investors on the same basis.
These non-GAAP financial measures do not have any standardized meaning and, therefore, are unlikely to be comparable to
similar measures presented by other companies. Therefore, these non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in
isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. Except as otherwise indicated,
these non-GAAP measures are calculated and disclosed on a consistent basis from period to period. Specific adjusting items
may only be relevant in certain periods.

(a) Operating Earnings (Loss)

Operating earnings (Joss) is a non-GAAP financial measure that adjusts net earnings {loss) for significant items that are not
indicative of operating performance. Management uses operating earnings (loss) to evaluate operating performance, because
management believes it provides better comparability between periods. For the years ended December 31, 2019,

December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, consolidated operating earnings {loss) are reconciled to net earnings {loss) in the
Financial Information section of this MD&A and operating earnings {loss) for each segment are reconciled to net earnings
(loss) in the Segment Results and Analysis section of the MD&A. Operating earnings {loss) for the three months ended
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are reconciled to net earnings {loss) below.

{b) Bridge Analyses of Operating Earnings

Throughout this MD&A, the company presents charts that illustrate the change in operating earnings from the comparative
period through key variance factors. These factors are analyzed in the Operating Earnings narratives following the bridge
analyses in that particular section of the MD&A. These bridge analyses are presented because management uses this
presentation to analyze performance.

* The factor for Sales Volumes and Mix is calculated based on sales volumes and mix for the Oil Sands and Exploration and
Production segments and throughput volumes and mix for the Refining and Marketing segment.

* The factor for Price, Margin and Other Revenue includes upstream price realizations before royalties, with the exception
of Libya, which is net of royalties. Also included are refining and marketing margins, other operating revenues, and the
net impacts of sales and purchases of third-party crude, including product purchased for use as difuent in the company’s
Qil Sands operations and subsequently sold as part of diluted bitumen.

* The factor for Royalties excludes the impact of Libya, as royalties in Libya are taken into account in Price, Margin and
Other Revenue as described above.

« The factor for Inventory Valuation includes the after-tax impact of the FIFO method of inventory valuation in the
company’'s R&M segment, as well as the impact of the deferral or realization of profit or loss on crude oil sales from the
Oil Sands segment to Suncor’s refineries, as both represent inventory valuation adjustments,

* The factor for Insurance Proceeds includes the after-tax insurance proceeds related to the company's assets in Libya.

» The factor for Operating and Transportation Expense includes project startup costs, operating, selling and general
expense, and transportation expense.

s The factor for Financing Expense and Other includes financing expenses, other income, operational foreign exchange
gains and losses, changes in gains and losses on disposal of assets that are not operating earnings adjustments, changes
in statutory income tax rates, other income tax adjustments.

{c) Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

ROCE is a non-GAAP financial measure that management uses to analyze operating performance and the efficiency of
Suncor's capital allocation process. Average capital employed is calculated as a twelve-month average of the capital employed
balance at the beginning of the twelve-month period and the month-end capital employed balances throughout the
remainder of the twelve-month pericd. Figures for capital employed at the beginning and end of the twelve-month period
are presented to show the changes in the components of the calcutation over the twelve-month period.
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The company presents two ROCE calculations — one including and one excluding the impacts on capital employed of major
projects in progress. Major projects in progress includes accumulated capital expenditures and capitalized interest for
significant projects still under construction or in the process of being commissioned, and acquired assets that are still being
evaluated. Management uses ROCE excluding the impacts of major projects in progress on capital employed to assess
performance of operating assets.

Year ended December 31
($ millions, except as noted} 2019 2018 2017

Adjustments to net earnings
Netearnmgsattnbutedtocommonshareholders289932934458
....... Add after_taxamountsfor
" Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) losson

Net interest expense 638 541 158
A 2 947 4823 3914
Capital employed — beginning of twelve-month period
Netdebt 151291290714414
....... shareholdersequ;ty 440054538344530
59 134 58 290 59 044
Capital employed - end of twelve-month pericd
s Netdebt ................................................................................................................................................. 15010 .................. 15129 .................. 1 2907
i Shamhomerseqmw ......................................................................................................................... 4 204244005 ................. 45333
58 052 59134 58 290
Average capital employed B 60 402 60 347 58 667
ROCE - including major projects in progress (%) A/B 4.9 8.0 6.7
Average capitalized costs related to major projects in
progress C 2 452 1412 12 91
ROCE - excluding major projects in progress (%) AKB-C) 5.1 8.2 8.6

(1) ROCE excluding major projects in progress would have been 8.6% in 2019, excluding the impacts of impairments of $3.352 billlon and the impact of
the $1.116 billion deferred tax recovery relating tc a change in the Alberta corporate income tax rate.

{(d} Funds from {used in) Operations'”

Funds from {used in) operations is a non-GAAP financial measure that adjusts a GAAP measure - cash flow provided by {used
in) operating activities - for changes in non-cash working capital, which management uses to analyze operating performance
and liquidity. Changes to non-cash working capital can include, among other factors, the timing of offshore feedstock

purchases and payments for fuel and income taxes, and the timing of cash flows related to accounts receivable and accounts
payable, which management believes reduces comparability between periods.
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0il Sands Production Refining and Marketing
Year ended December 31 {$ millions} 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
Net (loss} earnings (a27y 945 ag4 1005 807 721 3000 3154 2622

mae';‘}”recm ion, depletion,
amortizatlon and |mpa|rment 8 170 4 024 3 782 1 505 967 1028 823 684 685

i 221 3

Unrealized forergn exc ange (gam)

loss on U. S dollar denomtnated debt -— — e — — — — — o

-"Change e fmanclai

|nstruments and tradmg mventory 21 (59) 13 16 {89) 42 70 (32) 45
......(Gam) Ioss on dlsposal of assets (14) (108)(50)(228)91-—-(11)(7)(354)
-“Share o compensatlon e (28)(3)—(5)63(21)5
revian Exploratlonexpenses ........................................... s e s P ; 1 ............. e

Settlement of decommissioning and
it (413) 428y (305) @By (23 @31 9 an  an

1779

1756

(Increase) decrease in non-cash
working capital

Cash flow provided by operating
activities

(1) 2018 and 2017 have been restated 1o reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to overall
consalidated resufts. The Energy Trading business s now included within each of the respective operating business segments to whndh the respective trading
activity relates. Suncors Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corparate, Energy Trading and Eiiminations segment,

Corporate
and Eliminations Total
Year ended December 31 ($ millions) 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
Net (Ioss) earnlngs {679) (1613) 21 2899 3293 4458

arerre:

Accrenon _2_ 70 e S

Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss on U.S. dollar
denomlnated debt

(624) 1090 771) (624) 1090 {771)

ange in fa|r value of mancna instruments and tra ing
inventory — 1 28 107 (179 128

assets

ettlement of decommissmnln esto tlon Ilabllltles (469)

. Other AR 442350119 123 (18)
Funds from (used |n) operatlons (1249) (369) (174) 10 818 10172 9139
"(Increase) T cash w.mkmg cepltal SOOI SO (397). 408(173)
Cash flow provided by operating activities 10421 10580 8966

{1) 2018 and 2017 have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to overall
consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now induded within each of the respective operating business segments to which the respective trading
activity relates. Suncor's Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Elimenations segment.
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{e) Free Funds Flow and Discretionary Free Funds Flow

Free funds flow is a non-GAAP financial measure that is calculated by taking funds from operations and subtracting capital
expenditures, including capitalized interest. Discretionary free funds flow is a non-GAAP financial measure that is caiculated
by taking funds from operations and subtracting asset sustainment and maintenance capital, inclusive of associated
capitalized interest, and dividends. Discretionary free funds flow reflects cash available for increasing distributions to
shareholders and to fund growth investments. Management uses discretionary free funds flow to measure the capacity of the
company to increase returns to shareholders and grow the business. The following is a reconciliation of discretionary free
funds flow for Suncor's last three years of operations.

{$ millions) 2019 2018 207
Funds fr 10818 10172 9139
Asset sustaining and maintenance capital and dividends(" 5904 (5740 (4729
Discretionary free funds flow 4914 4432 4415

(1) The classification of the company’s capital expenditures has been updated tc “asset sustainment and maintenance” to better reflect the types of capital
investments being made by the company. Comparative perods have been updated to reflect this change.

{N Oil Sands Operations, In Situ, Fort Hills and Syncrude Cash Operating Costs

Qil 5ands operations, In Situ, Fort Hills and Syncrude cash operating costs are non-GAAP financial measures. Oil Sands
operations cash operating costs are calculated by adjusting Oil Sands segment 058G expense (a GAAP measure based on sales
volumes) for i} costs pertaining to Fort Hills and Syncrude operations; ii} non production costs that management believes do
not relate to the production performance of Oil Sands operations, including, but not limited to, share-based compensation
adjustments, research and the expense recorded as part of a non-monetary arrangement involving a third-party processor;

iii} revenues associated with excess capacity, including excess power generated and sold that is recorded in operating revenue;
iv} project startup costs; and v) the impacts of changes in inventory levels, such that the company is able to present cost
information based on production volumes. To determine In Situ cash operating costs, Oil Sands operations cash operating
costs are further adjusted to remove costs pertaining to Oil Sands operations mining and upgrading. Syncrude and Fort Hills
cash operating costs are calculated by adjusting Syncrude O5&G expense and Fort Hills OS&G expense, respectively, for
non-production costs that management believes do not relate to the production performance of Syncrude operations or Fort
Hills operations, respectively, including, but not limited to, share-based compensation, research and project startup costs, if
applicable. Qil Sands operations, Fort Hills and Syncrude cash operating costs are reconciled in the Segment Results and
Analysis — Oil Sands section of this document. Management uses cash operating costs to measure operating performance. Oil
Sands operations cash operating costs in 2019 were $4.267 billion and inctuded $729 miilion related to In Situ production for
In Situ cash operating costs per barrel of $9.25, based on total In Situ production of 216,200 bbls/d.

{g) Refining Margin and Refining Operating Expense

Refining margin and refining operating expense are non-GAAP financial measures. Refining margin is calculated by adjusting
R&M segment operating revenues, other income and purchases of crude oil and products (GAAP measures) for non-refining
margin pertaining to the company's supply, marketing and ethanol businesses, and the company's former lubricants business,
which was disposed of in early 2017. Refinery operating expense is calculated by adjusting R&M segment OS&G for

i} non-refining costs pertaining to the company’s supply, marketing and ethanol businesses and the company’s former
lubricants business; and ii) non-refining costs that management believes do not relate to the production of refined products,
including, but not limited to, share-based compensation and enterprise shared service allocations. Management uses refining
margin and refining operating expense to measure operating performance on a production barrel basis.
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Year ended December 31

(% millions, except as noted) 2019 2018 2017

Refining margin reconciliation
Gross margin, operating revenues less purchases of crude oil
and product 7 008 7122 5744

Non-.n.'ef.i.ﬁlng marg

in (1320 (1351 (1541)
Refining margin 5763 5 839 4219
Refmeryproduct|on“)(mbbls)173705169138174461
Refining margin ($/bbl) 33.15 34.50 24.20
Refining operating expense reconciliation
Operating, selling and general expense 2173 2043 2003
Nonrefmmgcosts (1246)(1142)(1121)
Refining operating expense 927 9201 882
" Refinery production® 173705 169138 174461
Refining operating expense {$/bbl} 5.35 5.35 5.05

(1) Refinery production is the output of the refining process, and differs from crude oil processed as a result of volumetnc adjustments for non-crude

feedstock, volumetric gain associated with the refining process, and changes in unfinsshed product inventories.

(h) Impact of First-in, First-out (FIFO) inventory Valuation on Refining and Marketing Net Earnings

GAAP requires the use of a FIFO valuation methodology. For Suncor, this results in a lag between the sales prices for refined
products, which reflects current market conditions, and the amount recorded as the cost of sale for the related refinery
feedstock, which reflects market conditions at the time when the feedstock was purchased.

Suncor prepares and presents an estimate of the impact of using a FIFG inventory valuation methodology compared to a LIFO
methodology, because management uses the information to analyze operating performance and compare itself against
refining peers that are permitted to use LIFO inventory valuation under United States GAAP {(U.S. GAAP).

The company's estimate is not derived from a standardized calculation and, therefore, may not be directly comparable to

similar measures presented by other companies, and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of
performance prepared in accordance with GAAP or U.S. GAAP.
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(i) Operating Earnings Reconciliations ~ Fourth Quarter 2019 and 2018

Exploration and Refining and Corporate
Three months ended December 31 0Oil Sands Production Marketing and Eliminations Total
(% millions) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Net (loss) earnings as reported {2682) (377) (162} (115) 558 762 (49} (550} (2335) (280}
Asset Impairments 2 959 — 393 — - — — — 3352 —
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)
loss on U.5. dollar denominated
debt — — — — — — {(235) 637 {235) 637
Nen-cash loss on equity investment — — — 223 —_ — — — — 223
Operating earnings (loss) 277 (377 23 108 558 762 {284) 87 782 580

(1) The three months ended December 31, 2018 have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading
business, with no impact to overall consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business
segments to which the respective trading activity relates. Suncor’s Energy Trading business was previously reperted within the Corporate, Energy Trading
and Eliminations segment.

(j) Funds from Operations Reconciliations - Fourth Quarter 2019 and 2018("

Exploration and Refining and Corporate
Three months ended December 31 0Oil Sands Production Marketing and Eliminations Total
($ millions) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Net {loss} earnings (2682) (377 (162) (115 558 762 (49) (550) (2335) (280)

Depreciation, depletion,
amortization and impairment 5081 1019 803 199 211 184 18 17 6113 1419

Deferred income taxes (890} 89 (112) 3 (#}] (19} 7 87 |

nrealized foreign exchange
{(gain) loss on U.S. dollar
denominated debt —_— e — — — — {246) 688 (246) 688

Change in fair value of financial
instruments and trading

inventory (20} (84} 13 (37) (6) 27 — — {13) (148}
. (Galn)Iossond|sposalofassets(1} ........... (1)_ ......... S (8) ............ (2)_ ............ - (9)250
....... Sharebasedcompensatmn22(22)2(3)11(12)28(51)63(88)
B Exploratlonexpenses .................................... R e S e e e s P o
....... Settlementofdecommnssmmng

and restoration liabilities (128) (91) {(16) (8) n (5) — — (151 (104}
e (31) .......... i (10) ........... : 640(10) ............ P e P "

“Funds from (used in) operations 1405 607 555 331 793 873 (2000 196 2553 2007
(Decrease} increase in non-cash

working capital (249) 1033
Cash flow provided by operating
activities 2304 3040

{1) The three months ended December 31, 2018 have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading
business, with no impact to overall consolidated results. The Energy Trading business is now included within each of the respective operating business
segments to which the respective trading activity relates. Suncor’s Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading
angd Eliminations segment.
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Measurement Conversions

Certain crude oil and natural gas liquids volumes have been converted to mcfe or mmcfe on the basis of one bbl to six mcf.
Also, certain natural gas volumes have been converted to boe or mboe on the same basis. Any figure presented in mcfe,
mmcfe, boe or mboe may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A conversion ratio of one bbl of crude oil or natural
gas liguids to six mcf of natural gas is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner
tip and does not necessarily represent value equivalency at the wellhead. Given that the value ratio based on the current
price of crude oil as compared to natural gas is significantly different from the energy equivalency of 6:1, conversion on a

6:1 basis may be misleading as an indication of value.

Common Abbreviations

The fulluwing is a list of abbreviations that may be used in this MD&A:

Measurement

bbl barrel

bbls/d barrels per day

mbbls/d thousands of barrels per day

boe barrels of oil equivalent

boe/d barrels of oil equivalent per day

mboe thousands of barrels of il equivalent

mboe/d thousands of barrels of oil equivalent per day

mcf thousands of cubic feet of natural gas

mcfe thousands of cubic feet of natural gas
equivalent

mmcf millions of cubic feet of natural gas

mmcf/d millions of cubic feet of natural gas per day

mmcfe millions of cubic feet of natural gas equivalent

mmcfe/d millions of cubic feet of natural gas equivalent
per day

m? cubic metres

Mw Megawatts

MWh Megawatt hour

Forward-Looking Information

This MD&A contains certain forward-looking statements and
forward-looking information (collectively, forward-looking
statements) within the meaning of applicable Canadian and
UL5. securities laws and other information based on Suncor’s
current expectations, estimates, projections and assumptions
that were made by the company in light of information
available at the time the statement was made and consider
Suncor's experience and its perception of historical trends,
including expectations and assumptions concerning: the
accuracy of reserves and resources estimates; commodity
prices and interest and foreign exchange rates; the
performance of assets and equipment; capital efficiencies
and cost savings; applicable faws and government policies;
future production rates; the sufficiency of budgeted capital
expenditures in carrying out planned activities; the
availability and cost of labour, services and infrastructure; the
satisfaction by third parties of their obligations to Suncor;
the development and execution of projects; and the receipt,
in & timely manner, of regulatory and third-party approvals.
All statements and information that address expectations or
projections about the future, and statements and
information about Suncor’s strategy for growth, expected
and future expenditures or investment decisions, commodity
prices, costs, schedules, production volumes, operating and

Places and Currencies

u.s. United States

U.K. United Kingdom
B.C. British Columbia

$ or Cdn$ Canadian dollars
Uss United States dollars
f Pounds sterling

€ Euros

Financial and Business Environment

DD&A Depreciation, depletion and amortization
WTI West Texas Intermediate

wes Western Canadian Select

SCO Synthetic crude oil

SYN Synthetic crude oil benchmark

MSW Mixed Sweet Blend

NYMEX New York Mercantile Exchange

financial results, future financing and capital activities, and
the expected impact of future commitments are forward-
looking statements. Some of the forward-looking statements
may be identified by words like “expects”, “anticipates”,
“will", “estimates”, “plans”, “scheduled”, "intends”,
"believes”, “projects”, “indicates”, “could”, “focus”, “vision”,
“goal”, “outlock”, “proposed”, “target”, “objective”,
“continue”, “should”, “may”, “potential”, “future”,
“opportunity”, "would”, “priority” and similar expressions.

Forward-looking statements in this MD&A include references
to:

Suncor’s strategy, business plans and expectations about
projects, the performance of assets, production volumes and
capital expenditures, including:

s Suncor’s strategies and priorities, including delivering
competitive and sustainable returns to shareholders and
aiming to maximize shareholder returns by focusing on
operational excellence, capital discipline through
investment in high-value projects and the company’s
commitment to environmental stewardship and
sustainability;

* Suncor’s belief that it is well positioned to succeed due
to its competitive advantages of financial strength, a
highly efficient, tightly integrated suite of assels, an
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industry-leading long-life, low-decline oil sands reserves
base, an offshore business that provides geographically
diversified cash flow and its investment in sustainability,
technology and innovation;

Projects and initiatives that are expected to create
long-term value for the company through structural free
funds flow growth, such as improvement strategies at
existing assets, like debottlenecks and the deployment of
autonomous haul trucks, and the company’s regional oil
sands advantage, which is expected to provide the
company with the economies of scale required to realize
synergies between assets and further develop its in situ
resources in a low-cost manner under the company's
replication strategy;

Suncor’s belief that the integration of the company’s oil
sands assets with its midstrearn and refining assets helps
to significantly shield Suncor from the effects of western
Canadian crude price differentials and its midstream
assets provide the logistical flexibility to move
production to a wide range of markets;

Suncor's belief that technology and unleashing the full
potential of its people will be critical in achieving the
company’s environmental, operational and financial
goals;

The company’s befief that driving down costs and a
continued focus on improved productivity and reliability
will help achieve industry-leading unit costs in each
business segment;

Suncor’s belief that its growth will be fuelled by
investments in clean energy and is a key pricrity in
achieving its sustainable development goals;

Statements about the Terra Nova ALE project, including
the expectation that it will extend the Jife of Terra Nova
by approximately a decade, that it is planned for
execution by the end of 2020 and that work on the
project will start in the second quarter of 2020;

Suncor's expectations for the coke-fired boiler
replacement project, including the expectation that the
cogeneration units will provide reliable steam generation
required for Suncor’s extraction and upgrading
operations, the expectation that it will reduce the GHG
emissions intensity associated with steam production at
Base Plant by approximately 25% and the estimated cost
and in-service date of the project;

Statements about the sanctioned Forty Mile Wind Power
Project, including the estimated capital spend of

£300 million, with 25% of the capital spend in 2019 and
the remainder to be spent over the next two years, the
expectation that the project will generate significant
value through sustainable low-carbon power generation
and retention of the generated carbon credits for
utilization in Suncor’s upstream business and the belief
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that the profect is part of Suncor’s sustainability strategy
of making meaningful progress toward the greenhouse
gas emissions intensity reduction target of 30% by 2030;

Expectations for the Oil Sands segment, including the
commitment to defivering safe, reliable, low-cost
production while being leaders in growth, technical
innovation and environmental sustainabifity, the belief
that Suncor’s collection of high-quality assets, combined
with fong-tife, low-decline reserves and industry-leading
expertise provides the opportunity to continue to
advance technology and innovation investments and
high return growth prajects while growing annual free
funds flow, the expectation that cost management and
capital discipline at Oif Sands will continue to be top
priorities as the company expects to sustainably manage
controllable operating costs through initiatives and that
capital discipline will continue to focus on managing
investment opportunities, including asset synergies and
sustainability priorities, strategically investing in projects
that are economically robust, sustainably minded and
technologically progressive, and expectations for the
interconnecting pipelines between Syncrude and Suncor’s
Oil Sands Base Plant, including the expectation that the
pipelines will enhance integration between such assets
and that they will be in service in the second half

of 2020;

Expectations for the E&P segment, including the
segment’s focus primarily on low-cost projects that
deliver significant returns, cash flow and fong-term
value, and ongoing development activities offshore the
east coast of Canada and in the U.K. North Sea intended
to leverage existing facilities and infrastructure to
provide incremental production and extend the
praductive life of existing fields which are planned to
continue in 2020, along with development drilling at
Hebron, the West White Rose Project, Buzzard Phase 2,
and the Fenja project;

Statements about the Rosebank project, including the
expected timing of sanction for the project being
planned for 2022;

The expectation that MacKay River will return to
operation early in the second quarter of 2020;

The expectation that the company will continue to
accelerate its digital transformation and implement new
technologies across the enterprise tc help improve the
safety, productivity, reliability and environmental
performance of its operations and that Suncor will utilize
Microsofts full range of cloud solutions and expertise to
empower a connected and collaborative workforce,
upgrade data centres and increase analytics

capabilities; and

The expectation that well pads under construction will
maintain existing production levels at Firebag and



MacKay River in future years as production from existing
well pads declines.

The anticipated duration and impact of planned

maintenance events, including:

s Planned Upgrader 2 maintenance at Oil Sands Base and
annual turnaround at Syncrude in the second quarter of
2020, and maintenance at Oil Sands operations
Upgrader T scheduled for the third quarter of 2020,
extending intc the fourth quarter of 2020; and

* The two-week turnaround event at the Commerce City
refinery in the first quarter of 2020, the two-week
turnaround at the Sarnia refinery in the second quarter
of 2020, a four-week turnaround at the Edmonton
refinery scheduled in the third quarter of 2020 and a
six-week turnaround at the Montreal refinery scheduled
to begin in the third quarter and extend into the fourth
quarter of 2020.

Also:
*  Economic sensitivities;

+ The company’s priority regarding returning value to
shareholders, statements about the company’s share
repurchase program, and the company’s ongoing ability
to generate cash flow and commitment to return cash to
shareholders;

«  The company’s belief that it does not have any
guarantees or off-balance sheet arrangements that have,
or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future
material effect on the company’s financial condition or
financial performance, including liquidity and capital

resources;

«  Suncor’ planned 2020 capital spending program of $5.4
to $6.0 billion and the belief that the company will have
the capital resources to fund its pianned 2020 capital
spending program and to meet current and future
working capital requirements through cash and cash
equivalents balances, cash flow provided by operating
activities, available committed credit facilities, issuing
commercdial paper and, if needed, accessing capital
markets;

» Suncor’s expectations as to how its 2020 capital
expenditures will be directed and the expected benefits
therefrom;

* The objectives of the company’s short-term investment
portfolio and the expectation that the maximum
weighted average term to maturity of the company’s
short-term investment portfolio will not exceed six
months, and all investments will be with counierparties
with investment grade debt ratings;

* Management of debt levels continuing to be a priority
for Suncor given the company’s long-term growth plans
and future expected volatility in the commaodity pricing
environment, and Suncor’s belief that a phased and

flexible approach to existing and future growth projects
should assist Suncor in maintaining its ability to manage
project costs and debt fevels;

+ Suncor’s intention to adopt certain accounting standards,
amendments and interpretations when they become
effective; and

e Expectations with respect to changes to faw and
government policy.

Forward-looking statements are not guaraniees of future
performance and involve a number of risks and uncertainties,
some that are similar to other oil and gas companies and
some that are unique to Suncor. Suncor’s actual resufts may
differ materially from those expressed or implied by its
forward-looking statements, so readers are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on them.

The financial and operating performance of the company’s
reportable operating segments, specifically Oil 5ands, E&F,
and R&M, may be affected by a number of factors.

Factors that affect Suncor's Oil Sands segment include, but
are not limited to, volatility in the prices for crude oif and
other production, and the related impacts of fluctuating
lighttheavy and sweet/sour crude oif differentials; changes in
the demand for refinery feedstock and diesel fuel, including
the possibility that refiners that process the company’s
proprietary production will be closed, experience equipment
failure or other accidents; Suncor’s ability to operate jts Oil
Sands facilities reliably in order to meet production targets;
the output of newly commissioned facilities, the performance
of which may be difficult to predict during initial operations;
Suncor’s dependence on pipeline capacity and other logistical
constraints, which may affect the company’s ability to
distribute products to market; Suncor’s ability to finance Oif
Sands growth and sustaining capital expenditures; the
availability of bitumen feedstock for upgrading operations,
which can be negatively affected by poor ore grade quality,
unplanned mine equipment and extraction plant
maintenance, tailings storage, and in situ reservoir and
equipment performance, or the unavailability of third-party
bitumen; changes in operating costs, including the cost of
labour, natural gas and other energy sources used in oil
sands processes; and the company’s ability to complete
projects, including planned maintenance events, both on
time and on budget, which could be impacted by
competition from other projects (including other oil sands
projects) for goods and services and demands on
infrastructure in Alberta’s Wood Buffalo region and the
surrounding area (including housing, roads and schools).

Factors that affect Suncor’s ERP segment include, but are not
limited to, volatility in crude oil and natural gas prices;
operational risks and uncertainties associated with oil and
gas activities, including unexpected formations or pressures,
premature declines of reservoirs, fires, blow-outs, equipment
failures and other accidents, uncontroliable flows of crude
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oil, natural gas or well fluids, and pollution and other
environmental risks; adverse weather conditions, which could
disrupt output from producing assets or impact drilling
programs, resulting in increased costs andlor delays in
bringing on new production; political, economic and socio-
economic risks associated with Suncor’s foreign operations,
including the unpredictability of operating in Libya due to
ongoing political unrest; and market demand for mineraf
rights and producing properties, potentially leading to losses
on disposition or increased property acquisition costs.

Factors that affect Suncor’s R&M segment include, but are
not limited to, fluctuations in demand and supply for refined
products that impact the company’s margins; market
competition, including potential new market entrants; the
company’s ability to reliably operate refining and marketing
facilities in order to meet production or sales targets; and
risks and uncertainties affecting construction or planned
maintenance schedules, including the availability of labour
and other impacts of competing projects drawing on the
same resources during the same time period.

Additional risks, uncertainties and other factors that could
influence the financial and operating performance of aif of
Suncor’s operating segments and activities include, but are
not limited to, changes in general econamic, market and
business conditions, such as commodity prices, interest rates
and currency exchange rates; fluctuations in supply and
demand for Suncor’s products; the successful and timely
implementation of capital projects, including growth projects
and regulatory projects; risks associated with the
development and execution of Suncor's projects and the
commissioning and integration of new facilities; the
possibility that completed maintenance activities may not
improve operational performance or the output of related
facilities; the risk that projects and initiatives intended to
achieve cash flow growth andfor reductions in operating
costs may not achieve the expected results in the time
anticipated or at all; competitive actions of other companies,
including increased competition from other oil and gas
companies or from companies that provide alternative
sources of energy; labour and material shortages; actions by
government authorities, including the imposition or
reassessment of, or changes to, taxes, fees, royalties, duties
and other government-imposed compliance costs, and
mandatory production curtailment orders and changes
thereto; changes to laws and government policies that could
impact the company’s business, including environmental
fincluding climate change), royalty and tax laws and policies;
the ability and wilfingness of parties with whom Suncor has
material relationships to perform their obligations to the
company; the unavailability of, or outages to, third-parly
infrastructure that could cause disruptions to production or
prevent the company from being able to transport its
products; the occurrence of a protracted operational outage,
a major safety or environmental incident, or unexpected
events such as fires (including forest fires), equipment
failures and other similar events affecting Suncor or other
parties whose operations or assets directly or indirectly affect
Suncor; the potential for security breaches of Suncor’s
information technology and infrastructure by malicious
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persons or entities, and the unavailability or failure of such
systems to perform as anticipated as a result of such
breaches; security threats and terrorist or activist activities;
the risk that competing business objectives may exceed
Suncor’s capacity to adopt and implement change; risks and
uncertainties associated with obtaining regufatory, third-
parly and stakeholder approvals outside of Suncor’s control
for the company’s operations, projects, initiatives, and
exploration and development activities and the satisfaction
of any conditions to approvals; the potential for disruptions
to operations and construction projects as a resuft of
Suncor’s relationships with labour unions that represent
employees at the company’s facilities; the company’s ability
to find new oil and gas reserves that can be developed
economically, the accuracy of Suncor’s reserves, resources and
future production estimates; market instability affecting
Suncor’s ability to borrow in the capital debt markets at
acceptable rates or to issue other securities at acceptable
prices; maintaining an optimal debt to cash flow ratio; the
success of the company’s risk management activities using
derivatives and other financial instruments; the cost of
compliance with current and future environmental faws,
including climate change laws; risks relating to increased
activism and public opposition to fossif fuels and oil sands;
risks and uncertainties associated with closing a transaction
for the purchase or sale of a business, asset or oil and gas
property. including estimates of the final consideration to be
paid or received; the ability of counterparties to comply with
their obfigations in a timely manner; risks associated with
Joint arrangements in which the company has an interest;
risks associated with land claims and Indigenous consulftation
requirements; the risk that the company may be subject to
litigation; the impact of technology and risks associated with
developing and implementing new technologies; and the
accuracy of cost estimates, some of which are provided at
the conceptual or other prefiminary stage of projects and
prior to commencement or conception of the detailed
engineering that is needed to reduce the margin of error
and increase the level of accuracy. The foregoing important
factors are not exhaustive,

Many of these risk factors and other assumptions related to
Suncors forward-looking statemants are discussed in further
detail throughout this MD&A, including under the heading
Risk Factors, and the company’s 2019 AIf and Form 40-F on
file with Canadian securities commissions at www.sedar.com
and the United States Securities and Exchange Commission at
www.sec.gov. Readers are also referred to the risk factors
and assumptions described in other documents that Suncor
files from time to time with securities regufatory authorities.
Copies of these documents are available without charge
from the company.

The forward-fooking statements contained in this MD&A are
made as of the date of this MD&A. Except as required by
applicable securities laws, we assume no obligation to
update publicly or otherwise revise any forward-looking
statements or the foregoing risks and assumptions affecting
such forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.



MANAGEMENT'S STATEMENT
OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Suncor Energy Inc. is responsible for the presentation and preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Suncor Energy inc. and all related financial information contained in the Annual Report, including
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to publicly accountable enterprises, which is within the framework of International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board incorporated into the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants Handbook Part 1. They include certain amounts that are based on estirmates and judgments.

In management's opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared within reasonable limits of
materiality and within the framework of the significant accounting policies adopted by management. If alternate accounting
methods exist, management has chosen those policies it deems the most appropriate in the circumstances. In discharging its
responsibilities for the integrity and reliability of the financial statements, management maintains and relies upon a system
of internal controls designed to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded
against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are recognized. These controls include quality standards in hiring and
training of employees, formalized policies and procedures, a corporate code of conduct and associated compliance program
designed to establish and monitor conflicts of interest, the integrity of accounting records and financial information, among
others, and employee and management accountability for performance within appropriate and well-defined areas of
responsibility.

The system of internal controls is further supported by the professional staff of an internal audit function who conduct
periodic audits of the company's financial reporting.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, currently composed of four independent directors, reviews the effectiveness
of the company's financial reporting systems, management information systems, internal control systems and internal
auditors. It recommends to the Board of Directors the external auditor to be appointed by the shareholders at each annual
meeting and reviews the independence and effectiveness of their work. In addition, it reviews with management and the
external auditor any significant financial reporting issues, the presentation and impact of significant risks and uncertainties,
and key estimates and judgments of management that may be material for financial reporting purposes. The Audit
Committee appoints the independent reserve consultants. The Audit Committee meets at least quarterly to review and
approve interim financial statements prior to their release, as well as annually to review Suncor's annual financial statements
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Annual Information Form/Form 40-F, and annual reserves estimates, and
recommend their approval to the Board of Directors. The internal auditors and the external auditor, KPMG LLP, have
unrestricted access to the company, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

m——

Mark Little Alister Cowan
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 2020
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The following report is provided by management in respect of the company's internal control over financial reporting
{as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934):

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

1.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over the company’s financial
reporting.

Management has used the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0) framework
{2013) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework to evaluate the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the company's internal control over financial reporting as at December 31,
2019, and has condluded that such internal control over financial reporting was effective as of that date. In addition,
based on this assessment, management determined that there were no material weaknesses in internal control over
financial reporting as at December 31, 2019. Because of inherent limitations, systems of internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements and even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

The effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as at December 31, 2019 has been audited by
KPMG LLP, independent auditor, as stated in their report which appears herein,

Mark Little Alister Cowan
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 2020
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Suncoer Energy Inc.

Opinions on the Conseolidated Financial Statements and Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Suncor Energy Inc. (the Company) as of December 31,
2019, the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then
ended and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). We also have audited the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019, based on criteria established in internal Controf -—
Integrated Framework (2073) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2019, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board. Also in cur opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2019 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013}
issued by the Committee of 5ponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Change in Accounting Principle
As discussed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for
leases as of January 1, 2019 due to the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard 16 — Leases.

Comparative Information

As discussed in Note 6 of the consolidated financial statements, the 2018 segmented information has been restated to
conform with the current year presentation. We have audited the adjustments as part of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Gur responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance
with the U.S, federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects.

Qur audits of the consolidated financial statements inciuded performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our
audit of internal control over financial reporting inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting indudes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc. 83



necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: {1) relate to accounts
or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are nhot, by communicating the critical audit matters below,
providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Evaluation of the assessment of indicators of impairment loss or reversal related to Oil Sands and Exploration and Production
property, plant and equipment

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated finandial statements, when circumstances indicate that a cash-generating unit
("CGU") may be impaired or a previous impairment reversed, the Company compares the carrying amount of the CGU to its
recoverable amount. At each reporting date, the Company analyzes indicators of impairment loss or reversat ("impairment
indicators™), such as significant increases or decreases in forecasted production volumes (which include assumptions related to
proved and probable oil reserves), commodity prices, capital expenditures and operating costs {collectively, “reserve
assumptions”). The estimate of reserve assumptions requires the expertise of reservoir engineering specialists. The Company
engages independent reservoir engineering specialists to evaluate the Company’s proved and probable oil reserves. The
carrying amount of the Company’s property, plant and equipment balance as of December 31, 2019 was $72,640 million.

We identified the evaluation of the assessment of impairment indicators related to the Oil Sands and Exploration and
Production property, plant and equipment as a critical audit matter. A high degree of subjective auditor judgment was
required to evaluate the reserve assumptions used by the Company in their assessment.

The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included the following. We tested certain internal
controls over the Company’s assessment of impairment indicators, including controls related to the reserve assumptions. We
evaluated the Company’s reserve assumptions by comparing the current year externally evaiuated proved and probable oil
reserves to historical results. We compared the Company’s current year actual production volumes, operating costs and capital
expenditures to those respective assumptions used in the prior year estimate of proved and probable reserves to assess the
Company's ability to accurately forecast. We evaluated the Company's future commodity price estimates by comparing to a
number of publicly available external price curves for the same benchmark pricing. We evaluated the competence,
capabilities, and objectivity of the Company's independent reservoir engineering specialists engaged by the Company who
evaluated proved and probable oil reserves. We evaluated the methedology used by the independent reservoir engineering
specialists to evaluate proved and probable oil reservas for compliance with regulatory standards.

Assessment of the impairment of the Fort Hills and White Rose cash generating units

As discussed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recorded an impairment charge of

$4,237 million related to the Fort Hilis and White Rose cash generating units {"CGUs"). The Company identified an indicator
of impairment at December 31, 2019 for both the Fort Hills and White Rose CGUs and performed impairment tests to
determine the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The estimated recoverable amount of these CGUs involves numerous
assumptions, including forecasted production volumes, commodity prices, operating costs, capital expenditures ("forecasted
cash flow assumptions”) and discount rates.

We identified the assessment of the impairment of the Fort Hills and White Rose CGUs as a critical audit matter. A high
degree of subjective auditor judgment was required in evaluating the Company’s forecasted cash flow and discount rate
assumptions as minor changes to these assumptions have a significant effect on the Company’s calculation of the recoverable
amount of the CGUs. A high degree of subjective auditor judgement was also required to evaluate the externally evaluated
proved and probable oil reserves which were used to assess the Company's forecasted cash flow assumptions.
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The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included the following. We tested certain internat
controls over the Company’s determination of the recoverable amount of the CGUs being tested, including controls related to
determination of the forecasted cash flow and discount rate assumptions. We performed sensitivity analyses over the discount
rate and forecasted commodity price assumptions to assess their impact on the Company’s determination of the recoverable
amount for each CGU tested. We evaluated the Company’s future commodity price estimates by comparing to a number of
publicly available external price curves for the same benchmark pricing. We evaluated the forecasted production volumes,
operating costs and capital expenditure assumptions used in the impairment test by comparing to the current year externally
evaluated proved and probable oil reserves as well as to historical results. We assessed differences between management's
forecasted cash flow assumptions and the externally evaluated proved and probable oil reserves by comparing to recent
historical results. We compared the Company’s current year actual production volumes, operating costs and capital
expenditures to those assumptions used in the prior year externally evaluated proved and probable oil reserves to assess the
Company’s ability to accurately forecast. We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the independent
reservoir engineering specialists engaged by the Company, who evaluated the proved and probable oil reserves. We
evaluated the methodology used by independent reservoir engineering specialists to estimate proved and probable oii
reserves for compliance with regulatory standards. We involved a valuation professional with specialized skills and
knowledge, who assisted in evaluating the Company's CGU discount rate assumptions, by comparing them against publicly
available market data and other external data. The valuation professional estimated the recoverable amount of the CGUs
using the estimate of the CGUs' forecasted cash flows and the discount rate evaluated by the specialist and compared the
resulting recoverable amount to market and other external pricing data.

(oG

Chartered Professional Accountants
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

February 26, 2020

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2019.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Suncor Energy Inc.

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the Consolidated Balance Sheet of Suncor Energy Inc. and its subsidiaries (together, the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2018, and the related Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows
for the year then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the Consclidated Financial Statements) before
the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively restate and reallocate segmented results as described in Note 6.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements, before the effects of the adjustments to retrospectively restate and
reallocate segmented results as described in Note 6, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2018, and the resuits of operations and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2018, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IFRS") {the 2018 financial statements before the effects of the adjustments discussed in Note 6 are not presented herein).

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments to retrospectively restate and reallocate
segmented results as described in Note 6 and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance
about whether such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Those adjustments were audited by
other auditors,

Basis for Opinion

These Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, before the effects of the adjustments described above,
based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (*PCAOB™) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the

U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and

the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit of these Consolidated Financial Statements, before the effects of the adjustments described above,
in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstatement, whether due
to error or fraud.

Our audit inciuded performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our
audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

%WW@/M -

Chartered Professional Accountants
Calgary, Alberta, Canada
February 28, 2019

We served as the Company's auditer from 1972 to 2019,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31 {$ millions) Notes 2019 2018

Revenues and Other Income
operatmg revemie, nEt of roya|t|e5 53834433542
S 7645444
38989 38986

Expenses

pur.:hasés of crude o|| and pmducts 12 552 14 133..
Opera'hnq' se”mq and qenera| Sandzsn 244 10 573..
"""Transportat;on 1442 1319..
Depreciation, depletlon amortlzataon and |mpa|rment 1510572 5 738”
m""Exp|orat.on 255 122..
......Gam o asse{ EXChange and d|5posa|534(253) (24)
....Fmancmg A 9533 .2 G
36 456 34003

Earnings before Income Taxes 2533 4983

Income Tax {Recovery) Expense 10
- cUrrent 15521250
S Defermd ...................................................................................................................................... ‘|Qand‘|5(1918) ...................... 440
{366) 1690

Net Earnings 2899 3293

Other Comprehenswe (Loss) Income
Items That May be Subsequently Reclasmfled to Earmngs
Foreugn currency translation adjustment 71 267

ltems That W|l| Not be Reclassmed to Earmngs

Actuanal (Ioss) gain on employee retirement beneflt plans net of
income taxes (48) 103

Other Comprehensive {Loss} Income (225) 370

Total Comprehensive Income 2674 3663

Per Common Share (dollars) 1"
. NEt eammgs_ bas|c 135203
- NEt cornings. d.|ute¢} 1 85202
tash e 1 53144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated finandial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31
($ mitlions) Notes 2019 2018

Cu rrent assets
Cash and cash equwalents 12 1960 2221
Accounts recewable 4 052 3 206

Income taxes receivable 133 114
Tntal rurrpnt a«p-r'; 9 906 2 700

Property, plant and equ:pment net 5, 15, 16, 33 and 34 72 640 74 245

Exploratlon and evaluatlon 17 2428 2319
MOther assets 181194”26
m"“Goodmll and other |ntang:ble assets 1930533061

Total assets 89 435 89579

Lrablhtles and Shareholders Equlty

Current Ilabllrtles

Current portron of Iong term debt 20 — 229
Current portion of long- term Iease I:abul:tnes 5 310 ——

Income taxes payable 886 535
Total current liabilities 10 537 10 302

Other long-term liabilities 21 2499 2 346
Provisions 23 B 676 6 984

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 89 435 89 579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Mark Little Patricia M. Bedient

Director Director
February 26, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31 (% millions) Notes 2019 2018

Operating Activities
..Net . 23993293
“Adjustments f;-.,-r
h Depreclatlon depletlon amomzatlon and |rnpairment 10 572 5738
"mDeferred income tax (recovery) ‘expense 10and15 (1 918) 440
......Accreﬂon e 255
mmUnreaIlzed. forelgn exchange (galn) Ioss on U S dollar denomlnated debt (624)1090
""Lhange In fair value ot ‘hnanclal mstruments and tradlng |nvent0ry 19?(179)
""mGam on asset exchange and dtsposals 34(253)(24)
mshare o compensat.on 44(117)
wm[—:xploratmn 6511
.".Settlement of decommlSSlonmg and restoratlon Ilabnlmes (464)(469)
(|ncrease)decrease|nnOn-cashwork|ngcap|ta|13(397)408
Cash flow provided by operating activities 10 421 10 580

Investlng Actwltles
"Cap|ta| and exp|oration expendnures (5558)(5405)
Acqu|s|t|ons ................................................................................................................................................ 3 21034—(1230)
“Proceeds frorn dnsposat of assets 27484
othermvestments ......................................................................................................................................... 34 .......................... (213) .................. “70)
.‘Decrease - non—cash worklng caprtal 1340925

Cash flow used in investing activities (5 088) {6 697)

Flnanclng Actlwtles
..Net (decrease} mcrea.se m short term dEbt (932)355
..Net mcrease (decrease) m |0ng term debt 20557(185)
..Lease ||ab|||ty P 5(307)_
..lssuance Of common shar;;"under Share opt.on p|an5 et st n s 90 285
"purchase of common shares 24(2274)(3053)
”D|5tr|but|on5 re|atmg to o comro”mg mterest (7)(5)
..ledends pa|d S Shares (2514)(2333)
Cash flow used in financing activities {5 537) {4 426)

Decrease m Cash and Cash Equnvaients (204) (543)
"Effect of fore|gn excmnge on caSh and CaSh equwa'ents (57)92
"cash and PR at beg|nn|ng of s e 2672

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 1960 2221

Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Interest pa|d 996 800
Income taxes pald 1033 645

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cansolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
{$ millions) Notes  Capital

Contributed
Surplus

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Retained
Earnings Total

Number of
Common
Shares
{thousands)

At December 31, 2017 26 606

567

809

17 401 45 383

1640 983

Net earnmgs — — — 3293 3293 -
Forelgn currency translatlon adjustment — — 267 — 267 —
Actuarial gain on employee retirement beneflt

plans, net of income taxes of $39 22 — — - 103 103 —

Tn‘ral rnmprehenslve mrnme —

Issued under share optlon plans 358

Purchase of common shares for cancellatlon 24 {1040)

Change in Ilabillty for share purchase
commitment 24 (14)

Dividends paid on common shares —

267

339 3663
— 285

@013 Gosy

28 14

(64426

(2333) (2333)

At December 31, 2018 25910

16479 44005

1584 484

At January 1 2019 25910

Adopt|on of IFRS 16 |rnpact 5 —

16 479 44 005

14 14

1584 484

At January 1, 2019, adjusted 25910

16493 44019

1584 484

Net earnlngs — — — 2 899 2 899 —_
"Fore.gn currency trans|at|on adJustment e “77) o “77) e
..Aduanal e empioyee S beneﬂt TR e

plans, net of income taxes of $23 22 — — — (48) {48) —

Jotal comprehensive (loss) income = - | 2851 2674 -

Issued under share optlon plans 116

Purchase of common shares for cancellatlon 24 (905)

Change in I|ab|I|ty for share purchase

commltment 24 46

Share—based compensatlon 25 —

Dwudends paid on common shares —

50 —

s 92

SE LU

49 a5
-— 50

2 688
(55 298)

At December 31, 2019 25 167

566

2899

15410 42042

1531874

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial staterments,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Suncor Energy Inc. (Suncor or the company) is an integrated energy company headquartered in Calgary, Alberta, Canada.
Suncor is strategically focused on developing one of the world's largest petroleum resource basins — Canada’s Athabasca oil
sands. In addition, the company explores for, acquires, develops, produces, transports, refines and markets crude oil in Canada
and internationally, Suncor markets petroleumn and petrochemical products primarily in Canada, under the Petro-Canada®
brand. The company also operates a renewable energy business and conducts energy trading activities focused principally in
the marketing and trading of crude oil, natural gas, byproducts, refined products, and power.

The address of the company's registered office is 150 - 6th Avenue 5.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 3E3.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

{a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as contained within Part 1 of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants Handbook.

Suncor’s accounting policies are based on IFRS issued and outstanding for all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2020.

{b} Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except as detailed in the accounting policies
disclosed in note 3. The accounting policies described in note 3 have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements with the exception of IFRS 16 Leases. Refer to note 5.

{c) Functional Currency and Presentation Currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian doliars, which is the company’s functional currency.

{d) Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The timely preparation of financial statements requires that management make estimates and assumptions and use
judgment. Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts as future confirming events occur. Significant
estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are described in note 4.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Principles of Consolidation

The company consolidates its interests in entities it controls. Control comprises the power to govern an entity's financial and
operating policies to obtain benefits from its activities, and is a matter of judgment. All intercompany balances and
transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

{b) Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements represent arrangements in which two or more parties have joint contrel established by a contractual
agreement. Joint control only exists when decisions about the activities that most significantly affect the returns of the
investee are unanimous. Joint arrangements can be classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture. The classification
of joint arrangements requires judgment. In determining the classification of its joint arrangements, the company considers
the contractual rights and obligations of each investor and whether the legal structure of the joint arrangement gives the
entity direct rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities.

Where the company has rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of a joint arrangement, such arrangement is
classified as a joint operation and the company's proportionate share of the joint operation’s assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses are included in the consclidated financial statements, on a line-by-line basis.

Where the company has rights to the net assets of an arrangement, the arrangement is classified as a joint venture and
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the company’s initial investment is
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NQOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

recognized at cost and subsequently adjusted for the company's share of the joint venture’s income or loss, less distributions
received.

{c) Foreign Currency Translation

Functional currencies of the company’s individual entities are the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the appropriate functional currency at foreign exchange
rates that approximate those on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to the appropriate functional currency at foreign exchange rates as at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognized in net earnings. Non-monetary assets that are measured in
a foreign currency at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

In preparing the company’s consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of each entity are translated into
Canadian dollars. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at exchange rates as at
the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars using foreign
exchange rates that approximate those on the date of the underlying transaction. Foreign exchange differences are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

If the company or any of its entities disposes of its entire interest in a foreign operation, or loses control, joint control, or
significant influence over a foreign operation, the accumulated foreign currency translation gains or losses related to the
foreign operation are recognized in net earnings.

{d) Revenues

Revenue from the sale of crude oil, natural gas, natural gas liquids, purchased products, refined petroleum products and
power represent the company’s contractual arrangements with customers. Revenue is recorded when control passes to the
customer, in accordance with specified contract terms. All operating revenue is earned at a point in time and is based on the
consideration that the company expects to receive for the transfer of the goods to the customer. Revenues are usually
collected in the month following delivery except retail gasoline, diesel and ancillary products which are due upon delivery
and, accordingly, the company doesn't adjust consideration for the effects of a financing component.

Revenue from oil and natural gas production is recorded net of royalty expense.

International operations conducted pursuant to Production Sharing Contracts (PSCs) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements based on the company's working interest. Each PSC establishes the exploration, development and operating costs
the company is required to fund and establishes specific terms for the company to recover these costs and to share in the
production profits. Cost recovery is generally limited to a specified percentage of production during each fiscal year (Cost
Recovery Qil}. Any Cost Recovery Oil remaining after costs have been recovered is referred to as Excess Petroleum and is
shared between the company and the respective government. Assuming collection is reasonably assured, the company's share
of Cost Recovery Oil and Excess Petroleum are reported as revenue when the sale of product to a third party occurs. Revenue
also includes income taxes paid on the company's behalf by government joint venture partners.

{e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash in banks, term deposits, certificates of deposit and all other highly liquid
investments at the time of purchase.

{f) Inventories

Inventories of crude oil and refined products, other than inventories heid for trading purposes, are valued at the lower of
cost, using the first-in, first-out method, and net realizable value. Cost of inventory consists of purchase costs, direct
production costs, direct overhead and depreciation, depletion and amortization. Materials and supplies are valued at the
lower of average cost and net realizable value.

Inventories held for trading purposes are carried at fair value {ess costs of disposal, and any changes in fair value are
recognized in Other Income within the respective reporting segment to which the trading activity relates.

(g) Assets Held for Sale

Assets and the assodiated liabilities are classified as held for sale i their carrying amounts are expected to be recovered
through a disposition rather than through continued use. The assets or disposal groups are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount or estimated fair value less costs of disposal. impairment iesses on initial classification as well as subsequent
gains or losses on remeasurement are recognized in Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment. When the assets
or disposal groups are sold, the gains or losses on the sale are recognized in Gain on Disposal of Assets. Assets classified as
held for sale are not depreciated, depleted or amortized.
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{h) Exploration and Evaluation Assets

The costs to acquire non-producing oil and gas properties or licences to explore, drill exploratory wells and the costs to
evaluate the commercial potential of underlying resources, including related borrowing costs, are initially capitalized as
Exploration and Evaluation assets. Certain exploration costs, including geological, geophysical and seismic expenditures and
delineation on oil sands properties, are charged to Exploration expense as incurred.

Exploration and Evaluation assets are subject to technicai, commercial and management review to confirm the continued
intent to develop and extract the underlying resources. If an area or exploration well is no longer considered commercially
viable, the related capitalized costs are charged to Exploration expense.

When management determines with reasonable certainty that an Exploration and Evaluation asset will be developed, as
evidenced by the ciassification of proved or probable reserves and the appropriate internal and external approvals, the asset
is transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i} Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost.

The costs to acquire developed or praducing oil and gas properties, and to develop oil and gas properties, including
completing geological and geophysical surveys and drilling development wells, and the costs to construct and install
development infrastructure, such as wellhead equipment, well platforms, well pairs, offshore platforms, subsea structures and
an estimate of asset retirement costs, are capitalized as oil and gas properties within Property, Plant and Equipment.

The costs to construct, install and commission, or acquire, oil and gas production equipment, including oil sands upgraders,
extraction plants, mine equipment, processing and power generation facilities, utility plants, and all renewable energy,
refining, and marketing assets, are capitalized as plant and equipment within Property, Plant and Equipment.

Stripping activity required to access oil sands mining resources incurred in the initial development phase is capitalized as part
of the construction cost of the mine. Stripping costs incurred in the production phase are charged to expense as they
normally relate to production for the current period.

The costs of planned major inspection, overhaul and turnaround activities that maintain Property, Plant and Equipment and
benefit future years of operations are capitalized. Recurring planned maintenance activities performed on shorter intervals
are expensed as operating costs. Replacements outside of a major inspection, overhaul or turnaround are capitalized when it
is probable that future economic benefits will be realized by the company and the associated carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognized.

Borrowing costs relating to assets that take over one year to construct are capitalized as part of the asset. Capitalization of
borrowing costs ceases when the asset is in the location and condition necessary for its intended use, and is suspended when
construction of an asset is ceased for extended periods.

(j) Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization

Exploration and Evaluation assets are not subject to depreciation, depletion and amortization. Once transferred to oil and
gas properties within Property, Plant and Equipment and commercial production commences, these costs are depleted on a
unit-of-preduction basis over proved developed reserves, with the exception of exploration and evaluation costs associated
with oil sands mines, which are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life of the mine, and property acquisition costs,
which are depleted over proved reserves.

Capital expenditures are not depreciated or depleted until assets are substantially complete and ready for their intended use.

Costs to develop oil and gas properties other than certain oil sands mining assets, including costs of dedicated infrastructure,
such as well pads and wellhead equipment, are depleted on a unit-of-production basis over proved developed reserves. A
portion of these costs may not be depleted if they relate to undeveloped reserves. Costs related to offshore facilities are
depleted over proved and probable reserves. Costs to develop and construct oil sands mines are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the life of the mine.
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Major components of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives.

Oil sands upgraders, extraction plants and mine facilities 20 to 40 years
Oil sands mine equipment 5 to 15 years

30 years

Power generation and utility plants 30 to 40 years
Refineries and other processing plants 20 to 40 years
Marketing and other distribution assets 10 to 40 years

The costs of major inspection, overhaul and turnaround activities that are capitalized are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the period to the next scheduled activity, which varies from two to five years.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization rates are reviewed annually or when events or conditions occur that impact
capitalized costs, reserves or estimated service lives.

Right-of-use assets within Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the right-of-use asset or the lease term.

(k) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method. The excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets represents goodwill, and is allocated to the cash generating units (CGUs) or groups of
CGUs expected to benefit from the business combination.

Other intangible assets include acquired customer lists and brand value.

Goodwill and brand value have indefinite useful lives and are not subject to amortization. Customer lists are amortized over
their expected useful lives, which range from five to ten years. Expected useful lives of other intangible assets are reviewed
on an annual basis.

(I} Impairment of Assets

Non-Financial Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Exploration and Evaluation assets are reviewed quarterly to assess whether there is any
indication of impairment. Goodwili and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment
annually. Exploration and Evaluation assets are also tested for impairment immediately prior to being transferred to Property,
Plant and Equipment.

If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
considered, if available. In the absence of such transactions, an appropriate valuation model is used. Value-in-use is assessed
using the present value of the expected future cash flows of the relevant asset. If the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, the asset is tested as part of a CGU, which is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of the individual asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairments may be reversed for all CGUs and individua! assets, other than goodwill, if there has been a change in the
estimates and judgments used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of
the CGU or asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, which cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depletion, depreciation and amortization, had no impairment been recognized.

Impairments and impairment reversals are recognized within Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment.

Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is evidence indicating that financial assets measured at
amortized cost may be impaired. If a financial asset measured at amortized cost is determined to be impaired, the
impairment is recognized in Operating, Selling and General expense.
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{m) Provisions

Provisions are recognized by the company when it has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are recognized for decommissioning and restoration obligations associated with the company’s Exploration and
Evaluation assets and Property, Plant and Equipment. Provisions for decommissioning and restoration cbligations are
measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the future cash flows required to settle the present
obligation, using the credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate. The value of the obligation is added to the carrying amount of
the associated asset and amortized over the useful life of the asset. The provision is accreted over time through Financing
Expense with actual expenditures charged against the accumuiated obligation. Changes in the future cash flow estimates
resulting from revisions to the estimated timing or amount of undiscounted cash flows are recognized as a change in the
decommissioning and restoration provision and related asset.

{n) Income Taxes

The company follows the Jiability method of accounting for income taxes whereby deferred income taxes are recorded for
the effect of differences hetween the accounting and income tax basis of an asset or Hability. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates as at the balance sheet date that are
anticipated to apply to taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are anticipated to be recovered or settled.
Changes to these balances are recognized in net earnings or in Other Comprehensive Income in the period they occur.
investment tax credits are recorded as a reduction to the related expenditures.

The company recognizes the financial statement impact of a tax filing position when it is probable, based on the technical
merits, that the position will be sustained upon audit. The company assesses possible outcomes and their associated
probabilities. If the company determines payment is probable, it measures the tax provision at the best estimate of the
amount of tax payable.

{o) Pensions and Other Post-Retirement Benefits
The company sponsors defined benefit pension ptans, defined contribution pension plans and other post-retirement benefits.

The cost of pension benefits earned by employees in the defined contribution pension plan is expensed as incurred. The cost
of defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit
method based on present pay levels and management's best estimates of demographic and financial assumptions. Pension
benefits earned during the current year are recorded in Operating, Selling and General expense. Interest costs on the net
unfunded obligation are recorded in Financing Expense. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized immediately through
Other Comprehensive Income and transferred directly to Retained Earnings.

The liability recognized on the balance sheet is the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligations net of the fair value of
plan assets.

{p) Share-Based Compensation Plans

Under the company's share-based compensation plans, share-based awards may be granted to executives, employees and
non-employee directors. Compensation expense is recorded in Operating, Selling and General expense.

Share-based compensation awards that settle in cash or have the option to settle in cash or shares are accounted for as
cash-settled plans. These are measured at fair value each reporting period using the Black-Scholes options pricing model. The
expense is recognized over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the outstanding liability. When awards are
surrendered for cash, the cash settlement paid reduces the outstanding liability. When awards are exercised for common
shares, consideration paid by the holder and the previously recognized liability associated with the options are recorded to
Share Capital.

Stock options that give the holder the right to purchase common shares are accounted for as equity-settled plans. The
expense is based on the fair value of the options at the time of grant using the Black-Scholes options pricing model and is
recognized over the vesting periods of the respective options. A corresponding increase is recorded to Contributed Surplus.
Consideration paid to the company on exercise of options is credited to Share Capital and the assodated amount in
Contributed Surplus is reclassified to Share Capital.

(q) Financial Instruments

The company classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories: fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
fair value through other comprehensive income, or at amortized cost. This determination is made at initial recogniticn. All
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financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the balance sheet, net of any transaction costs except for
financial instruments classified as FVTPL, where transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Subsequent measurement of
financial instruments is based on their classification. The company classifies its derivative financial instruments as FVTPL, cash
and cash equivalents and accounts receivable as financial assets at amortized cost, and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, debt, and other long-term liabilities as financial liabilities at amortized cost.

In circumstances where the company consolidates a subsidiary in which there are other owners with a non-controlling interest
and the subsidiary has a non-discretionary obligation to distribute cash based on a predetermined formula to the
non-controlling owners, the non-controlling interest is classified as a financial liability rather than equity in accordance with
IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation. The non-controlling interast liability is classified as an amortized cost liability and
is presented within Other Long-Term Liabilities. The balance is accreted based on current period interest expense recorded
using the effective interest method and decreased based on distributions made to the non-controlling owners.

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as physical and financial contracts, either to manage certain
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign exchange rates, as part of its overall risk
management program. Earnings impacts from derivatives used to manage a particular risk are reported as part of Other
Income in the related reporting segment.

Certain physical commodity contracts, when used for trading purposes, are deemed to be derivative financial instruments for
accounting purposes. Physical commaodity contracts entered into for the purpose of receipt or delivery in accordance with the
company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are not considered to be derivative financial instruments and are
accounted for as executory contracts.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are recorded as separate derivatives when their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract.

{r) Hedging Activities

The company may apply hedge accounting to arrangements that qualify for designated hedge accounting treatment.
Documentation is prepared at the inception of a hedge relationship in order to qualify for hedge accounting. Designated
hedges are assessed at each reporting date to determine if the relationship between the derivative and the underlying
hedged item accomplishes the company's risk management objectives for financial and non-financial risk exposures.

If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative and in the fair value of the
underlying hedged item are recognized in net earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portions of the changes in fair value of the derivative are initially recorded in Other Comprehensive Income and are
recognized in net earnings when the hedged item is realized. ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow
hedges are recognized in net earnings immediately. Changes in the fair value of a derivative designated in a fair value or
cash flow hedge are recognized in the same line item as the underlying hedged item.

The company did not apply hedge accounting to any of its derivative instruments for the years ended December 31, 2019
or 2018.

(s} Share Capital

Common shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of common shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. When the company repurchases its own common shares, share
capital is reduced by the average carrying value of the shares repurchased. The excess of the purchase price over the average
carrying value is recognized as a deduction from Retained Earnings. Shares are cancelled upon repurchase.

(t) Dividend Distributions

Dividends on common shares are recognized in the period in which the dividends are daclared by the company’s Board
of Directors.

(u) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings for the period by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for
dilutive common shares related to the company’s share-based compensation plans. The number of shares included is
computed using the treasury stock method. As these awards can be exchanged for common shares of the company, they are
considered potentially dilutive and are included in the calculation of the company’s diluted net earnings per share if they
have a dilutive impact in the period.
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{v} Emissions Obligations

Emissions obligations are measured at the weighted average cost per unit of emissions expected to be incurred in the
compliance period and are recorded in the period in which the emissions occur within Operating, Selling and General
expense.

Purchases of emissions rights are recognized as Other Assets on the balance sheet and are measured at historical cost.
Emnissions rights received by way of grant are recorded at a nominal amount.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and judgments that
affact reported assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, and disclosures of contingencies. These estimates and
judgments are subject to change based on experience and new information. The financial statement areas that require
significant estimates and judgments are as follows:

Oil and Gas Reserves

The company’s estimate of oil and gas reserves is considered in the measurement of depletion, depreciation, impairment, and
decommissioning and restoration obligations. The estimation of reserves is an inherently complex process and involves the
exercise of professional judgment. All reserves have been evaluated at December 31, 2019 by independent qualified reserves
evaluators. Qil and gas reserves estimates are based on a range of geological, technical and economic factors, including
projected future rates of production, prajected future commodity prices, engineering data, and the timing and amount of
future expenditures, all of which are subject to uncertainty. Estimates reflect market and requlatory conditions existing at
December 31, 2019, which could differ significantly from other points in time throughout the year, or future periods. Changes
in market and regulatory conditions and assumptions can materially impact the estimation of net reserves.

Oil and Gas Activities

‘the company is required to apply judgment when designating the nature of cil and gas activities as exploration, evaluation,
development or production, and when determining whether the costs of these activities shall be expensed or capitalized.

Exploration and Evaluation Costs

Certain exploration and evaluation costs are initially capitalized with the intent to establish commercially viable reserves. The
company is required to make judgments about future events and circumstances and applies estimates to assess the economic
viability of extracting the underlying resources. The costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review to
confirm the continued intent to develop the project. Level of drilling success or changes to project economics, resource
quantities, expected production techniques, production costs and required capital expenditures are important judgments
when making this determination. Management uses judgment to determine when these costs are reclassified to Property,
Plant and Equipment based on several factors, induding the existence of reserves, appropriate approvals from regulatory
bodies, joint arrangement partners and the company’s internal project approval process.

Determination of Cash Generating Units {CGUs)

A CGU is the lowest grouping of integrated assets that generate identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. The allocation of assets into CGUs requires significant judgment and
interpretations with respect to the integration between assets, the existence of active markets, similar exposure to market
risks, shared infrastructure, and the way in which management monitors the operations.

Asset Impairment and Reversals

Management applies judgment in assessing the existence of impairment and impairment reversal indicators based on various
internal and external factors.

The recoverable amount of CGUs and individual assets is determined based on the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
or value-in-use calculations. The key estimates the company applies in determining the recoverable amount normally include
estimated future commaodity prices, discount rates, expected production volumes, future operating and development costs,
tax rates, and refining margins. In determining the recoverable amount, management may also be required to make
judgments regarding the likelihood of occurrence of a future event. Changes to these estimates and judgments wil affect
the recoverable amounts of CGUs and individual assets and may then require a material adjustment to their related
carrying value.
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Decommissioning and Restoration Costs

The company recognizes liabilities for the future decommissioning and restoration of Exploration and Evaluation assets and
Property, Plant and Equipment based on estimated future decommissioning and restoration costs. Management applies
judgment in assessing the existence and extent as well as the expected method of reclamation of the company’s
decommissioning and restoration obligations at the end of each reporting period. Management also uses judgment to
determine whether the nature of the activities performed is related to decommissioning and restoration activities or normal
operating activities.

Actual costs are uncertain and estimates may vary as a result of changes to relevant laws and regulations related to the use
of certain technologies, the emergence of new technology, operating experience, prices and closure plans. The estimated
timing of future decommissioning and restoration may change due to certain factors, including reserves life. Changes to
estimates related to future expected costs, discount rates, inflation assumptions, and timing may have a material impact on
the amounts presented.

Employee Future Benefits

The company provides benefits to employees, including pensions and other post-retirement benefits. The cost of defined
benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits received by employees is estimated based on actuarial valuation
methods that require professional judgment. Estimates typically used in determining these amounts include, as applicabte,
rates of employee turnover, future claim costs, discount rates, future salary and benefit levels, the return on plan assets,
mortality rates and future medical costs. Changes to these estimates may have a material impact on the amounts presented.

Other Provisions

The determination of other provisions, including, but not limited to, provisions for royalty disputes, onerous contracts,
litigation and constructive obligations, is a complex process that involves judgment about the outcomes of future events, the
interpretation of laws and regulations, and estimates on the timing and amount of expected future cash flows and

discount rates.

Income Taxes

Management evaluates tax positions, annually or when circumstances require, which involves judgment and could be subject
to differing interpretations of applicable tax legislation. The company recognizes a tax provision when a payment to tax
authorities is considered probable. However, the results of audits and reassessments and changes in the interpretations of
standards may result in changes to those positions and, potentially, a material increase or decrease in the company's assets,
liabilities and net earnings.

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is considered probable that deductible temporary differences will be recovered in
the foreseeable future. To the extent that future taxable income and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction
differ significantly from the company's estimate, the ability of the company to realize the deferred tax assets could

be impacted.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized when there are taxable temporary differences that will reverse and result in a future
outflow of funds to a taxation authority. The company records a provision for the amount that is expected to be settled,
which requires judgment as to the ultimate outcome. Deferred tax liabilities could be impacted by changes in the company's
judgment of the likelihood of a future outfiow and estimates of the expected settlement amount, timing of reversals, and
the tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the company operates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is determined, whenever possible, based on observable market data. If not available,
the company uses third-party models and valuation methodologies that utilize observable market data that includes forward
commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest rates to estimate the fair value of financial instruments, including
derivatives. In addition to market information, the company incorporates transaction-specific details that market participants
would utilize in a fair vafue measurement, including the impact of nen-performance risk.
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Functional Currency

The designation of the functional currency of the company and each of its subsidiaries is a management judgment based on
the composition of revenue and costs in the locations in which it operates.

5. NEW IFRS STANDARDS

{a) Adoption of New IFRS Standards

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective January 1, 2019, the company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16} which replaces IAS 17 Leases (IAS 17) and requires
the recognition of most leases on the balance sheet. IFRS 16 effectively removes the classification of leases as either finance
or operating leases and treats all leases as finance leases for lessees with optional exemptions for short-term leases where the
term is twelve months or less. The accounting treatment for lessors remains essentially unchanged, with the requirement to
classify leases as either finance or operating.

The company has selected the modified retrospective transition approach, electing to adjust opening retained earnings with
no restatement of comparative figures. As such, comparative information continues to be reported under 1AS 17 and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {(IFRIC) 4. The details of accounting policies under |AS 17 and
IFRIC 4 are disclosed separately if they are different from those under 1FRS 16 and the impact of the change is disclosed
below.

The company’'s accounting policy under IFRS 16 is as follows:

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The assets are
depreciated to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the lease term, where judgment is applied
to determine the lease term of the lease contracts in which the company has a renewal option, using the straight-line
method as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits. In addition, the
right-of-use assets may be periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the
lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the company's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed payments, and variable payments that are based on an index
or rate.

Cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability are presented within the financing activities section and the
interest portion of the lease liability is presented within the operating activities section of the statement of cash flows.
Short-term lease payments and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability are presented
within the operating activities section of the statement of cash flows.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Under tAS 17

In the comparative period, the company classified leases that transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments
over the lease term that the lessee was required to make, excuding any contingent rent.
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Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognized in the company’s statement of
financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of

the lease.

As part of the initial application of IFRS 16, the company also chose to apply the following transitional provisions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at:

* An amount equal to the lease liability on January 1, 2019, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease

payments relating to that lease recognized in the statement of financial position immediately before the date

of transition.

The company applied the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to ieases previously classified as operating

leases under 1AS 17:

+ Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of any provision for onerous leases recognized in the balance sheet

immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative to performing an impairment review.

* Elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of twelve
months or less and leases with a short-term remaining life upon adoption. The lease payments associated with these

leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

s Accounted for each lease component and any non-lease components as a single lease component for crude oil

storage tanks.

* Used hindsight to determine the lease term if the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease.

The following table summarizes the impact of adopting IFRS 16 on the company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 1,
2019. Prior period amounts have not been restated. The effects of the transition have been recognized through retained

earnings in equity.

December 31 Adjustments due to January 1
{$ millions) Increase (Decrease) 2018 IFRS 16 2019
Assets
....... Currentassets
. Accounts recéwame 3 205(2) 3 204..
Property p|ant and equment net 74 245(1 257)72 973"
. nght of e asse“ net e 3 059 3 059..
|_| o d h eh°|d 'E . .
i Current |Iab!|lt|es
. current pomon of |ong_te,—m dEbt . 229(38)191
Current pomon of |ease |,ab|||t,es _275275
. cUrrent pomon of prowﬂons 557(1)555
Long—term debt 13390(1222)12553
Long_term |ease |'|ab|||t|e5 _2777 2 777..
. |ong_term ||ab|||t|e; 2345(1) 2 345..
Deferred mcome taxes 12 045......... 512 050._

The following table reconciles the company's operating lease commitments as at December 31, 2018, as previously disclosed
in the company’s consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018, to the additional lease
liabilities recognized on initial application of IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2019.
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Reconciliation

January 1

(% millions} 2019

Operating leases as at December 31, 2018 2457
Exempt|onforshorttermIeases(42)
D]scount|ng(623)

Additional lease liabilities recognized due to adoption of IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2019 1792

(1)  Represents undiscounted lease commitments.

For leases that were previously classified as finance leases under IAS 17, within Property, Plant and Equipment, the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability recognized upon iniial application as at January 1, 2019 was
determined to be the carrying amount of the finance lease asset and liability under IAS 17 immediately before transition.

The lease liabilities recognized in accordance with IFRS 16 were discounted using the company’s incremental borrowing rate
upon initial application. The weighted average discount rate used for additional leases recognized as a result of application
of IFRS 16 was 3.85% as at January 1, 2019.

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

In June 2017, the |ASB issued IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. The interpretation clarifies the accounting for
current and deferred tax liabilities and assets in circumstances in which there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The
interpretation requires an entity to consider whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. If the entity considers it to be not probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax provision, the
interpretation requires the entity to use the most likely amount or the expected value. The company adopted the
amendment on its effective date of January 1, 2019. The adoption of this amendment did not have any impact on the
company's consolidated financial statements.

(b} Recently Announced Accounting Pronouncements

The standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective up to the date of authorization of the
company’s consolidated financial statements, and that may have an impact on the disclosures and financial position of the
company are disclosed below. The company intends to adopt these standards, amendments and interpretations when they
become effective.

Definition of a Business

In October 2018, the I1ASB issued Definition of a Business {Amendments to IFRS 3). The amendments narrowed and clarified
the definition of a business. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. This is a simplified assessment
that results in an asset acquisition if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets. If an election to use a concentration test is not made, or the test
failed, then the assessment focuses on the existence of a substantive process. One important distinction is that “goodwill” can
only be recognized as a resuit of acquiring a business, but not as a result of an asset acquisition. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and are to be applied prospectively.
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6. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The company’s operating segments are reported based on the nature of their products and services and management
responsibility. The following summary describes the operations in each of the segments:

Oil Sands includes the company’s wholly owned operations in the Athabasca oil sands in Alberta to explore, develop and
produce bitumen, synthetic crude oil and related products, through the recovery and upgrading of bitumen from mining
and in situ operations. This segment also includes the company’s joint interest in the Syncrude oil sands mining and
upgrading operation, the company's joint interest in the Fort Hills partnership and the company’s controlling interest in
the East Tank Farm blending and storage facility located near Fort McMurray, Alberta as well as the marketing, supply,
transportation and risk management of crude oil, naturaf gas, power and byproducts. The individual operating segments
related to mining operations, in situ, Fort Hills and Syncrude have been aggregated into one reportable segment

(Oil Sands) due to the similar nature of their business activities, incduding the production of bitumen, and the single
geographic area and regulatory environment in which they operate.

Exploration and Production {(E&P} includes offshore activity in East Coast Canada, with interests in the Hibernia, Terra
Nova, White Rose and Hebron oilfields, the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas at Buzzard and
Golden Eagle Area Development in the United Kingdom (U.K.), and exploration and production of crude oil at Oda and
the development of the Fenja fields in Norway, as well as the marketing and risk management of crude oil and natural
gas. Due to unrest in Syria, the company has declared force majeure under its contractual obligations, and Suncor’s
operations in Syria have been suspended indefinitely. Production in Libya remains partially shut-in due to political unrest,
and the timing of a return to normal cperations continues to be uncertain.

Refining and Marketing includes the refining of ¢crude oil products, and the distribution, marketing, transportation and
risk management of refined and petrochemical products, and other purchased products through the retail and wholesale
netwaorks located in Canada and the United States (U.S.). The segment also includes trading of crude oil, natural gas

and power.

The company also reports activities not directly attributable to an operating segment under Corporate and Eliminations. This
includes renewable projects such as the wind power facilities of Chin Chute and Magrath in Alberta, SunBridge in
Saskatchewan and Adelaide in Ontario as well as an investment in Enerkem Inc,, a waste-to-biofuels and chemicals producer
headquartered in Quebec.

Intersegment sales of crude oil and natural gas are accounted for at market values and included, for segmented reporting, in
revenues of the segment making the transfer and expenses of the segment receiving the transfer. Intersegment balances are
eliminated on consolidation. Intersegment profit will not be recognized until the related product has been seld to

third parties.
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Exploration
and Refining and Corporate and
For the years ended December 3110@ Qil Sands Production Marketing Eliminations Total
{$ millions) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues and Other Income

Grossrevenues 13048 12039 3675 3869 22216 23655 27 20 39866 39592
..Intersegment re;énues...........___._____...........4399 3704 - - 33123(4487)(3827)——
"Less_ Rcyaltles (917) (393) (605)(652)____(1522)(1050)

Operating revenues, net of
royaltles 17430 15345 3070 3217 22304 23 778 (4 460) (3 798) 38344 38542

Other income (Ioss) 172 387 430 (68) 75 68 {(32) 57 645 a44
17602 15732 3500 3149 22379 23846 (4492) (3741) 38989 38986

Expenses
Purchases of crude ol and products 1407 1563 —  — 15296 16656 (4141) (4086) 12562 14133
"Operatmg, sellmg and general 8027757752550721732043519 446 ".11 244.“ 10573
“Transporta‘uon 129311448085120147(51) . (57)... 1 442.... 1319

Depreciation, depletlon
amomzatlon and impairment 8170 4024 1505 967 823 684 74 63 10572 5 738

Exploratlon 127 44 129 78 — — — — 256 122

(Gain) loss on asset exchange and
di of assets {14) (108) (228) 91 {11} N — (253) (24)

Financing expenses T 318 320 73 46 55 7 187 1769 633 2142
19328 14564 2084 1774 18456 19530 (3412) (1865) 36456 34003

(Loss) earnings before Income
Taxes (1726) 1168 1416 1375 3923 4316 {1080) (1876) 2533 4983

Income Tax (Recovery) Expense

Curr 266 (128) 626 972 1030 (312) (392 1552 )
T

(1299) 223 411 568 923 1162 (401) (263) (366) 1690
Net (Loss) Earnings (427) 945 1005 807 3000 3154 (679) (1613) 2899 3293

Capital and Exploration
Expenditures 3522 3546 1070 8946 818 856 148 58 5558 5406

{1} Beginning in 2019, results from the company's Energy Trading business are included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates. The Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Eliminatons
segment. Prior periods have been restated to reflect this change. The resuits from the company's Renewable Energy business continue to be induded
within the Corporate and Eliminations segment.

(2} The company adapted IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective transition approach and, therefore, prior periods have not been
restated. Refer to note 5 for further information.
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Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers and Intersegment Revenue

The company derives revenue from the transfer of goods mainly at a point in time in the following major commodities,

revenue streams and geographical regions:

for the years ended December 31
{$ millions)

2019

North America  International

Total

2018
International Total

North America

0|I Sands
SCO and dlesel
Bnturnen

13 368 —

4 979 -

13 368
4 979

‘I1 659
4084

— 11 659
— 4084

18 347 —

18 347

15743

— 15743

Exploratlon and Productlon

Natural gas

1922
— 6

Crude 0|I and natural gas I|qU|ds 1747 3 669

3

1741 2112

3853
13 16

1922 1753

3675

1744

2125 32869

Refining and Marketing

Gasoline

Distillate

Other

2916 o

9 941 —
9 447 -

2916

9 941
9 447

3 261

10 819
9698

— 10819
— 9 698
- 3261

22 304 -_

22 304

23778

— 23778

Corporate and Eliminations

{4 460) —

(4 460)

(3 798)

—  (3798)

Total Gross Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

38113 1753

39 866

37 467

2125 39592

{1) Beginrsng in 2019, results from the company’s Energy Trading business are :ncluded within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates. The Energy Trading business was previously reported within the Corporate, Energy Trading and Eliminations
segment. Prior periods have been restated to reflect this change. The results from the company’s Renewable Energy business continue to be included

within the Corporate and Eliminations segment.

Geographical Information
Operating Revenues, net of Royalties

{$ millions}

2019

2018

Canada

Unlted States

Other forelgn

Non-Current Assets®™

{$ millions)

31 157
5 737

1 450
38 344

December 31
2019

30 813
5 999“
1 730"

38542

December 31
2018

Canada

Unlted States

Other forelgn

(1) Excludes deferreg¢ income tax assets.
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2 173
79 320

1 957

76 708
1 889"
2 154"
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7. OTHER INCOME

Cther income consists of the following:

{$ millions} 2019 2018
Risk management and trading actrwtles“) 155 255

(Losses) galns on valuatlon of |nventory held for tradmg purposes (7} 13
Investment and |nterest income 89 34

Insurance proceeds® 431 120
Other (23) 22

(1) Includes fair value changes related to derivative contracts in the Qil Sands, Exploration and Production, and Refining and Marketing segments.

(2) 2019 includes insurance proceeds for Libyan assets within the Exploration and Production segment (note 34). 2019 and 2018 include Dusiness
interruption and property damage insurance proceeds for Syncrude within the Qil Sands segment.

8. OPERATING, SELLING AND GENERAL

Operating, Selling and General expense consists of the following:

($ millions) 2019 2018
Contract services( 4 380 4552

Equipment rentals and leases 345 360
Travel, marketing and other 880 538
11 244 10573

{1} The company incurred $8.5 billion of contract services and employee costs for the year ended December 31, 2019 (2018 ~ $8.3 billion), of which
$2.0 billion (2018 — $7.8 billion) was recorded in Operating, Selling and General expense and $0.5 billion was recorded as Property, Plant and
Fquipment (2018 - $0.5 billion). Employee costs indude salaries, benefits and share-based compensation.

9. FINANCING EXPENSES

Financing expenses consist of the following:

($ millions) 2019 2018
825 897
”|nterest o |ease ||ab|||t|est1) 172 e
'-Capnal.zed |nterest - 5 3% (2013 5 4%) (122)(155)
Interest expense. 875 741

Interest on deb

Interest on partnershlp Ilablllty 55 56
....lnterest o pensmn and Other po.—gt-reﬂrement beneﬁts 5955
"""Accrenon 270265
Forelgn exchange (galn) Ioss on U S dollar denommated debt (624) 1 090“
moperat;onal o exchange and othe.— (2) (57)-
633 2142

(1Y The company adopted IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective transition approach and, therefore, prior periods have not been
restated. Refer to note 5 for further information.
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10. INCOME TAXES

Income Tax (Recovery) Expense

($ millions} 2019 2018

Current
Current year 1524 1 270

Adjustments to current |ncome tax of prlor years 28 (20)

Changes in tax rates and leg:slatlon (1 124) —

Mcwement in unrecogmzed deferred income tax assets (58) 82

Total income tax (recovery) expense {366) 1690

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The provision for income taxes reflects an effective tax rate that differs from the statutory tax rate. A reconciliation of the
difference is as follows:

($ millions) 2019 2018

Earnings before income tax 2 533 4983
Canad|anstatutorytaxrate 25 74%2704%
Statumrytax 6771347
Add(dEdua)themxeﬁectof ......................................................................................................................................................................................
i o taxable e of caprtal (gams) losses (145)146
- Share-bagedcompensanonandotherpermanentnemg ......................................................................................... 25 .......................... 31
.......Assessments and ad]ustments 112 (7)

....Impad of ecom vax ata and Ieg|siat|ve changes (1 057)_
"""Formgn oxrats d.fferennal o 111

....Non taxable component of ac‘qu|5|t|ons and d|5p05|t|ons _(14)

""Movement n unrecongEd deferred incoma tax ssers (53)32

""cnher 3(6)

Total income tax (recovery) expense {366) 1690

Effective tax rate (14.4)% 33.9%

In the second quarter of 2019, Suncor recognized a deferred income tax recovery of $1.116 billion related to a decrease in
the Alberta corporate tax rate from 12% to 8%. The tax rate decrease will be phased in as follows: 11% effective July 1,
2019, 10% effective January 1, 2020, 9% effective January 1, 2021, and 8% effective January 1, 2022. The deferred income
tax recovery of $1.116 billion was comprised of $910 million recovery in the Oil Sands segment, $88 miilion recovery in the
Refining and Marketing segment, $70 million recovery in the Exploration and Production segment, and $48 million recovery
in the Corporate and Eliminations segment.
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Deferred Income Tax Balances

The significant companents of the company's deferred income tax (assets) liabilities and deferred income tax expense
{recovery) are comprised of the following:

Peferred Income Tax {Recovery) Deferred Income Tax Liability
Expense {Asset)
December 31 December 31

($ millions) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Property, plant and eqmpment {2 348) 484 12 814 14 666
"Decommss.omng o restoratlor.]. prov|5|on25945 (2 092) (1 354).
Empioyeeretuementbenef|tp|an5 ......................................................................... 3215 ...................... (575) ..................... (535)
“Tax - carry—forwards 16(63)(156)(172)
"other 123(42)(23)(133)
Net deferred income tax {recovery) expense and liability {1 918) 440 9 967 11917
Change in Deferred Income Tax Balances

{$ millions} 2019 2018
Net deferred income tax liability, beginning of year 11917 11433
”Recogmzed " defermdmcomemxexpense .............................................................................................................. ( 1913)440
"Recogmzed " other compmhenswe incoma. (23)39
"Fore|gn exchange d|5p05.t|on v other (9)5
Net deferred income tax liability, end of year 9 967 11917
Deferred Tax in Shareholders’ Equity

{$ millions) 2019 2018
Deferred Tax in Other Comprehenswe Income
....... A ctuar|a|(|055)gam o emp|oymem ret.rement beneﬁt p|an5 (23)39
Total income tax {recovery) expense reported in equity {23) 39

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realization of the related tax
benefit is probable based on estimated future earnings. Suncer has not recognized an $87 million (2018 - $153 million)
deferred income tax asset on $715 million (2018 - $1,134 million) of capital losses related to foreign exchange on U.S. dollar
denominated debt, which can only be utilized against future capital gains.

No deferred tax liability has been recognized at December 31, 2019, on temporary differences associated with earnings
retained in our investments in foreign subsidiaries, as the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of these
differences. Based on current plans, repatriation of funds in excess of foreign reinvestment will not result in material
additional income tax expense. Deferred distribution taxes associated with international business operations have not
been recorded.
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11. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

($ millions)

2018

2018

Net earnings

(malhons of common shares)

Wenghted average number of common shares

Dllutlve securltles

Effect of share optlons

2899

1559

3293

1623

Weighted average number of diluted common shares

1561

1629

{dollars per common share)

Basic earnings per share

Dlluted earnings per share

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{$ millions)

186

186

December 31
2019

203
202

December 31
2018

Cash

Cash equwalents

13. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The (increase) decrease in non-cash working capital is comprised of:

($ millions)

728
1960

2019

1232

1285
936
2221

2018

Accounts receivable

Inventones

Accounts payable and accrued Ilabllrtres

Current portlon of prowsmns

Income taxes payable {net)

(1 099)

(628)

1317

436

(14)

219

316
(503)
"(1 10)
U511

12

433

Relating to:

Operatlng actrwtles

Investlng activities

409

408
25

12

433
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Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

Current
Portion of Current
Long-Term Long-Term Portion of
Short-Term Lease tease Long-Term Long-Term Partnership Dividends
($ millions} Debt Liabilities Liabilities Debt Debt Liability Payable

At December 31, 2018 3an — — 229 13 890 477 —
Changes from financing

N repayment e
commermal paper (982) — — — — — _

Gross proceeds from
issuance of long-term
debt — —_ — — 750 — —_

Debt |ssuance costs — — — — {5) — —

Repayment of
Iong-term debt — — — (188) —

Realized forelgn
exchange Iosses — — — 7 — — —

D|V|dends pald on
common shares — — — e — — (2 614)

Payments of Iease
Ilabllltles o — (307} o — — — —

DIS‘tI’IbUtIOI“IS to
non-controlling interest —_— e —

D|V|dends declared on
common shares — — — — — — 2614

Unreallzed forelgn
exchange galns (94) — — {10) {520) — e

Reciassmcation of debt"
to Iease obllgatlons — — 1260 (38) (1222) — —

Reclassufncatuon of Iease

— 617 {617} - — _
Deferred mancmg
costs — — —_ — {9) — —

Reassessment of
partnership liability — — — — — (15) —

New leases — o 1 978 . — — _ _
At December 31, 2019 2155 310 2621 — 12 884 455 —

14. INVENTORIES

December 31 December 31
($ millions) 2019 2018

1 689 1424
Matenah,supphesandme,—chand.se 782702
3761 3159

{1} Includes $210 million of inventories held for trading purposes (2018 — $247 million) which are measured at fair value less costs of disposal based on
Level 1 and Leve! 2 fair value inputs.

During 2019, purchased product inventories of $13.3 billion (2018 - $14.8 billion) were recorded as an expense.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Qil and Gas Plant and
{$ millions) Properties Equipment Total

Cost
At December 31 2017 36 209 78 639 114 848
Addltlons 1 221 3 958 5179

-Transfers from exploratlon and evaluatlon 31 — 31
......Acqms'tlons (nmes 32 to 34) 2399431237
....Changes - decomm.ss,omng and restoratlon 85 (22)53
.......Disposals and derecogn.t|on (375) (4 735)(5150)
_...Forelgn eXChange adjustments 385 oo 575
At December 31, 2018 37 845 79 029 116 874
Forelgnexmange adjustments (224)(214)(433)
At December 31, 2019 40 596 84 568 125 164
A(xumulated provnsaon
..At Decembe.— 31 2017 (17975)(23380)(41355)
- Depreqanon depletmn amomzat,on and |mpa|rment (1739)(3349)(5533)
o D;sposalsandderecognmon ................................................................................................................ 255 .................... 4545 .................... 4 800
. p adjustmen{; (324)(152)(435)
At December 31 2018 (19 783) (22 846) (42 629)
h Depreaatlon depletlon amortlzatlon and |mpa|rment (2 871)"““" (7 764)“"““""“{10 635).

D:sposals and derecogmtlon 116 349 465
Foreign exchange adjustments 149 126 275
At December 31, 2019 (22 389) {30 135) {52 524)

Net property, plant and equipment
December 31 2018 18 062 56 183 74 245
Decemher 31 2019 18 207 54 433 72 640

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
{$ millions} Cost Provision Value Cost Provision Value

Oil Sands 85246  (30581) 54665 80205 (22654) 57641
‘Exploration and Production 22876 (15298) 7578 21867 (14075 7792
R ey o™ 5535
g A e B2 B S e

125164 (52524) 72640 116874 (42629) 74245

At December 31, 2019, the balance of assets under construction and not subject to depreciation or depletion was $5.6 billien
{December 31, 2018 — $4.7 hillion).
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Due to continued volatility in the crude oil price environment and resulting declines in forecasted long-term heavy crude oil
prices, the company performed an asset impairment test on its Fort Hills CGU in the Qil 5ands segment. Due to an increase to
forecasted capital expenditures within the White Rose CGU, the company also performed an impairment test within the
Exploration and Production segment as at December 31, 2019. The impairment tests were performed using recoverable
amounts based on the fair value less cost of disposal. An expected cash flow approach was used with the key assumptions
discussed below {Level 3 fair value inputs — note 26):

Oil Sands

As a result of the impairment test, the company recorded impairment of $2.80 billion (net of taxes of $0.91 billion) on its
share of the Fort Hills project in the OH Sands segment using the following asset-specific assumptions:

*  Western Canadian Select (WCS) price forecast of US$40.75/bbl in 2020, US$45.60/bbl in 2021, US$49.65/bbl in 2022,
US$51.55/bbl in 2023 and US$52.90/bbl in 2024, escalating at 2% per year thereafter over the life of the project up to
2060, adjusted for asset-specific location and quality differentials;

* the company's share of production ranging from 96,000 to 106,000 bbls/d over the life of the project;

* cash operating costs averaging $22/bbl to $24/bbl over the life of the project (expressed in real dollars), reflects
Operating, Selling and General expense adjusted for non-production costs including Share-based compensation, Research
costs, and Excess power revenue; and

* risk-adjusted discount rate of 7.5% (after-tax).

The recoverable amount of the Fort Hills CGU was $7.7 billion as at December 31, 2019, which also includes the cost of
carbon compliance in accordance with current provincial and federal regulations which starts at $30/tonne in 2020, reaches
$50/tonne by 2022 and escalates at the rate of inflation thereafter. Estimate of the recoverable amount is most sensitive to
the WCS price forecast and discount rate. A 5% decrease in price woutd have resulted in an increase to the impairment
charge of approximately $1.2 billion (after-tax)} on the company’s share of the Fort Hills assets. A 1% increase in the discount
rate would have resulted in an increase to the impairment charge of approximately $900 million {after-tax} on the company's
share of the Fort Hills assets.

Exploration and Production

As a result of the impairment test, the company recorded impairment of $393 million {net of taxes of $128 million) on its
share of the White Rose assets in the Exploration and Production segment using the following asset-specific assumptions:

= Brent price forecast of US$65/bbl in 2020, escalating at 2% per year thereafter over the life of the project up to 2036 and
adjusted for asset-specific location and quality differentials;

* the company's share of production of approximately 8,700 bbls/d over the life of the project;
* the company's share of future capital expenditures of $1.4 billion, including the West White Rose expansion; and
» risk-adjusted discount rate of 9.0% (after-tax).

The recoverable amount of the White Rose CGU was $360 million as at December 31, 2019, which also includes the cost of
carbon compliance in accordance with current provincial and federal regulations which starts at $30/tonne in 2020, reaches
$50/onne by 2022 and escalates at the rate of inflation thereafter. Estimate of the recoverable amount is most sensitive to
the Brent price forecast and discount rate. A 5% decrease in price would have resulted in an increase to the impairment
charge of approximately $85 million (after-tax} on the company's share of the White Rose assets. A 1% increase in the
discount rate would have resulted in an increase to the impairment charge of approximately $35 miilion (after-tax) on the
company’s share of the White Rose assets.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy inc. 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES

The company has lease contracts which incude storage tanks, pipelines, railway cars, vessels, buildings, land, and mobile
equipment for the purpose of production, storage and transportation of crude oil and related products.

Right-of-use (ROU) assets within Property, Plant and Equipment:

December 31
($ millions) 2019

Property, plant and equipment, net - excluding ROU assets 69 745
ROU assets 2 895
72 640

The following table presents the ROU assets by asset class:

Plant and
{$ millions} Equipment

Cost

At January1‘201g3325

Addmonsandadjustments135

Fore,gnexchangeg)
At December 31, 2019 3505

Accumulated provision

At lanuary 1, 2019 {267)

Depreciation {(343)
At December 31, 2019 (610)
Net ROU assets

At December 31, 2019 2 895

Other lease-related items recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended
(% mitlions) December 31, 2013

Operating, selling and general
Short-term lease expense 236

Variable lease expense a5

There were no leases with residual value guarantees. Total cash outflow for leases was $464 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019.
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17. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
December 31 December 31
($ mitlions) 2019 2018
Acquisitions and additions (Note 32) ettt et 193 316

e and-gas o e e _(31)
Dryholeexpenses(ss)(n)
D|sposa|5(16)(‘|6)
Amort.zanon—_m
Fore'gnexmangeadjustmems(2)10
End of year 2428 2319

18. OTHER ASSETS

December 31 December 31
($ millions) 2019 2018

Investments 289 237

Prepaids and other 905 889
1194 1126

Prepaids and other includes long-term accounts receivable related to deposits paid on Notices of Reassessments that have
been received from the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) and are unlikely to be settled within one year.

19. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Qil Sands Refining and Marketing

Brand Customer
($ millions) Goodwill Goodwill Name Lists Total

At December 31, 2017 2752 140 162 7 3061

»Additiol;s - = _4 .
Amomzat|on___(4)(4)
At December 31, 2018 2752 140 162 7 3061
Amort|zat|on———(3)(3)
At December 31, 2019 2752 140 162 4 3058

The company performed a goodwill impairment test at December 31, 2019 on its Qil Sands segment. Recoverable amounts
were based on fair value less costs of disposal calculated using the present value of the segments’ expected future cash flows.

Cash flow forecasts are based on past experience, historical trends and third-party evaluations of the company's reserves and
resources to determine production profiles and volumes, operating costs, maintenance and capital expenditures. Production
profiles, reserves volumes, operating costs, maintenance and capital expenditures are validated against the estimates
approved through the company‘s annual reserves evaluation process and determine the duration of the underlying cash flows
used in the discounted cash flow test. Projected cash flows reflect current market assessments of key assumptions, including
long-term forecasts of commodity prices, inflation rates, foreign exchange rates and discount rates specific to the asset

(Level 3 fair value inputs).

Future cash flow estimates are discounted using after-tax risk-adjusted discount rates. The discount rates are calculated based
on the weighted average cost of capital of a group of relevant peers that is considered to represent the rate of return that
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would be required by a typical market participant for similar assets. The after-tax discount rate applied to cash flow
projections was 7.5% (2018 - 8%). The company based its cash flow projections on a West Texas Intermediate price of
US$60/bbl in 2020 and escalating at an average of 2% thereafter, adjusted for applicable quality and location differentials
depending on the underlying CGU. The forecast cash flow period ranged from 20 years to 45 years based on the reserves life
of the respective CGU. As a result of this analysis, an impairment of $2.80 billion (net of taxes of $0.91 billion) on company’s
share of the Fort Hills CGU was recorded {note 15); however, management did not identify any impairment of goodwill
within any of the CGUs comprising the Qil Sands operating segment.

The company also performed a goodwill impairment test of its Refining and Marketing CGUs. The recoverable amounts are
based on fair value less costs of disposal calculated using the present value of the CGUs’ expected future cash flows, based
primarily on historical results adjusted for current economic conditions.

20. DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Debt and credit facilities are comprised of the following:

Short-Term Debt
December 31 December 31
($ millions) 2019 2018

Commercial paper" 2155 3231
(1) The commercial paper is supported by a revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders. The company is authorized to issue commercal paper to a

maximum of $5.0 billion having a term not to exceed 365 days. The weighted average interest rate as at December 31, 2019 was 2.05%
{December 31, 2018 - 2.88%).
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Long-Term Debt
December 31 bDecember 31
{$ millions) 2019 2018

Fixed-term debt‘z“a’

E 75% Notes due e (USSMO)“‘) P
e 10% ot Med|um Y Noms due 2021749749
o 25% Debentures, due s (US$300) T o
”“g 40% i due 2021 (usszzo)(*ﬂ(ﬂ e

e Notes due 2022 (US$182)("’ L
e 60% i\lotes due 2024 (US$750) T
....3 00% se”es 5 Medlum Farm Notes due 2026698698

7 875% Debentures due 2025 (Us$275) e

R
o
i 1 — T
e gy
B )
o e 3058 U150 2
o N e o (o

ﬁ 85% Notes due 2039 (US$750) 969 1021
6 00% Notes due 2042 (US$152)(4J 150 158

4.00% Notes, due 2047 (US$750) 967 1018
Total unsecured Iong-term debt 12 927 12 900

F|nance leases“’m — 1260
Lease Ilabllltles(') (note 5) 2 931 —
Deferred flnancmg costs (43) (41)

Current portlon of Iong-term debt and Iease |Iabilltles
. Fmance |eases¢5) __(38)
Lease ||ab|||t|e5 (nOte 5) (310)_
; Long-term e —_(191)
{310) (229)
Total Iong-term Iease Ilabllltles 2 621 —
"Total - debt T 384 13890

{2} The value of debt includes the unamortized balance of premiums or discounts.
{3} Cenain securities are redeemable at the option of the company.
4) Debt acguired through the acquisition of Canadian Qil Sands Limited (COS).

{5} Subsegquent to the acquisition of CQS, Moody’s Investors Service downgraded COS lang-term serior debt rating from Baa3 (negative outlook) to Ba3
(stable outlook). This triggered a change in the coupon rate of the note from 7.9% to 9.4%.

{6} The company adopted IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective transition approach and, therefore, prior periods have not been
restated. Refer to note 5 for further information.

{7} Interest rates range from 2.9% to 16.5% and maturity dates range from 2027 to 2062.
{8) Interest rates range from 2.0% to 14.2% and maturity dates range from 2020 to 2062.
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In 2019, the company re-paid its U5$140 million (book value of $188 million) senior unsecured notes at maturity, with a
coupon of 7.75%, for US$145 million ($195 million), including US$5 million ($7 miliion) of accrued interest.

In 2019, the company issued $750 million of senior unsecured Series 6 Medium Term Notes maturing on May 24, 2029. The
Series 6 Medium Term Notes have a coupon of 3.10% and were priced at $99.761 per $100 principal amount for an effective
yield of 3.128%. Interest is paid semi-annually.

In 2018, the company completed an early retirement of US$83 million (book value of $109 million) of subsidiary debt
acquired through the acquisition of COS with a coupon of 7.75% originally scheduled to mature on May 15, 2019 for

US$88 million ($116 million). The early retirement payment included US$3 miliion ($4 million) of accrued interest, resulting in
a debt extinguishment loss of $3 million ($2 million after-tax).

Scheduled Debt Repayments
Scheduled principal repayments as at December 31, 2019 for lease liabilities, short-term debt and long-term debt are
as follows:

($ millions} Repayment
2020 2 457
2021 1699

2022 451

2023 175
e 0
5 P

18 053

Credit Facilities
A summary of available and unutilized credit facilities is as follows:

$ millions) 2019
Fully revolving and expires in 2023 3500
Fully revolving and expires in 2022 3241

Can be terminated at any time at the option of the lenders 132
Total credit facilities 8328

Credit facilities supporting outstanding commercial paper {2 155)

Credit facilities supporting standby letters of credit!” (1284)
Total unutilized credit facilities®? 4 889

{1) To reduce costs, the company supported certain credit facifities with $206 million cash collateral as at December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 -
$108 million).
(2) Available credit facilities for liquidity purposes at December 31, 2019 increased to $4.701 biliion, compared te $3.608 billion at Decemnber 31, 2018.
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21. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

December 31 December 31
($ millions) 2018 208

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits {note 22) 1577 1420
based plans (note 25) 289 259
Partnership liability"

ensati

e

Libya Exploration and Production Sharing Agreement (EPSA) signature bonus® 79 83

e
2 499 2 346

(1} The company paid $62 million in 2019 (2018 — $62 miillion) in distributions to the partners, of which $55 million (2018 - $56 millien) was allocated to
interest expense and $7 million (2018 - $6 million} to the principal.

(2} As part of the 2009 acquisition of Petro-Canada, the company assumed the rermnairing US$500 million obligation for a signature bonus relating to
Petro-Canada’s ratification of six EPSAs in Libya. At December 31, 2019, the carrying amount of the Libya EPSAs’ signature bonus was $81 million
{December 31, 2018 - $85 miliion). The current portion is $2 million (Decemnber 31, 2018 —32 million) and is recorded in Accounts Payable and
Accrued Liabilities.

22. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The company's defined benefit pension plans provide pension benefits at retirement based on years of service and final
average earnings (if applicable). These obligations are met through funded registered retirement plans and through
unregistered supplementary pensions that are funded through retirement compensation arrangements, and/or paid directly
to recipients. The company’s contributions to the funded plans are deposited with independent trustees who act as
custodians of the plans’ assets, as well as the disbursing agents of the benefits to recipients. Plan assets are managed by a
pension committee on behalf of beneficiaries. The committee retains independent managers and advisors.

Asset-liability matching studies are performed by a third-party consultant to set the asset mix by quantifying the
risk-and-return characteristics of possible asset mix strategies. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within this
study, and areas of focus include asset mix as well as interest rate sensitivity.

Funding of the registered retirement plans complies with applicable regulations that require actuarial valuations of the
pension funds at least once every three years in Canada and the U.K., and every year in the United States and Germany. The
most recent valuations for the registered Canadian plans and U.K. were performed as at December 31, 2019. The company
uses a measurement date of December 31 to value the plan assets and remeasure the accrued benefit obligation for
accounting purposes.

The company's other post-retirement benefits programs are unfunded and include certain health care and life insurance
benefits provided to retired employees and eligible surviving dependants.

The company reports its share of Syncrude’s defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans and Syncrude’s cther
post-retirement benefits plan.

The company also provides a number of defined contribution plans, including a U.5. 401(k) savings plan, that provide for an
annual contribution of 5% to 11.5% of each participating employee’s pensionable earnings.
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Defined Benefit Obligations and Funded Status

Other
Post-Retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
{$ millions} 2019 2018 2019 2018

Change ln heneflt obllgatlon
Beneflt ob[lgatlon at begmnmg of year 6730 6 717 557 597

Obl|gat|ons acqunred through acqms ion (note 32)" — 185 - 8
......Currem Semce come 220 235 1313
p|;m pammpantr contnbunons 1515...._
"m"Beneﬂts pa|d (293)(295)(24)(23)
....Interest o 2552362221
.......ForEIgn exchaﬁge (13)14(1)1
......Sewements 55__
.....Actua”al rem.easurement
Expe”ence gain ariing on p|an ||ab|||t|es (11)(25)(2)(18)
-."Actuanal i from Changes = der\:\ographm
assumptlons —_ {1} — —

Actuarial Ioss (galn) ansmg from changes in
financial assumptions 799 {354} 66 (42)

Benefit obligation at end of year 7708 6730 631 557

Change in plan assets

Plan participants' contributions 16 15 — —
.."..-Beneﬁts - (259)(273)__
.......FDrEIgn exchan'ée (8)14__
...Sememems 55——_
..N.Admm.stratwe costs (2)(2)__
....Income . p|an asset; 215201__
....Actuanal remeasuremeﬁ.{

Return on plan assets greater than (Iess than)
discount rate 781 (299) — —_

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 6 693 5795 — —
Net unfunded obligation 1015 935 631 557

Of the total net unfunded obligations as at December 31, 2019, 97% relates to Canadian pension plans and cother
post-retirement benefits obligation {December 31, 2018 — 98%]). The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation under the Canadian pension plans and other post-retirement plans is 14.60 years (2018 - 14.75 years).
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The net unfunded obligation is recorded in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities and Other Long-Term Liabilities (note 21}
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Cther
Post-Retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
{$ miilions} 2019 2018 2019 2018

Analysis of amount charged to earnings:

o 2202351313

e S T vt 3522 21
Defined benefit plans expense 257 270 35 34
Defmedcontnbutmnp|ansexpensesz ........................ 77__
Total benefit plans expense charged to earnings 339 347 35 34

Compaonents of defined benefit costs recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:

Other
Post-Retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits

{$ millions) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts inciuded in net
interest expense) (781) 299 — e
Experience gain arising on plan liabilities (tn (26) (2} (18)
Actuarial loss {(gain} arising from changes in financial
assumptions 799 (354) 66 42)
Actuarial gain arising from changes in demographic
assumptions — n — —
Actuarial loss {gain) recognized in other comprehensive
income 7 (82) 64 (60)

Actuarial Assumptions

The cost of the defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits received by employees Is actuarially
determined using the projected unit credit method of valuation that includes employee service to date and present pay
levels, as well as the projection of salaries and service to retirement.

The significant weighted average actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Other
Post-Retirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
December 31 Decermnber 31 December 31 December 31
(%) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Discount rate 3.10 3.80 3.10 3.90
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

The discount rate assumption is based on the interest rate on high-quality bonds with maturity terms equivalent to the
henefit obligations.

The defined benefit obligation reflects the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. The mortality assumption is based on a standard mortality table adjusted for actual experience over the past
five years,

In order to measure the expected cost of other post-retirement benefits, it was assumed for 2019 that the health care costs
would increase annually by 6.50% per person (2018 —6.50%). From 2020, this rate will decrease 0.5% annually to 5% by 2022,
and remain at that level thereafter.
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Assumed discount rates and health care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for pensions
and other post-retirement benefits obligations for the company’s Canadian plans. A change of these assumptions would have
the following effects:

Pension Benefits
{$ millions) Increase Decrease

1% change in discount rate

Effect on the aggregat

Effect on the benefit oblig

ations {988) 1271

Other
Post-Retirement
Benefits
($ millions) Increase Decrease

1% change in discount rate
Effect on the benefit obligations (74) 91

1% change in health care cost

Effect on the aggregate service and interest costs 1 (1
Effect on the benefit obligations 30 (26)

Plan Assets and Investment Objectives

The company’s long-term investment objective is to secure the defined pension benefits while managing the variability and
level of its contributions. The portfolic is rebalanced periodically, as required, to the plans’ target asset allocation as
prescribed in the Statement of Investment Policies and Procedures approved by the Board of Directors. Plan assets are
restricted to those permitted by legislation, where applicable. Investments are made through pooled, mutual, segregated or
exchange traded funds.

The company's weighted average pension plan asset allocations, based on market values as at December 31, are as follows:

(%) 2019 2018

Equities, comprised of:
_canada1z13
_Un|ted5tate51g17
_Fore|gn1g13

50 48

Fixed income, comprised of:
—Canada4143
Realestatecompnsedof
—Canada99

Total 100 100

Equity securities do not include any direct investments in Suncor shares. The fair value of equity and fixed income securities is
based on the trading price of the underlying fund. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent third-
party appraisals.

During the year, the company made cash contributions of $157 million (2018 — $182 million) to its defined benefit pension
plans, of which $2 million (2018 — $2 million) was contributed to the solvency reserve account in Alberta. The company
expects to make cash contributions to its defined benefit pension plans in 2020 of $176 million.
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23. PROVISIONS

Decommissioning
{$ millions) and Restoration(® Royalties Cther® Total

At December 31 2017 7 465 240 254 7959
..Llab”ltles mcurred 3459101455
.,Change - dlscount .rate (553)__(553)
..Changes - estlmates 114(57)(15)31

Accretlon 266 — — 266
..ASSEt acqws.t.ons 133__133
._ForEIgn B 43_“___43
At December 31 2018 7 239 98 314 7651
..Less cu"ent pomon (533)(98)(31) (557)-

At December 31 2018 7239 98 314 7 651
“Adoptmn of |FR5 15 |mpad (n0te 5)_......(21) (21)_
At January 1, 2019, adjusted 7239 98 293 7630
L.ab|||t|e5|ncurred34550(4)402
changemd.scountrate1344_m .................... 1344
Changesmest.mates193(25)1159
|_.ab||;t|essett|ed(454)...-(14) ..................... (473)
“Accrenon 270_....,270

Asset dlsposals 4} — — 4}

Forelgn exchange {(29) — —_ (29)
At December 31, 2019 8 898 133 276 9 307
Lesscurrentpor‘tion(475)(133)(23) (631).

8 423 — 253 8 676

(1) Represents decommissioning and restoration provisions associated with the retirement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Exploration and Evaluation
assets. The total undiscounted amount of estimated future cash flows required to settle the obligations at December 31, 2019 was approximately
$12.9 billion {December 31, 2018 - $13.0 billion). A weighted average credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate of 3.30% was used to discount the
provision recognized at December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 —4.20%). The credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate used refiects the expected time
frame of the provisions. Payments to settle the decommissioning and restoration provisions occur on an ongoing basis and will continue over the lives
of the operating assets, which can exceed 50 years.

(2) includes legal and environmental provisions.
Sensitivities
Changes to the discount rate would have the following impact on Decommissioning and Restoration liabilities:
As at December 31 2019 2018

% Increase (1 629) (1099)
1% Decrease 2 365 1521
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24. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized
Common Shares

The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or par value.

Preferred Shares
The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of senior and junior preferred shares in series, without nominal or
par value.

Normal Course issuer Bid

On May 1, 2018, the company announced its intent to continue its normal course issuer bid program (the 2018 NCIB) to
repurchase common shares through the facilities of the Toronto Stock Exchange (the TSX), New York Stock Exchange

{the NYSE) and/or alternative trading platforms. Pursuant to the 2018 NCIB, the company was permitted to purchase for
cancellation up to 52,285,330 of its common shares between May 4, 2018 and May 3, 2019. On November 14, 2018, Suncor
announced an amendment to the 2018 NCIB, effective as of November 19, 2018, which increased the maximum number of
aggregate common shares that it was permitted to repurchase for cancellation between May 4, 2018 and May 3, 2019

to 81,695,830.

On May 1, 2019, the company announced its intention to renew its existing normal course issuer bid program (the 2019 NCIB)
to continue to repurchase shares under its previcusly announced buyback program through the facilities of the T5X, NYSE
and/or alternative trading platforms. Pursuant to the 2019 NCIB, the company is permitted to purchase for cancellation up to
50,252,231 of its common shares between May 6, 2019 and May 5, 2020. On December 23, 2019, Suncor announced an
amendment to the 2019 NCIB, effective as of December 30, 2019, which allows the company to increase the maximum
number of aggregate common shares that may be repurchased between May 6, 2019 and May 5, 2020 to 78,549,178.
Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors approved a further share repurchase program of up to $2.0 billion
beginning on March 1, 2020.

The following table summarizes the share repurchase activities during the period:

($ millions except as noted) 2019 2018
Share repurchase activities (thousands of common shares)
sharesrepurchased5529354425
Amounts charged to
sharecap,t|go5104g
Retamedeammgs13592013
Share repurchase cost 2274 3053
Average repurchase cost per share (dollars) 41.12 47.38

Under an automatic repurchase plan agreement with an independent broker, the company has recorded the following
liability for share repurchases that may take place during its internal blackout period:

December 31 December 31
($ millions) 2019 2018

Amounts charged to

Share capital 1
Retained earnings 103 152
Liability for share purchase commitment 168 263
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25. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-Based Compensation Expense
Reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income within Operating, Selling and General expense are the
following share-based compensation amounts:

($ millions) 2019 2018
Equity-settled plans 50 46
Cashsettledplan5274181
Total share-based compensation expense 324 227

Liability Recognized for Share-Based Compensation

Reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets within accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities
are the following fair value amounts for the company's cash-settled plans:

($ millions) 2019 2018
Current liability 242 286
Long.term|.ab.||ty(note21)239259
Total Liability 531 545

The intrinsic value of the vested awards at December 31, 2019 was $300 million {December 31, 2018 - $328 million).

Stock Option Plans
Suncor grants stock option awards as a form of retention and incentive compensation.

(a) Active Stock Option Plan

Stock options granted by the company on or after August 1, 2010 provide the holder with the right to purchase common
shares at the market price on the grant date, subject to fulfilling vesting terms. This plan replaced the pre-merger stock
option plan of legacy Suncor and legacy Petro-Canada. Options granted have a seven-year life, vest annually over a
three-year period and are accounted for as equity-settled awards.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the period and the weighted average assumptions used in their
determination are as noted below:

2019 2018
Annual dividend per share (dollars) a4
R|5kfree|nterestrate17a% 203 /,,
Expectednfesyearssyears
Expectedvo|at.||tyzs%24%
We|ghtedaveragefmrvalueperopnon(dollars)551673

The expected life is based on historical stock option exercise data and current expectations. The expected volatility considers
the histarical volatility in the price of Suncor’s common shares over a pericd similar to the life of the options, and is
indicative of future trends.

{b) Discontinued Stock Option Plans
Executive and Key Contributor Stock Options

Options granted under these plans generally have a seven- to ten-year life and vest over a three-year period. These plans
were in place prior to August 1, 2009, at the time of the merger between Petro-Canada and Suncor, and are accounted for as
equity-settled awards.
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The following table presents a summary of the activity related to Suncor's stock option plans:

2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number Exercise Price Number Exercise Price
{thousands) 41} {thousands) (%)
28935 38.25 31110 36.96
Granted 7 756 9
Exercised as options for common shares {2 688) 33.37 (7927 35.95
Forfeited/expired {121) 42.57 (1479) 47.88
Outstanding, end of year 33882 39.70 28 935 38.25
Exercisable, end of year 21535 37.86 15374 36.10

Options are exercised regularly throughout the year. Therefore, the weighted average share price during the year of $40.82
(2018 - $46.99) is representative of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise.

For the options outstanding at December 31, 2019, the exercise price ranges and weighted average remaining contractual
lives are shown below:

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted

Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average
Number Life Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices ($) {thousands) {years) Price (%) (thousands) Price (3)
30.21-34.99 5614 3 30.36 5614 30.36
35.00-39.99 6 851 2 37.74 6 782 37.74
40.00-44.99 21 235 5 42.70 9078 42.50
45.00-49.99 54 6 438.00 18 48.04
50.00-54.27 128 6 52.40 43 52.40
Total 33 882 4 39.70 21535 37.86

Common shares authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors that remain available for the granting of future options:

{thousands} 2019 2018

14 295 21929

Share Unit Plans

Suncor grants share units as a form of retention and incentive compensation. Share unit plans are accounted for as
cash-settled awards.

(a) Performance Share Units (PSUs)

A PSU is a time-vested award entitling employees to receive varying degrees of cash (0% - 200% of the company's share price
at time of vesting) contingent upon Suncor’s total shareholder return (stock price appreciation and dividend income) relative
to a peer group of companies. Cash payments for awards granted in 2019 and onwards are contingent upon Suncor’s total
sharehotder return and annual return on capital employed performance. PSUs vest approximately three years after the

grant date.

(b) Restricted Share Units {(R5Us}
A RSU is a time-vested award entitling employees to receive cash calculated based on an average of the company’s share
price leading up to vesting. RSUs vest approximately three years after the grant date.
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(c) Deferred Share Units (DSUs}

A DSU is redeemable for cash or a common share for a period of time after a unitholder ceases employment or Board
membership. The DSU Plan is limited to executives and members of the Board of Directors. Members of the Board of
Directors receive an annual grant of DSUs as part of their compensation and may elect to receive their fees in cash only or in
increments of 50% or 100% allocated to D5Us. Executives may elect to receive their annual incentive bonus in cash only or in

increments of 25%, 50%, 75% or 100% allocated to DSUs.

The following table presents a summary of the activity related to Suncor's share unit plans:

{thousands)

PsU

Outstanding, December 31, 2017

Granted

Forfeited/expired

1553

Redeemed‘ for cash (1623)

2 267

LI
(314) —

Cutstanding, December 31, 2018

Granted

Forfeited/expired

2197

Redeemed for cash {1210)

(6)

14 592 1305
5577  @1n
et

Qutstanding, December 31, 2019

2193

13 602 1287

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs)

A SAR entitles the helder to receive a cash payment equal to the difference between the stated exercise price and the
market price of the company's common shares on the date the SAR is exercised, and is accounted for as a cash-settled award.

SARs have a seven-year {ife and vest annually over a three-year period.

The following table presents a summary of the activity related to Suncor's SARs plan:

2019

2018

Number
{thousands)}

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

(%

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise Price

{thousands) ($)

CQutstanding, beginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/expired

363

o A
(46)

38.60

42.85

34,53

387 36.38

Outstanding, end of year

385

39.83

363 38.60

Exercisable, end of year

223

37.62

170 36.57
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, derivative contracts,
substantially all accounts payable and accrued liabilities, debt, and certain portions of other assets and other long-term
liabilities.

Non-Derivative Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivabie, short-term debt, and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate their carrying values due to the short-term maturities of those instruments.

The company’s long-term debt and long-term financial liabilities are recorded at amortized cast using the effective interest
method. At December 31, 2019, the carrying value of fixed-term debt accounted for under amortized cost was $12.9 bitlion
(December 31, 2018 — $12.9 billion) and the fair value at December 31, 2019 was $16.1 billion (December 31, 2018 -

$14.2 billion). The increase in fair value of debt is mainly due to the decline in interest rates during the year. The estimated
fair value of long-term debt is based on pricing sourced from market data, which is considered a Level 2 fair value input.

Suncor entered into a partnership with Fort McKay First Nation (FMFN) and Mikisew Cree First Nation (MCFN) in 2018 where
FMFN and MCFN acquired a combined 49% partnership interest in the East Tank Farm Development. The partnership tiability
is recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method. At December 31, 2019, the carrying value of the
Partnership liability accounted for under amortized cost was $455 million (December 31, 2018 — $477 million).

Derivative Financial Instruments
(2) Non-Designated Derivative Financial Instruments

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as physical and financial contracts, to manage certain exposures to
fluctuations in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates, as part of its overall risk management
program, as well as for trading purposes.

The changes in the fair value of non-designated derivatives are as follows:

{$ millions) 2019 2018

Fair value outstanding, beginning of year 60 {105)
CaShSewemems_receweddurmgtheyear(254)(90)
changesmfa.rvamerecogmzedmeammgsdurmgtheygar(noten155255

Fair value outstanding, end of year (39) 60

(b) Fair Value Hierarchy

To estimate the fair value of derivatives, the company uses guoted market prices when available, or third-party models and
valuation methodologies that utilize observable market data. In addition to market information, the company incorporates
transaction-specific details that market participants would utilize in a fair value measurement, induding the impact of
non-performance risk. However, these fair value estimates may not necessarily be indicative of the amounts that could be
realized or settled in a current market transaction. The company characterizes inputs used in determining fair value using a
hierarchy that prioritizes inputs depending on the degree to which they are observable. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

* Level 1 consists of instruments with a fair vaiue determined by an unadjusted quoted price in an active market for
identical assets or liabilities. An active market is characterized by readily and reqularly available quoted prices where
the prices are representative of actual and regularly occurring market transactions to assure liquidity.

e Level 2 consists of instruments with a fair value that is determined by guoted prices in an inactive market, prices with
observable inputs, or prices with insignificant non-observable inputs. The fair value of these positions is determined
using observable inputs from exchanges, pricing services, third-party independent broker quotes, and published
transportation toils. The observable inputs may be adjusted using certain methods, which include extrapolation over
the quoted price term and quotes for comparable assets and liabilities.

s Lavel 3 consists of instruments with a fair value that is determined by prices with significant uncbservable inputs. As
at December 31, 2019, the company does not have any derivative instruments measured at fair value Level 3.
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In forming estimates, the company utilizes the most observable inputs available for valuation purposes. If a fair value
measurement reflects inputs of different levels within the hierarchy, the measurement is categorized based upon the lowest

level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following table presents the company's derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities and assets available for sale

measured at fair value for each hierarchy level as at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Total Fair

($ millions} Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
Accounts recewable 63 152 — 215
. Accounts payable et e be bR TR R e (43) (112)_ (155).
Balance at December 31, 2018 20 40 — 60
Accounts recelvable 33 61 — 94
Accoums payame (55)(57) - (133)
Balance at December 31, 2019 (33) (6) —_ (39)

During the year ended December 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company enters into arrangements that ailow for offsetting of derivative financial instruments and accounts receivable
{payabie), which are presented on a net basis on the balance sheet, as shown in the table below as at December 31, 2019

and 2018.
Financial Assets
Gross Net
Gross Liabilities Amounts
{$ millions) Assets Offset Presented
Falr value of denvatlve assets 1599 (1 384) 215
Accounts recewable 1837 (882) 955
Balance at December 31, 2018 3436 (2 266) 1170
Falr value of derlvatlve assets 1 737 (1 643) 94
Accounts recelvable 2 850 (1 289) 1571
Balance at December 31, 2019 4597 (2 932) 1665
Financial Liabilities
Gross Net
Gross Assets Amounts
{$ millions) Liabilities Offset Presented
Falr va!ue of derlvatlve Iiabllltles {1539 1384 (1 55)
Accounts payable (1798) 882 (916)
Balance at December 31, 2018 (3 337) 2 266 {1071)
Falr vaEue of derlvatlve I|ab|||t|es (1 776) 1643 (133)
Accounts payable (2 532) 1289 (1 243)
Balance at December 31, 2019 (4 308) 2932 {1 376)

Risk Management

The company is exposed to a number of different risks arising from financial instruments. These risk factors include market
risks, comprising commodity price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, as well as liquidity risk and credit risk.

The company maintains a formal governance process to manage its financial risks. The company’s Commodity Risk

Management Committee (CRMC) is charged with the oversight of the company’s trading and credit risk management
activities. Thase activities are intended to manage risk associated with open price exposure of specific volumes in transit or
storage, enhance the company’s operations, and enhance profitability through informed market calls, market diversification,
economies of scale, improved transportation access, and leverage of assets, both physical and contractual. The CRMC, acting
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under the authority of the company's Board of Directors, meets regularly to monitor limits on risk exposures, review policy
compliance and validate risk-related methodologies and procedures.

The nature of the risks faced by the company and its policies for managing such risks remain unchanged from
December 31, 2018.

1) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from market price movements and their impact on the future performance of
the business. The market price movements that could adversely affect the value of the company's financial assets, liabilities
and expected future cash flows include commodity price risk, foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate risk.

{a) Commodity Price Risk

suncer’'s financial performance is closely linked to crude oil prices (including pricing differentials for various product types)
and, o a lesser extent, natural gas and refined product prices. The company may reduce its exposure to commodity price risk
through a number of strategies. These strategies include entering into derivative contracts to limit exposure to changes in
crude oil prices during transportation.

An increase of US$10/bbl of crude oil as at December 31, 2019 would decrease pre-tax earnings for the company’s
outstanding derivative financial instruments by approximately $46 million (2018 - $39 million).

(b} Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The company is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk on revenues, capital expenditures, or financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the company's functional currency (Canadian dollars). As crude oil is priced in

U.S. dollars, fluctuations in US$/Cdn$ exchange rates may have a significant impact on revenues. This exposure is partially
offset through the issuance of U.S. doilar denominated debt. A 1% strengthening in the Cdn$ relative to the US$ as at
December 31, 2019 would increase pre-tax earnings related to the company's debt by approximately $146 miliion (2018 -
$167 miliion).

{) Interest Rate Risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk as changes in interest rates may affect future cash flows and the fair values of its
financial instruments. The primary exposure is related to its revolving-term debt of commercial paper and future

debt issuances.

To manage the company's exposure to interest rate volatility, the company may periodically enter into interest rate swap
contracts to fix the interest rate of future debt issuances. As at December 31, 2019, the company had no outstanding forward
starting swaps. The weighted average interest rate on total debt, including lease liabilities, for the year ended December 31,
2019 was 5.6% (2018 - 5.4%).

The company's net earnings are sensitive to changes in interest rates on the floating rate portion of the company’s debt,
which are offset by cash balances. To the extent interest expense is not capitalized, if interest rates applicable to floating rate
instruments increased by 1%, it is estimated that the company’s pre-tax earnings would decrease by approximately $2 million
(2018 - approximately $10 million). This assumes that the amount and mix of fixed and floating rate debt remains unchanged
from December 31, 2019. The proportion of floating interest rate exposure at December 31, 2019 was 12.0% of total debt
outstanding {2018 — 18.6%).

2) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Suncor will not be able to meet its financial obligations when due. The company mitigates this
risk by forecasting spending requirements as well as cash flow from operating activities, and maintaining sufficient cash,
credit facilities, and debt shelf prospectuses to meet these requirements. Suncor's cash and cash equivalents and total credit
facilities at December 31, 2019 were $2.0 billion and $8.3 billicn, respactively. Of Suncor’s $8.3 billion in total credit facilities,
$4.9 billion were available at December 31, 2019. In addition, Suncor has $2.25 billion of unused capacity under a Canadian
debt shelf prospectus and an unused capacity of U5$3.0 billion under a U.S. debt shelf prospectus. The ability of the company
to raise additional capital utilizing these shelf prospectuses is dependent on market conditions, The company believes it has
sufficient funding through the use of these facilities and access to capital markets to meet its future capital requirements.

Surplus cash is invested into a range of short-dated money market securities. Investments are only permitted in high credit
guality government or corporate securities. Diversification of these investments is managed through counterparty
credit limits.

128 2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc.



The following table shows the timing of cash outflows related to trade and other payables and debt.

December 31, 2018

Trade and Gross

Other Derivative
($ millions) Payables® Liabilities® Debt®
Within one year 5492 1539 4314
1 to 3 years 42 o 3 362
3 to 5 years 42 — 1827
Qver 5 years — — 20611
5576 1539 30 114

December 31, 2018

Trade and Gross
Other Derivative Lease
($ millions) Payablest Liabilities® Debt® Liabilities®
Within one year 6 422 1568 2877 470
1to 3 years 39 208 299 796
3 to 5 years 40 — 2220 616
Over 5 years — — 17 183 2960
6 501 1776 2527 4842

{1} Trade and other payables exclude net derivative liabilities of $%33 million {2018 - $155 million).

{2} QGross derivative fiabilities of $1 776 million (2018 — $1 539 miillion} are offset by gross derivative assets of $1 643 million (2018 - $1 384 miltion),
resulting in a net amount of $133 miliion (2018 - $155 million).

{31 2018 debt mncludes short-term debt, long-term debt, finance leases and interest payments on fixed-term debt and commercial paper 2019 debt
excludes lease liabilities.

(4) The company adopted IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective transition approach and, therefore, prior periods have not been
restated. Refer to note S for further information.

3) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will fail to perform an obligation or fail to pay amounts due, causing a
financial loss. The company’s credit policy is designed to ensure there is a standard credit practice throughout the company to
measure and monitor credit risk. The policy outlines delegation of authority, the due diligence process required to approve a
new customer or counterparty and the maximum amount of credit exposure per single entity. Before transactions begin with
a new customer or counterparty, its creditworthiness is assessed, a credit rating and a maximum credit limit are assigned. The
assessment process is outlined in the credit policy and considers both quantitative and qualitative factors. The company
constantly monitors the exposure to any single customer or counterparty along with the financial position of the customer or
counterparty. If it is deemed that a customer or counterparty has become materially weaker, the company will work to
reduce the credit exposure and lower the assigned credit limit. Regular reports are generated to monitor credit risk and the
Credit Committee meets quarterly to ensure compliance with the credit policy and review the exposures.

A substantial portion of the company’s accounts receivable are with customers in the oil and gas industry and are subject to
normal industry credit risk. At December 31, 2019, substantially all of the company’s trade receivables were current.

The company may be exposed to certain losses in the event that counterparties to derivative financial instruments are unable
to meet the terms of the contracts. The company’s exposure is limited to those counterparties holding derivative contracts
owing to the company at the reporting date. At December 31, 2013, the company’s exposure was $1 737 million

{December 31, 2018 - $1 599 million),
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27. CAPITAL STRUCTURE FINANCIAL POLICIES

The company’s primary capital management strategy is to maintain a conservative balance sheet, which supports a solid
investrment grade credit rating profile. This objective affords the company the financial flexihility and access to the capital it
requires to execute on its growth objectives.

The company’s capital is primarily monitored by reviewing the ratios of net debt to funds from operations™ and total debt to
total debt plus shareholders’ equity.

Net debt to funds from operations is calculated as short-term debt plus total long-term debt fess cash and cash equivalents,
divided by funds from operations for the year then ended.

Total debt 1o total debt plus shareholders’ equity is calculated as short-term debt plus total long-term debt divided by
short-term debt plus total long-term debt plus shareholders’ equity. This financial covenant under the company’s various
banking and debt agreements shall not be greater than 65%.

The company’s financial covenant is reviewed regularly and controls are in place to maintain compliance with the covenant.
The company complied with financial covenants for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. The company’s financial
measures, as set out in the following schedule, were unchanged from 2018. The company believes that achieving its capital
target helps to provide the company access to capital at a reasonable cost by maintaining solid investment grade credit
ratings. The company operates in a fluctuating business environment and ratios may periodically fall outside of
management’s targets. The company addresses these fluctuations by capital expenditure reductions and sales of non-core
assets to ensure net debt achieves management’s targets.

Capital
Measure December 31, December 31,
% millions) Target 2019 2018
Components of ratios

short-tefmdebtz1553231
currentpomonof|ongtermdebt_229
currentpomonoﬂongterm|ease||ab|||t|es310_
Longtermdebt1zas413sgo
Longtermleasehab[hnes2521—u

Total debt 17 970 17 350
LessCashandcashequwa|ent519502221

Net debt 16 010 15129

Sharehoiders’ equity 42 042 44 005

Total capitalization (total debt plus shareholders’ equity) 60012 61355

Funds from operations'" 10818 10172

Net debt to funds from operations <3.0 times 1.5 1.5

Total debt to total debt plus shareholders’ equity 20% - 35% 30% 28%

(¥ Funds from operations is calculated as cash flow from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital, and is a non-GAAP financial
measure.
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28. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint Dperations
The company's material joint operations as at December 31 are set cut below:

Country of
Incorporation and
Principal Place of  Ownership %  Ownership %
Material Joint Operations Principal Activity Business 2019 2018

On‘ Sands

Operated by Suncor

. Meadow Creek Qil sands development Canada 75.00 75.00
..Non-operated
. R o.lsandsdeve;opmentCanadass745s74
m'fxp[orat;on ;nd Pmdumon

Operated by Suncor

Terra Nova Qil and gas production Canada 37.68 37.68

Non-operated:

Golden Eagle Area Development Oil and gas production  United Kingdom 26.69 26.69

Hibernia and the Hibernia South
Extension Unit Oil and gas production Canada 19 19 20 00 19.19-20.00

Hebron Oil and gas production Canada 21 03 21.03
Harouge O|I Operat|ons Oil and gas production Libya 49.00 49.00

Oda Qil and gas production Norway 30.00 30.00

White Rose and theWhlte Rose
Extensions Oil and gas production Canada 26.13-27.50 26.13-27.50

Joint Ventures and Associates

The company does nat have any joint ventures or associates that are considered individually material. Summarized aggregate
financial information of the joint ventures and associates, which are all induded in the company’s Exploration and Production
and Refining and Marketing operations, are shown below:

Joint ventures Associates
(% millions} 2019 2018 2019 2018
Net (Ioss) earmngs (7 11 e (1%

Other comprehenswe income — — _ _

Total comprehensive (loss) income N 1 — (19

Carrying amount as at December 31 68 75 76 110
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SUBSIDIARIES

Material subsidiaries, each of which is wholly owned, either directly or indirectly, by the company as at December 31, 2019

are shown below:

Material Subsidiaries

Principal Activity

Canadian Operations

Suncor Energy Oil Sands Limited Partnership

Suncor Energy Ventures Corporation

Suncor Energy Ventures Partners |p

Suncor Energy Products Partnership
Canadlan reflmng and marketlng assets.

Suncor Energy Marketing Inc.

This partnership holds most of the company’s Oil Sands

operatlons assets

A subsndlary whlch mdlrectiy owns a 36 74% ownershlp
i the Syncrude jOII’Tt operatlon

A subS|d|ary which owns a 22% ownershlp in the

Syncrude |omt operatlon

This partnership holds substantlally aI! of the companys

Through thls subndmry, productton from the upstream
Canadian businesses is marketed. This subsidiary also
administers Suncor’s energy trading activities and power
business, markets certain third-party products, procures
crude oil feedstock and natural gas for its downstream
business, and procures and markets natural gas liguids
(NGLs} and liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) for its
downstream business.

U.S. Operations
Suncor Energy {(U.5.A) Marketing Inc.

Suncor Energy (U.S.A) Inc.

A subsidiary that procures, markets and trades crude oil,
in addition to procuring crude oil feedstock for the

company’s refining operations.

A subSIdlary through which the companys U S refinlng
and marketing operations are conducted.

International Operations

Suncor Energy UK Limited

A subsidiary through which the majority of the
company’s North Sea operaticns are conducted.

The table does not include wholly owned subsidiaries that are immediate holding companies of the operating subsidiaries.
For certain foreigh operations of the company, there are restrictions on the sale or transfer of production licences, which

would require approval of the applicable foreign government.
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions

The company enters into transactions with related parties in the normal course of business, which includes purchases of
feedstock, distribution of refined products, and sale of refined products and byproducts. These transactions are with joint
ventures and associated entities in the company's Refining and Marketing operations, including pipeline, refined product and
petrochemical companies. A summary of the significant related party transactions as at and for the year ended December 31,
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

($ miklions) 2019 2018
Salest 676 723
purchases T
j:Accounts r;gce|vab|e 3333
R payab|e T et et e e

(1) Includes sales to Parachem Chemicals Inc. of $269 miflion (2018 — $338 million).

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Compensation of the company's Board of Directors and members of the Executive Leadership Team for the years ended
December 31 is as follows:

{$ millions) 2019 2018
Salaries and other short-term beneflts 14 15
..Pensmn and Dther o remement benems 35
share-basedcompensatmn ........................................................................................................................................................ 47 .......................... 3 2

64 52

31. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

(a) Commitments
Future payments under the company's commitments, including service arrangements for pipeline transportation agreements
and for other property and equipment, are as follows:

Payment Due by Period

{$ millions) 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024  Thereafter Total
Commntments
p,—odud trans.portatlon and
storage 1083 1 034 992 1076 1068 9 470 14723
....... Energy S 154 150 18012151129805
.....Exploratlon Wori; commltments 7 44._____455515
....Other 5251331331131004351549
1779 1416 1305 1315 1229 10 549 17 593

The company has also entered into a pipeline commitment of $5.9 billion with a contract term of 20 years, which is awaiting
regulatory approval.

In addition to the commitments in the above table, the company has other obligations for goods and services and raw
materials entered into in the normal course of business, which may terminate on short notice. Such obligations include
commodity purchase obligations which are transacted at market prices.
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{b) Contingencies
Legal and Environmental Contingent Liabilities
The company is defendant and plaintiff in a number of legal actions that arise in the normal course of business. The

company believes that any liabilities that might arise pertaining to such matters would not have a material effect on its
consolidated financial position.

The company may also have environmental contingent liabilities, beyond decommissioning and restoration liabilities
{recognized in note 23), which are reviewed individually and are reflected in the company’s consalidated financial statements
if material and more likely than not to be incurred. These contingent environmental liabilities primarily relate to the
mitigation of contamination at sites where the company has had operations. For any unrecognized environmentat
contingencies, the company believes that any liabilities that might arise pertaining to such matters would not have a material
effect on its consolidated financial position.

Costs attributable to these commitments and contingencies are expected to be incurred over an extended period of time and
to be funded from the company's cash flow from operating activities. Although the ultimate impact of these matters on net
earnings cannot be determined at this time, the impact is not expected to be material.

{c) Guarantees

At December 31, 2019, the company has provided loan guarantees to certain retail licensees and wholesale marketers.
Suncor's maximum potential amount payable under these loan guarantees is $125 million.

The company has also agreed to indemnify holders of all notes and debentures and the company's credit fadility lenders

{see note 20) for added costs relating to withholding taxes. Similar indemnity terms apply to certain facility and equipment
leases. There is no limit to the maximum amount payable under these indemnification agreements. The company is unable to
determine the maximum potential amount payable as government regulations and legislation are subject to change without
notice. Under these agreements, the company has the option to redeem or terminate these contracts if additional costs

are incurred.

The company also has guaranteed its working-interest share of certain joint operation undertakings related to transportation
services agreements entered inte with third parties. The guaranteed amount is limited to the company’s share in the joint
arrangement. As at December 31, 2019, the probability is remote that these guarantee commitments will impact

the cempany.

32. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN THE SYNCRUDE PROJECT

On February 23, 2018, Suncor completed the purchase of an additional 5% working interest in the Syncrude project from
Mocal Energy Limited for $923 million cash. Suncor’s share in the Syncrude project has increased to 58.74%.

The acquisition has been accounted for as a business combination using the acquisition method. The purchase price allocation
is based on management’s best estimates of fair values of Syncrude’s assets and liabilities as at February 23, 2018.

{$ millions)

Accounts r 2
Inventory‘lS
Propertyplantandeqmpment998
Exploraﬁonandevalua‘tmn163

Total assets acquired 1178

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (51}
Employeefuturebeneﬂts(33)
Decomm|ss|on|ngprov|s|on(169}
Deferredmcometaxes(z)

Total liabilities assumed {255)

Net assets acquired 923
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The fair values of accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their carrying vatues due to the short-term maturity
of the instruments. The fair value of materials and supplies inventory approximates book value due to short-term turnover
rates. The fair values of property, plant and equipment, and the decommissioning provision were determined using an
expected future cash flow approach. Key assumptions used in the calculations were discount rates, future commodity prices
and costs, timing of development activities, projections of oil reserves, and cost estimates to abandon and reclaim the mine
and facilities.

The additional working interest in Syncrude contributed $270 million to gross revenues and a $7 million net loss to
consolidated net earnings from the acquisition date to December 31, 2018.

Had the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2018, the additional working interest would have contributed an additional
$64 million to gross revenues and $4 million to consolidated net earnings, which would have resulted in gross revenues of
$39.66 billion and consolidated net earnings of $3.30 billion for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018.

33. FORT HILLS

During the first quarter of 2018, Suncor acquired an additional 1.05% interest in the Fort Hills project for consideration of
$145 million. The additional interest was an outcome of the commercial dispute settlement agreement reached among the
Fort Hills partners in December 2017. Teck Resources Limited (Teck) also acquired an additional 0.42% in the project. Suncor's
share in the project has increased to 54.11% and Teck's share has increased to 21.31% with Total E&P Canada Ltd.’s share
decreasing to 24.58%.

34. OTHER TRANSACTIONS

In the third quarter of 2019, the company recognized a gain on sale of $65 million ($48 million after-tax) in the Exploration
and Production segment related to the sale of its non-core Australian assets.

On June 28, 2019, the company completed a transaction to sell its 37% equity interest in Canbriam Energy Inc. {Canbriam)
and recognhized a gain on sale for the full proceeds of $151 million ($139 million after-tax) in the Exploration and Production
segment. The investment in Canbriam was acquired early in 2018 through the exchange of Suncor's northeast British
Columbia mineral landholdings, including associated production, and consideration of $52 miltion.

During the first quarter of 2019, the company received $363 million in insurance proceeds for its Libyan assets ($264 million
after-tax). The proceeds may be subject to a provisional repayment, which may be dependent on the future performance and
cash flows from Suncor's Libyan assets,

On September 29, 2018, Suncor along with the other working-interest partners in the Joslyn Oil Sands Mining project, agreed
to sell 100% of their respective working interests to Canadian Natural Resources Limited for gross proceeds of $225 million,
$82.7 million, net to Suncor. Suncor held a 36.75% working interest in Joslyn prior to the transaction. The working-interest
partners received cash proceeds of $100 million ($36.8 million, net to Suncor) upon dosing, with the remaining $125 million
($45.9 million, net to Suncor) to be received in equal instalments over the next five years. As a result, Suncor has recorded a
long-term receivable of $36.7 million within the Other Assets line item and the first instalment of $9.2 million is recorded
within the Accounts Receivable line item. The transaction resulted in a gain of $83 million in the Oil Sands segment.

On May 31, 2018, the company completed the previously announced transaction to acquire a 17.5% interest in the Fenja
development project in Norway from Faroe Petroleum Norge AS for acquisition costs of US$55 million (approximately
$70 million), plus interim settlement costs of $22 million under the acquisition method. This project was sanctioned by its
owners in December 2017.
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL AND OPERATING INFORMATION

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended
Mar June Sept
k)] 0 30

{$ millions, except per share amounts) 2019 2019 2019

Dec
3
2019

Total
Year
2019

For the Quarter Ended
Mar June Sept
31 30 30
2018 2018 2018

Total
Year
2018

Dec
31
2018

Revenues, net of royalties, and

other income 9397 10098 9896

9598

38 989

8750 10428 10863 8945 38986

Net earnmgs (Ioss)('"

Oil Sands 189 1561 505
Expluratlon and Productlon 492 456
1 009 765

o

.Reflnlng and Marketlng 668

Corporate and Ellmlnatlons

219

(2 saz)""
“(162)

558

1005

3 000
(679)

(427)

s
S
P
L

(‘l 15) 807
3 154

(1613)

/b2
(550)

1470

(2 335)

2899

789 972 1812 (280) 3293

2729 1035
Operating earmngs (Ioss)"‘“"’
“0|| Sonc Proaa

189
Explora‘tlon and Productlon 492
1 009

"Refmmg and Marketmg
(481)

Corporate and Ei|m|natlons

p—
o
-
@0

277
i
558
(289)

L
S

S —
B
A S
(as6)  (196)  (359)

97

(377) 885
255

108 897
762 3154
87 (624)

1209 1253 1114

782

4 358

985 1190 1557 580 4312

Funds from (used in} operations/AKe}

{300}

{554)

Reflnlng and Marketlng

Corporate and Ellmlnatlons

{195)

793
{200)

(1 249)

(195)

Total Funds from operations 2585 3005 2675

2553

10 818

2164

Change in non-cash working

capital {1037) 428 461

{249)

(397)

(1 440) 1033

Cash flow provided by operating

activities 1548 3433 3136

2 304

10 421

724 3040 10580

Per <common share

0.93 1.74
0.93

Net earnlngs (Ioss) baﬂc
Net earnlngs (Ioss) dlluted 1.74

. 4
Funds from operatlons - bastc(‘” 1.64 1.92
Cash flow prowded by operatlng

activities — basic 0.98 2.19 2.02

0.67

1.72

.4

1.50

(52
{1.52) A

1.66

1.6

6.69

6.94

203
) 202'
S
. e
2

(o 18)
(0 18)

048 0
0.48

0.44 1.50 2.70 1.90 6.54

For the Twelve Months Ended

For the Twelve Months Ended

Mar
31
2019

Jun
30
2019

Sep

2019

30

2019

Mar
3
2018

Dec
n
2018

Dec un
30

2018

Sep
30
2018

Return on capltal employed“”
8.3

ex excludlng ma]or pro;ects 1n progress (%)
8.2

—|nclud|ng major projects in progress (%)

106
104

9 9
9 7

80

104
97

9 5
83

7.8
6.5

51

(A} Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company's segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity refates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.
(8)

$ee accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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QUARTERLY OPERATING SUMMARY

(unaudited}

For the Quarter Ended For the Quarter Ended
Mar June Sapt Dec Total Mar June Sept Dec Total
. 3t 30 30 n Year 3 30 30 N Year
Qil Sands 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

Total Production (mbhbls/d) 657.2 692.2 6700 662.3 6704 571.7 5476 651.7 740.8 628.6
Oil Sands operations
Productlun [mbbls/d)

Upgraded product (sweet SCO
_sours in.2 295.5 3170 3000 330.1 2734

Non-upgra ed bitumen 554"""“118 710521181 E X . 146 0"."".1593"“."“
Qil Sands operations production 396.6 414.2 4222 418.1 412.8 404.8 3589 476.1 a32.7
Bitumen production {mhhbls/d)

2678 3005 3010 . 289.9 2416 1954 3234 2783 25RR

"in situ — MacKay River 352 36.3 231 223 292 35.1 344 371 37.0 360
Total bitumen production 4924 5052 5187  507.8  506.1 4825 4317 5715 5125 4988
Sales (mbbis/d}

Diesel
ught sour crude ofl

Upgraded product {$CO and
_diesel) 3231 3085 3208 y3 3 ..2828 e 3270 %8s S

Nonupgraded bitumen . 532 1151 1102 1263 1014 1182 1137 1314 1720 1340
Sales 3783 4236 431.0 417.6 4127 401.0 364.7 458.4 460.5 421.5
Cash operating costs — Average!"® {$/bbl)*

LGN COsts e ZTAS 2680 2565 2600 2635 2505 2745 2105 2280 7385

“Natural gas T e e 0.8 255 1.85 180 120 095 170 140
29.95 27.80 26.60 28.55 28.20 26.85 28.65 22.00 24.50 25.25

Cash operating costs - Mining bitumen production only“"“""(ilbbl)

“Cash costs 2780 2555 2470 2600 2600 2650 3215 2035 2365 2520

b e e Sl S S
28.80 25.85 24.90 27.00 26.60 27.15 32.45 20.50 24.00 25.55

Cash operating costs —In Situ bitumen production only™® ($/bbl)

Cash costs 610 715 690 640 660 655 610 620 575 615

e S s

9.90 8.75 8.45 9.95 9.25 9.55 7.90 8.05 B.30 8.45

Fort H:IIs

B‘t“me" pmd“d"’" (mbbls!d) e 184 893 B35 Br9 BS3 298 T08 694 985 6872
Internally upgraded bltumen from

froth {mbbls/d) — — — — _ 5.2 _ o . (1.3)

Total Fort Hilis Bitumen 784 89.3 85.5 ar.9 85.3 24.6 70.9 . 98.5 66.1

Gasheosts L2170 2UB0 2365 2705 2495 T S045 2760 325523853000
Natural gas 1.90 0.70 D 50 160 1.20 3.20 0.95 0.90 1.00 1.20
29.60 22.50 24.25 28.65 26.15 53.65 28.55 33.45 24.85 31.20

- ! ergntERetmeaamagmsr e e amsaman e anatanetasanan e ann.anateea ety
. | [ ..“..............................“......‘.........................“.........................»......I rreer FECTPRN .

I ( I ) 8 5 ol rul U e SO
I ) Cerdre s P T Ty s

,Cash costs L3555 73440 3980 3830 3685 4925 5380 6280 | 3085 4615
Natural gas 150 050 070 155 110 150 245 105 090 1.0
37.05 3490 4050 3985  37.95 5075 5625  63.85 3175  47.25

(B} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metncs Reconciliation and the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.

(C) Cash operating costs —- Mining bitumen production per barrel costs have been restated.

Sea accompanying footnotes and definitions to the cperating summaries.
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QUARTERLY OPERATING SUMMARY (continueq)

{unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended For the Quarter Ended

Mar June Sept Dec Tatal Mar June Sept Dec Total

n 30 30 31 Year 3 30 30 3 Year

il Sands Operating NetbacksBo 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
Bltumen (Slbbl)

Average prrce reahzed 48.37 54.03 48 64 43 36 48 43 33 55 47 08 42.03 7 96 30 22

Royaltles (1.37) (2 95) (1 98) (1 23) (1 94) (0 90) (3 27) (3 20) (D 06) (‘l 70)

Transportatlon costs (6.78) (5 77) (5.43) (6.63) (5.35) (5 98) (4 2&) (5 41) (5.53) (5.52)

Net operating expenses {8.56) (8.86) (8.07) (9.10) (B.68) (8.75) (7. 37) (7.01) (7.61) (7.68)

Operating netback 31.66 36.44 32.16 2640 31.46 1792 3770 26M (5.24) 15.32

$CO and diesel ($Ibb|)

(2.13)

(2.70)
(4.49)

(4.34) (4.24) (4.14) (5.06) (3.76) .
Net operating expenses -
bltumen (23.87) (26.94) (22.64) {25.77) (24.77) (25.33) (27.52) (20.49) (23.72) (24.04)
Net operatlng expenses -
upgrading (5.11) (639 (5.10) (5.77) (5.54) (6.05) (8.13) (5.03) (6.49) (6.32)
Operating netback 3454 3866 38.20 3737 37.11 3857 4175 5473 11.32 3698

Average Qil Sands operations ($/bbl)

o8 (212) (. . 81) (284) (0.59) (1.70)

Transportation costs T ('i:z"é)' (437)""“("5':'1'5 (Q:}Ei""“"'('4.ssjm(4:56)" (423)" (434)"'""('4'1'.'5%')'
2 S B (a76)  (4.68) (4.80) ).

bitumen and upgrading (26.11) (26.68) (22.71) (24.74) (25.00) (24.71) (26.83) (20.21) (21.78) (23.15)

Operating netback 3413 3806 36.66 3406 3578 3249 3877 46.62 513 30.06
Fort HI||S (Sfbbl}

Average pnce rtla.allzed 62 92 70 71 h 60 51 h 50 77 i 6086 40 58 h 6081 h 64 33 i 30 57 ) 48 48.
" Royalties 43 (127) (1700 (10) (137)  (1.54) 073 (307)“ (14 (167
.."Transporta‘tlon costs ""M""""“""""{1297) (1361) (12 01)' (935)' . 90)'“' (8.10) '”('é:'s'us) (10 90) (10 31) (1001)'
o : . : ]

bitumen and upgrading {25.17) (24.43) (22.75) (25.19) (24.35} (106.07) (22.73) (30.69) (28.79) (30.32)

Operating netback 2335 3140 2405 1512 2324 (75.13) 28.40 1967 (9.94) 648
Syncrude ($Ibb|)

Average prlce rt.e-allzed 6836 7974. 7467 - 7281 B 7398 77 33 h 86 73 h 89 50 N 4807 ; 70 68.
" Royalties (809) (1259) (9.17) (4.49) "'('5:;-"'5}"""' (1.57) | (2 41) (249)" (1.53) (1.90)
.“.Transporta"-tlon costs  (046) (0.42) (0.60) (0.67) (0.53) (048)" 0. 57)" . 70)“ ©.38) (0.49)
e . . ) .[o.36) 049

bitumen and upgrading (31.53) (28.73) (33.80) (32.65) (31.56) (45.30) (52.27) (62.61) (28.33) (43.81)

Operating netback 2828 3800 3110 3500 33.14 2998 3148 2370 17.85 24.48

®
section of this Annual Report.
{D} Netbhacks are based on sales volumes.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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QUARTERLY OPERATING SUMMARY (continued)

(unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended For the Quarter Ended
Mar June Sept Dec Total Mar June Sept Dec Total
n 30 30 N Year kil 30 3¢ 31 Year
Exploration and Production 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

Total Sales Volumes (mboe/d) 111.8  106.1 925 1135 106.0 1219 1102 96.5 831 1028
Total Production {(mboe/d) 1071 111.7 923 1159 106.8 117.7 1141 921 90.2 1034

Production Volumes

Terra Nova (mb si ) . . 5.
.......themla (mbblsjd) 25723359251201251255179190221
........Wh'te Rose (mbblyd)11325231473850303755
'“.Hebron (mbbis/d) 15323523528223582135144157130
. Norgh Amema Onshore
(mboe/d) — — — e — 20 — — — 0.5
58.3 61.9 49.6 69.6 59.9 60.5 58.6 48.9 47.9 53.9
Exploratlon and Productlon Internatlona!
Buzzard (mboeld) 36.7 35 029226731940439 4-"“""29 6“".""27 7"-"“"34 2"
““Golden Eagle (mboe/d) 102 3237919014312 6.........12 0.........10 7"""“.12 i
United Klngdom (mboeld) 46.9 432 379 358 40.9 54.7 52.0 416 384 46.6
.....Norway oda (mb
....leya (mbb|s/d){3) 17
48.8 49.8 42.7 46.3 46.9 57.2 55.5 43.2 423 49.5

Netbacks(")“”
East Coast Canada ($Ibbl)

Average price realized 8616 9242 8125 8607 8662 8463 9730 9950 7619 9004
Royalties  (19.75) (1365) (6.50) (13.46) (13.62) (1434) (13.02) (18.75) (5.04) (1331)
Tansportation costs  (156) (184) (186) (171) (176) (184) (24) (228 @71) 222)
" Operating costs  {15.63) (10.96) (16.49) (11.28) (13.45)  (9.70) (11.21) (16.06) (23.71) (14.43)

Operating netback 4922 65.87 56.36 59.62 57.79 58.75 70.83 6241 4473 60.08
United Kingdom ($/boe)
" Average price realized 8540 S0.13 7715 8292 8417 8322 9388 9428 8531 8910
Transportation costs  (222) (224) (197) (223) @1 18 200 (222 (14 @18
" Operating costs . (5.08) {7.08) (5.29) (8.57) (643) (536) (539) (6.0 (8.94) (6.27)

Operating netback 78.09 8081 6989 7212 7557 75.72 86.29 86.02 7423 8065

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metrics Reconciliation and the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.
(D) Netbacks are based on sales volumes.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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QUARTERLY OPERATING SUMMARY (continued)

(unaudited)}

for the Quarter Ended For the Quarter Ended
Mar  June Sept Dec  Total Mar  June Sept Dec  Total
31 30 30 3 Year 31 30 30 31 Year
Refining and Marketing 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

Refined product sales (mbblsld) 542.8 5081 572.0 534.6 5394 5129 5000 5655 530.6 5274

Crude oil processed (mbbls/d) 4449 3991 4637 4475 4389 4535 3441 4572 4679 4308
..Utlllzatmn - refmmg capaﬂty (%) 95 351009795987499101 93..
Refining m;.-lrgln““(EJ ($Ibb|) 36.35 3345 2835 3480 33.15 3050 30.25 3445 4150 34.50

‘Refining operating expense® ($/bbl) 560 590 49 505 535 490 625 500 545 535
Eastern North Amerlca

h Reflned product sales (mbblsld)

Transportatlon fuels
Gasohne1205114112291215119311351173122011731173
Dm.nate10319321074102310293139349571002953

Total transportatlon fuel sales 2237 2123 230.3 2244 2227 1954 2112 2187 2180 2136
 Petrochemicals 128 125 94 79 106 141 118 90 103 113
....Asphalt 125127215173151131133205152155
....Other 275145211253221355259255257250
Total refined product sales 276.6 252.1 2824 2749 2715 2592 262.2 274.7 269.2 2664
Crude oil supply and refining

Utilization of refining capacity (%) 97 77 94 98 92 98 82 95 100 94
Western North Amem:a

Remed pmduct sa|es (.mbbls/d)

Gasoline 1261 121.2 1339 1258 1268 1201 124.2 1390 1278 1278
....Dlstlllate 118710791234110911521099333121010951075
Total transportation fuel sales 2448 229.1 257.3 236.7 242.0 2300 2125 260.0 2373 2354
Aspha|t75114131114121113143151113133
“other 439 155 142 116 138 124 110 147 128 123
Total refined product sales 266.2 256.0 289.6 259.7 267.9 253.7 237.8 2908 261.4 261.0

Utilization of refining capacity (%) 95 95 106 96 98 a9 68 102 103 a3

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metrics Reconciliation and the Cperating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.
{E) Refining Margins are a non-GAAP measure and have been restated to remove the impact of risk management activities.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

{unaudited)

($ millions) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Revenues and other income 38 989 38 986 32079 26 759 29479
Net (loss) earmngs‘“’ )

"Oql Sands (427)945

(1 150)

Exploratlon a

Corporate and Eliminations {679) {(1613) 121 {490) (2 723)
2 899 3293 4 458 445 (1 995)

Operating earnings (lossya¥e

0|i Sands 1622 885 939 (1110) 201
ExpEoratlon and ?roductlon 1 141 897 735 28 12
Reflnlng and Marketlng 2 912 3 154 2 128 1 877 1993

Corporate and Eliminations — (1 317)""-”"“ (624)"""""- (614). (878) (741)
4358 4312 3188 (83) 1 465

Funds from (used |n) operatlons“"("
“0.| Sands 505149544 73425453123
“Expfo,—at.o.n and produamn 214317791 75613501405
..Refmmg and Ma,—ketmg 3 863.............3 793 — 32425432 o
"corporate and i (1 249)......... (369),.......... (175)(550) (395)-
Total funds from operations 10 818 10172 9139 5988 6 806
Change in non-cash working capital (397) 408 (173) (308) 78
Cash flow provided by operating activities 10 421 10 580 8 966 5680 6 884

Capital and exploration expenditures (including capitalized
interest)

Exploratlon and Productlon

Corporate and Eliminations S 148 . 58 34 34 206
5558 5 406 6551 6582 6667
Total assets 89435 89 579 89 4384 88 702 77 527

(A} Prior period figures have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact
to overall consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy
Trading and Eliminations segrment.

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metrics Reconciliation and the Operating Surnmary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

{unaudited)

($ millions) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Endlng capltal employed

Short-term and long-term aebt Iess cash and cash
equwa!ents 16 010 15129 12 907 14414 11 254

Shareholders eqmty 42 042 44 005 45 383 44 630 39 039
58 052 59 134 58 290 59 044 50 293

Less capitalized costs related to major projects in progress  (2452)  (1412) (12901) (10147)  (7195)
55 600 57 722 45 389 48 897 43 098

Total Suncor employees (number at year end) 12 889 12 480 12 381 12837 13 190

Dollars per common share
. NEt eammg; (|oss) 1 352032 58 o 28 (138)
.....Operatmg eammgs (|055)(B) 2 302551 92 (o 05)101
......caSh d.wdends 1 531441 23 B 15114
“-Funds from operat,ons(ﬂl 5 945275 50 3 72 4 71 .
"“"Cash flow prowded by operatlng acthltles - ba5|c6 696545 40 3.53 4 76 i

Ratios

. .;m capltal employed (%)(Bm e
e on capital empioned (%)(s)m
T " debt plus i ehold
"Net debt to funds from operatlons (t:mes)('”(" 1.5 1.5 1.4 24 17

Interest coverage — —funds from operations basis (tlmes)“‘)m 13.4 14.1 11.2 6.5 9.3

Interest coverage — net earnings (loss) basis (times)® 35 6.4 6.5 0.5 {(1.8)

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

() Net earnings (loss) adjusted for after-tax interest expense and after-tax foreign exchange loss (gain} on U.S. denominated long-term debt for the twelve-
month period ended, divided by average capital employed. Average capital employed is the sum of sharehoiders’ equity and short-term debt plus
long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents, less average capitalized costs related to major projects in progress, on a weighted average basis.

(G} Awverage capital employed induding cagetalized costs related to major projects in progress.

(H} Short-term debt plus long-term debt, divided by the sum of short-term debt, long-term debt and shareholders’ equity.

() Short-term debt plus long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents, divided by funds from operatians for the year then ended.

() Funds from operations plus current income taxes and interest expense, divided by the sum of interest expense and capitalized interest.
(K} Net earnings {boss) plus income taxes and interest expense, divided by the sum of interest expense and capitalized interest.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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FIVE-YEAR OPERATING SUMMARY

{unaudited)

Qil Sands

2019

2018

2017

e

2015

Total Production (mbbls/d)

670.4

628.6

563.7

504.9

463.4

. Oil sands oPerations e n e e e Ak e E e e Ee A E e R e e E R KA B A e e R e e e e e e dmm s m e A 44 w4 e R4 AR RN ek R NS R A AN aAarassaassamAsassames s stm e e

”Productlon (mbblsld)

__Upgraded product (sv;reet SCO sour. SCO and dlesel)

Non-upgraded bitumen

M3
99.5

2803

138.0

w7

Oi! Sands operations production

412.8

418.3

429.4

__Mining

2588

3054 '

In Situ — MacKay River

Total bitumen production

498.8

518.0

446.4

Sales (mbbls.'d)
. nght sweet crude oil

sour crude oi

9

171.8

96.1

162.6

183.6

153.4

..Upgraded product (SCO and diesel) | . oo

Non-upgraded bitumen

3.3

1014

287 5 FETTTTPPRPPE

134.0

3190

110.6

2619 20.

1174

Sales

412.7

421.5

429.6

379.3

Natural gas

erage e D) e
.26 35.............

1.85

2385

1.40

219

1.85

2435 [

2.15

25.65
2.20

28.20

25.25

23.80

26.50

27.85

Cash operating costs — Mining bitumen production only™®© ($/bbl)

Natural gas

060

0.45

26.60

20.45

Cash operating costs - In Situ bitumen production only™® ($/bbf)

. 2.30 3.15 3.30 3.80
9.25 8.45 10.50 10.90 12.80

Natural gas

Fort Hllls Crrrsrasranraraisannaan

Bitumen production (mbblgd) T UTT 883 674 — = =

uln‘ternally upgraded bltumen frD“I:I:l. froth (mbblsld)— (1 3) — - —
Total Fort Hills Bitumen 85.3 66.1 —_ — —
Bitumen Sal.es (mbblsid)

RS . == el
Natural gas 1 20 1.20 —_— — —

26.15 31.20 — - —

.syncrude . B EE 4 NS NP PSP F P B A YA P R R mE e A E m A R e R A A E A R A Rk m A n A EE B4 NN S B e A E R E R E AN AR RS AN e s AE NN A A s EE AR imamE i tram s ra s am sl nn R
Sweet SCO Productlon (mbbisfd) 1723 1442 134.3 130.1 29.8

_Syncrude Cash operating costs™™® (§/bbij*

Naturalgas 1-10........... T T e e
37.95 47.25 44.05 35.95 42.00

{B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the QOperating Metrics Reconciliation and the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.

(C) Cash operating costs —~ Mining bitumen production per barrel costs have been restated.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT Suncor Energy Inc. 143



FIVE-YEAR OPERATING SUMMARY (continued)

{unaudited)

Oll Sands Operating Netbacks®¥™ 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
B:tumen ($Ibbl)

Average p”ce réa||zed 43 43 30 22 3832 23 86 3120
Royames (1 94) “ 70) (071) (0 23)(041)
“"“Transport;ﬁon costs (535)(552)(435) (5 33)(525)
o expenses (353)(758)(959) (11 25)(1176}

Operating netback 31.46 15.32 23.17 7.00 12.77
SCO and dlcse! (Slbbl)

Average p”ce reahzeé 7339730755 23 53 51 59 70 .
e (2 13)(163) (0 98)......... o 50 (0 55)I
......Transporta.t.‘on costs (4 24)(410)(3 81).......... (3 76).,......, (3_35)-
o operatmg expensés_ b.tumen (24 77}(2404)(21 08)......... (2359)(2371)

....NEt PR upgradmé (554)(532) (497)(654)(713)

Operating netback 37.21 36.98 34.44 20.02 24.80

Average Oil Sands operations ($/bbl)

(4.76)
Net operating expenses - bitumen and upgrading {25.00) (23.15) (21.82} (24.37) {26.07)

Operating netback 35.78 30.06 31.53 15.98 21.78
Fort H|IIs ($Ibbl)

Average prnce reahzed 60 86 48 48 — — —
Royaltles (1 37) (1 67) — — —
Transportatlon costs (11 90) (10 01) —

Net operating expenses bltumen and upgradlngm (24. 35) ."..-.(30 32)—— —

Operating netback 23.24 6.48 — — —
Syncrude ($Ibbl)

Average pnce réahzed 739370 53 ss 59 55 91 50 28
Royames (875) (1 90) (4 32).......... (1 90).......... (1 89)
......Transport;{mn costs (0 53)........ (0 49) (0.54).......... (0 53).......... (0 54)
Net operatmg expensés - brtumen and upgradlng (31 56) (43 81) (3946) (32 05) (35 69)

Operating netback 33.14 24.48 22.27 22.43 22.16

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metrics Reconciliation and the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.

(D} Netbacks are based on sales volumes.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating sumnmaries.
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FIVE-YEAR OPERATING SUMMARY (continued)

{unaudited}

Exploration and Production

219

2018

2017

2016

2015

Total Sales Volumes (mboe/d)

106.0

102.8

1208

119.3

110.6

Total Production (mboe/d)

106.8

1034

121.6

117.9

114.4

Productlon Volumes

Exploratlon and Productlon Canada

East Coast Canada
. Terra Nova (mbblsld)
sbernla (mbblsld)
" White Rose (mbbls/d)
Hebron (mbbls!d)
i North Amerlca Onshore (mboeld)

18.1

3.2

47.0

Exploration and Production International

Production (mboe.'d)

Buzzard

Go|den Eag;e

United Kingdem

Norway - Oda

Average price realized

Royalties

Transportatlon costs

Operating costs

(a43)

(11.24)

(14.15)

Operating netback

57.79

60.08

43.66

34.09

36.30

United Kingdom ($/boe)

Average price realized

Transportatlon costs

Operating costs

84.17
(2 17)

{6.43)

(6.27)

-89 10
@18

(4.62)

67.25
(1.81)

53 91
(1 84)

(5.62)

53 85 '
(2 41)
(6.29)

Operating netback

75.57

80.65

60.82

46.45

55.15

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metrics Reconcitiation and the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures

section of this Annual Report.
(D} Netbacks are based on sales volumes.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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FIVE-YEAR OPERATlNG SUMMARY {continued)

{unaudited)

Refining and Marketing 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Refined product sales (mbbls.fd) 539 4 527.4 530.5 521 A4 523.3
IICrude i processed (mbblyd) 438 9....,.......430 84412428 6............432 ; -
“Utllizatlon of refining capauty (%) 95 9396 93 94”
Refining margin ($Ibbi)“‘m 33.15 34.50 24.20 20.45 24.60
"Refmmg o expense ($fbb|)(ﬂl 5 35535505510510

Eastern North Amerlca
" Refmed product sales (mhhlsld)
) Transportatlon fuels
....Gaso!me 11981173117 511521139
""Dm.nate 1929953 85 3753911
Total transportation erI sales 222.7 213?'6... o 2043 191.5 210.0

o 221 . S i e o

Total refined product sales 2715 266.4 266.7 2533 262.8
Crude 0|I supply and refmlng

. processed a refmenes (mbb|5/d) 2033203120542{)312081
. Ut|||zat|on of ref|n|ng o, (%)9294939294

Western North America

Gasollne 126.8 127.8 125.4 1291 127.3
Dastlllate 115.2 107.6 112.5 109.8 106.9
Total transportation fuel sales 242.0 235.4 237.9 2389 234.2

Total refined product sajes 267.9 261.0 263.8 268.1 260.5
Crude cu! supply and refmmg

. processed at refmenes (mbbllsl,;d) 23552227234322552240
. Ut|||zat|on of ref|n|ng o, (%)9393939493
Retail outlets 1786 1766 1749 1731 1768

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Metrics Reconcifiation and the Operating Summary Information - Non-GAAP Financial Measures
section of this Annual Report.

(E) Refining Margins are a non-GAAP financial measure and have been restated to remove the impact of risk management activities.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION

{unaudited)

Oil Sands Nethacks*®
(% millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the quarter ended Decernber 31, 2019

Bitumen

SCC and
Diesel

Qil Sands
Qperations Fort Hills

il Ssands

Syncrude Other® Segment

Operating revenues

Other income

657

2087

2744 646 1063 (28) 4425

Purchases of crude oil and products

Gross realization adjustment®

Gross realizations

Royalties

Transportation

Transportation adjustment(s

Net transportation expenses

Operating, selling and general (O5&G)

058G adjustment®

(1 056}
212

(1167) (248) 24
218 35 124

Net operating expenses

(844)

(949) (213) {470)

Gross profit

1002

1310 127 503

Operating netback per barrel

37.37

34.06 15.12 35.00

For the quarter ended September 30, 2019

SCO and
Diesel

0il Sands

Operations Fort Hills

Operating revenues

Gross realization adjustment!®

Gross realizations

Transportation

Transportation adjustment®

Net transportation expenses

058G

(65)
{116)
05&G adjustment™®

34

Net operating expenses

(82)

(818)

{900) (192) (504}

Gross profit

Sales volumes {mbbls) )

326

1128

293 503

1454 203 465
39 642 8428 14 930

Operating netback per barrel

32.16

38.20

36.66 2405 11.10

(AY Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective cperating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor's Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) MNon-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METR'CS RECONC'LIATION (continued}

{unaudited}

Oil Sands Netbacks"*®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the quarter ended June 30, 2019 Bitumen

5CO and

Diesel

Qil $ands
Operations

0Oil Sands
Segment

Fort Hills

Syncrude

Operating revenues

her (I

Purchases of crude oil and products

Gross realization adjustment®

720

(a1)
{52}

230

{185)

3021

5 140
1
- (a04)

760

liz.

Gro:

Royalties
Transporiation

Transportation adjustment® —

2208

(143)

38

(84)

2774

38

- G

{115) !

{203)

T 326

Net transportation expenses

(105)

-(1 118)

i {1 240)

{165)

@ os0)

05&G adjustment™

Net operating expenses

(936)

{1 029)

1083

1465

Operating netback per barrel

38.66

38.06

For the quarter ended March 31, 2019 Bitumen

SCO and
Diesel

Oil Sands
QOperations

il Sands

Fort Hills Syncrude Other® Segment

Operating revenues

rass realization adjustmen

277

24

2158

2435
Other income (loss) — 24

627 4181
{10) 37 10

_.em

1143 (24}
(41)
{22)

155

Gross realizations
7}
(32}

Iti

Ro

Transportation

Transportation adjustment® —

26

2029
(40)

(156)

26

2 260
“an
(188)

446 1121

(10 {(133) {8} (198)
{102) ®) — (298)
"0 1

Net transportation expenses

05&G
05&G adjustment™ 17

(32)

{58}

236

{130)

{1083)

253

(162)

{1141)

(92} )]
(233) 619) 20 (1973)
T

a1}

Net operating expenses

(847)

(888)

(178} (516)

Gross profit 151

“Sales volumes (mbbls)

1012

1163

166 463
7 080 16 380

Operating netback per barrel 31.66

34.54

34.13

23.35 28.28

(A} Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company's segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no mmpact to
overall consolidated results. Beginriing in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Nan-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

(unaudited}

0il Sands Netbacks!*X®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the quarter ended December 31, 2018 Bitumen

il Sands
Operations

SCO and
Diesel

Qil Sands

Fort Hills  Syncrude Other® Segment

405

Operating revenues

1326
76 76

1731

508 940 {30)

111 93 18

Purchases of crude oil and products {267)

(283)
"(176)

(16)
{164)

Gross realization adjustment®

Gr lizati

126

Royalties m
{88)

Transportation

Transportation adjustment® —_

1222
(24)

{116)
20 20

1348

(25)
(204)

Net transportation expenses

OS&G
058G adjustment™® a7

{(88)

{167}

(96)
{949)

147" 194

{184)

{1116}

(619) 28 {1998)

Net operating expenses {120)

(802) {922)

(546)

Gross {loss) profit (83)

..g.a.l.e.s » umes(mbbls)

300

26545 42370

217

343
19 286

Operating netback per barrel (5.24)

11.32 5.13

17.85

For the quarter ended September 30, 2018 Bitumen

Oil Sands
Operations

5CO and
Diesel

Oil Sands

Syncrude Segment

Operating revenues

Gross realization a Justrmeny

Gross realizations

Transportation

Transportation adjustment® —

(152}
39 39

Net transportation expenses

O5&G
05&G adjustment® 35

{65}
(1149}

{113}
{315}

145 180

{178}
{1034)

{635) 28
40 24

Net operating expenses (84}

{770} {854}

{174} 611}

Gross profit 320

Sales \r'olumes {mbbls}

1646 1966

112 232
5 664 9769

Operating netback per barrel 26.41

54.73 46.62

19.67 23.70

(A) Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consclidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the aperating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

(unaudited)

Qil Sands Nethacks®*®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts}

SCO and 0il Sands 0il Sands
Bitumen Diesel Operations Fort Hills Syncrude Other® Segment

Operating revenues 703 2020 2723 558 938 (39) 4180
53

For the quarter ended June 30, 2018

Purchases of crude oil and products

Gross realization adjustment®

Transportation (a4} (148}
Transportation adjustment® — 33

Net transportation expenses {44} {115) (159) (53) {6)

OS&G {113} (981} (1034) (184) {608) 37 (1 849)

OS&GadJustmentm 5 e S
Net operating expenses {76} {815} (891) {133} {560)
Gross profit 333 952 1285 165 338

Salesvolumes(mbbls) ................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Operating netback per barrel 32.20 a41.75 38.77 2840

SCO and Oil Sands il Sands
For the quarter ended March 31, 2018 Bitumen Diesel Operations Fort Hills Syncrude Other® Segment

2532 77 1003 (13) 3599

Operating revenues 572 1 960

Other {joss) income (4) — {4) (2} 3 8 15
9 (270)

246

Purchases of crude oil and products

Gross realization adjustment® —

357 1900 2 257 990

L AU o RO o/ S o = (46)
Transportation {64) {126} (190) (26) (10} — {226)

Gross realizations

Royalti (10}

Transportation adjustment® -— 21

Net transportation expernses {64} {105} {169} {6} (&)
OS&G (127 {945) (1072) (143 (661) 1 {1875)
05&G adjustment™ 34 146 180 66 81
{93) {799) (892) an (580)
Gross profit 190 982 1172 {55} 384

5a|e, vo|umes(mbb|5)105352545335083 o 12810
32.49 {75.13) 29.98

Net operating expenses

Operating netback per barrel 17.92 38.57

{A) Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segmenits to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Efiminations segment.
(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

(unaudited)

0il Sands Netbacks!*¥e!
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)
SCO and Qil Sands Qil Sands
For the year ended December 31, 2019 Bitumen Diesel Operations Fort Hills Syncrude Cthert® Segment

Operatlng revenues 2242 8759 11 001 2738 4704 (96) 18 347

."Purchases of crude 0|I and produ
...Gross real.zanon adjustment(ﬁ) (17)(257)(234)(52)(50)
Gross reahzatlons 1 794 8 396 10 190 1 911 4 652
..Royaltles e tteesoase st sa et s ee et (72)....... (243)........ (315) O (43),...... (551)(3) (917).
. Transpo;t.atlon (234)‘.,..... (509)"""" v (395)......... (55)_ (1 293).
. S édjustment(s) Bt 125 22 21 "
Net transportatlon expenses (234) (483) (717) (373) (34)
os&G ad]ustmentm 85 372 953 155 434
Net operating expenses (321) (3 445) (3 766) {765) (1983)
Gross proflt 1 167 4 225 5 392 730 2 084
..Sales vommes (mbbls) 37 017 1 13 632 150 549 31413 52 352
Operating netback per barrel 31.46 37.21 35.78 23.24 33.14

5COand  Oil Sands H(
For the year ended December 31, 2018 Bitumen Diesel Operations  Fort Hills  Syncrude Other® J

Operating revenues 2409 8 002 10 41 1675 3 765 (108) 15743
....Other (|055) income (2)575597 135 99337 |
""purchases Of crUde o.|| and pmducts (393) (79)(972)(555) (43)12(1563) )
....Gross reahzat.on ad}uﬂmenﬂs) (35) (305)(342)(203) (1 33)
Gross reallzat|ons 1478 7 674 3152 1 014 3720

"Royalt.es (34) (179)....... (253)"-"“ (35)(100)__(393)

- Transpo;tatmn (251) (542)............(803)...‘.... (297)(44)_“144’
. N ;_:ldjustment(ﬂ e o o o 18
Net transportation expenses {261) (429) (690) {210) (26)

os&Gadjustmentm153504 S s 225
Net operating expenses (373) (32 186) (3 559) (634) {2 297)
Gross proflt 760 3 880 4 640 135 1 297

MSales vo[umes (mbbls) 48903104 916 - 153 819 20 927 52 583
Operating netback per barrel 15.32 36.98 30.06 6.48 24.48

{A} Prior periods have been restated to refiect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overa!l consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy
Trading and Eliminations segment.

{8} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Infarmation — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION continued)

{unaudited)

Oil Sands NetbacksAX®!
{$ millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Bitumen

SCO and
Diese]

il Sands
Operations

Fort Hills

Syncrude

Other®

Oil Sands
Segment

Operating revenues

Other mcome (Ioss)

Purchases of crude o:l and produr:ts

Gross realization adjustment‘”

2031
9

(36)

sy 69
(187

7 898

2929

33
82

a

©® 78

13 274
76

Gross reallzatlons

Roya tles

Tra nsportatlon

Transportatlon adjustment“’

1 546

7

(28).........
(202)

7603

120

NOC I
G ..

9149

e
e

127

3264

e

35

)

_te2n)

Net transportation expenses

OS&G

" 0saG adjustment‘”

96

s ..
ey LB

(443) aammiemnaes
(3 604) amereen

569

665

38 ...
@ o e

(27)..............

(.2 o5 -

261

21

6 262)

Net operating expenses

(388)

(3 035)

(3 423)

{1934

Gross prof|t
Sales volumes (mbbls)

935
40 365

4010

116 451

4 945
156 816

1 091

49 022

Operating netback per barrel

23.17

34.44

31.53

22.27

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Bitumen

SCO and
Diesel

0il $ands
Operations

Fort Hills

Syncrude

Other#

©Oil Sands
Segment

Operating revenues —
S Othermcome ..................................................................... e ..................... 2 ..................... g ................... e 1 75 ................... 30
....... purchasesofcrudeonandproducts(431)(5{))(491)_(57)_(543)
....... Grossreallzatlonadjustmentlﬁi17(152)(145)_(57)
Gross realizations 1 026 5128 6154 — 2710
..Royames (10)4838 - (go) - (52)
_ Transportation @31 @s2)  (683) — G0y (10 (743)

Transportation adjustment(""

Net transpo expenses

(231)

(360)

Q5&G adjustment!”

112

568

680

223

Net operating expenses

(483)

(2 900)

(3 383)

{1526}

Gross profit

Sales volumes (mbbls)

302
42 973

1916

95 852

2218

138 825

1 069

47 614

Operating netback per barrel

7.00

20.02

15.98

2243

(Ay Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the companys segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with ne impact 1o
overall consalidated results. Beginning in 2018, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor's Energy Trading business resufts were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and £liminations segment.

{B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information -~ Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

(unaudited)

Oil Sands NetbacksA®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)

SCO and Oil Sands Oil Sands
For the year ended December 31, 2015 Bitumen Diesel Operations Fort Hills Syncrude Other® Segment
Operating revenues 1480 7 282 8 762 — 673 7 9442

Other income

49

Purchases of crude 0|I and products (228)

96

I

145 —
(303) -

— 308
(16} 1

453
(308)

Gross reallzation adjustment‘sl {75) (314) (—389) - 5
Gross rea||zat|ons 1 226 6 989 8 215 — 662
"Royames (16).......... (77)........ (93)_(21)_ (114).
- T;anspo;-{atmn (246).......... (496)......... (742)__(5)(7) (755).
. o édjustment(s) e o o L .
Net transportation expenses (246) (393) (639) — (6}
....... os&Gad}ustmentm115530695_77
Net operating expenses {462) (3 615) {4 077) — (394)
Gross proﬁt 502 2 904 3 406 — 241
“Sales volumes (mbbls) 39297 117094 156391  — 10875
Operating nethack per barrel 12.77 24.80 21.78 — 22.16
Syncrude Cash Operating Costs®
($ millicns, except per barrel amounts)
For the quarter ended
Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31 Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
2019 2019 2019 2m9 2018 2018 2018 2018
Syncrude 058G 619 625 629 594 661 608 635 619
..Non pmductlon costsm (12)(25)(24)(20)(10)(5)(11)(7)
Syncrude cash operating costs 607 599 605 574 651 603 624 612
“Syncrude sales volumes (mbbls) 16380 17169 14930 14383 12810 10718 9769 19286
Syncrude cash operating costs ($/bbl) 37.05 34.90 40.50 39.85 50.75 56.25 63.85 31.75
For the year ended
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Syncrude OS&G 2 467 2 523 2 195 1 749 471

Non- productlon cos‘ts“"

[

(33) (37) (31)...........

(14)

Syncrude cash ope costs

Syncrude sales volumes (mbbls)

2385 2490 2158 1 718
62 862 52 583 49 022 47 614

457

10 876

Syncrude cash operating costs ($/bbl)

37.95 47.25 44.05 35.95

42.00

{A) Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the companys segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with na impact to
overall consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) MNon-GAAF financial measures. See the Operating Sumemary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

{unaudited}

Exploration and Production Netbacks¥®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the quarter ended December 31, 2019
United East Coast E&P
Kingdom Canada  Other®™ Segment

For the quarter ended December 31, 2018

United East Coast
Kingdom Canada

E&P
Other® Segment

Operating revenues 273 532 193 998

RS e SO COT0)
Transportation {7 (10) @) 21)
038G M ... SN oo M o AN L A

Non-production costs®*? 4 8

301 286

8 12

—
I
L

184 7
020 a3
e 020
(5 (158

Gross realizations 238 369

Sales volumes (mboe) 3289 6176

262 168

3531 3758

Operating nethack per barrel 72.12 59.62

74.23 44.73

For the guarter ended September 30, 2019
United East Coast E&F
Kingdom Canada  Other® Segment

For the quarter ended September 30, 2018

United East Coast
Kingdom Canada

E&P
Other™® Segment

Operating revenues 269 393 84 746

Non-production costs('® 4 13

Gross realizations 244 272

329 306

) 3 827 4 305

Operating netback per barrel €9.89 56.36

86.02 62.41

For the quarter ended June 30, 2019
United East Coast E&F
Kingdom Canada  Other® Segment

For the quarter ended June 30, 2018

United  East Coast
Kingdom Canada

E&P
Other®  Segment

Operating revenues 354 507 133 994

S T
BBk TRV AR, 1o SO 50 SO 4! SO0
0S&G @2) ®) (13 (1)

Non-production costs(® 5 g

444 484

4 13

P T
A O L1
(30) (69

204 1132
(2) (187

(M (22)
49w

Gross realizations 318 361

Sales volumes {mboe) 3923 5 489

408 352

4728 4973

Operating netback per barrel 80.81 65.87

86.29 70.83

(A} Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the companys segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor's Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.

{8} Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Surnmary information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

(unaudited)

Exploration and Production Netbacks'A®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the quarter ended March 31, 2019 For the quarter ended March 31, 2018
United  East Coast E&P United  East Coast E&P
Kingdom Canada  Other® Segment Kingdom Canada  Other® Segment

Operating revenues 360 491 86 937 409 478 130 107
Royalties — (112} {61) {173} — (82} (79) (161)

058G 26 (108) (16 (148) 32) & D (1
Nonproducnoncosts“"?41s714
Gross realizations 329 280 373 332
Salesvolumes(mboe)4217559349205647
Operating netback per barrel 78.09 49.22 75.72 58.75

United  East Coast
for the year ended December 31, 2019 Kingdom Canada  Other“)jiSegments

Operating revenues 1256 1923 496 3675
Royah;.es_(302)(303){505) |
Transportat[on(32)(39)(9)(80)
Non_produmoncosts(w)1745

Gross realizations 1129 1282
sa|esvo|umes(mboe)1491722190

Operating netback per barrel 75.57 57.79

United  East Coast
for the year ended December 31, 2018 Kingdom Canada  Other®)

Operating revenues 1515 1736 618 3869
RoyaIt]es--»(257)(395)(652)
‘Nom-production costs™ Ty ey :
1372 1158 -
Salesvolumes(mboe) 1700519233
Operating netback per barrel 80.65 60.08

Gross realizati

(A) Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overall consclidated resuits. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading busiress is included within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading aclivity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading Dusiness results were reported within the Corporate, Energy
Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

{unaudited)

Exploration and Production Netbacks™®
{$ millians, except per barrel amounts)

United  East Coast
for the year ended December 31, 2017 Kingdom Canada 4o
Operating revenues 1557 1 323 607 ¥
. hoie L (255) . (310)(575)
.Transporta..tlon (42)......... e ‘. (9)(35) :
.Non pmduction costs(m) 20 39
. GTOSS reallzatlons tesraan 1 408 813 '.

Sales voEumes (mboe) 23 15‘.-' 18 623
Operating netback per barrel 60.82 43.66

United  East Coast E&P
For the year ended December 31, 2016 Kingdom Canada  Other® Segment

Operating revenues 1276 1 119 54 2449
. o B (201) (12) (213).
.Transporta“tm-n (44) (36) (11) (91).
. Non pmdumon costs("-‘? 1339

Gross realizations 1099 643
Saiesvoiumes(mboe) ............................................................................................................................ 2 3553 .......... 1 8349 ..........................................

Operating netback per barrel 46.45 34.09

United  East Coast
For the year ended December 31, 2015 Kingdom Canada  Other®)

Operating revenues 1505 1 019 101
Royal‘ﬂes — (195) (72)
Transportatlon (57) (34) (20) 1@
(175) (258) (75) (508)
Non- productlon costst 27 36
Gross reallzatlons 1 300 568

. Sales volumes (mboe) 23 580 15 643
Operating netback per barrel 55.15 36.30

(A) Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company’s segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact ta
overall consolidated resuits. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is indluded within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor’s Energy Trading business results were reported within the Corporate, Energy
Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Information — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING METRICS RECONCILIATION (continued)

{unaudited)

Refining and Marketing®*®
($ millions, except per barrel amounts)

For the quarter ended

Mar 31 June 30 Sept30 Dec3t Mar31 June 30 Sept30 Dec3i
2019 2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
Gross margm‘”) 2140 1647 1653 1568 1785 1639 1987 171
"Other o (|oss) 15141333 - (17) (15) 10... 90
..Non reﬂnmg margmm} (587)(325)(353)(54) (415) (520) . (431)115
Reflmng margln‘“' 1 568 1 335 1 313 1 547 T 353 1 004 1 566 1 916
Refinery production (mbbls)® 43143 39901 46239 44422 34363 33165 45465 16145
Refining margin ($/bbl) 36.35 3345 2835 3480 3050 30.25 3445 4150
Last-in, first-out (LIFO) Adjustment (333) 7 @ 7 (11) (96) — 444
Adjusted LIFO Refining Margin® 1235 1342 1309 1554 1,342 908 1566 2360
Adjusted LIFO Refining Margin ($/bbl)® 28.65 33.65 2830 3495 3025 2740 3445 5115
05&G 536 530 531 576 492 494 519 538
Non_ref|n|ngc05t5(14) .................................................................. (294) ........ (295) ........ (305) ........ ( 352)(274)(283) ........ (292) ........ (233)
Net operatmg expenses 242 235 226 224 218 206 227 250
‘Refinery production (mbbls)®? 43143 39901 46239 44422 44363 33165 45465 46145
Refining operating expense ($/bbi) 5.60 5.90 4.90 5.05 4.90 6.25 5.00 5.45
For the year ended
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Gross margln‘”’ 7008 7122 5744 5552 6021
-_Other mcome (Ioss) 7568 - 16 - 4 (173)
“Non reflnlng margln‘”’ (1 320) (1 351) (1 541) (2 108) (1 629)
Refining margm‘“* 5763 5839 4219 3448 4219
"Refmery produmon (mbb|5)(13) 173 o 169 138 174 451 163 793 1_” 581 o
Refining margin ($/bbl) 3315 3450 2420 2045 2460
LIFO Adjustment (323) 337 {96) (63} 149
Adjusted LIFO Refining Margin® 5440 6176 4123 3385 4368
Adjusted LIFO Refining Margin ($/bbl)® 3130 3650 23.65 20.05 2545
058G 2173 2043 2003 2194 2215
“Non reflnmg costs“‘“ (1 246) (1 142) (1 121) (1 334) (1 334)
Refining operatmg expense 927 90 882 860 881
..Refmery S (mbb|5)(13) 173705169133174451153798171531
Refining operating expense ($/bbl) 5.35 5.35 5.05 5.10 5.10

(A} Prior periods have been restated to reflect the change to the company's segmented presentation of its Energy Trading business, with no impact to
overal! consolidated results. Beginning in 2019, the Energy Trading business is induded within each of the respective operating business segments to
which the respective trading activity relates, where previously Suncor's Energy Trading business resuits were reported within the Corporate, Energy

Trading and Eliminations segment.

(B) Non-GAAP financial measures. See the Operating Summary Infermation — Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this Annual Report.
(E) Refining Margins are a non-GAAP financial measure and have been restated to remove the impact of risk management activities.

See accompanying footnotes and definitions to the operating summaries.
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OPERATING SUMMARY INFORMATION

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Certain financial measures in this Supplemental Financial and Operating Information — namely operating earnings (loss), funds from (used in) operations
(previously referred to as cash flow from (used in} operations), return on capital employed {ROCE), Oil Sands operations cash operating costs (previously
referred to as Qil Sands cash operating costs), Syncrude cash operating costs, Fort Hills cash aperating costs, In Situ cash operating costs, mining cash
operating costs, refining margin, refining operating expense and netbacks - are not prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles {(GAAP). Suncor
uses this information to analyze business performance, leverage and liquidity and includes these financial measures because investors may find such measures
useful on the same basis. These non-GAAP financial measures do not have any standardized meaning and, therefore, are uniikely to be comparable to similar
measures presented by other companies. The additional information should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Operating earnings (loss), Oii Sands operations cash operating costs and Fort Hilis cash operating costs for each quarter in 2019 and 2018 are defined in the
Non-GAAP Financial Measures Advisory section and reconciled to the most directly comparable GAAP measures in the Consolidated Financial Information and
Segment Results and Analysis sections of each respective quarterly Report 1o Shareholders issued by Suncor in respect of the relevant quarter (Quarterly
Reports). funds from {used in} operations and ROCE for each quarter in 2019 and 2018 are defined and reconciled to the most directly comparabie GAAP
measures in the Non-GAAP Financial Measures Advisory section of each respective Quarterly Repart. Operating earnings {loss), funds from (used in}
operations, ROCE and Oil Sands operations cash operating costs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are defined and reconciled in Suncor’s
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 are defined and
reconciled in Suncor’s Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2019, which is contained in the annual report (the 2019
MD&A). Refining margin, refining operating expense and Syncrude cash operating costs for each quarter in 2619 and 2018 and for the years ended
December 31, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are defined in the 2019 MD&A and reconciled to the most directly comparable GAAP measures in the
Operating Metrics Reconciliation section of this Supplemental Financial and Operating Information. Netbacks for each quarter in 2019 and 2018 and for the
years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are defined below and are reconciled to the most directly comparable GAAP measures in the
Operating Metrics Reconciliation section of this Supplemental Financial and Operating Information. The remainder of the non-GAAP financial measures not
otherwise mentioned in this paragraph are defined and reconciled in the 2019 MD&A.

il Sands Netbacks

0il Sands operating netbacks are a non-GAAP measure, presented on a crude product and sales barrel basis, and are derived from the Qil Sands segmented
statement of net earnings {toss), after adjusting for items not directly attributable to the revenues and costs associated with preduction and delivery.
Management uses Qil Sands operating netbacks to measure crude product profitability on a sales barrel basis.

Exploration and Production (E&P} Netbacks

E&P netbacks are a non-GAAP measure, presented on an asset location and sales barrel basis, and are derived from the E&P segmented statement of net
earnings {loss), after adjusting for items not directly attributable to the costs associated with production and delivery. Management uses E&P operating
netbacks to measure asset profitability by location on a sales barrel basis.

Definitions

{1) Cash operating costs — Include cash costs that are defined as operating, selling and general expenses {excluding inventory changes and non-production
costs}, and are net of operating revenues associated with excess power from cogeneration units. Oil Sands operations cash operating costs are
presented on a production basis by adjusting for inventory impacts, while Syncrude production volumes are equal to sales volumes.

(2)  Syncrude’s capacity to upgrade bitumen to an intermediary sour SCO 5 350,000 bbls/d.

(3) Effective 2016, Libyan production volumes reflect the company’s entitlement share of production sold in the period.

{4) Reflects non-producing Oil Sands assets and enterprise shared service allocations and recoveries.

{5) Reflects the impact of items not directly attributed to revenues received from the sale of proprietary crude and net non-proprietary activity at its
deemed point of sale.

(6) Reflects adjusirnents for expenses or credits not directly related to the transportation of the crude product to its deemed point of sale. For Oil Sands
operations bitumen and SCQ, the point of sale is at the final customer, whereas Syncrude sweet SCO is deemed to be sold into the sweet synthetic
crude oil poal in Edmonton, Alberta. Expenses or credits adjusted out of the netback transportation line include, but are not limited to, costs associated
with the sale of non-proprietary product on pipelines with unutlized capacity under minimum volume commitment agreements.

{7) Refiects adjustments for operating, selling and generai expenses not directly attributed to the production of each crude product type, as well as the
revenues associated with excess power from cogeneration units.

(8) Reflects adjustments for operating, selling and general expenses not directly attributable to Syncrude production.

{9) Reflects other E&P assets, such as North America Onshore, Norway and Libya for which netbacks are not provided.

(10) Reflects adjustments for general and administrative costs not directly attributed to production.

{11} Operating revenues less purchases of crude il and products.

(12) Reftects the gross margin associated with the company’s supply, marketing and ethano! businesses, as well as a previously owned {ubricants business.

(13} Refinery production is the output of the refining precess, and differs from crude oil processed as a resuit of volumetric adjustments for non-crude
feedstock, volumetric gain associated with the refining process, and changes in unfinished product inventories.

(14) Refiects operating, selling and general costs associated with the company's supply, marketing, lubricants {previously owned} and ethanal businesses, as
wel! as certain general and administrative costs not directly attributable to refinery production.

Explanatory Note

* Users are cautioned that the Qil Sands operations cash operating costs, Fort Hills cash operating costs and Syncrude cash costs per barrel measure may
not be fully comparable to similar information calculated by ather entities due to differing operations of each entity as well as their respective
accounting palicy choices.
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Abbreviations

bbl barrel

bbls/d barrels per day

mhbbls thousards of barrels

mbbls/d  thousands of barrels per day

hoe barrels of oil equivaient

boesd barrels of oil equivalent per day

mboe thousands of barrels of oil equivalent
mboefd  thousands of barrels of oil equivalent per day
5CO synthetic crude oil
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SHARE TRADING INFORMATION

{unaudited}

Common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and New York Stock Exchange under the symbol 5U.

For the Quarter Ended For the Quarter Ended
Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31 Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
2019 2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018

Share ownership

Average number cutstanding,
weighted monthly {thousands)®® 1573 558 1560 729 1542 063 1531874 1633816 1627222 1611116 1584484

Share price (dollars)

Toronto Stock Exchange

High 54.39 55.47 51.78
Low

Close
New York Stock Exchan

Shares traded (thousands)

Toronto Stock Exchange 258657 216176 226995 211812 196070 207263 156451 282618
New York Stock Exchange 227456 182128 214234 177708 215310 226242 177746 296852

Net earnings {loss) attributable to
common shareholders 0.93 1.74 0.67 {1.52) 0.48 0.60 1.12 {0.18)

Dividend per common share 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36

{a) The company had approximately 6,325 registered hotders of record of common shares as at lanuary 31, 2020,

Information for Security Holders Outside Canada

Cash dividends paid to sharehoiders resident in countries other than Canada (non-Canadian shareholders) are subject to
Canadian withholding tax. The statutory rate of Canadian withholding tax on dividends is 25%, subject to reduction under an
applicable tax treaty between Canada and another country. For example, under the tax treaty between Canada and the
United States, the withholding tax rate is generally reduced to 15% on dividends paid to residents of the United States that
are eligible for the benefit of that tax treaty. The Canada Revenue Agency has released forms, applicable after 2012, for
non-Canadian shareholders to evidence entitlement to a reduced withholding tax rate under a tax treaty. The agents
responsible for withholding tax on dividends will generally need to have a duly completed form from a non-Canadian
shareholder on file by a particular dividend record date in order for such agents to withhold tax at an applicable treaty-
reduced rate, rather than the full statutory rate of 25%. Non-Canadian shareholders are encouraged to contact their broker
{or other applicable agent) regarding the completion and delivery of these forms.

As shareholders are responsible 1o ensure compliance with Canadian Tax laws and regulations, shareholders are strongly
encouraged to seek professional tax and legal counsel with respect to any and all tax matters.
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LEADERSHIP AND BOARD MEMBERS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

Leadership

Mark Little
President and Chief Executive Officer

Eric Axford
Chief Sustainability Officer

Alister Cowan
Chief Financial Officer

Bruno Francoeur
Chief Transformation Officer

Paul Gardner
Chief People Officer

Mike MacSween
Executive Vice President, Upstream

Steve Reynish
Executive Vice President, Strategy and Operations Services

Kris Smith
Executive Vice President, Downstream

Arlene Strom
Chief Legal Officer, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

Board of Directors

Michael Wilson
Chair of the Board
Bragg Creek, Alberta

Mark Little

President and Chief Executive Officer
Suncor Energy Inc.

Calgary, Alberta

Patricia Bedient"d
Chair, Audit Committee
Sammamish, Washington

Mel Benson®H?
Calgary, Alberta

John Gass@X3

Chair, Human Resources and
Compensation Committee
Palm Coast, Florida

Dennis Houston®®
Spring, Texas

Brian MacDonald("®
Naples, Florida

Maureen McCawi

Chair, Environment, Health, Safety and Sustainable
Development Committee

Edmonton, Alberta

Lorraine Mitchelmore!
Calgary, Alberta

Eira Thomas@®
Chair, Governance Commitiee
Chiswick, United Kingdom

(1} Audit committee member
(2) Governance committee member
(3} Human resources and compensation commitiee member

(4) Environment, health, safety and sustainable development
committee member
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Suncor Energy Inc.

150 - 6 Avenue 5.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 3E3
T: 403-296-8000

suncor.com




